
MEETING: Full Council (Special Meeting)
DATE: Thursday, 19 December 2019
TIME: 10.00 am
VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall

AGENDA

1.  Declarations of Interests  

To receive any declarations of interest of a pecuniary or non-pecuniary nature 
from Members in respect of the items on this agenda.

2.  Barnsley West (MU1) Masterplan Framework (Round 2) (Cab.11.12.2019/10)  
(Pages 3 - 316)

RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL:

(i) that the progress made in the development of the Masterplan Framework 
for Barnsley West (MU1) as detailed in the report now submitted be noted; 
and 

(ii) that the final version of the Masterplan Framework be adopted.

3.  Hoyland North Masterplan Framework (Round 2) (Cab.11.12.2019/11)  (Pages 
317 - 556)

RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL:

(i) that the progress made in the development of the Masterplan Framework 
for Hoyland North as detailed in the report now submitted be noted; and 

(ii) that the final version of the Masterplan Framework be adopted.

Sarah Norman
Chief Executive

Wednesday, 11 December 2019

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 1

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

This matter is a Key Decision within the council’s definition and has been 
included in the relevant Forward Plan. 

Report of the Executive Director for PLACE

Barnsley West (MU1) Masterplan Framework

1. Purpose of report
1.1 To update Cabinet on progress in developing the Barnsley West (MU1) 

Masterplan Framework and to seek approval for adoption. 

2. Recommendations
It is recommended that:

2.1 Full Council notes the progress made in the development of the 
Masterplan Framework for Barnsley West (MU1); and 

2.2 Full Council accepts the recommendation to adopt the final version of 
the Masterplan Framework following approval at Cabinet (11 December 
2019).

3. Introduction
3.1 The Council’s Local Plan was adopted on 3rd January 2019. When the Local 

Plan was being examined it was agreed that for the larger, strategic sites it 
was necessary to prepare Masterplan Frameworks to ensure that sites could 
be developed in a comprehensive manner taking into account cumulative 
infrastructure requirements. Looking at large allocations in this way, rather 
than a piecemeal fashion dictated by land ownerships, ensures that we can 
make the best use of sites and secure sustainable and inclusive growth 
reflecting each of our corporate priorities. 

3.2 Whilst each Masterplan Framework will be bespoke to the area, the Local Plan 
prescribes that the Masterplan Frameworks shall contain the following:

 A planning policy summary, site location and description, land ownership, a 
summary of the existing evidence, site evaluation (opportunities and 
constraints),  a land use framework, sustainable movement framework, 
protection of existing public rights of way routes and their incorporation within 
new development layouts, vehicular movement framework, green and blue 
infrastructure framework, place-making framework (including design guides for 
character and neighbourhood areas where applicable), sustainability and  
energy use, health and wellbeing, design evolution, conceptual masterplan, 
infrastructure and delivery phasing.

3.3 The Local Plan also states that Masterplan Frameworks shall be subject to 
public consultation and be approved by the Council prior to the determination 
of any planning applications on the affected sites.

Page 3

Item 2



- 2 - 2

4. Barnsley West (MU1) Masterplan Framework

4.1 The Barnsley West Masterplan Framework encompasses the full extent of 
Local Plan Mixed Use Site MU1.

4.2 A Masterplan Project Board for Barnsley West was established earlier this 
year.  The Board has been established consisting of council officers, the 
Barnsley West Consortium which is a joint venture between Strata Homes and 
Sterling Capitol, and their agents. The final Masterplan Framework document 
has been produced by the Strata Sterling Barnsley West Consortium (SSBW) 
and council officers. The Masterplan Framework has been funded by SSBW.

4.3 An illustrative layout together with a masterplan vision were presented in a six 
week public consultation exercise in September/October 2019. Full details of 
the public consultation exercise will be made available as part of the 
Statement of Community Involvement. In summary, the public consultation 
included: 

 Two x four hour exhibitions at at Barugh Green Club and St Thomas 
Community Centre

 Member briefing
 One exhibition at the Darton West Ward Alliance
 Two x briefing events for Keep it Green 2014
 One briefing event for the Redbrook TARA
 Display boards and information packs at Library @ the lightbox
 Information pack at Library @ the lightbox
 Media releases
 Social media campaign including a short video
 Leaflet drop to residents living close to the Masterplan site
 Email notification to internal and external consultees
 21 site notices erected in the surrounding areas

4.4 Following the end of the public consultation period Pegasus reviewed all 
questionnaire feedback.  The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 
provides a summary of comments received for each theme of the Masterplan 
Framework, however the full responses can be provided on request. The SCI 
and Design Evolution section of the Masterplan Framework set out how this 
feedback has shaped the final Masterplan Framework.  Examples include :

 Healthcare Capacity-Public consultation feedback indicated concerns 
relating to healthcare capacity. Barnsley Council has worked in partnership 
with the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) to develop a healthcare 
briefing note which sets out the current provision in the CCG 
neighbourhood area and a commitment to engage with local GP practices 
to plan and respond to growth, this may include workforce recruitment 
and/or upskilling the existing workforce;

 Impact during construction.  Public consultation feedback indicated 
concerns relating to the likely 15 year build programme, impact on existing 
residents including impact on noise and air quality.  In response the 

Page 4



- 3 - 3

Masterplan Framework has set out a clear requirement for a Construction 
Management Plan to be submitted as part of a planning application and 
encourages developers to explore opportunities to use a best practice 
Customised Code of Considerate Construction Conduct in order to provide 
a positive commitment to existing residents and a pro-active approach to 
ongoing community liaison during construction   

 Climate emergency - Following the declaration of the climate emergency 
the Masterplan Framework now sets out the Council’s expectations for new 
development. This takes into account responses to question 12 of the 
consultation questionnaire. The public considered the following to be 
important principles in achieving sustainable development and reducing 
the impact on climate change; investing in green open space that can 
deliver a wide range of environmental benefits (52% of respondents), 
landscaped areas that hold water during wet periods (45% of 
respondents), and sustainable design and construction techniques (36% of 
respondents). The Masterplan Framework sets out a requirement to; 
incorporate space in new homes to accommodate low-carbon technology 
in the future, demonstrate compliance with the latest sustainability 
standards, and include measures to minimise carbon emissions and waste 
material over the lifetime of the development. The Masterplan Framework 
also sets out the level of detail required in Energy Statements. If zero 
carbon cannot be achieved, developers should demonstrate why this has 
not been possible and explain what steps have been taken in the provision 
of infrastructure and the design of individual properties to achieve zero 
carbon through retro fit at a future point.

 Sustainable travel – Question 11 of the consultation questionnaire 
focussed on minimising the impact of development upon the highway 
network. 64% of respondents thought that directing traffic away from 
residential areas would help reduce the impact, whilst 38% of respondents 
considered the promotion of walking and cycling would help to reduce the 
impact.  In addition 33% of respondents considered that the promotion of 
bus use to and from the site would help to reduce the impact.  This was 
echoed in stakeholder comments such as the National Trans Pennine Trail 
Office.  In response, the Masterplan Framework clearly recognises that 
public transport will play an essential role in reducing congestion in the 
area and the potential benefits to people’s health by encouraging walking 
and cycling.  On this basis, the Masterplan Framework requires the 
planning applications to be supported by a Framework Travel Plan which 
encourages trips to the site to be made by sustainable modes of transport.  
It also recognises that the existing public transport accessibility of the site 
is unlikely to adequately support the development of the site and as a 
result sets out a requirement for a programme of bus service 
enhancements which will be required to address frequency, convenience 
and attractiveness.  Furthermore the Masterplan Framework requires 
planning applications to set out how the site has been designed to provide 
sustainable forms of transport to ensure that accessibility is achieved for 
all.

 Capacity of highways infrastructure and impact on traffic flows.  A 
series of technical assessments have been undertaken to determine the 
impact that the development will have on traffic flows in the surrounding 

Page 5



- 4 - 4

area.  Planning applications will be expected to present the traffic 
modelling data which demonstrate whether the existing highway network 
has capacity to accommodate additional numbers and where modelling 
indicates the requirement for future highways improvements works.

 Link Road -Public consultation feedback indicated concerns relating to the 
additional traffic generated during construction (any additional traffic 
including construction vehicles) and the impact that would have on 
surrounding communities prior to the opening of the link road.  In response 
the Masterplan Framework has included a clear expectation that the link 
road should be delivered as early as possible in the development in order 
to enhance early connectivity and deliver local community benefit.  Options 
for earlier delivery of the link road than the indicative threshold in the 
transport modelling will be explored further at the planning application 
stage when more detailed assessment of the surrounding highway network 
will be undertaken.

 Loss of existing green infrastructure.  A series of landscape and 
ecological assessments have been undertaken which provide a baseline to 
understand which features of the site should be afforded consideration and 
protection through the Masterplan Framework.  The Masterplan 
Framework embeds the principles of the health scape and seeks to deliver 
a landscape led scheme that provides a variety of good quality green 
corridors throughout the site, connecting to the wider area.

 Stewardship and maintenance of green spaces – Green space was 
identified as the second most important feature of the existing site (69% of 
respondents) with existing trees and vegetation the most important feature 
(74% of respondents). Following concerns raised by Members and 
residents across the borough regarding the long-term maintenance of 
greenspace on new developments, there has been active engagement with 
Yorkshire Wildlife Trust and the Land Trust. Both organisations are 
amenable to partnership working, are charitable in nature, and focus on 
key principles including; biodiversity gain, health, education and learning, 
as well as community cohesion and volunteering. The Masterplan 
Framework clearly sets out the Council’s expectations in terms of 
appointing a single management organisation/trust, and promotes early 
engagement to allow for input into the design of biodiversity assets 
including attenuation basins, green space and swales. This will help to 
‘design out’ future maintenance issues.

 Design of green space, play spaces– Public feedback indicated that to 
maximise usage, new facilities should be; high-quality that are clean, safe 
and well-maintained (46% of respondent), well-located facilities accessed 
by footpaths/cycle routes with secure and convenient cycle parking (43% 
of respondents) and Community involvement in the use of the spaces 
(33% of respondents).  The Masterplan Frameworks creates a healthscape 
that includes connected cycle routes, a range of formal and informal 
spaces and the design principles set emphasise the need for natural 
surveillance of green space, clean and well maintained signage, 
appropriate surfacing, lighting and heart spaces throughout the 
development.  These principles seek to maximise usage and provide a 
range of formal and informal spaces to attract all age groups.

Page 6



- 5 - 5

 Landscape impact/site topography – A significant concern raised during 
the consultation process was the potential scale of the employment units, 
topography of the site and landscape impact of the proposal.  Further work 
has been undertaken to understand the proposed cut and fill exercise in 
order to create development platforms.  The Masterplan Framework now 
requires the submission of a detailed landscape and visual impact 
assessment to be submitted with the planning application in order to 
determine whether the proposed levels sufficiently complement the 
surrounding landscape and minimises the impact on neighbouring areas.  
The text now states that in  the event that this work results in the proposed 
configuration being deemed unacceptable, further earthworks modelling 
will be required to inform alternative options that minimise the impact.

 Broadband infrastructure - Following further consultation on the delivery 
of broadband infrastructure, the Masterplan Framework has evolved to 
include a requirement for developers to deploy gigabit-capable full-fibre 
broadband infrastructure across the whole Masterplan Framework area. 
This is above and beyond the current requirement for full-fibre broadband 
infrastructure therefore future-proofing the development. In addition, the 
Masterplan Framework will support the deployment of broadband 
infrastructure from a range of providers, this will avoid one provider 
monopolising the new development and offer consumers choice and 
competition. The Masterplan Framework also includes design principles to 
minimise the impact of infrastructure upon place making principles, 
including; visual impact and physical obstructions on footpaths and 
cycleways.

 Housing mix, scale & Design  – Questions 6-8 of the consultation 
questionnaire focussed on the type, size and tenure of housing to be 
delivered. The greatest preference was for:

o Bungalows (78% of respondents), Semi-Detached (64% of 
respondents) and detached (59% of respondents) 

o 3 bed (83% of respondents), 2 bed (70% of respondents) and 4 bed 
(47% of respondents)

o A mix of market and affordable homes (45% of respondents)
In recognition of the concerns raised around the relationship between the 
proposed and existing residential properties, the Masterplan Framework 
recognises that all boundaries around the site with existing development 
are sensitive edges.  The Design Code seeks to ensure that the 
parameters set will protect existing and proposed residential amenity levels 
through consideration of scale, massing, boundary treatment and 
appropriate materials palette.  This will ensure that the proposed dwellings 
do not overshadow existing single storey dwellings.  The overall housing 
mix will be determined by the Strategic Housing Market Assessment at the 
time the planning application is submitted.  The Masterplan Framework 
and Design Code allows for a broad range of house types (including 
bungalows) to be delivered whilst maintaining consistency in design 
principles across the site.

 Design code-In order to provide design consistency and quality across the 
site and to provide certainty to residents and stakeholders through the 

Page 7



- 6 - 6

planning process, a Design Code has been developed to sit alongside the 
Masterplan Framework.  The Design Code is not a policy requirement but 
has evolved in order to set clear parameters and set a benchmark for 
quality across the development.  Government guidance states that “design 
codes can be commissioned or prepared by either the local planning 
authority or developer, but are best prepared in partnership to secure 
agreed design outcomes and maintain viability, particularly across complex 
sites and phased and multi-developer schemes”.  The Design Code has 
therefore been prepared on this basis with significant input from the 
Council and the independent Barnsley Urban Design Advisory Panel 
(BURDAP).

4.5 This report seeks Cabinet approval to adopt the Masterplan Framework for 
Barnsley West (MU1).  The site has the capacity to deliver 1700 homes and 
43 hectares of employment land together with a new primary school, 
community facilities and small scale retail facilities. 

4.6 Appendices comprises the following: 

 Appendix A: Financial Implications
 Appendix B: Combined Masterplan Framework & Design Code
 Appendix C: Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)
 Appendix D: Equalities Impact Assessment

4.7 As well as having regard to all necessary Planning Policy and Supplementary 
Planning Document (SPD) requirements, the Barnsley West (MU1) 
Masterplan Framework document also considers:

 Topographical constraints
 Existing biodiversity assets 
 Coal mining legacy 
 Access and crossing requirements 
 Impact upon the Strategic Road Network
 Travel Planning 
 Public Rights of Way
 Heritage assets
 Archaeological constraints
 Climate change and sustainability
 Infrastructure phasing and delivery
 School place planning
 Public health and service planning
 Delivery of open space
 New formal recreation facilities
 Air quality
 Acoustic measures
 Utilities including broadband infrastructure

5. Consideration of alternative approaches

Page 8



- 7 - 7

5.1 The Council could have instructed an independent masterplanning consultant 
to produce the Masterplan Framework however the Council has worked 
alongside developers to shape the scope and format of the final document, 
including the process for public consultation. This approach is consistent with 
the Local Plan which promotes working with developers, partners and 
agencies to facilitate development on key sites.

6. Proposal and justification

6.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approve the proposal to adopt the Barnsley 
West (MU1) Masterplan Framework.

6.2 The Masterplan Framework will allow development to come forward on 
strategic sites, ensuring that new developments positively support, and 
contributes to, existing communities, their services and infrastructure.

7. Implications for local people / service users
7.1  The Barnsley West (MU1) Masterplan Framework will support the 

development of significant housing and employment growth in Urban 
Barnsley. The consultation process has allowed the local community and its 
stakeholders to help in the shaping and phasing of development in a 
comprehensive manner. The Masterplan Framework will address key issues 
raised through the public consultation, including: 
 Highway impact
 Air quality
 Impact on healthcare services
 Impact on school place planning
 Climate change and sustainability
 Minimising impact upon views from the wider landscape

7.2 In response, the proposal seeks to provide a primary school with sufficient 
capacity to accommodate school places generated by the development of this 
site and nearby Local plan Allocations.  The Clinical Commissioning Group is 
also now in a position to work with local GP practices to explore options for 
provision of additional facilities either by extending existing practices or taking 
floorspace within the new development.  The scheme includes large areas of 
open space, which will enable habitate creation, sustainable urban drainage 
systems with an allowance built in for climate change, active travel 
(walking/cycling) infrastructure, requirements for each dwelling to have an 
electronic vehicle charging point, a design code to ensure high quality design 
and acceptable landscape impacts.  The proposal is also expected to enhance 
the vitiality and viability of nearby retail and community facilities as a result of 
the increased spending power within the local area. 

7.3 The development of such a large area of land to meet the identified and 
accepted need for new jobs and homes will have some inevitable adverse 
impacts.  In recognition of this, the masterplan framework includes mitigations 
and requirements for more detailed work to be undertaken at the planning 
application stage so that futher mitigation can be secured if required.  

Page 9



- 8 - 8

7.4 Ultimately, the aim is to ensure environmental, social and economic conditions 
are balanced in order to promote sustainable development for the benefit of 
local people and service users.   The masterplan creates an appropriate 
framework to help achieve this but it will not be until a planning application is 
received that a detailed assessment can be undertaken to confirm for definite 
whether the proposed development of the site reflects the requirements of the 
Local Plan as a whole and is acceptable when taking into account other 
material planning considerations such as the Masterplan Framework and suite 
of Supplementary Planning Documents.

8. Financial implications
8.1 Consultations have taken place with representatives of the Service Director – 

Finance (S151 Officer).

8.2 This report seeks Cabinet approval for the adoption of the spatial framework, 
in respect of the Barnsley West (MU1) Masterplan Framework.

8.3 The cost of the masterplan work has been funded by the developers Strata 
Sterling Barnsley West Consortium (SSBW).

8.4 The master plan if approved will contribute to the Council’s core Council Tax 
and Business Rate income target currently included in the ongoing medium 
term financial strategy

9. Employee implications

9.1 There are no issues arising directly from this report.

10. Communications implications

10.1 A communications strategy and Statement of Community Involvement has 
been produced for the Barnsley West (MU1) Masterplan Framework.

11. Consultations
11.1 Consultations have already been undertaken with the Portfolio Holder for 

PLACE, Local Members, statutory consultees as well as local residents and 
businesses through the public consultation exercise. 

12. The Corporate Plan and the Council’s Performance Management 
Framework

12.1 The Local Plan is a key Council strategy document that will support the 
achievement of each of the three main priorities set out in the Corporate Plan 
and the 8 Town Spirit objectives. The masterplan document will ensure that 
housing and employment growth is delivered in a comprehensive manner with 
the support of the local communities they will enhance. 

13. Tackling Health Inequalities

Page 10



- 9 - 9

13.1 A Health Impact Assessment was produced to consider the Local Plan 
proposals on health. This considered the impact of the various policies within 
the plan on the health of various communities as well as whether they 
contribute to the ambitions of the Corporate Plan and reduce health 
inequalities. It concluded that as a whole the plan would potentially improve 
the health of residents and help address health inequalities. 

13.2 A representative from Public Health is a member of the masterplan board and 
is assisting in the production of a DRAFT Health Impact Assessment for the 
Barnsley West (MU1) Masterplan Framework.

14. Climate Change & Sustainable Energy Act 2006

14.1 The Masterplan Framework includes key principles relating to sustainability 
and energy usage, in line with national policy and the adopted Local Plan 
policies. Sustainability is a golden thread which runs through all sections of 
the Masterplan Framework, particularly with regards to travel and overarching 
design principles for all aspects of new development.

 15. Risk Management Issues

15.1 There is a risk that the Masterplan Framework is not well received by the local 
community. However, the community consultation exercise has presented an 
opportunity to involve local communities at an early stage to ensure that the 
Masterplan Framework addresses key concerns and is shaped by the views of 
the local community. In addition, the site was consulted upon as part of the 
Local Plan consultation process. 

16. Promoting Equality & Diversity and Social Inclusion
16.1 The Local Plan was subject to an over-arching Equalities Impact Assessment 

which considered its policies and procedures. This concluded that all policies 
and proposals apply to all sectors of the community equally. The policies 
make provision for a range of housing types to meet differing needs. The 
design policy D1 also seeks to ensure that development is designed to be 
accessible to all. The SPD’s and Masterplan Framework has been prepared in 
the context of these policies to ensure that equality, diversity and social 
inclusion are promoted. 

17. List of Appendices

Appendices:
 Appendix A: Financial Implications
 Appendix B: Combined Masterplan Framework & Design Code
 Appendix C: Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)
 Appendix D: Equalities Impact Assessment

Office Contact:        Stacey White                  Date:   05/12/2019           

Page 11



- 10 - 10
Page 12



APPENDIX A
        Report of the Executive Director of Place

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Service - Scheme of Delegation

i) Capital Expenditure 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total
£ £ £

Not applicable in this instance 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

To be financed from:
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

Later
ii) Revenue Effects 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Years

£ £ £ £
Expenditure

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

Income
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

 0 0 0 0
To be Financed from:

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

There is no impact on the Medium Term Financial
Strategy.  Reserves have already been ear-marked for
the Local Plan.

Impact on Medium Term Financial Strategy

This report has no impact on the Authority's Medium Term Financial Strategy.

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
£m £m £m

Current forecast budget gap 0 0.028 4.857
Requested approval 0 0 0
Revised forecast budget gap 0 0.028 4.857

Agreed by: ...............................................On behalf of the Service Director and Section 151 Officer - Finance

Page 13



APPENDIX A
Report of the Executive Director of Place

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Service - Scheme of Delegation

Agreed by: ...............................................On behalf of the Service Director and Section 151 Officer - Finance

Page 14



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

15th November 2019 bondbryan.co.ukPage 15



0.0 CONTENTS

BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

COMBINED MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK Fig 0.1Page 16



3BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
COMBINED MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

0.0 THE VISION CONTENTS

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.4

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

2

2.1

3 

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4 

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

7

8

9

9

9

9

10

11

11

11

12

17

20

21

23

26

26

27

29

38

38

44

45

48

48

49

50

51

Introduction

What is the Masterplan Framework?

Site MU1, land South of Barugh Green Road

The Vision for Barnsley West

Design Code

Compliance with the Design Code

Process of Approvals

The Process of Preparing the Masterplan Framework

The Professional Team

Public Consultation

Site Location and Description

Land Ownership

Planning Policy Context

Site MU1 Land South of Barugh Green Road

Local Plan Policies Table

Joint Waste Plan

Supplementary Planning Documents

Baseline Context and Analysis

Existing Land Use Framework

Transport and Movement

Ground Conditions

Heritage

Archaeology

Flood Risk and Drainage

Landscape

Green Space and Recreation

Noise

Air Quality

Page 17



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
COMBINED MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

4

0.0 THE VISION CONTENTS

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

5

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.20

6

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

7

52

52

54

57

59

61

62

65

67

67

67

69

70

72

72

75

78

81

82

81

82

86

86

86

87

Ecology

Utilities

Constraints

Opportunities

Masterplan Framework

Design Evolution

Masterplan Framework

Sustainable Movement

Public Transport

Travel Plan

Green and Blue Infrastructure

Management and Maintenance

Strategic SUDS Drainage

Strategic Foul Water

Placemaking

Infrastructure and Delivery

Transport

Education

Community Facilities

Healthcare

Approach to Delivery and Phasing

Housing Mix Assumptions

Planning Strategy

Summary

Page 18



5BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
COMBINED MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

0.0 DESIGN CODE CONTENTS

8

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

9 

9.1 

9.2 

9.3 

9.4 

10 

10.1 

10.2 

10.3 

10.4 

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

11

94

95

95

98

98

99

100

101

102

103

103

104

106

107

109

111

113

115

117

119

121

123

125

127

129

131

133

134

Introduction

Preface

Project Team

The Purpose of the Design Code

How to Use the Design Code

Compliance With the Code

Process Of Approval:  Reserved Matters Application

Flexibility

Health and Wellbeing

Overview

Health and Wellbeing Framework

The Health and Wellbeing Principles

Sustainability and Future Adaption

Landscape Framework

Key Principles

Levels Strategy

Pedestrian and Cyclist Connectivity

Ecology and Biodiversity

Play – LAP Requirements

Play – LEAP Requirements

Play – NEAP Requirements

Tree Framework

Planting Framework

Material Palette

Street Furniture Palette

Wayfinding Palette

Link Road

The Character Components

Page 19



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
COMBINED MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

6

0.0 DESIGN CODE CONTENTS

11.1 

11.2 

11.3 

11.4 

11.5 

11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

11.10

11.11

11.12

11.13

11.14

11.15

11.16

11.17

11.18

11.19

11.20

11.21

11.22

11.23

11.24

5

5.1

 

135

137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

147

149

150

152

155

157

159

160

163

165

167

169

170

171

172

173

174

The Principle Character Areas

Community Hub:  example sample  

Central Squares:  example sample

Higham Edge:  example sample  

Velvet Village:  example sample

Pogmoor Edge 

Employment Zone A:  example sample

Employment Zone B:  example sample 

Link Road, Northern Gateway, Southern Gateway

Figure Ground Concept Diagrams

Node, Gateway and Heartspace Buildings

Principles of Heartspaces and Heartspace Buildings 

Principles of Node Buildings 

Principles of Gateway Buildings  

Direct Views of Landscape

Proximity to Open Space 

Site Wide Colour

The Urban Block Edge Condition 

Primary Streets

Secondary Streets

Edge Parameters

Boundaries 

Traffic Calming

Parking Types

Flexibility

Overview

Image References

Produced By Date Produced Checked By Date Checked Revision Description Date of Issue

JDG 15/11/2019 TR 15/11/2019 P01 Barnsley West, Combined Masterplan Framework 14/11/2019

Page 20



1 INTRODUCTION

BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST Fig 1.1Page 21



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

8

1 INTRODUCTION

The Barnsley West Masterplan Framework has been 
prepared by Bond Bryan, Gillespies and Pegasus on 
behalf of Strata Homes and Sterling Capitol Plc working 
in collaboration with Barnsley Council. Strata Homes 
and Sterling Capitol Plc have the largest land interests 
within the Masterplan Framework. Landowners and 
developers who have smaller land interests have also 
been consulted.

The objective for this development is to create a 
“Healthscape”. A healthscape is green and blue 
infrastructure designed to improve health and 
wellbeing. The healthscape acts as a setting for the new 
place, community and workplace that is currently known 
as Barnsley West. As the largest site within the Local 
Plan, this vision document is the result of a collaborative 
process with the council to create a highly sustainable 
community that sets a benchmark for 21st century 
development across Barnsley.

1.1 What is the Masterplan Framework?

The council’s Local Plan was adopted in January 
2019. This Masterplan Framework is a requirement 
of the Local Plan policy MU1 in order to guide the 
development and make sure that policy objectives are 
met in the plan period and the site can be developed in 
a comprehensive manner, taking into account all of the 
infrastructure requirements. The Masterplan Framework 
will guide the development of the site to achieve its full 
potential and secure sustainable and inclusive growth, 
helping to achieve the council’s priorities of achieving 
a thriving and vibrant economy through creating more 
and better jobs, good business growth and more and 
better housing.

The Masterplan Framework is a strategic document that 
should be read in conjunction with the adopted Design 
Code and  sits alongside Supplementary Planning 
Documents.  The Masterplan Framework and Design 
Code are material considerations in the determination 
of planning applications on the site. 

National 
Planning 

Framework &
Guidance 

Barnsley 
Council’s 

Local Plan &
Supplementary 

Planning 
Documents

Barnsley West
Masterplan 
Framework 

Planning 
Applications 

Fig 1.2

Page 22



9BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

Planning 
Applications 

1.2 Site MU1, land South of Barugh Green Road

The site was allocated for mixed use development in 
Barnsley’s Local Plan and will provide around 1,700 new 
homes and 43 hectares of employment land.  The site 
will also provide: 

• a new primary school;

• Small scale convenience retail and community 
facilities;

• brand-new infrastructure, including an access link 
road;

• Open green space with wildlife corridors, 
watercourses and key pedestrian footpaths and 
cycleways.

The Masterplan Framework explores and demonstrates 
the issues and opportunities relating to a wide range 
of matters such as planning, ownership and technical 
constraints and how they have informed the Masterplan 
Framework. It has been prepared in the context of the 
adopted Local Plan’s vision, spatial strategy, objectives 
and policies, particularly those in relation to housing 
and employment.

The Local Plan site policy for MU1 requires the 
production of a Masterplan Framework to guide new 
development and make sure that the policy objectives 
are delivered. The Barnsley West (MU1) Masterplan 
Framework was adopted on 19 December 2019 and 
will be a material consideration in the determination of 
planning applications on the site.

The contents of this Masterplan Framework provides 
a clear set of assumptions to provide the certainty 
required to help make informed decisions about the 
scale and nature of future planning applications on the 
site.  It is acknowledged that the Masterplan Framework 
is based on technical  information available at the 
time of preparation and issues may emerge through 
further detailed technical work.  Any deviation from 
the Masterplan Framework arising as a result of further 
technical assessment will need to be clearly justified and 
agreed with the council at planning application stage.

1.3 The Vision for Barnsley West

The vision for Barnsley West is to provide a new 
sustainable community, combining high-quality new 
homes with new jobs, facilities and open space, 
available to new and existing residents – to enjoy for 

living and working.

Barnsley West will play an essential role in realising the 
housing and employment requirement for Barnsley over 
the next 15 years.  The site is strategically located for 
a high-quality, sustainable, mixed-use community and 
will act as an urban extension of Barnsley.  Health and 
wellbeing is at the heart of the Masterplan Framework 
as a landscape-led development and will seek to create 
a more productive landscape for walking, cycling, 
growing food and biodiversity.

The primary theme that runs through the development 
of the site is the creation of a “Healthscape” in which to 
create a sustainable community in order to:

• make the best use of the land;

• secure high design standards; 

• 10seek to deliver high-quality homes;

• create a modern place to work in a landscape-
first approach that will enhance the wellbeing of 
residents and visitors to Barnsley West.

1.4 Design Code 

This Masterplan Framework document needs to be read 
in conjunction with the adopted Design Code for the 
site.  The purpose of the Design Code is to provide a 
benchmark for quality and make sure the vision for the 
site is translated through the delivery of its components.

1.5 Compliance with the Design Code

The process of gaining planning consent is partly 
down to demonstrating that proposals respond to 
the local context. Too often this is watered down to 
making a superficial reference to a small collection of 
local buildings, rather than undertaking a thorough 
assessment of the local and wider environment- its 
buildings, spaces and landscape, and looking at how 
proposals can respond and interact with them. The 
importance for Barnsley West and the aspiration for 
quality demands this more considered approach. 
Successful placemaking involves much more than 
stylistic preference. It should start with a well-resolved 
Masterplan with principles that create a framework for 
character and identity. This character will grow out of a 
variety of interconnected issues including viability, form 
of construction and company specific design approach.

The compliance with the code has been set with this 
in mind; a balancing act that creates a long-term 

Page 23



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

10

framework for quality that sits within a commercial and 
planning context. 

The most suitable way of demonstrating compliance 
will be the Detailed Planning Stage. All planning 
applications will be the subject of a Design Review 
Panel as part of the process to demonstrate compliance. 
Furthermore, all applications should include a Design 
Code Compliance Statement as an appendix in any 
design and access statement. The Design Code 
Compliance Statement should reflect a breadth of 
topics covered by the Design Code and should therefor 
address, as a minimum the following:

• the vision for the site;

• site context;

• quantum of development;

• aspects of the development relating to the public 
realm;

• aspects of the development relating to the 
Character Areas;

• does it adhere to the Health and Wellbeing 
Framework?;

• sustainability.

1.6 Process of Approvals

‘The council will require a Design Code compliance 
statement for both outline and full applications, as 
an appendix to the design and access statement. 
Following outline planning approval any reserved 
matters application will require a separate compliance 
statement. For any planning conditions that involve 
more detailed work on the design or layout of the 
development a compliance statement will need to 
accompany the information submitted.

1.  Landscape-led layout that 
promotes a strong connection 
to the landscape

4. Encourage walking, cycling 
and public transport use 

2. Engaging with the local and 
wider community 

5. Safety and natural 
surveillance 

6. Responsive to microclimate 
and environmental context

3. Places to meet, socialise and 
play 

7. Identity and sense of place 

Fig 1.3

Page 24



11BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

1.9 Public Consultation

A requirement of the Masterplan Framework was for 
local residents and key stakeholders to be provided 
with an opportunity to feed back on the draft plans and 
the main themes. The Masterplan Framework has been 
advanced following meaningful engagement with a 
wide section of the community to make sure that the 
proposal reflects the vision and priorities of present 
and future communities. The approach adopted and 
the feedback received is set out within the Statement of 
Community Involvement (SCI) report which is appended 
to this document. 

1.7 The Process of Preparing the Masterplan Framework

Preparation of this Masterplan Framework has involved 
a number of key stages of work. This includes:

• a baseline review of the site and its surrounding 
context;

• a baseline review of existing studies and technical 
background material to create an evidence-based 
approach to the Masterplan layout;

• ongoing  dialogue with Barnsley Council;

• three workshop presentations to the Design Review 
Panel, consisting of experts in the field of urban 
design, architecture, public art and economic 
regeneration from across South Yorkshire; and

• public and stakeholder consultation.

The Masterplan Framework explores and demonstrates 
the issues and opportunities relating to a wide range 
of matters such as planning, ownership and technical 
constraints and how they have informed the Masterplan 
Framework.

1.8 The Professional Team 

• Lead developers for the site: Strata Sterling Barnsley 
West

• Masterplanning Architect: Bond Bryan

• Landscape Architect: Gillespies

• Employment Area Architect: The Harris Partnership

• Planning Consultant: Pegasus Group

• Highways Consultant: Fore Consulting

• Civil Engineering Consultant: JPG Group

• Drainage and Flood Risk: JPG Group

• Utilities Consultant: Hydrock MRB Consultant 
Engineers

• Air Quality Consultant: Wardell Armstrong

• Ecological Consultant: White Young Green

• Noise Consultant: ENS Acoustics

• Tree Consultant: White Young Green

• Heritage Consultant: Prospect Archaeology

Page 25



2  SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION

BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST Fig 2.1Page 26



13BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

2 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION

The site is located 2km west of Barnsley town centre, 
on land between the communities of Gawber, Higham, 
Pogmoor, Redbrook and Barugh Green and lies directly 
to the east of the M1 motorway, just north of junction 
37.

Page 27



Barugh 
Green

Dodworth

Smithies

Gawber

Barnsley

Monk
Bretton

Kendray

M1

M1

Leeds 23m

Sheffield 16m

Cudworth

Stairfoot

A635

A628

Leeds - Sheffield line 

Huddersfield - Sheffield line 

Barnsley
West  

Page 28



Barugh 
Green

Dodworth

Smithies

Gawber

Barnsley

Monk
Bretton

Kendray

M1

M1

Leeds 23m

Sheffield 16m

Cudworth

Stairfoot

A635

A628

Leeds - Sheffield line 

Huddersfield - Sheffield line 

Barnsley
West  

Fig 2.2

Page 29



B A R U G H   G R E E N   R O A D  

L LO
 N

 G
 L E Y   S T R E E T     

A V O
 N   C L O

 S E       

H E R M I T    L A N E        

H I G H A M  L A N E          

M1
       

F A R M   H O U S E   L A N E   

R E D B R O O K   R O A D   

C

B

A

LAND OWNERSHIPS

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

D

Fig 2.3 Page 30



17BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

2.1 Land Ownership

The site is in various ownerships, with a large proportion 
under contractual control of Strata Sterling Barnsley 
West Ltd.  The rest of the site is within private ownership.

Fig 2.4A Fig 2.5B

Fig 2.6C

Strata Sterling Barnsley 
West Ltd control

Other ownership

Fig 2.7D

Page 31



Capitol Park

Barugh Green

Higham

Page 32



Pogmoor

Gawber

Redbrook

Fig 2.8

Page 33



3 PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT

BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST Fig 3.1Page 34



21BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

Barnsley’s statutory development plan consists 
of the Local Plan, the Joint Waste Plan , Penistone 
Neighbourhood development Plan and Oxspring 
Neighbourhood development plan.

The adopted Local Plan and policies map sets out how 
the council will manage physical development of the 
borough on behalf of residents and businesses. This 
includes providing sufficient land in the right places to 
attract more businesses into the borough and to allow 
existing businesses to grow. The aim of this is to create 
more and better jobs to improve earnings and increase 
opportunities for local residents. It also aims to provide 
improved housing to meet existing need and the needs 
of future generations whilst at the same time protecting 
what is special about the borough.

Following the adoption of the Local Plan, new and 
updated Supplementary Planning Documents have 
been adopted which contain advice for people applying 
for planning permission. The council use these to help 
make decisions on planning applications alongside the 
Local Plan. 

Barnsley West is identified as MU1 - Land south of 
Barugh Green Road within the adopted Local Plan.

3.1 Site MU1 Land South of Barugh Green Road

The site is proposed for mixed use predominantly 
for housing and employment. The indicative number 
of dwellings proposed on this site is 1700. These are 
included in the housing numbers for urban Barnsley in 
the housing chapter. 

43 ha of employment land is proposed on the site and 
is included in the employment land figures in the urban 
Barnsley section of the economy chapter. 

The development will be subject to the production and 
approval of a Masterplan Framework covering the entire 
site which seeks to ensure that the employment land 
is developed within the plan period, that community 
facilities come forward before completion of the 
housing and that development is brought forward in a 
comprehensive manner. 

The development will be expected to: 

• Provide a primary school on the site; 

• Ensure that ground stability and contamination 
investigations are undertaken prior to development 
commencing and necessary remedial works 
completed in accordance with the phasing plan;

• Provide on and off site highway infrastructure 
works, including a link road (Claycliffe Link) and 
improvements at Junction 37 as necessary; 

• Provide small scale convenience retail and 
community facilities in compliance with Local Plan 
policy TC5: Small local shops; 

• Retain, buffer and manage the watercourse, 
grassland and woodland north-east of Hermit Lane; 

• Retain, buffer and manage the species-rich 
hedgerows and boundary features. Where this is 
not possible transplant hedgerows including root 
balls and associated soils. A method statement for 
this should be provided and agreed prior to works 
commencing; 

• Create/retain wildlife corridors through/across the 
site; 

• Provide accessible public open space; 

• Ensure that any sustainable drainage system 
incorporating above-ground habitats is designed 
from the outset to serve the whole site; 

• Give consideration to the drain/culvert that runs 
through the site; and 

• Include measures for the protection and retention 
of the listed milepost on Barugh Green Road 500m 
west of the junction with Claycliffe Road and its 
immediate setting; 

• Protect the routes of the public rights of way that 
cross the site, and make provision for these as part 
of any proposal. 

Archaeological remains may be present on this site 
therefore proposals must be accompanied by an 
appropriate archaeological assessment (including 
a field evaluation if necessary) that must include the 
following: 

• Information identifying the likely location and extent 
of the remains, and the nature of the remains; 

• An assessment of the significance of the remains; 
and 

• Consideration of how the remains would be 
affected by the proposed development

3 PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT

Page 35



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

22

LOCAL PLAN EXTRACT

Fig 3.2

Page 36



23BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

3.2 Local Plan Policies

The table below provides a summary of the Local Plan 
policies that are relevant to the site and to which the 
Masterplan Framework should take full account.

Policy SD1 – 
Presumption in 
favour of sustainable 
development 

Sets out a presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the national 
Planning Policy Framework. Will work proactively with applicants jointly to find solutions 
so that proposals can be approved wherever possible.

Policy GD1 – General 
development

Shows support for proposals for development which comply with the criteria of this 
policy.

Policy LG1 – City 
Regions

Policy supports the economic growth agenda of the Sheffield, Leeds and Manchester 
City Regions, maximising the opportunities and benefits of Barnsley’s favourable location 
in the region.

Policy LG2 – The 
location of growth

Sets out that priority will be given to development in Urban Barnsley, then in the Principal 
Towns of Cudworth, Wombwell, Hoyland, Goldthorpe, Penistone and Royston and 
villages. Urban Barnsley will be expected to accommodate significantly more growth 
than the Principal Towns or villages.  

Policy E1 – Providing 
strategic employment 
locations

Identifies that 297ha of land in sustainable locations is allocated to meet the 
development needs of existing and future industry and business up to 2033.

Policy E2 – The 
distribution of new 
employment sites

This policy sets out within a table the approximate distribution of employment land 
within settlements during the plan period.

Policy E3 – Uses on 
employment land

Supports research and development and light industry, general industrial, or storage or 
distribution on allocated employment sites or land currently or last used for employment 
purposes.

Policy H1 – The number 
of new homes to be 
built

Sets out the requirement of at least 21,546 net additional homes during 2014 to 2033. 

Policy H2 – The 
distribution of new 
homes

Sets out the approximate distribution of new homes within settlements.

Policy H3 – Uses on 
allocated housing sites

Requires sites shown as housing sites on the Policies Map to be developed for residential 
purposes.

Policy H6 – Housing 
mix and efficient use of 
land

Expects housing proposals to include a broad mix of house size, type and tenure to help 
create mixed and balanced communities. Expects a density of 40 dwellings per hectare 
net in Urban Barnsley and Principal Towns and 30 dwellings per hectare net in villages.

Policy H7 – Affordable 
housing

Housing developments of 15 or more dwellings will be expected to provide affordable 
housing in accordance with percentages set out within the policy. These percentages will 
be sought unless it can be demonstrated through a viability assessment that the required 
figure would render the scheme unviable. 

Page 37



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

24

Policy T1 – Accessibility 
priorities

Transport Strategy programmes focused on development-transport corridors will 
aim to improve sustainable transport and circulation, implement transport network 
improvements, facilitate sustainable transport links, promote high quality public 
transport, improve direct public transport and freight links to core cities and international 
interchanges. 

Policy T3 – New 
development and 
sustainable travel

Sets out expectations for new development to be located and designed to reduce the 
need to travel, provide at least the minimum levels of parking for cycles, motorbikes, 
scooters, mopeds and disabled people, provide a transport statement or assessment, 
provide a travel plan statement or travel plan. Where levels of accessibility are 
below required levels developers will be expected to take action or make financial 
contributions. 

Policy T4 – New 
development and 
transport safety

New development will be expected to be designed and built to provide all transport 
users within and surrounding the development with safe, secure and convenient access 
and movement. Developers will be expected to take mitigating action or to make a 
financial contribution to ensure necessary highways improvements where required are 
implemented. 

Policy T5 – Reducing 
the impact of road 
travel

Aims to reduce the impact of road travel.

Policy D1 – High quality 
design and place 
making

Development is expected to be of high quality design and will be expected to respect, 
take advantage of and reinforce the distinctive, local character and features of Barnsley.

Policy LC1 – Landscape 
character

Development will be expected to retain and enhance the character and distinctiveness 
of the individual landscape character area in which it is located.

Policy HE1 – The 
historic environment

Positively encourage developments which will help in the management, conservation, 
understanding and enjoyment of Barnsley’s historic environment, especially for those 
assets which are at risk.

Policy HE6 – 
Archaeology

Applications for development on sites where archaeological remains may be present 
must be accompanied by an appropriate archaeological assessment (including a field 
evaluation if necessary).

Policy TC1 – Town 
Centres 

Supports the vitality and viability of defined centres and requires a sequential approach 
for new retail and town centre development outside of existing centres. 

Policy TC5 – Small local 
shops

Outside existing centres, small shops that meet the daily shopping needs of a local 
community will be permitted where the shops are of a type and place that would meet 
daily shopping needs and this need is not already met by existing shops, and the shops 
are located and designed to encourage trips by pedestrians and cyclists rather than cars. 

Policy GI1 – Green 
infrastructure

An integrated network of connected and multifunctional green infrastructure assets will 
be protected, maintained, enhanced and created.

Policy GS1 – Green 
space

Development that would result in the loss of green space would not normally be 
allowed. New residential development will be required to provide or contribute towards 
green space in line with the Green Space Strategy. 

Page 38



25BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

Policy GS2 – Green 
ways and public rights 
of way

Green ways and public rights of ways will be protected from development that may 
affect their character or function.

Policy BIO1 – 
Biodiversity and 
geodiversity

Development will be expected to conserve and enhance the biodiversity and geological 
features of the borough.

Policy CC1 – Climate 
change

Policy seeks to reduce the causes of and adapt to the future impacts of climate change 
by giving preference to development of previously developed land in sustainable 
locations, promoting the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions through sustainable 
design and construction techniques, locating and designing development to reduce the 
risk of flooding, promoting the use of SUDS, promoting and supporting the delivery of 
renewable and low carbon energy, and promoting investment in green infrastructure to 
promote and encourage biodiversity gain.

Policy CC2 – 
Sustainable design and 
construction

Expects development to minimise resource and energy consumption through the 
inclusion of sustainable design and construction features where this is technically 
feasible and viable. Non-residential development will be expected to achieve a minimum 
standard of BREEAM ‘Very Good’.

Policy CC3 – Flood Risk Ensures that the extent and impact of flooding is reduced.

Policy CC4 – 
Sustainable drainage 
systems (SUDS)

All major development will be expected to use SUDS to manage surface water drainage.

Policy CC5 – Water 
resource management

Shows support for proposals which conserve and enhance the boroughs water 
resources.

Policy RE1 – Low 
carbon and renewable 
energy

All developments will be expected to seek to incorporate initially appropriate design 
measures, and thereafter decentralised, renewable or low carbon energy sources in 
order to reduce carbon dioxide emissions and should at least achieve appropriate 
carbon compliance targets.

Policy CL1 - 
Contaminated and 
unstable land

Where the future users or occupiers of a development would be affected by 
contamination or stability issues, or where contamination may present a risk to the 
water environment, proposals must be accompanied by a report which shows that 
investigations have been carried out to work out the nature and extent of contamination 
or stability issues and the possible effect it may have on the development and its future 
users, the natural and historic environment, and sets out detailed measures to allow the 
development to go ahead safely.

Policy Poll1 – Pollution 
Control and Protection

Development will be expected to demonstrate that it is not likely to result, directly 
or indirectly, in an increase in air, surface water and groundwater, noise, smell, dust, 
vibration, light or other pollution which would unacceptably affect or cause a nuisance to 
the natural and built environment or to people. 

Policy AQ1 – 
Development in Air 
Quality Management 
Areas

Development which impacts on areas sensitive to air pollution in air quality management 
areas will be expected to demonstrate that it will not have a harmful effect on the health 
or living conditions of any future users of the development in terms of air quality, taking 
into account any suitable and proportionate mitigation required for the development.

Page 39



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

26

Policy UT2 – Utilities 
Safeguarding

Existing services and utilities including major pipelines, transmission lines, distribution 
mains, sewerage and sewage treatments works, land drainage systems and water 
resources, together with associated equipment, installations and operational land, will be 
protected from development that will detrimentally affect them. 

Policy I1 – Infrastructure 
and Planning 
Obligations 

Ensure that development is supported by and where necessary contributes to the 
provision of appropriate infrastructure. 

Policy I2 – Educational 
and Community 
Facilities

Supports the provision of schools, educational facilities and other community facilities.

3.3 Joint Waste Plan
Policy WCS7 - managing waste in all developments
Ensures that development proposals seek to reduce 
the amount of waste produced during the construction 
and time of the project and re-use and recycle waste 
materials on site where possible.  All development 
proposals (excluding minor planning applications) 
will be expected to produce a waste management 
plan as part of the planning application.   For large-
scale development proposals such as this site, waste 
minimisation issues should also be addressed through 
the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA). 

3.4 Supplementary Planning Documents 
Supplementary Planning Documents provide further 
guidance relevant to Barnsley West: 
• Financial Contributions for Schools
• Trees and Hedgerows
• Residential Amenity and the Siting of Buildings
• Design of Housing Development
• Open Space Provision on New Housing 

Developments
• Affordable Housing
• Heritage Impact Statements
• Biodiversity and Geodiversity
• Sustainable Travel
• Parking
• Section 278 Agreements
• Section 38 Agreements
• Development of Land Affected by Contamination
• Planning Obligations

Barnsley Council does not currently apply a Community 
Infrastructure Levy.

Page 40



4  BASELINE CONTEXT AND ANALYSIS

BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST Fig 4.1Page 41



LAND USE FRAMEWORK

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh

Fig 4.2 Page 42



29BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

4 BASELINE CONTEXT AND ANALYSIS

In order to understand the existing evidence base 
for the site, a review of existing material and recent 
assessments have been undertaken. The review 
identifies where there may be implications for 
the Masterplan Framework and has informed the 
Constraints and Opportunities plans within this section.     

4.1 Existing Land Use Framework 

The dominant land use within the immediate vicinity of 
the site is residential. In addition, there are a number of 
community facilities, including a primary school, health 
centre and churches. 

A large cluster of existing commercial properties are 
located to the north of the site within Claycliffe Business 
Park. Capitol Park is located to the south of the M1 and 
provides a further area of existing commercial uses.

Fig 4.5Local dwellings

Fig 4.4Barnsley Hospice off Hermit Lane

Fig 4.3Commercial buildings on Barugh Green Road

Commercial

Residential

Health

Education

Religious

Masterplan Framework Considerations:

The Existing Land Use Framework plan illustrates how 
Barnsley West can tie into the surrounding area, locating 
similar or complimentary uses alongside existing uses 
and strengthen each provision within the area.

Page 43



Fig 4.6 Page 44



31BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

1

2

3

4

56

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

Picture location number (see pages overleaf)n

Picture location position

Fig 4.7

Photographic Survey of the Site

Page 45



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

32

View from Hermit Lane looking west

1

View from within site facing north

2

Page 46



33BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

Fig 4.8

Fig 4.9

Page 47



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

34

View from within site facing west

3

View from within site facing south west

4

Page 48



35BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

Fig 4.10

Fig 4.11

Page 49



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

36

Fig 4.17Fig 4.16

Fig 4.15Fig 4.14

Fig 4.13Fig 4.12

7 8

5 6

9 10

Page 50



37BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

Fig 4.23Fig 4.22

Fig 4.21Fig 4.20

Fig 4.19Fig 4.18

13 14

11 12

15 16

Page 51



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

38

4.2 Sustainability and Energy Usage

Promoting sustainable development and reducing 
the borough’s impact on climate change are the 
over-arching principles of this Masterplan Framework 
in accordance with the Local Plan and the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). The use and 
development of the Masterplan Framework has been 
assessed against the objective of securing sustainable 
development within Barnsley to meet its environmental, 
economic and social needs. On this basis the 
proposal will look to deliver the following qualities of 
sustainability:

• A mixed-use scheme with a balance of residential, 
business and a range of public open spaces 
including recreational areas all connected by public 
footpaths / cycleways;

• A mix of housing that includes a range of house 
types, sizes and tenures encouraging community 
stability;

• Protection and / or enhancement of the quality of 
natural assets including water and biodiversity;

• High quality well-designed development taking into 
account local distinctiveness;

• Promote walking, cycling and public transport use in 
order to reduce car dependency; and

• Relatively high densities to promote efficient use of 
land.

The council has declared a climate emergency 
(September 2019), with a strategy for the borough 
achieving zero carbon by 2045 (Zero 45). As the 
council strive to achieve this goal, new developments 
will be asked to play their part and through further 
work, consideration should be given to the following 
measures:

• Creating energy efficient, well insulated buildings in 
order to reduce carbon emissions;

• Use renewable energy sources (e.g. solar, wind, 
biofuels) for all or part of their energy needs to 
reduce carbon emissions;

• Sustainability standards such as BREEAM and 
CEEQUAL when designing developments;

• Creating sustainable drainage systems to safely 
deal with surface water run-off and minimising the 
risk of flooding;

• Identifying opportunities to incorporate space 
within new dwellings to accommodate low carbon 
technology in the future, in order to make sure that 
new development is durable and adaptable;

• Minimising waste and use of materials throughout 
the lifetime of the development;

• Encourage recycling;

• Identifying opportunities for green roofs;

• Travel plans to encourage active and sustainable 
travel.

Consideration will be given to the latest Building 
Regulations for housing, BREEAM for employment and 
CEEQUAL for infrastructure, landscaping and public 
realm. This will include identification of suitable low 
carbon technologies, investigating renewable energy 
solutions and Combined Heat and Power (CHP). 
Subject to feasibility, this approach will make sure that 
the development is future proofed particularly given 
the anticipated build out rates over a 15 year period. 
An allowance has been made in the utility report 
for the provision of electric vehicle charging points 
for employment and residential development and 
alternative technologies given that domestic gas boiler 
installation in residential properties will be obsolete 
from 2025. 

Future applicants should also note that the council’s 
local validation checklist requires the submission of 
an Energy Statement for residential schemes over 
10 plus dwellings and non-residential schemes of 
1,000m² plus. The Energy Statement should clearly set 
out measures that will be included to deliver a carbon 
zero development. If zero carbon cannot be achieved, 
developers should demonstrate why this has not been 
possible and explain what steps have been taken in the 
provision of infrastructure and the design of individual 
properties to achieve zero carbon through retro fit at a 
future point.

4.3 Transport and Movement 

Public Transport Accessibility

Public transport plays an essential role in reducing 
congestion in Barnsley borough and benefits public 
health by encouraging walking and cycling as part of 
door-to-door journeys.

There is a network of bus services (20,21,21a, 

Page 52



39BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

Masterplan Framework Considerations:

• Active travel and public transport are to be the 
preferred mode of travel for accessing Barnsley 
West and the surrounding area

• Seek to retain and enhance existing public right 
of ways and consider opportunities for further 

footpaths, new bridleways and cycleways between 
the site and wider area to improve connectivity and 
promote health and wellbeing.

• In advance of submission of any planning 
application, a funded programme of bus 
service provision (including work bus provision 
for construction workers) and progressive 
enhancement (related to the phases of 
development)  will be confirmed by the developer 
in consultation and as agreed with the Barnsley Bus 
Partnership stakeholders.

22,44,43,93,93a, 94a,96, 96a) which serve the existing 
residential and employment areas surrounding Barnsley 
West.

In addition there is the Dodworth  to Barnsley section of 
the Penistone Line in close proximity to Barnsley West 
and M1 J37.

The hourly each way Sheffield to Huddersfield train 
services stop at both Dodworth and Barnsley stations.

The Barnsley Bus Partnership including its stakeholder 
SYPTE is available for consultation to advise on how a 
programme of both bus and rail service provision can 
be provided and progressively enhanced, consistent 
with the phased delivery of the development.

In order to ensure continued patronage of bus and rail 
services by residents and workers, it is necessary for the 
developer to negotiate provision of access to multi-
modal discount annual and seasonal tickets for travel 
in South and West Yorkshire. The discounts required is 
100% for year one, 75% for year 2 and 50% for year 3.

As any service improvement needs to be backed up 
by strong marketing to ensure people have access 
to up-to-date information (e.g. timetable changes) , 
the developer will make provision for a continuing 
programme of information provided on digital 
platforms and also by way of posters and campaigns in 
partnership with the local community and schools etc.

Active travel and public transport are to be the 
preferred mode of travel for accessing Barnsley West 
and the surrounding area.  Financial contributions for 
public transport infrastructure will be agreed with the 
developer and public transport providers to the site, 
consistent with the Sustainable Travel Supplementary 
Planning Document.

Longer-term, the Barnsley Rail Vision seeks to secure a 
second train per hour on the Penistone line.  Consistent 
with our recent climate emergency declaration, the 
council will explore opportunities to further improve 
the local role this line has.  Developer contributions 
would play an important role in helping fund such 
enhancements.

Highway Network

The site is situated to the north of Junction 37 of the 
M1 motorway. The M1 forms part of the Strategic Road 
Network, connecting London to Leeds, where it joins the 
A1(M) near Aberford. M1 Junction 37 is a four-armed 
traffic signal controlled roundabout with the motorway 
passing under the junction.

The A635 Barugh Green Road is a single-carriageway 
road and runs from Redbrook Road in the east (the road 
name changes to A635 Wilthorpe Road beyond this 
point) to the Barugh Green crossroads in the west. The 
road is partially fronted by residential properties, with a 
number of side roads providing access to light industrial 
and distribution centres. 

The A637 Claycliffe Road leads north from a roundabout 
with the A635 Barugh Green Road towards the 
settlement of Darton. The A635 Wilthorpe Road is the 
eastern continuation of the A635 Barugh Green Road, 
leading towards Barnsley town centre from Redbrook 
Road. It is a single-carriageway road with residential 
development set back from the carriageway. 

Redbrook Road is a single-carriageway road, running 
from the A635 Barugh Green Road to the northeast 
of the site towards Barnsley town centre, passing by 
Barnsley Hospital and almost entirely residential in 
character. 

Higham Common Road / Higham Lane is a single-
carriageway road linking Barugh Green crossroads in 
the north with Capitol Park and the A628 Whinby Road 
in the south, via the settlement of Higham and a bridge 
over the M1. Where the road runs alongside the south-
western boundary of the site, there is a bus turning 
circle. Higham Common Road provides the primary 
access for heavy goods vehicles travelling from the M1 
motorway to Claycliffe Business Park.  Hermit Lane is 
a narrow lane which bisects the site and is used as a 

Page 53



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

40

Fig 4.28Right of way

Fig 4.27Existing site entrance Fig 4.25Right of way

Fig 4.26Right of way

B

A C

D

Masterplan Framework Considerations:

• Opportunity to re-route heavy goods vehicles away 
from Higham Common Lane, through the early 
delivery of a new link road. 

• There is an opportunity to provide high-quality 
frequent and direct bus service connections to 
Barnsley town centre, and other main urban areas. 
Developers are expected to consider the potential 
to extend and/or divert bus services through the 
site. 

means of avoiding traffic on other routes in the area.

A number of existing rights of way are located within 
and in close proximity to the site providing existing 
points of pedestrian access. There is a network of 
existing Public Rights of Way across the site which 
provide existing points of pedestrian access.  These 
should be retained or enhanced as part of future 
development proposals and opportunities sought to 
connect to surrounding routes in the locality.

Page 54



C

D

RIGHTS OF WAY FRAMEWORK

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh

B
A

C

D

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

Existing right of way 

Existing footpath entrance 

Fig 4.24

Page 55



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST Page 56



Fig 4.29Page 57



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

44

4.4 Ground Conditions

Site policy MU1 requires that the development will 
be expected to ensure that ground stability and 
contamination investigations are undertaken prior to 
development commencing and any necessary remedial 
works completed in accordance with the phasing plan. 

An assessment of ground conditions has been 
undertaken by JPG (Leeds) Limited. The assessment 
has identified the presence of clay throughout the 
site. which may have an influence on the drainage 
strategy. The site is irregular in shape and occupies an 
area of approximately 120 hectares. Ground levels are 
approximately 150m AOD in the south generally falling 
to approximately 80m AOD in the north.

The site generally consists of sloping arable and grazing 
land, which is divided into fields by hedgerows, fences 
and small watercourses. Hermit Lane, aligned roughly 
east to west, bisects the site. A steeply sided valley 
extends from the south-western boundary to the north. 
A further steep valley with a drainage ditch at its base, 
trending northerly, is also present in the centre-east.

Hermit Lane falls steeply from the western boundary 
down into the valley bottom before rising steeply 
again in the east. A drainage ditch at the base of the 
valley is culverted below Hermit Lane, forming a stream 
with a pond to the north of Hermit Lane; the stream 
is culverted in parts. The valley is heavily wooded and 
overgrown to the north of Hermit Lane.

Hermit House Farm is located to the south of Hermit 
Lane in the centre-east of the site. The farm complex 
includes two residential dwellings and several 
agricultural buildings, typically constructed from 
concrete blocks, timber and roofing of possible 
asbestos cement sheeting.

Redbrook Farm is located on the north-eastern 
boundary. Agricultural buildings,including a large 
dilapidated barn, several outbuildings and a large silo, 
are located within the site.

A raised plateau of grassland is present adjacent to the 
residential suburb of Pogmoor in the south east of the 
site. To the west of this plateau, the landform falls away 
steeply forming the valley in the centre-east.

Historical maps for the site were obtained from 
GroundSure. These have been reviewed in order to 
establish any former uses of the site and identify any 
potentially contaminative historical uses or potential 
geotechnical constraints to the proposed development. 
In summary, many parts of the site have undergone 
opencast coal extraction. 

Starting in 1945, coal extraction commenced towards 
the south of the site as part of the ‘Hunters Cottage’ 
opencast operation. By the 1950’s extraction had 
also advanced in the ‘Hunters Cottage Extension’ 
and ‘Farm House Lane’ pits, whilst also in the north 

BACKFILLED
OPENCAST

BACKFILLED
OPENCAST

BACKFILLED
OPENCAST

BACKFILLED
OPENCAST

BACKFILLED
OPENCAST

Fig 4.30 Fig 4.31
Site plan showing areas of historic opencast 
mining.

Example of an opencast mine in Leeds.

Page 58



45BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

as part of ‘Craven I’ and ‘Craven II’ operations. These 
former open-casts reached depths of up to 45m and 
were backfilled to present day levels, presenting a 
key geotechnical constraint for the development. 
With further investigation and modelling, these areas 
of backfill material will require technical remediation 
before development can be constructed. 

The outer boundaries of the former open-cast pits also 
present geotechnical challenges. The former highwalls 
represent zones where the depth of fill may range from 
45m depth (at the bottom of the mine) to 0m (at the 
former mine surface); and as such earth works will be 
used to overcome these constraints. 

The site was restored to agricultural use by the 1970s. 
The only built development on the site consists of 
Hermit House Farm and Cottage and also Redbrook 
farm which encroaches onto the north east; the farms 
dating from 19th century. The surrounding land has 
also been used predominantly for agricultural use with 
also a long legacy of coal mining activity. Historical 
contaminative industries near the site include a bleach 
works, located approximately 150m to the north east 
(downslope of the site).

No significant risks to human health have been 
identified and gas protection is not required. Large 
areas of the site are underlain by a significant thickness 
of non-engineered made ground, consisting of colliery 
discard associated with backfilled opencast coal sites. 
The underlying bedrock geology comprises Pennine 
Middle Coal Measures strata of mudstone, siltstone, 
sandstone and coal seams.

Masterplan Framework Considerations:

• This challenging topography has been modelled in 
detail to ensure cut and fill balance can be achieved 
so that material does not have to be transported off 
site.

• The layout currently provides optimum 
development platforms to achieve the yields in the 
Local Plan whilst incorporating the highwalls into 
the areas of public open space. 

• Further work will be required at the planning 
application stage, informed by a detailed landscape 
and visual impact assessment, to determine 
whether this configuration sufficiently complements 
the surrounding landscape and minimises the 
impact on neighbouring areas.  In the event that this 
further detailed work results in the site configuration 
within this Masterplan Framework been deemed 
unacceptable, further earthworks modelling will be 
required to inform alternative options.

Page 59



Fig 4.32

 Approximate Local Plan boundary overlaid onto historic mapPage 60



47BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

4.5 Heritage

The Local Plan site policy MU1 requires development to 
include measures for the protection and retention of the 
listed milepost on Barugh Green Road 500m west of the 
junction with Claycliffe Road and its immediate setting.

Prospect Archaeology have undertaken a desk-based 
heritage assessment to consider the archaeological 
and historical implications of developing the site. The 
desk-based assessment has been completed and has 
involved the consultation of the South Yorkshire Historic 
Environment Record, Barnsley Archives and Local 
Studies Centre Service and the Sheffield City Archives 
Service as well as secondary and online sources and a 
site walk over. 

The assessment has been based on a ‘study area’ 
extending 1,000m from the boundary of the site, 
enabling the consideration of existing and potential 
archaeological features to be considered in their local, 
regional and national contexts.  

There are five designated assets within the study area, 
all Grade II Listed structures. The closest of these is 
a milepost (NHL1151794), which sits on the Barugh 
Green Road (A635) in the location of the proposed 
roundabout and northern access to the site. 

Another milepost is located 400m to the northeast 
(NHL1151764) on the A637 on the far side of the 
Claycliffe Business Park. A third milepost is located on 
the eastern edge of the study area (NHL1151771) on 
the Wilthorpe Road stretch of the A635 and a fourth 
(NHL 1191519) is located almost 600m southeast of the 
study area on the A628. 

The final designated asset is a barn attached to the side 
of Royd Hill Farmhouse (NHL1151770) 400m to the east 
on the far side of Higham. 

A further 14 undesignated assets have been identified 
in the study area from the South Yorkshire Historic 
Environment Record and although none of these 
are within the site they do raise the potential for 
remains of prehistoric and Roman date. Documentary 
research suggests the site may contain early medieval 
boundaries and possible later medieval farm buildings 
and agricultural activity. Post-medieval assets relate 
mainly to industrial activity. There were mine access 
shafts at various locations on the site and a stone kerbed 
track follows the Dodworth/Barnsley township boundary 

Approximate Local Plan 
boundary overlaid onto historic 
map

through the site.

Considerable areas of the site have been subject to 
opencast mining in the middle years of the 20th century. 
Any remains at Hermit House Farm have been damaged 
by modern buildings.

The milepost on the Barugh Green Road (NHL1151794) 
is located in the southern verge, 500m to the west of 
the junction with Claycliffe Road. It dates to the mid to 
late 19th century, made of cast-iron with raised letters 
reading: Barnsley and Shepley Lane Head Road Barugh, 
Barnsley 2 miles, Cawthorne 2 miles, Denby Dale 6½ 
miles Holmfirth 12 miles.

The setting of the milepost is its location on the 
Barugh Green Road, a former turnpike road (Shepley 
to Cawthorne Trust established in 1824) and its 
association with the series of other surviving mileposts 
along it (examples being NHL1151771 to the east and 
NHL1151787 to the west). There is no evidence that the 
asset has moved, though it does appear set in modern 
concrete.  

The site is not located within or in close proximity to a 
conservation area.  

The site allocation requires the development to pro-
vide a new link road through the site and connect into 
the existing highway network. Given the site’s extents, 
constraints and  proximity to existing roads, the new link 
road can provide a highway connection from Barugh 
Green Road to Higham Common Road. The point of 
connection into Barugh Green Road will require the 
relocation of the listed milepost (NHL1151794). The 
milepost will remain close to its original position provid-
ing more prominence in the highway;  it is therefore 
likely to create negligible effects on the significance of 
the asset. Whilst the relocation of the milepost maybe 
considered acceptable in principle, suitable mitigation 
and the submission of an application for listed building 
consent will need to be approved by the council.

Masterplan Framework Considerations:

• Respond sensitively to boundaries with existing 
heritage assets

• Ensure that these heritage assets are accounted for 
when undertaking the landscape and visual impact 
assessment.

Fig 4.33

Page 61



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

48

4.6 Archaeology

The site was identified as having little or no 
archaeological objections and uncertain archaeological 
objections by Wessex Archaeology as part of the Local 
Plan evidence base. Local Plan site policy MU1 requires 
that an appropriate archaeological assessment is 
undertaken as archaeological features may be present 
within the site. Areas of the site affected by open cast 
mining may be excluded from further archaeological 
assessment; however, this would need to be agreed 
with the local planning authority and South Yorkshire 
Archaeology Advisory Service. 

An Archaeological Desk Based Assessment has been 
undertaken to assess the archaeological potential of 
the site. Areas of open cast mining have been identified 
within the site, although further work is required to 
refine these areas and inform the archaeological 
evaluation strategy for the site. 

The potential for designated heritage assets of 
archaeological interest within the site is low. However, 
the site does have potential for hitherto unknown 
undesignated heritage assets. Therefore, in accordance 
with NPPF paragraph 189, further evaluation in the 
form of geophysical survey and trial trenching will be 
required pre-determination of any planning decisions 
being taken. This information will help to assess the 
potential and significance of any archaeological remains 
within the site and determine the level of harm. The 
results of the archaeological evaluation will then be 
used to identify a suitable mitigation strategy for the 
site. 

Masterplan Framework Considerations:

• Potential for designated heritage assets of 
archaeological interest within the site is low due to 
former opencast activity.

• Further refinement of areas impacted by opencast  
mining required to determine areas of site that 
require further investigation.

• Geophysical survey  and trial trenching to be 
undertaken to those identified areas in order to 
assess the potential for archaeological remains to 
be present within the site.

4.7 Flood Risk and Drainage

The Local Plan site policy MU1 requires the 
development to ensure that any sustainable drainage 
system incorporating above ground habitats is 
designed from the outset to serve the whole site and 
gives consideration to the drain/culvert that runs 
through the site.

The site is identified on the Environment Agency flood 
mapping within zone 1, where the risk of flooding low.

There are a number of watercourses and land drains 
crossing the site. These converge to the culverted 
watercourse under Redbrook Road and to the 
culverted watercourse under Barugh Green Road. The 
watercourses flow to the north and north-west to the 
River Dearne.

The principal watercourses crossing the site are the 
streams through Redbrook Plantation and Craven Wood 
through the central part of the site. There are drainage 
ditches within the south-eastern part of the site and 
along the north-eastern site boundary with Barugh 
Green Road. The nearest main river is the River Dearne, 
1 km to the north.

Existing surface water disposal is to Redbrook 
watercourse and to the culverted watercourse under 
Barugh Green Road. Redbrook watercourse is culverted 
under Redbrook Road and Zenith Business Park. The 
route of the Barugh Green Road watercourse beyond 
Claycliffe Road is not known. There are Yorkshire Water 
surface water sewers and a combined sewer overflow 
discharging to these watercourses. Soakaways are 
unlikely to be viable on the site due to the presence of 
clay.

Masterplan Framework Considerations:

• Create an integrated blue and green infrastructure 
within the site

• Ensure the risk of flooding beyond the site 
boundaries is prevented through a positive 
drainage strategy.

Page 62



49BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

4.8 Landscape

The Local Plan site policy MU1 requires that 
development will be expected to retain, buffer and 
manage the watercourses, grassland and woodland 
north-east of Hermit Lane.

A tree survey has been undertaken by WYG in 
accordance with BS5837:2012.

The largest part of the land comprises an extensive area 
of agricultural fields that are dissected by a rural road 
known as Hermit Lane. There is a substantial deciduous 
woodland feature that follows the course of a system of 
steep sided stream gullies that flow north-east through 
the eastern part of the survey area.

The survey of trees at the site assessed 170 individual 
trees, 23 groups of trees and 39 sections of field 
hedging. This included trees located on-site and those 
located on adjoining land that may be affected by 
development of the site.

Part of the deciduous woodland that is situated in the 
east of the survey area is protected by a woodland 
Tree Preservation Order. The land does not lie within a 
Conservation Area.

The vegetation across the site is sparse both in number 
of species and in number of trees recorded. The land 
is criss-crossed by a network of field hedges that while 
established, are almost exclusively hawthorn (Crataegus 
monogyna) of even age, and which in most areas have 
seen very little management. All are factors which 
suggest that the hedgerow system has been planted 
relatively recently (within the last 50 years).

Hedgerows on agricultural land are protected under the 
Hedgerow Regulations 1997. Hedgerows should not be 
removed without serving appropriate notice on the local 
planning authority, who can require the retention of 
hedgerows deemed ‘important’ under the Regulations.

The species that make up the small number of trees 
are ash (Fraxinus excelsior), sessile oak (Quercus 
petraea), English oak (Quercus robur), sycamore (Acer 
pseudoplatanus), holly (Quercus ilex Ilex aquifolium), 
and field maple (Acer campestre), along with one row 
of three mature beech (Fagus sylvatica) that are in poor 
condition and which are planted close to houses at the 
south-eastern edge of the land.

There is much better diversity and quality within the 
interconnected woodland features that occur towards 
the east of the survey area in its central part. By far the 
dominant species within the wooded areas is sessile 

oak, and it was noted that these were all relatively 
even-aged with the majority recorded as early-mature 
and a smaller number considered to be mature. No 
late-mature or ancient trees were recorded within 
the wooded areas, suggesting a period of significant 
plantation perhaps in the late 19th or first part of the 
20th century.

Other tree species present within the woodland groups 
are ash, sycamore, silver birch (Betula pendula), wych 
elm (Ulmus glabra), hazel (Corylus avellana), field 
maple, hawthorn, crab apple (Malus sylvestris) and goat 
willow (Salix caprea). Common alder (Alnus glutinous) 
and crack willow (Salix fragilis) were also noted in the 
woodland groups and were more common within a 
leg to the west of the woodland groups where the 
water is slower to drain and a number of small ponds 
have formed. The presence of such a density of oak 
trees within the wooded areas provides an excellent 
opportunity to develop and manage this part of the 
land as a valuable asset both in terms of amenity and for 
its ecology.

A row of multi-stemmed whitebeam (Sorbus aria) 
interspersed with self-set wych elm is planted between 
Hermit Lane and a copse of high-quality trees towards 
the centre of the survey area. There is a semi-mature 
off-site motorway planting scheme on the embankment 
of the M1 where it meets the land to the south west 
and species recorded within are small leaved lime (Tilia 
cordata), ash, English oak, sycamore, bird cherry (Prunus 
padus), hawthorn and rowan (Sorbus acuparia).

Three further small semi-mature areas of roadside 
planting share a boundary with the land in its south 
western part and these were seen to contain ash, 
blackthorn (Prunus spinosa), crab apple, field maple, 
common alder, sycamore, hawthorn, wild cherry 
(Prunus avium) and rowan. It was noted that ash was 
the dominant species in both the motorway and 
roadside plantations and as such there is an inherent 
vulnerability of these groups to chalara dieback of ash 
(Hymenoscyphus fraxineus).

Semi and early-mature Lawson’s cypress 
(Chamaecyparis lawsoniana), domestic apple (Malus 
domestica), and variegated holly were present within 
the gardens of Hermit House Farm. A walkover viewing 
of the many gardens that abut the survey area was 
undertaken in order to record any trees or hedges 
that might be affected by development of the land, 
these were only recorded within the survey where 
considered to be significant. Tree species that were 

Page 63



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

50

viewed within private gardens close to the survey area 
included cherry laurel (Prunus laurocerasus), Leyland 
cypress (Cuprocyparis leylandii), hawthorn, rowan, ash, 
goat willow, crack willow, silver birch, horse chestnut 
(Aesculus hippocastanum), European larch (Larix 
decidua) and cider gum (Eucalyptus gunnii). It was 
noted generally that the majority of the properties with 
gardens that adjoin the survey area are of a relatively 
modern construction and as such there were very few 
trees of any maturity present within.

4.9 Green Space and Recreation

Local Plan policy GS1, the Supplementary Planning 
Document Open Space Provision on New Housing 
Developments and Local Plan site policy MU1 requires 
that the development provides appropriate and 
accessible public open space to meet local need.  In 
addition, the site policy for MU1 requires that the 
development will be expected to protect the routes of 
the public rights of way (PROW) that cross the site, and 
make provision for these as part of any proposals.

The council’s Green Space Assessment (2019) for the 
site provides a summary of existing green space assets 
in the locality:

Overall Finding:

• MU1 and the immediate surroundings do not have 
the range of green spaces to meet local standards. 
A site of this size would be expected to provide the 
full range of open space for new residents, although 
a financial contribution for formal recreation 

provision may be appropriate or combination of on-
and-off-site provision in accordance with the local 
needs assessment.

Parks and open spaces:

• MU1 and the immediate surroundings lack parks 
at district and borough level. These are available in 
adjoining areas but access is constrained by major 
roads and railway line

Child and youth facilities:

• Deficient in Equipped Play Areas, LEAP and NEAP 
facilities. 

• Youth facilities are available.

• Most facilities are good quality and high value 
although some types of child and youth facilities 
need improving.

Outdoor sports facilities:

• There are limited outdoor sports facilities, no 
district or borough level facilities and a lack of 
opportunities for participation in wide range of 
sports. 

• The quality of facilities that exist need improving.

• There is some availability in adjoining areas but 
with limited public access; and access to a range of 
sports is limited. 

Green ways:

• There are no established Green Ways (also known 
as wildlife corridors) crossing in or around MU1 or 
the immediate surroundings although these are 
available in adjoining areas.

Natural areas:

• There is a single natural area in the immediate 
surroundings which is of good quality and high 
value. 

Allotments:

• There is no access to allotments in MU1 and the 
immediate surroundings but there is access in 
adjoining areas where the quality of some needs 
improving. 

Formal Recreation:

• Barnsley’s Playing Pitch Strategy (2016-2019) 
provides an overview of existing formal recreation 
facilities in the locality. 

• The demand for formal recreation will be impacted 
by the development. During 2020, the council will 

Masterplan Framework Considerations:

• Trees on the site represent a constraint that must 
be taken into account when designing future 
development. All the trees and groups of high 
and moderate quality must be retained as part of 
the development unless it is clearly demonstrated 
and evidenced that this is not possible. Trees of 
low quality are also a constraint and must be fully 
considered as part of any proposal and retained 
where possible. Retained trees must be provided 
with sufficient space to protect their roots, as 
defined by the root protection area and the full 
extent of their crown spreads during any works,  
as well as sufficient space for future growth and 
development without causing a conflicts with any 
new features or structures on the sites.

Page 64



51BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

revise elements of the Playing Pitch Strategy in 
order to enable a more accurate needs assessment 
for the site, wider growth and their associated 
requirements. The council are also in the process of 
identifying potential sites that will be affected as a 
result of  development and what needs may arise to 
mitigate and impact. 

• It is clear that proximity to the development is an 
important aspect to the formal pitch mitigation, 
however on site mitigation in entirety  is unlikely 
to provide adequate improvements for the level 
of demand from the development. It is therefore 
likely that a combination of on-and-off-site formal 
recreation will be required.  This will be dependent 
on facility type, management arrangements and 
in line with the needs appraisal at the time of the 
planning application.

• Based on this information, the guidance that 
features within the Open Space SPD and working 
together with the council, a green space strategy 
for the Masterplan Framework area is proposed. 
This strategy is explained within the Infrastructure 
Delivery in Chapter 6.

4.10 Noise

Environmental Noise Solutions have undertaken a 
noise survey for the site and a study area was defined 
to quantify the level of external noise affecting existing 
residential properties, neighbouring areas and the 
site (noise sensitive receptors). An initial site noise risk 
assessment has been performed using ProPG guidance.

The baseline noise climate in the vicinity of the site and 
local areas is predominantly due to distant road traffic 
on the M1 motorway, with localised contributions from 
local road traffic on Barugh Green Road and Higham 
Common Lane.

The additional noise contribution from the proposed 
site access / link road has also been considered along 
with recommendations for a noise mitigation strategy 
to protect existing residential properties and future 
residential properties at the site from this additional 
noise source using relevant criteria and guidance 
including BS8233 / ProPG. 

Given the level of projected traffic generation from 
the site, consideration will be required to providing 
mitigation in the form of localised screening (bunding 
and/or acoustic fencing) alongside the proposed 

junctions at existing highways connection points and 
the proposed link road to provide mitigation to existing 
properties that will be directly affected by the noise 
from the development. 

For proposed residential properties, appropriate 
configurations of glazing and ventilation will be 
required. In order to mitigate external noise levels, to 
satisfy the lower ‘desirable’ criterion of ≤ 50 dB LAeq,T  
for external amenity areas, it is recommended that 
either; 

a) proposed gardens are self-screened from the site 
access road (by positioning houses between the road 
and the gardens) or 

b) proposed gardens that back on to the site access 
road are protected with a solid acoustic barrier (e.g. 
acoustic fencing) and are positioned at a minimum 
distance of 40 metres from the road.

With regard to the proposed school, existing noise 
levels are sufficiently low to permit ventilation via open 
windows whilst satisfying the indoor ambient noise 
level criteria set out in BB93. However, the introduction 
of the new link road may exceed the levels such that 
the indoor ambient noise level criteria (set out in BB93) 
could not be satisfied with open windows. Therefore, an 
appropriate configuration of glazing and ventilation will 
need to be considered. The potential noise impact due 
to the use of the proposed sports fields at the school 
has been considered along with recommendations 
to avoid an adverse impact (i.e. minimum distance 
between proposed dwellings and sports field).

The potential noise impact of the proposed industrial 
/ commercial units and plant upon both existing and 
proposed residential properties has been considered. 
In order to avoid adverse impacts (as defined by 
BS4142:2014+A1:2019), maximum permissible free-
field rating noise levels, from the proposed commercial 
units and plant, are recommended at existing and 
proposed noise sensitive receptors. These are based on 
the measured background noise levels.

Developers should consider the positioning and 
orientation between associated service yards and 
existing and proposed residential properties to 
the north, north-west and east. This would provide 
barrier attenuation by way of ‘self-screening’ from the 
services yards to residential properties. Furthermore, 
consideration of noise screening will be required. 

Page 65



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

52

Masterplan Framework Considerations:

A noise mitigation strategy will be required to protect 
existing and proposed residential properties from the 
proposed development using relevant criteria and 
guidance including BS8233 / ProPG.  These include 
appropriate configurations of glazing and ventilation 
and acoustic screening at existing and proposed garden 
perimeters, where necessary. Suitable mitigations will 
be agreed with the Local Planning Authority, once noise 
impacts have been identified.

At the planning application stage, it will be essential to 
understand the noise implications for both construction 
and operational phases and any subsequent required 
mitigations. It is suggested the developers use the 
following in order to assess the impacts; BS4142; 
2014 Methods for rating and assessing industrial and 
commercial sound, BS8233;2014 Guidance on sound 
insulation and noise reduction for buildings, Design 
Manual for Roads and Bridges and Calculation of Road 
Traffic Noise, BS5228;2009 Code of Practice for Control 
of Noise on Building and Open sites. 

Developers are required to follow the requirements 
of BS5228-1:2009 which details best practice for the 
control of noise and vibration from construction and 
open sites.  A Construction Management Plan will be 
required in order to set out potential noise impacts 
during construction and operational phases and 
required mitigations.  Developers are encouraged to 
explore the opportunity to use a Customised Code of 
Considerate Conduct in order to provide a positive 
commitment to existing residents and a pro-active 
approach to ongoing community liaison.

4.11 Air Quality

A review of local air quality has been conducted 
by Wardell Armstrong to inform the scope of the 
assessment and future discussions with Transport 
Consultants and the Environmental Health Officers at 
the council. This has incorporated reviewing the location 
of local Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) and 
local air quality monitoring data, as well as surrounding 
land uses which may affect air quality on-site for future 
residents of the development.  

There is an AQMA (AQMA No.1) declared for annual 
mean nitrogen dioxide (NO2) by the council which 
covers the southern edge of the site on either side of 
the M1 motorway. Another AQMA (AQMA No. 2A), 
declared for annual mean NO2 is located approximately 

320m southeast of the site along the A628 Dodworth 
Road.

The site is, therefore located partially within an existing 
AQMA. In addition, the M1 motorway is located 
adjacent to the site and close to the A628 AQMA and 
will be a key concern in the assessment of air quality.

Masterplan Framework Considerations:

At the planning application stage, it will be essential 
to understand the air quality implications for both 
construction and operational phases and any 
subsequent required mitigations.  This is particularly 
so, given the expected traffic generation from the 
site and the trip diversion anticipated prior to, and 
following completion of the link road.  Phasing and any 
interim mitigation measures will require more detailed 
consideration taking into account short term emissions 
but also the anticipated transition to lower emission and 
electric vehicles.

4.12 Ecology

The Local Plan site policy MU1 states that development 
will be expected to:

• Retain, buffer and manage the watercourse, 
grassland and woodland north-east of Hermit Lane;

• Retain, buffer and manage the species-rich 
hedgerows and boundary features. Where this is 
not possible transplant hedgerows including root 
balls and associated soils. A method statement for 
this should be provided and agreed prior to works 
commencing; and

• Create/retain wildlife corridors through/across the 
site. 

Development proposals will be justified against 
a Biodiversity Net Gain system in agreement with 
the Local Planning Authority which demonstrates 
a minimum ‘net gain’ of at least 10% following 
construction compared to the site’s current ecological 
value.

WYG have undertaken a desk-top study, which has 
identified no Natura 2000 sites identified with 10km of 
the site. Similarly, no statutory designated sites were 
identified within 2km of the site.

Redbrook Pastures Local Wildlife Site (LWS) is located 
adjacent to the eastern site boundary and a further 
two LWSs are located within 2km of the site (Hugset 
Wood LWS and Barnsley Canal at Wilthorpe LWS). 

Page 66



53BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

These sites could be directly or indirectly impacted 
by the development of the site. Creation of a method 
statement detailing measures on how to avoid indirect 
impacts upon this LWS (e.g. pollution prevention) will be 
required. 

Habitats

Nine main habitats were identified on site including 
semi-natural broadleaf woodland, semi-improved 
grassland, improved grassland, marshy grassland, 
running water, standing water, arable, hedgerows and 
trees, and buildings and hardstanding.

Consideration of the potential effects upon habitats 
of value within the site (e.g. woodland, grassland, 
trees and aquatic habitats) will be required and 
recommendations for mitigation measures agreed with 
the Local Planning Authority. 

Protected / Notable Species

WYG have undertaken detailed field surveys across 
the site and noted the site’s suitability for the following 
protected / notable species on site: 

• roosting and foraging / commuting bats; 

• breeding birds;

• great crested newt;

• common toad;

• other amphibians;

• badger;

• reptiles; 

• brown hare; and 

• hedgehog.

A stand of Japanese knotweed was identified on the 
western site boundary (north of Hermit Lane). A pre-
construction survey will be produced, to provide up-to-
date advice on management / removal.

Bat Survey Report (WYG, 2018)

WYG have completed a series of bat roost suitability 
assessments of all trees and buildings on and directly 
adjacent to the site. Subsequent bat emergence / re-
entry surveys were undertaken on a total of 25 trees and 
seven buildings, considered to offer bat roost suitability. 

The results of which should accompany an application 
for the development of the site. 

WYG also completed site-wide bat activity surveys 
between April and September (2018) (inclusive). 
Amongst other bat species, the common pipistrelle 
were most frequently recorded. The most valuable 
foraging / commuting routes for bats were identified 
and included Hermit Lane, Craven Wood, much of the 
eastern site boundary and several hedgerows in the 
south of the site. 

Areas of ecologically-valuable woodland will be 
retained within the development. Hedgerows and 
ditches considered to be of most value to foraging 
/ commuting bats will either be retained in-situ or 
translocated / replaced elsewhere in the development 
in a way which provides habitat connectivity.  

In addition, adoption of a sensitive lighting scheme 
will be required, along with the creation of landscaped 
areas to provide shelter, foraging opportunities and 
dark corridors across the site.

Breeding Bird Survey Report (WYG, 2019)

A suite of breeding bird surveys, comprised of one visit 
each month (March – June, inclusive), was completed 
in 2018. Eleven species notable species (BoCC (Birds 
of Conservation Concern) Red and Amber, NERC listed 
or LBAP) were confirmed breeders or considered to be 
likely breeding. In addition, 22 common bird species 
(BoCC Green or no BoCC status) were confirmed 
breeders or considered to be likely breeding.

It is recommended that enhanced nesting habitat be 
retained or replaced in greater length / area. Phasing 
of works could minimise impacts to breeding birds 
in the short-term. Habitat creation, mitigation and 
management will be required. 

Best practice measures will be used, including 
removal of vegetation / ground clearance outside of 
the breeding bird season (March – August, inclusive) 
or otherwise, preceded by a nest check by a suitably 
experienced ecologist, and presentation of bird habitat 
illumination.

Badger and Hedgerows (WYG, 2019)

WYG assessed hedgerows on site between 2018 and 
2019 against the ‘Wildlife and Landscape’ Importance 
criteria within the Hedgerow Regulations 1997, however 
further assessments will be required to assess the 

Page 67



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

54

potential heritage significance of identified hedgerows.

Thirty-four hedgerows exist on site. Of these, three 
hedgerows meet sufficient criteria, as detailed within 
the ‘Wildlife and Landscape’ section of the Hedgerow 
Regulations 1997, to be considered Important. It is 
proposed to retain as many hedgerows in-situ (and 
protect retained hedgerows during construction), 
where possible. Any Important hedgerows requiring 
removal could only be removed with Local Planning 
Authority approval or if present within an area granted 
with planning permission. If this happens then those 
hedgerows will be translocated together with their root 
balls and associated soils to an agreed position within 
the development. Finally, the hedgerows surveyed in 
2019 should be subject to a final walkover (during the 
main botanical season: April – August, inclusive) prior to 
removal, to search for evidence of any notable botanical 
species.

No evidence of badger was identified on site, however, 
a pre-commencement check is recommended as a 
precautionary measure, due to the mobility of badgers. 
In addition, best practice measure during construction 
will be required, to prevent harm to any badgers which 
may visit the site.

Great Crested Newt
WYG have carried out some surveying for this species 
and conducted one eDNA survey (located in Craven 
Wood) which proved negative. Further surveys have 
been agreed for 2020 and further permissions will not 
be given by the LPA until it is satisfied that this species 
is either not present or the effects can be sufficiently 
mitigated.

Masterplan Framework Considerations:

• Planning applications should be supported by 
preliminary ecology appraisals and where identified 
accompanied by detailed surveys. 

• Ecological management plans will be required 
to demonstrate long term management and 
maintenance of existing, enhanced and proposed 
ecological features and habitats.

4.13 Utilities 

The site has been reviewed in order to assess the extent 
and capacity of existing utilities within the vicinity of the 
site and the potential need for additional infrastructure 
or diversions.

The site is local to several existing mixed-use 
developments therefore all major utility infrastructure is 
local to the site.

The consensus and feedback from all utility providers 
is the new development can be supported and that 
there is spare capacity in their networks to allow the 
site to develop in lines with the masterplan. As major 
utility infrastructure routes within and adjacent to the 
development site and boundary and there is potential 
for it to be extended to meet the demand of the new 
development.

There is evidence of major utility infrastructure being 
affected by the redevelopment and will require some 
form of diversion. Affected utilities are:

• Northern Power Grid (66kV and 11kV services route 
within and through the site.

• Northern Gas Network infrastructure routes along 
Barugh Green Road and will require some diversion 
works due to the requirement to connect into the 
Barugh Green Road highway network.

• Virgin Media and British Telecom (Infrastructure 
routes within and around the new development and 
is affected by the Barugh Green Road and Higham 
Common Road highway modifications).

• All affected utilities have been consulted to 
establish a resolution and budget costs for the 
works. Further consultations would be required 
as detailed designs and planning applications are 
prepared.

Masterplan Framework Considerations:

Developers will need to undertake further dialogue 
with services and utilities providers for development 
within the planning application stage to ensure that 
appropriate connections can be achieved.

Page 68



Fig 4.34Page 69



CONSTRAINTS

B A R U G H   G R E E N   R O A D  

A

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

M1

Fig 4.35 Page 70



57BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

4.14 Constraints

The constraints plan has been informed by the 
assessment of the baseline context.  Constraints are 
considered potential limitations to development and 
has the potential to influence how a development 
is designed and evolves through the process. The 
constraints also provide the basis of identifying the 
opportunities. For example, the location of public 
rights of ways, whilst these inform the design response, 
these are also elements that contribute to the future of 
character of the area. 

The following constraints and opportunities are 
identified: 

• The ground conditions of the site were affected by 
the previous open-cast mining and infill, meaning 
that there are clear areas where development is 
restricted, in locations of the highwalls.

• The topography of the site is currently steeply 

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTEVEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE
VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

Vehicle route

Ownership boundary 

Topographical direction 

Right of way 

Footpath entrance

Milepost (Grade II Listed)

Protected woodland 

Watercourse

Vegetation

Utilities

Constant noise source 

Daytime - evening noise source 

Highwall

Local Plan Boundary 

Railway Track

sloping. The initial site works will require 
groundworks to reduce some of these slopes 
and create suitable levels and platforms for 
development to take place.

• Above ground utilities also run throughout two 
areas of the site to the north and south, in the form 
of overhead electrical wires.

• A milepost also sits on the northern boundary which 
is Grade II listed.

• Background noise levels from the M1 motorway 
and local road traffic on Barugh Green Road and 
Higham Common Road. The site has a strong 
existing network of rights of way and footpaths. 
These will be retained to create accessible 
pedestrian and cycle routes into and throughout 
the development. The strategic location makes sure 
the site is well connected to local amenities, schools 
and roads.

• As a consequence of modifying the levels of the 
site for construction, hedgerows and woodland 
should be retained where possible. Additionally, 
new ecology will be introduced elsewhere to 
create a high-quality, green environment for the 
development. The sustainable drainage will provide 
water features to complement this.

• Opportunities identified for the link road within the 
site to connect into the existing highway network at 
Barugh Green Road and Higham Common Road. 

Page 71



OPPORTUNITIES

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

Fig 4.36 Page 72



59BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTEVEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTE

VEHICLE ROUTEVEHICLE ROUTE

Vehicle route 

Topography direction 

Existing right of way 

Existing footpath entrance 

Potential new footpath entrance

Key view 

Protected woodland

Watercourse

Non-protected woodland 

School

Local amenities 

Bus stop 

Local plan boundary 

Recreation ground 

Vegetation

Potential new pedestrian link

Fig 4.39View into Barnsley facing east

Fig 4.38Key view out to local landmarks

Fig 4.37Local amenities on Barugh Green Road

VEHICLE ROUTE

Link road

4.15 Opportunities

Page 73



Fig 4.40

Page 74



5 MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST Fig 5.1Page 75



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

62

5.1 Design Evolution

The design evolution is an iterative design process 
driven by the constraints and opportunities identified 
within the supporting technical assessments. This makes 
sure that all design decision making is underpinned by 
an evidence based strategy for developing the site.

The constraints and opportunities set out the starting 
point for the design evolution.

The level of proposed development across the site is 
set out within the adopted Barnsley Local Plan and is 
summarised below:  

• Development of around 1,700 new homes and 43 
hectares of employment land 

• A new primary school

• Small convenience shops and community facilities

• Brand-new infrastructure, including an access link 
road

• Open green space with wildlife corridors, 
watercourses and key pedestrian footpaths and 
cycleways paths

The development of the site provides a new strategic 
link road, the “Claycliffe Link Road”, which will form a 
spine road through the site and provide a key route 
from M1 Junction 37 up to A635 Barugh Green Road, 
providing a north-western gateway into Barnsley. As a 
result, delivery of the link road will also help alleviate 
local traffic issues, particularly for residents of Higham 
and Barugh Green to the west of the site, with Higham 
Lane and High Common Road currently providing the 
primary access for heavy goods vehicles travelling 
between the M1 and Claycliffe Business Park. The need 
for a new strategic link road between M1 Junction 37 
and A635 Barugh Green Road is a long-held transport 
aspiration for the council and is supported by the 
Sheffield City Region Combined Authority. 

The new link road will connect both ends of the site and 
provide a thoroughfare. This infrastructure is dependent 

on two roundabouts at either end. 

A new access has been designed at Barugh Green 
Road; the access strategy and road alignment has been 
agreed in principle.

Furthermore, the location of the Tudor Rose Nursery 
also limits where the new roundabout access into 
the site can be positioned. The justification for the 
roundabout locations has been determined following 
consideration of existing levels across the site and the 
need to minimise gradients.

To the south, the roundabout fits into Higham Common 
Road to allow for M1 access and serve the wider 
operational requirement to the employment zone.

In order to ensure the link road can function safely, 
its configuration is driven by extensive testing by the 
consultant highways designer.

The highwalls are undevelopable land, and as such 
provide an opportunity to for the location of landscape 
and recreation areas. These can then expanded by 
merging with a series of ‘character areas’ throughout the 
site, linking up with existing rights of way to promote 
a permeability through the site, and preserving other 
features such as the woodland and Hermit Lane. 
These character areas contain landscaping, recreation 
areas and flood ponds and set a framework for where 
buildings can be located.

Setting out the Landscape Framework allows for zones 
to be allocated for housing and neighbourhoods. The 
employment zone needs links to the M1 Junction 37 
to minimise the impact of HGV’s driving through the 
link road. Additionally, the southern area of the site has 
frontage to the M1 and will also be closest to what will 
be an almost constant noise source from the motorway. 
Taking this into consideration, the logical location for 
the employment zone is on the southern part of the site.

The civic square contains the school and community 
buildings. Due to its prime frontage on the link road 
and sufficient distance from other local schools and 
amenities, there is a strong justification for its location 
within this part of the site, as well as the playing fields 
being south-facing in this location.

5 MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Hedgerows

Roundabouts

Link Road

Highwall

New landscaped permeability

Developable Zones

Heartspace

Employment

Other ownership 

Landscape permeability connection

New landscaped permeability

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Hedgerows

Roundabouts

Link Road

Highwall

New landscaped permeability

Developable Zones

Heartspace

Employment

Other ownership 

Landscape permeability connection

New landscaped permeability

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Hedgerows

Roundabouts

Link Road

Highwall

New landscaped permeability

Developable Zones

Heartspace

Employment

Other ownership 

Landscape permeability connection

New landscaped permeability

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Hedgerows

Roundabouts

Link Road

Highwall

New landscaped permeability

Developable Zones

Heartspace

Employment

Other ownership 

Landscape permeability connection

New landscaped permeability

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Hedgerows

Roundabouts

Link Road

Highwall

New landscaped permeability

Developable Zones

Heartspace

Employment

Other ownership 

Landscape permeability connection

New landscaped permeability

Page 76



63BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

HOMES 

HOMES 

H
O

M
ES

 

1

M1

BARUGH GREEN ROAD 

Other ownership 

Woodland
Highwalls

M1

BARUGH GREEN ROAD 

2

3 4

BARUGH GREEN ROAD 

HOMES 

HOMES 

HOMES HOMES HOMES 

HO
M

ES
 

New roundabout

Link road 

New roundabout

Fig 5.2

Page 77



ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN PROPOSAL

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

KEY

Site Boundary Line

Indicative Development Zone

Proposed Housing Backing onto 
Existing Housing 
Character Area Influence - (material 
Palette Colour
Primary Routes

Gateway Buildings
Heart Space- Key Public Focal Points 
to Each Character Area
Urban Edge  Frontages onto Open 
Landscape
Pedestrian Routes at Site Boundary

Existing Woodland Retained

Public Open Space

School Grounds

Commercial/ School

Views through Masterplan

Key Character Node Buildings

Place making Diagram 30 second Radius

Nodes Gateway + Heartspace

Illustrative Masterplan Primary Roads

Frontages 

KEY

Site Boundary Line

Indicative Development Zone

30 Second Radius From Public 
Open Green Space

Public Open Green Space

KEY

Site Boundary Line

Indicative Development Zone

Dwellings not Fronting onto Greenspace 

Dwellings Frontage onto Greenspace

Public Open Green Space

KEYS

KEY

Site Boundary Line

Key Character Node Buildings

Secondary Heart Spaces

Primary Heart Spaces

Gateway Buildings 

KEY

Site Boundary Line

Commercial 

Ecology & Biodiversity 

SITE WIDE COLOUR

STREET FURNITURE PALETTE

KEY

KEY

Site Boundary Line

Site Boundary Line

Cascade Arboretum, Green 
Lanes and Meadow park

Woodlands 

Greens and Squares

Indicative Development Zone

Public Open Green Space

KEY

Site Boundary Line

Indicative Development Zone

Primary Roads

Secondary Roads

KEY

Site Boundary Line

Indicative Development Zone

Secondary Roads

KEY

Site Boundary Line

Distincive character area 
colour palettes.

Indicative Development 
Zone

Colour influences on new 
development parcels

Surrounding building colour 
palettes.

EDGE PARAMETERS

KEY

Site Boundary Line

Indicative Development 
Zone

Proposed Edges

Pogmoor Land Edges

Employment

Residential

Commercial Unit

Primary School

Secondary Roads

KEY

Site Boundary Line

Indicative Development Zone

Secondary Roads

Fig 5.3 Page 78



65BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

5.2 Masterplan Framework

The Illustrative Masterplan will guide the future 
planning applications for development of the site. The 
Illustrative Masterplan has evolved from consideration 
of health and wellbeing, townscape, heritage and socio- 
economic considerations. It has been used to:

• create a framework for development of the site 
in terms of mix and quantum of uses, building 
typologies, streets and open spaces;

• allow for the flexibility to ensure Barnsley can realise 
the ambition for the homes it will need over the 
next 15 years. This flexibility ensures it can cater 
for homes for first-time buyers, downsizers, elderly 
and family homes to suit a range of tenures from 
market sale, shared ownership, homes for rent and 
affordable housing;

• prioritise pedestrians and cyclists with public 
transport, and convenient and safe pedestrian 
access through the site to the town centre and 
surrounding communities, linking town-wide 
footpaths to enjoy the wider Barnsley environment;

• make sure that community is catered for in the 
form of education, community and healthcare 
facilities within walking distance to each new 
neighbourhood; and

• provide space for a wide range of business from 
start-up initiatives to established companies in 
modern workplaces fit for the 21st Century.

Page 79



SUSTAINABLE MOVEMENT

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

Fig 5.4 Page 80



67BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

5.3 Sustainable Movement

This diagram demonstrates the extent of pedestrian and 
cycle permeability that the draft illustrative proposal 
could achieve. Linking up with existing rights of way, 
this is enhanced with a series of new pedestrian access 
points to ensure the Masterplan is carefully sewn into 
the adjacent communities, and attracts a wider use as a 
recreational location.

Any new routes through the site need to be as 
accessible as possible and upgrades sought to existing 
routes where appropriate.

5.4 Public Transport

To ensure the long-term sustainability of Barnsley West, 
it is vital that future occupants of the development are 
able to conveniently access services and amenities, both 
within the site and the wider area, by modes of travel 
other than private car.

The concept for Barnsley West is for a “connected 
neighbourhood’ that integrates the development 
into the wider area and local communities. This can 
be achieved through a combination of new services 
and amenities consistent with the Local Plan policy, 
innovative public transport solutions, high-quality 
pedestrian and cycle routes, effective management and 
promotion of sustainable travel options, and thoughtful 
masterplanning. The aim is to make journeys between 
the site, the surrounding areas and Barnsley town centre 
safe, convenient and attractive by sustainable modes of 
travel.

A programme of bus service provision and 
enhancements will be required which address 
frequency, convenience and attractiveness, and 
supported where necessary by the new highway 
infrastructure. That programme of provision and 
enhancements should be agreed in liaison with the 
SYPTE.

There is an opportunity to provide high-quality frequent 
and direct public transport connections to Barnsley 
town centre, and the other main urban areas.

The development will therefore be designed to 
capitalise on existing bus services, ensuring that 
pedestrian connections to bus stops are direct and 
attractive, and supporting new bus stops and upgraded 
bus stop facilities, where appropriate. The potential 
to extend and/or divert bus services through the site, 
utilising the new link road, will also be explored with 

the local bus operators as part of the detailed site 
masterplanning at the planning application stage.

The identified bus services should be supported 
by promotion of sustainable travel options through 
implementation of travel planning measures.

Public transport proposals have yet to be defined for 
the site, however it is good practice to serve residential 
properties with access to bus-stop within a 5 minute 
(400m) walk. 

5.5 Travel Plan

In accordance with national and local policy 
requirements, a Framework Travel Plan will be prepared 
for Barnsley West at the outline planning application 
stage. The coverage and detail of the Travel Plan 
will reflect the scale and nature of the development 
proposal. Implementation of the Travel Plan will 
encourage trips to the site to be made by sustainable 
(non-car) modes of transport, where appropriate, and 
help to mitigate the impact of increased traffic.

In developing the Travel Plan, a robust approach will be 
taken to identifying, monitoring and reviewing targets, 
supported by appropriate funding. Targets will be 
identified to encourage access by sustainable modes of 
travel and to manage demand for car-based travel. The 
targets will be quantified and detailed in terms of how 
the targets will be monitored and what the contingency 
is if the targets are not achieved. The developer will, 
consequently, be incentivised to take a long-term 
approach to the provision of sustainable transport to the 
development.

The Travel Plan will have a clear action plan that will 
have specific actions in the months leading up to the 
development opening and beyond. This will facilitate 
the actions required to develop and maintain the Travel 
Plan.

The Framework Travel Plan will establish a mechanism 
for implementing these measures and actions across 
the various land uses, and it is likely there will be a 
separate Travel Plan for each housebuilder, school and 
employment development. This will ensure the Travel 
Plan is tailored to the specific needs of that land use, 
however, a coordinated approach will be adopted to 
maximise on opportunities.

Page 81



GREEN & BLUE INFRASTRUCTURE

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

Fig 5.5 Page 82



69BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

5.6 Green and Blue Infrastructure

A ‘Healthscape’ is a Green and Blue landscape 
framework with a vision of enhancing health and 
wellbeing. The ‘Healthscape’, acts as a setting for the 
new place, community and workplace that is currently 
known as Barnsley West.

A new amenity for the new community alongside 
Gawber, Higham, Barugh Green and the rest of 
Barnsley, facilitating:

• activity through new passive and active recreation 
facilities, paths and trails for safe routes to school 
and work, formal and informal play, for young and 
old;

• a strong and resilient community; through 
landscape for the community to adopt, space for 
community events and social gatherings;

• the community’s connection to nature and the 
seasons, for health and wellbeing;

• Improved biodiversity, through some retention of 
existing trees and woodland and creation of new 
meadows, wetlands, hedgerows, and forests; and

• reducing carbon footprint and improving air quality, 
through mass tree planting and reducing the need 
to drive a car.

The new landscape for Barnsley West has driven and 
shaped the Masterplan. This green and blue landscape 
has been called the ‘Healthscape’, which will act as a 
setting for the new place, community and workplace 
that will be Barnsley West.

This will be a fantastic amenity for the new community 
but also Gawber, Higham, Barugh Green, Redbrook and 
the rest of Barnsley. A truly healthy place for people and 
nature, facilitating:

• activity through new passive and active recreation 
facilities, formal and informal play, paths and trails 
for safe routes to school and work, for young and 
old;

• a strong and resilient community; through 
landscape as a resource for the community to 
adopt, space for community events and social 
gatherings;

• the community’s connection to nature and the 
seasons, for health and wellbeing;

• biodiversity net gain, through retention of existing 
trees and woodland and creation of new meadows, 
wetlands, hedgerows, and forests; and

• reducing carbon footprint and improving air quality 
through mass tree planting and reducing the need 
to drive a car.

The Healthscape will have a series of different character 
areas and spaces to make it really interesting and varied 
in the way it feels and to give different identities to 
different areas of Barnsley West.

The areas and spaces include:

• Retained and improved the existing beautiful Velvet 
Woods and streams to the East of the site. The 
intention is to enhance these further by connecting 
into a proposed new wood called Gawber Forest, 
that will surround the commercial area to the South;

• A tree species rich, linear park and arboretum along 
the new link road, with shared footpath and cycle 
routes and linear swales, which will soften this road 
and create an iconic landscape gateway and feature 
for the new place;

• Large open green lanes that run across the site and 
connect the new and two existing communities 
together. These will extend and enhance the current 
public rights of way. These spaces will also be 
enriched by informal and formal play spaces and 
trim trails to ensure that the health and wellbeing of 
residents is a top priority;

• New ecology corridors with additional species rich 
native hedgerows, meadow, trees and thickets, 
linking open green spaces to the existing and new 
woodland;

• The topography of the land will enable the 
landscape to exploit key views across Barnsley and 
provide more interesting landscape forms;

• New Meadow Parks will be created to give large 
open spaces which will connect the ‘green lanes’ 
but also provide the appropriate quantum of 
water attenuation for the development. Meadow 
grassland and informal paths will be the theme to 
these areas;

• A new Civic Square in the centre of the 
development, containing the school and new 
community facilities which will create a new heart to 
the community. This will be a leafy but flexible hard 
space for events and gatherings;

• A network of pedestrian and cycle friendly streets in 
compact neighbourhoods;

• Community orchards and allotments are dotted 

Page 83



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

70

around the development offering residents 
opportunity to grow and pick their own for healthy 
eating, and to foster a strong sense of community; 

• New greens in residential areas and glades in 
woodlands, provide pocket park focal points for 
residents and workers, which will include hard 
and soft landscape features and provide a mix of 
functions, but often informal or formal play.

National Planning Policy seeks 10% biodiversity 
enhancements from new development. Seeking net 
biodiversity gains requires improvement to all aspects 
of the environmental quality through a scheme or 
project. 

5.7 Management and Maintenance

The management, governance and stewardship of the 
proposed green and blue infrastructure opportunities 
have only been considered in principle at this stage. 
The likely option will be for the new residents and 
occupiers of the employment units is to enter into a 
service charge arrangement run by a local management 
organisation or trust who specialise in maintaining open 
space provision, detention basins and swales. When 
determining the management arrangement structure, 
consideration should be given to the following:

• making sure that there would be opportunities to 
secure biodiversity gains;

• community engagement to deliver added social 
value;

• include management of hard and soft landscaping;

• purpose, power, responsibilities, financial 
arrangements and internal procedures of the open 
space owner(s) / manager (management body / 
entity / organisation);

• preference for a single management organisation 
for all areas of green and blue infrastructure unless 
very special reasons why this cannot be achieved;

• annual reporting to the council for the first five years 
of management;

• incorporation of information boards and signage to 
educate residents; and

• stewardship on par with those being implemented 
for garden communities.

This approach will be subject to further work including 

assessing the scope and management required and the 
feasibility of management models, funding sources and 
legal structures. Developers should engage with a local 
management organisation or trust at an early stage so 
that they can input into the design of green and blue 
infrastructure.

The vision for transferring green and blue infrastructure 
to a land management arrangement is based around 
core principles for residents and occupiers: 

• They should be instrumental in the major decisions 
that affect their new community; 

• They should have an ongoing role in ‘co-producing’ 
the planning, decision and commissioning of 
services; 

• They should make sure that the benefits of 
biodiversity enhancements are continued in 
perpetuity; and

• They would be the beneficiary of the initiatives 
funded by the management organisation and are 
therefore best placed to evaluate the impact of 
these initiatives.

Fig 5.6

Page 84



MAINTENANCE AREAS

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh

Fig 5.7 Page 85



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

72

5.8 Strategic SUDS Drainage

The Barnsley West Masterplan will integrate sustainable 
urban drainage systems where possible on the scheme. 
The intention is to capture all of the surface water using 
large detention basins, which will be allocated per area 
of land and will be placed within flat plateaus of the 
site to ensure that they maximise the benefit of holding 
stormwater.

These detention basins will typically be wet, and 
possibly dry in summer months. If the basins are dried 
out, they are unlikely to be suitable for recreational 
access as they are likely to contain soft soils. Small 
areas within these basins will provide opportunities for 
wildlife value however. Amenity use around these areas 
may comprise a footpath around the overall perimeter, 
which could be linked to a trim trail. These basins will 
have vegetation within them that can cater for water or 
dry conditions and will managed in a way to encourage 
biodiversity.

These basins will also cater for the commercial part of 
the site as well as the residential areas.

There will be a linear swale along the link road to help 
provide an area for stormwater run-off from the link 
road itself whilst also naturally treating this water before 
it connects back to the water attenuation ponds.

5.9 Strategic Foul Water

The site is served by an existing 150/225 mm public foul 
sewer in Wharfedale Road and 175/225 mm public foul 
sewers in Hermit Lane and Higham Common Road.

The topography of the site falls significantly to the north 
or northeast.  Both the Masterplan arrangement and the 
infrastructure facilities will be developed to provide new 
foul sewers within both the central spine road and the 
secondary road network to drain to the existing sewer 
network by gravity where possible.

New and/or upgraded sewers shall be required within 
Barugh Green Road which will ultimately discharge to 
the Darton treatment works.

• Large water attenuation basins for storm water from 
residential and commercial areas

• Linear swales with check dams along Link road are 
being proposed*

• Permanent water bodies at the bottom of the water 
attenuation basins

• Permeable paving to be introduced where 
possible*

*viability of these is still to be investigated further due to 
site specific investigations

Page 86



STRATEGIC FLOOD & DRAINAGE INFRASTRUCTURE 

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh

Fig 5.8 Page 87



PLACEMAKING

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh green

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Proposed housing backing onto 
existing housing 
Character area influence - (colour + 
grain)
Urban grain pattern

Gateway 

Primary heartspace

Strong urban edge  

Pedestrian entrance points

Existing woodland 

Landscape

School grounds

Commercial/ School

Long axial views 

Node Buildings

Place making 

Diagram 30 second Radius

Nodes Gateway + Heartspace

Illustrative Masterplan Primary Roads

Frontages 

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

1min walk from open space

Open space

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Dwellings not Fronting onto open space 

Dwellings Frontage onto open space

Open space

KEYS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Node Buildings

Secondary Heartspaces

Primary Heartspaces

Gateway  

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Employment

Residential

Commercial 

Primary School

Ecology & Biodiversity 

SITE WIDE COLOUR

STREET FURNITURE PALETTE

KEY

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Local Plan Boundary

Cascade Arboretum, Green 
Lanes and Meadow park

Woodland 

Greens and Squares

Indicative Development Zone

Landscape

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Primary street

Secondary Roads

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Secondary street

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Distincive character area 
colour palettes.

Indicative Development 
Zone

Colour influences on new 
development parcels

Surrounding building colour 
palettes.

EDGE PARAMETERS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development 
Zone

Proposed Edges

Pogmoor Land Edges

Proposed link road

Secondary heartspace

SCHOOL

CO
M

M
ER

CI
AL

Fig 5.9

Page 88



75BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

Fig 5.12Example image: Subtle gateway buildings

Fig 5.11Example image: Link between neighbourhoods

Fig 5.10Example image: Heartspaces

5.10 Placemaking

The placemaking concept ensures the physical built 
elements of the Masterplan are a direct response to 
the “Healthscape”. All buildings will be located in such 
a manner to promote recreation spaces that enhance 
health and wellbeing. How buildings and streets relate 
to one another has also been carefully considered 
around issues of solar orientation, views, parking and 
crime.

The placemaking strategy for the Masterplan is 
realised as a series of components that will create an 
environment to live work and play:

• Gateways: Key primary buildings at the north and 
south entrances are required to create a ‘gateway 
arrival’ to Barnsley West. This is important in giving 
this district its own identity that complements the 
adjacent communities.

• The layout of the buildings shall  create a series 
of “heart spaces” through the neighbourhood. 
These heart spaces are designed in a range of sizes 
and scales to give variety and identity to different 
neighbourhoods These spaces are landscaped 
and are linked together with long views and frame 
local landmarks with pedestrian and cycle routes 
between them.

• A civic square shall sit at the heart of the 
development, with a school that will also provide a 
range of services out of hours and term time to the 
local community. The scale of the square shall be 
sufficient to provide a range of community events 
throughout the year.

• Although the topography will change to develop 
the site, the configuration to Hermit Lane is retained 
and transformed as part of a link through a new 
neighbourhood and public square.

• All edges to the development shall be respected 
with gardens backing onto adjacent gardens along 
the boundary. Within Barnsley West strong edges to 
neighbourhoods will give definition to open spaces

The example images show the sort of character the 
development is aiming to create.

Page 89



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

76

Illustrative View: Northern Gateway

Illustrative View: Heartspaces

Fig 5.13

Fig 5.14

Page 90



77BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

Barnsley West

THE HARRIS PARTNERSHIP
ARCHITECTS

2 St Johns North,
Wakefield, WF1 3QA
T: 01924 291 800
F: 01924 290 072

www.harrispartnership.com

Client: Sterling Capitol Plc & Strata Homes
Date: 13/08/19
Job/Dwg: 13731-SK12-Artists Impression
Not to Scale

Illustrative View: Civic Square

Illustrative View: Entrance To Employment Zone

Fig 5.15

Fig 5.16

Page 91



6 INFRASTRUCTURE AND DELIVERY

BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST Page 92



Fig 6.1Page 93



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

80

MU1 is a strategic site which must deliver key 
infrastructure and a mix of uses to ensure the 
development of a sustainable and healthy community. 
It is therefore essential the area is planned as a whole. 
It is acknowledged that developments may be brought 
forward in smaller parcels. However, it is essential that 
key infrastructure for roads, wildlife and community 
facilities are properly planned and delivered in a 

Infrastructure 
Element 

Description Trigger Funding 
Source

Lead 
delivery 
organisation 

Roundabout 
1

Northern access point to site via Barugh 
Green Road

To be installed prior 
to commencement of 
residential development 

SCRIF Developer 

Roundabout 
2

Southern access point to site via Higham 
Lane

To be installed prior 
to commencement of 
commercial development 

SCRIF Developer 

Link road 1.1km of 7.3m single carriageway with 
associated landscaping, 3m wide shared 
footway and cycleways. Two internal four 
arm roundabouts (c43m diameter) for 
access to the development zones. Link 
road to operate at 30mph.   

The link road will be 
delivered in a phased 
manner with the strategic 
link formed by the 
completion of the 237 
dwelling on the site and 
34,206m² of commercial 
space.

SCRIF and 
developer

Developer

Drainage Surface and foul water systems to serve 
the site

These systems will be 
installed in a suitably 
phased manner alongside 
the development to 
make sure capacity and 
connections are always 
available

Developer Developer

Education  
 
 

The scheme will facilitate the delivery of 
an on-site Primary School and make a 
financial contribution towards secondary 
education places .   The new primary 
school will deliver around 300 new places 
in order to meet demand generated 
from the development and wider Local 
Plan growth.  The school infrastructure 
will enable future expansion to 420 (two 
form) places in the future should the 
demand arise. The financial contribution 
for secondary school places will be used 
to increase the capacity of existing schools 
within the locality.

The primary school is 
to be in operation by 
the second summer 
-following the start of 
residential development. 

Developer Developer

Open space Strategic green infrastructure and on plot 
Green infrastructure  

Will be delivered with 
associated phases. 

Developer Developer

comprehensive manner. This section sets out the 
minimum requirements relating to the delivery of 
infrastructure, utilities and facilities across the site.

Further detail and discussion about trigger points will 
be agreed during the course of planning applications 
and secured by legal requirement where necessary.

Landowners and/or developers are strongly 
encouraged to engage with the service providers at the 
earliest opportunity to discuss timing of delivery and 
specific site requirements.

6 INFRASTRUCTURE AND DELIVERY

Page 94



81BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

6.1 Transport

A new link road is proposed which will provide a key 
route from the M1, Junction 37 up to A635 Barugh 
Green Road, providing a north-western gateway into 
Barnsley. Delivery of the new link road will help alleviate 
local traffic issues, particularly for residents of Higham 
and Barugh Green, with Higham Lane and Higham 
Common Road currently providing the primary access 
for heavy goods vehicles travelling between the M1 and 
Claycliffe Business Park.

The need for a new link road between the M1, 
Junction 37 and A635 Barugh Green Road is a long-
held transport aspiration for Barnsley Council and it 
is supported by the Sheffield City Region Combined 
Authority. The link road and the associated access 
improvements are being provided through the Sheffield 
City Region Infrastructure Fund (SCRIF).

There are three separate but interrelated planning 
applications coming forward for the delivery of new 
highway infrastructure works to facilitate access and 
support economic development and housing delivery in 
Barnsley. The planning applications are as follows:

• Application 1 – Barugh Green Road roundabout.

• Application 2 – Higham Road roundabout.

• Application 3 – Higham Lane / Capitol Park road 
improvements.

The above planning applications if/once approved  will 
provide the necessary access to help with the future 
delivery of the new link road, as identified in Barnsley’s 
adopted Local Plan. The new link road will be subject 
to a future planning application, as part of the strategic 
development of the site (MU1). The impact of the 
new link road and associated highway infrastructure 
improvements, have been assessed as part of the 
consideration of the potential for significant transport 
effects to arise for the overall transport schemes within 
the three SCRIF planning applications. 

Future delivery of the link road will be steered by 
various potential areas of impact of the development 
on local communities, residents and highways. Final 
link road deliver will also be considerate of air quality, 
noise and public amenity impacts when determining its 
required delivery date. 

To make best use of SCRIF investment and enhance 
early connectivity and local community benefits the link 
road should be delivered as early as possible in the 
development of the Masterplan.

6.2 Education

The MU1 site policy sets out the requirement for an 
on-site Primary school and the provision of financial 
contributions towards secondary school places.

Primary School Places – The new primary school on-site 
will need to deliver around 300 new primary school 
places. The delivery route of the school is yet to be 
finalised, however current government guidelines 
would require the appointment of a Multi Academy 
Trust to work alongside the developer and the council 
to make sure a high quality community free school is 
delivered.

Current local authority pupil projections indicate the 
primary school has to be open and operational by the 
second summer following the start of development on 
the residential element of the scheme.

The Government have a requirement for new Primary 
schools to provide nursery’s and consideration will 
be required within the Primary School site for such 
provision. In addition, further earlier years provision by 
private providers could also be an appropriate use to 
consider within the community facilities. 

Secondary School Places – The developers of the site 
will pay a financial contribution towards the provision of 
additional secondary school places in the borough. The 
additional school places will be delivered by Barnsley 
Council in line with capacity forecasts for neighbouring 
schools.  Further detail and discussion about trigger 
points and phasing of payments will be agreed during 
the course of planning applications and will be secured 
by legal agreement.

Notwithstanding the above, future school capacity will 
change as updated information on likely admissions 
becomes available.  Given the timescales involved in 
completing a development of this scale, school place 
capacity will need to be reviewed throughout the 
development to ensure that contributions are made 
if there is likely to be inadequate capacity within the 
planning area.

6.3 Community Facilities

The requirement for small scale convenience retail 
and community facilities is set out within the Local Plan 
site policy to cater for residents of the site as well as 
the existing wider area. Any development to meet this 
need should also provide other facilities that might be 
expected for the scale of development to ensure that 

Page 95



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

82

the needs of the community are met. Such uses may 
include small scale convenience retail, a health centre 
and a community centre. 

6.4 Healthcare

During the preparation of the Local Plan, the Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) engaged with Barnsley 
Council to provide an overview of current and future 
service provision.

NHS Barnsley’s CCG formed in April 2013 and is a 
membership organisation bringing together all general 
practices serving residents across the Barnsley borough. 

The CCG has around £400 million funding for health 
services including hospital, community and primary 
medical services (GPs) for Barnsley residents. The level 
of funding available is based on a national formula 
which is linked to population size and various other 
factors including deprivation levels and the age profile 
of the local population. The cost of increasing health 
provision is therefore intended to be met by funding 
from central government and NHS England using this 
formula. NHS England work with the local CCGs, via 
a delegation agreement, to make sure services are 
being commissioned and delivered to meet the needs 
of the local population and assure the CCG’s plans for 
transformation and a sustainable healthcare provision. 

During the preparation of the Infrastructure Delivery 
Plan the CCG confirmed that there were no specific 
issues for the provision of health infrastructure. Through 
discussions with representatives of the Barnsley CCG 
and Barnsley Hospital it was confirmed that the NHS 
in Barnsley have the physical infrastructure in place to 
deliver the required level of health provision, based 
on historical growth, but that the level of development 
(alongside other external factors) may result in 
increased pressure on the hospital’s A&E service and 
on its Primary Medical Service. The trust is continuing 
to develop its estates strategy which will guide the 
use and development of the hospital site. The CCG is 
also reviewing its estates strategy in light of the recent 
publication of the long term plan and primary care 
network development.

The Infrastructure Delivery Plan concluded that given 
the recent investment in health provision in the borough 
it is unlikely that major new facilities will be required, 
with workforce being the capacity issue rather than 
premises.

Barnsley West (MU1) Masterplan Framework and GP 
Practices

The CCG has since reviewed Barnsley Council’s housing 
trajectory down to neighbourhood level enabling them 
to see where the specific proposals are planned in 
relation to the GP practices within the area. The Barnsley 
West (MU1) Masterplan Framework site mainly sits 
within the Penistone CCG Neighbourhood Network 
which is covered by six GP practices.  A proportion of 
the site also sits within the North CCG Neighbourhood 
Network which is covered by five GP practices. 

Page 96



83BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

Future Service Provision 

The CCG is establishing a robust plan with Barnsley 
Council to it and local GPs are consulted early in the 
planning of new housing developments. The CCG has 
committed to consulting with GP practices that are likely 
to be significantly impacted by the housing growth set 
out in the Local Plan and sites with planning permission. 
Early involvement with consultation plans will make sure 
the CCG has the opportunity to work with GP practices 
to assess the possible impacts on capacity, workforce 
and any estate implications arising from the plan. This, 
in turn, will ensure that service provision and patient 
access is not compromised. 

Early engagement began as part of the Masterplan 
Framework process and further consultation will be 
carried out when planning applications are being 
determined. The CCG can then assist GP practices to 
plan and respond to growth, this may include workforce 
recruitment and/or upskilling the existing workforce. 

GP Practice Neighbourhood Patient list size at 
July 2019

ASHVILLE 
MEDICAL 
CENTRE 

Central 11,994

THE DOVE 
VALLEY 
PRACTICE 

Central 10,415

THE KAKOTY 
PRACTICE 

Central 6,642

BURLEIGH 
MEDICAL 
CENTRE 

Central 11,321

THE GROVE 
MEDICAL 
PRACTICE

Central 5,129

PENISTONE 
GROUP 

Penistone 17,112

WOODLAND 
DRIVE MEDICAL 

Penistone 5,123

HUDDERSFIELD 
ROAD SURGERY 

Penistone 13,610

APOLLO 
COURT 

Penistone 5,084

VICTORIA 
MEDICAL 
CENTRE 

Penistone 11,667

KINGSWELL 
SURGERY 

Penistone 4,143

Summary of GP practices covering the Barnsley West 
(MU1) Masterplan Framework area

Page 97



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

84

CCG NEIGHBOURHOOD NETWORK AROUND MU1

Fig 6.2

Page 98



INDICATIVE PHASING PLAN

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

1

2

3

3

1

1

5

4

6

Other ownership, 
outside of 
indicative phasing 
programme

Fig 6.3 Page 99



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

86

6.5 Approach to Delivery and Phasing

A development of this scale will be delivered in a 
number of phases, the proposed delivery timescale 
for the whole of the MU1 site allocation is 15 years 
depending on market conditions.

The phasing plan has been prepared for indicative 
purposes at this stage. With current thinking being 
that the residential development will commence to the 
north of the site with access from the new roundabout at 
Barugh Green Road, this will be coupled with the start of 
the commercial development to the south of the site.

It is then thought that dependent upon market 
conditions additional phases of residential development 
would be opened from both the north and south 
working towards the centre of the site.

Each phase will provide the necessary mix and 
quantum of development in order to deliver the overall 
requirements of the site policy.

6.6 Housing Mix Assumptions

The housing mix should consider the current Strategic 
Housing Market Assessment at the time of planning 
approval. Proposals should make sure the site provides 
a mix across a range of house types, to cater for the 
need as indicated and include a mix of detached, semi-
detached, mews, apartment and bungalow homes.

Affordable homes should be provided in accordance 
with the council’s planning policy at the time of planning 
approval, and should, where necessary, be subject to 
the provision of evidence with regards to viability to 
ensure the development is deliverable

6.7 Planning Strategy

Barnsley West provides a significant opportunity to 
deliver new homes and jobs to the borough. Given the 
scale of the Masterplan area, the delivery of the site will 
span 15 years.

It is intended that the Masterplan Framework forms the 
basis for proposals to be made as part of any future 
planning applications for the site.

Developers are expected to proactively engage with 
the Council, local communities and the Design Review 
Panel at the pre-application stage and include the 
required information/technical assessments (validation 
requirements and anything else identified by the 
Council at the pre-application stage) in subsequent 

planning applications.

Depending on the form of planning application 
developers will take, outline planning applications will 
include the general principles of how the site will be 
developed, with matters to be reserved for each defined 
phase; for example, access, appearance, landscaping, 
layout and scale. For each detailed phase of the 
development, reserved matters will then be submitted 
to enable flexibility of delivery within the defined 
timescales. The detailed phases shall align with the 
Design Code within this framework. This approach will 
make sure future phases are both responsive to market 
needs at the time of delivery, and relate directly to the 
parameters of the outline application Masterplan.

Future planning applications would also need to 
have regard to the up to date Environmental Impact 
Assessment (EIA) legislation and relevant case law to 
determine whether screening /scoping opinions are 
required in the context of reviewing the cumulative 
impact of the proposal on the basis of the over-arching 
development requirements for the whole Masterplan 
Framework area. 

Page 100



7 SUMMARY

BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST Fig 7.1Page 101



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

88

7 SUMMARY

Objectives

The objective for this development is to create a 
“Healthscape”. A healthscape is green and blue 
infrastructure designed to improve health and 
wellbeing. The healthscape acts as a setting for the new 
place, community and workplace that is currently known 
as Barnsley West. As the largest site within the Local 
Plan, this vision document is the result of a collaborative 
process with the council to create a highly sustainable 
community that sets a benchmark for 21st century 
development across Barnsley.

Placemaking Strategy

The placemaking concept ensures the physical built 
elements of the Masterplan are a direct response to 
the “Healthscape”. All buildings will be located in such 
a manner to promote recreation spaces that enhance 
health and wellbeing. How buildings and streets relate 
to one another has also been carefully considered 
around issues of solar orientation, views, parking and 
crime.

Landscape Strategy

The green and blue infrastructure provides a network 
of linked open spaces across the site. The spaces create 
a meaningful network of interlinking areas that provide 
a range of open spaces for new and existing Barnsley 
residents to enjoy. These spaces should incorporate a 
range of natural and play spaces for all to enjoy. The 
diverse range of spaces also protect, enhance and 
extend the existing wildlife areas on site which should 
create new habitats for a diverse range of different 
biodiversity.

Transport and Movement Strategy

To ensure the long-term sustainability of Barnsley West, 
it is vital that future occupants of the development are 
able to conveniently access services and amenities, both 
within the site and the wider area, by modes of travel 
other than private car. The concept for Barnsley West 
is for a “connected neighbourhood’ that integrates the 
development into the wider area and local communities. 
This can be achieved through a combination of new 
services and amenities consistent with the Local Plan 
policy, innovative public transport solutions, high-quality 

pedestrian and cycle routes, effective management and 
promotion of sustainable travel options, and thoughtful 
masterplanning. The aim is to make journeys between 
the site, the surrounding areas and Barnsley town centre 
safe, convenient and attractive by sustainable modes of 
travel.

Drainage Strategy

The Barnsley West Masterplan will integrate sustainable 
urban drainage systems where possible on the scheme. 
The intention is to capture all of the surface water using 
large detention basins, ensuring that they maximise the 
benefit of holding stormwater. The drainage systems will 
ensure the risk of on site surface water flooding beyond 
the site boundaries is prevented. 

Health and Wellbeing

Within the Barnsley West Masterplan Framework, health 
and wellbeing are important considerations and form 
a common theme throughout the document and the 
approach should ensure that development will deliver 
tangible health benefits to both existing and new 
residents.

Sustainability and Climate Change

The council declared a climate emergency in 
September 2019 with the objective for the borough 
to achieve zero carbon by 2045 (Zero 45). The new 
developments associated this Masterplan Framework 
will look to play their part. Consideration will be given 
to the latest Building Regulations for housing, BREEAM 
for employment and CEEQUAL for infrastructure, 
landscaping and public realm. This will include 
identification of suitable low carbon technologies, 
investigating renewable energy solutions and 
Combined Heat Power (CHP). Subject to feasibility, this 
approach will make sure that the development is future 
proofed particularly given the anticipated build out rates 
over a 15 year period

Conclusions

The Barnsley West Masterplan Framework provides a 
firm foundation for Barnsley Council and developers to 
create a new sustainable community, combining high-

Page 102



89BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

quality new homes with new jobs, facilities and open 
space, available to new and existing residents – to enjoy 
for living and working. 

Barnsley West will play an essential role in realising the 
housing and employment requirement for Barnsley 
over the next 15 years. Health and wellbeing is at the 
heart of the Masterplan Framework as a landscape-led 
development and will seek to create a more productive 
landscape for walking, cycling, growing food and 
biodiversity. 

Through the principles identified in this document there 
is an opportunity to shape a new sustainable urban 
extension of Barnsley, whilst fulfilling the aspirations 
of the Local Plan by delivering housing and economic 
growth but also setting the benchmark for future high-
quality development.

Page 103



Pogmoor

Gawber

Page 104



Capitol Park

Barugh Green

Higham

Fig 7.2

Page 105



Page 106



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

bondbryan.co.ukPage 107



8 INTRODUCTION

BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

DESIGN CODE Fig 8.1Page 108



95BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

8 INTRODUCTION

8.1 Preface 

The Barnsley West Design Code has been prepared 
by Bond Bryan, Gillespies and Pegasus on behalf 
of Strata Homes and Sterling Capitol Plc working in 
collaboration with Barnsley Council.  Strata Homes 
and Sterling Capitol Plc have the largest land interests 
within the Masterplan Framework.  Landowners and 
developers who have smaller land interests have also 
been consulted.

8.2 Project Team

• Developer: Strata Sterling Barnsley West

• Masterplanning Architect: Bond Bryan

• Landscape Architect: Gillespies

• Employment Area Architect: The Harris Partnership

• Planning Consultant: Pegasus Group

• Project Manager / Quantity Surveyor: Rex Proctor & 
Partners 

• Public Sector Consultant: Victor Violet

• Public Relations: Robert Beaumont Associates

• Lawyer: Tyr Law

• Highways Consultant: Fore Consulting

• Structural / Civil Engineer: JPG Group

• Drainage and Flood Risk: JPG Group

• Utilities / M&E Consultant: Hydrock MRB Consultant 
Engineers

• Air Quality: Wardell Armstrong

• Ecology: White Young Green 

• Noise Surveyor: ENS Acoustics

• Aboriculture:  White Young Green

• Archaeology: Prospect Archaeology

• Land Trust: The Land Trust

• Overhead Power Cables Surveyor: BTS Group

• Land Quality Endorsement: National House-
Building Council

Page 109



KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Proposed housing backing onto 
existing housing 
Character area influence - (colour + 
grain)
Urban grain pattern

Gateway 

Primary heartspace

Strong urban edge  

Pedestrian entrance points

Existing woodland 

Landscape

School grounds

Commercial/ School

Long axial views 

Node Buildings

Place making 

Diagram 30 second Radius

Nodes Gateway + Heartspace

Illustrative Masterplan Primary Roads

Frontages 

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

1min walk from open space

Open space

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Dwellings not Fronting onto open space 

Dwellings Frontage onto open space

Open space

KEYS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Node Buildings

Secondary Heartspaces

Primary Heartspaces

Gateway  

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Employment

Residential

Commercial 

Primary School

Ecology & Biodiversity 

SITE WIDE COLOUR

STREET FURNITURE PALETTE

KEY

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Local Plan Boundary

Cascade Arboretum, Green 
Lanes and Meadow park

Woodland 

Greens and Squares

Indicative Development Zone

Landscape

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Primary street

Secondary Roads

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Secondary street

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Distincive character area 
colour palettes.

Indicative Development 
Zone

Colour influences on new 
development parcels

Surrounding building colour 
palettes.

EDGE PARAMETERS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development 
Zone

Proposed Edges

Pogmoor Land Edges

Proposed link road

Secondary heartspace

SCHOOL

CO
M

M
ER

CI
AL

Fig 8.2

URBAN DESIGN STRATEGY 

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

Page 110



KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Proposed housing backing onto 
existing housing 
Character area influence - (colour + 
grain)
Urban grain pattern

Gateway 

Primary heartspace

Strong urban edge  

Pedestrian entrance points

Existing woodland 

Landscape

School grounds

Commercial/ School

Long axial views 

Node Buildings

Place making 

Diagram 30 second Radius

Nodes Gateway + Heartspace

Illustrative Masterplan Primary Roads

Frontages 

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

1min walk from open space

Open space

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Dwellings not Fronting onto open space 

Dwellings Frontage onto open space

Open space

KEYS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Node Buildings

Secondary Heartspaces

Primary Heartspaces

Gateway  

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Employment

Residential

Commercial 

Primary School

Ecology & Biodiversity 

SITE WIDE COLOUR

STREET FURNITURE PALETTE

KEY

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Local Plan Boundary

Cascade Arboretum, Green 
Lanes and Meadow park

Woodland 

Greens and Squares

Indicative Development Zone

Landscape

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Primary street

Secondary Roads

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Secondary street

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Distincive character area 
colour palettes.

Indicative Development 
Zone

Colour influences on new 
development parcels

Surrounding building colour 
palettes.

EDGE PARAMETERS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development 
Zone

Proposed Edges

Pogmoor Land Edges

Proposed link road

Secondary heartspace

Fig 8.3

ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN 

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

Page 111



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

98

8.3 The Purpose of the Design Code

Design codes can provide a benchmark for quality and 
make sure the vision for Barnsley West is translated 
through the delivery of its components. 

Through undertaking this process, it became clear 
that the best design codes achieve a good balance 
between flexibility and prescription.  For instance, 
we have set out quite detailed requirements of the 
public realm, landscaping and streets where uniformity 
will help mould together a long-term, multi-phase 
development whilst retaining an element of flexibility in 
the architecture of the buildings.

Design codes alone cannot produce the excellence 
and quality that is required of Barnsley West.  They are 
not an alternative for talented designers but they can 
establish a baseline quality that will set a precedent for 
other developments in years to come.

8.4 How to Use the Design Code 

Developers and Contractors

Barnsley West aims to set a benchmark for quality 
throughout all of Barnsley.  Developing on this site goes 
hand in hand with a commitment to the Design Code 
and further information on the process of approval is 
explained in this chapter.  Developers and Contractors 
should aim to create great places rooted in their 
community and offer high quality choices to consumers.  

Developers, Contractors and their design teams will be 
expected to:

• Have a thorough understanding and familiarity of 
this code.

• Be able to clearly demonstrate and engage in this 
understanding in any detailed applications they 
submit to the Council.

Members of the Public 

The Barnsley West Design Code aims to inspire the 
public about the design, planning and delivery of these 
new neighbourhoods and districts.  We have aimed to 
create a framework for creating genuinely distinctive 
and sought-after places.  Through this we aspire to 
generate a positive perception of new development 
and a more engaging process for boosting housing 
supply and employment space.

In doing so, members of the public are encouraged to:

• Become familiar with the principles and aspirations 
of the design code.

• Engage with the consultation process on any 
detailed planning applications that come forward 
within the Masterplan Framework.

Page 112



99BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

8.5 Compliance with the Code

The process of gaining planning consent is partly 
down to demonstrating that proposals respond to 
the local context. Too often this is watered down to 
making a superficial reference to a small collection of 
local buildings, rather than undertaking a thorough 
assessment of the local and wider environment- its 
buildings, spaces and landscape, and looking at how 
proposals can respond and interact with them. The 
importance for Barnsley West and the aspiration for 
quality demands this more considered approach. 
Successful placemaking involves much more than 
stylistic preference.  It should start with a well-resolved 
Masterplan with principles that create a framework for 
character and identity.  This character will grow out of a 
variety of interconnected issues including viability, form 
of construction and company specific design approach.  

The compliance with the code has been set with this 
in mind; a balancing act that creates a long-term 
framework for quality that sits within a commercial and 
planning context.  

The most suitable way of demonstrating compliance 
will be the Detailed Planning Stage.  All Applicants will 

be the subject of a Design Review Panel as part of the 
process to demonstrate compliance.  Furthermore, all 
applicants should include a Design Code Compliance 
Statement as an appendix in any design and access 
statement.  The Design Code Compliance Statement 
should reflect a breadth of topics covered by the Design 
Code and should therefore address, as a minimum the 
following:

• The vision for the site

• Site context

• Quantum of development

• Aspects of the development relating to the public 
realm

• Aspects of the development relating to the 
Character Areas

• Does it adhere to the Health and Wellbeing 
Framework? (see section 9)

• Does it adhere to the Landscape Framework? (see 
section 10)

• Sustainability

Design Code
Detailed 
Planning 
Application

D&A Compliance 
Statement

•

 

The vision for the site
•

 

Site context

•

 

Quantum of 
development

•

 

Public realm
•

 

Character Areas
•

 

Health & Wellbeing 
Framework

Design Code

Fig 8.4

Page 113



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

100

8.6 Process of Approval:  Planning Applications. (Full, 
Outline and Reserved Matters) 

 ‘The council will require a compliance statement for 
both outline and full applications, as an appendix to 
the design and access statement. Following outline 
planning approval any reserved matters application 
will require a separate compliance statement. For any 
planning conditions that involve more detailed work on 
the design or layout of the development a compliance 
statement will need to accompany the information 
submitted.’

Page 114



101BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

8.7 Allowance for Flexibility

This design code sets rules for the design of the 
Barnsley West development. It builds upon the vision 
document, which showed how the site’s constraints 
and opportunities have had a significant impact on 
the general principles of the layout and design of 
the proposals. These principles, along with a design 
approach which has included both a strong health and 
wellbeing focus and a landscape-led focus, have fed 
into this design code.

 

This code will help to ensure a consistency of quality 
of design for the resulting townscape and landscape. 
However the design code is not a straightjacket- there 
is room for some flexibility and variety in layouts and 
building design, so long as they meet the overall 
objectives and high quality design standards set out in 
the code. Design Teams are welcome to come forward 
with their own interpretation of the principles set out. 
It is naturally expected that there will be a number of 
different approaches over time by different developers 
that could achieve a compliance with the code.

 

Chapter 12 further expands on flexibility and 
demonstrates how a variety of complaint outcomes, in 
this case specifically regarding the layout of dwellings, 
can be achieved’   

Page 115



9 HEALTH AND WELLBEING

BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

DESIGN CODE Fig 9.1Page 116



103BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

1. Landscape-led layout that promotes a strong 
connection with the surrounding landscape

2. Engaging with the local and wider community 

3. Places to meet, socialise and play 

4. Promote walking, cycling and public transport use 

5. Safety and natural surveillance 

6. Responsive to microclimate and environmental 
context

7. Identity and sense of place

On the following page, health and wellbeing principles 
are colour-coded to demonstrate in more detail how a 
Developer can comply with the Health and Wellbeing 
Framework.  Furthermore, this reference will aid 
members of the public in understanding how the Code 
that has been put forward can have benefits to health 
and wellbeing.

9 HEALTH AND WELLBEING

The built environment has long been recognised as 
an important factor towards health and wellbeing.  
Historically, this focussed on pollution, disease and 
over-crowding but there is now increasing evidence of 
the health and wellbeing impacts – both positive and 
negative of the built environment.  

Chronic health conditions are rising across the UK and 
impose significant costs for the NHS, social care and 
for employers.  And yet, many of these conditions are 
heavily influenced by the built environment.  Within 
this country they account for significant spending on 
health and social care.  As such, promoting health and 
wellbeing has been the starting point for Barnsley West. 
Across the scheme, encouraging physical activity and a 
healthy lifestyle is one of the most impactful measures 
the architects, designers and planners can take to  
enable positive health and wellbeing and reduces 
rates of chronic disease, obesity and mental health 
conditions.  

The Council actively promotes a health and wellbeing 
approach to Masterplan Framework sites. A Health 
Impact Assessment for the over-arching framework is 
being produced and more detailed assessments will 
be required to accompany planning applications. The 
Council also actively supports Sport England’s ‘Active 
Design Principles’ which, through the design and 
layout of developments, seeks to encourage activity in 
people’s day-to-day lives.

9.1 Overview   

The layout promotes a pedestrian and cycle 
permeability that is knitted into existing communities.  
Providing access to greenspace, affordable healthy 
food, and leisure facilities is integrated throughout 
to support health and wellbeing.  Also, orchards and 
allotments create a culture of growing food and an 
understanding of where food comes from all support 
the core health and wellbeing principles.

9.2 Health and Wellbeing Framework 

The Health and Wellbeing Framework has been 
developed to ensure that any scheme that comes 
forward for detailed planning can be assessed on its 
qualities in this area.  As a minimum, the Health and 
Wellbeing Framework must comply with the following 
principles:

*ALL DESIGN CODE RULES CAN BE FOUND IN THE 
YELLOW BOXES WITHIN THIS DOCUMENT 

NB:

Page 117



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

104

As a modern approach to 
masterplanning, the buildings 
are a secondary element to 
the landscape.  Buildings must 
have a strong connection to the 
landscape.  This principle can be 
achieved by ensuring primary 
internal spaces frame specific 
views or aspect to the outside 
world.  This could be to a tree, 
pond or greenery. 

Spaces that promote 
engagement and interaction 
are proven to improve health 
and wellbeing.  We encourage 
developers to think ‘outside the 
box’ to achieve this principle.  
This could be by providing 
orchards for community growing 
projects, or public realm that 
can accommodate seasonal 
community events.  

Too often, public realm lacks 
the variety required for year-
round usage.  This principle can 
be achieved by demonstrating 
a broad range of hard and 
soft landscaping, with suitable 
spaces to meet, socialise and 
play.

9.3 The Health and Wellbeing Principles

All applications that come forward on the site should 
consider inclusive design and the equalities act 2010.   

Developers should put forward 
credible proposals to encourage 
dedicated walking, cycling and 
public transport routes.  

1.  Landscape-led 
layout that promotes 
a strong connection 

to the landscape

2. Engaging with 
the local and wider 

community 

3. Places to meet, 
socialise and play 

4. Encourage walking, 
cycling and public 

transport use 

Page 118



105BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

Developers should put forward 
credible proposals to encourage 
dedicated walking, cycling and 
public transport routes.  

Proposals should be designed 
with consideration for safety and 
natural surveillance.  

Passive supervision of public 
spaces through appropriately 
sized and located window 
openings directly overlooking 
the public realm.

Sensitive planting and 
landscaping will not create 
hidden spaces for antisocial 
behaviour.

Appropriate lighting will 
increase the perceived safety of 
public spaces during darkness, 
encouraging increased use and 
with it better levels of passive 
supervision. 

The buildings and structures that 
make up the built environment 
should not exist in isolation.  
Developers and designers 
should demonstrate that 
buildings are conceived and 
designed in order to respond 
to, support and enhance their 
surroundings.   

Sense of place: the way we 
perceive places such as streets, 
communities and spaces 
influences our wellbeing.   
This principle is achieved by 
following the code.  

Fig 9.2

4. Encourage walking, 
cycling and public 

transport use 

5. Safety and natural 
surveillance 

6. Responsive to 
microclimate and 

environmental 
context

7. Identity and sense 
of place 

Page 119



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

106

9.4 Sustainability and Future Adaptation  

Barnsley West aims to be an exemplary site.  The 
following guidelines set out the aims and aspirations for 
all future applications.  This section should be read in 
conjunction with the Barnsley Local Plan Sustainability 
Appraisal 2016 publication.  The aspirations for Barnsley 
West can be broken down to into the following themes:

• Energy and carbon- reducing energy demands 
through design of building envelopes and efficient 
heating systems.

• Water- reducing water consumption and waste 
Rainwater harvesting. 

• Materials and waste- a holistic approach to 
specifying building materials which have a low 
impact on the environment, are efficiently built, 
robust, and may be readily reused or recycled.

• Transport- enabling sustainable types of travel 
through design.

• Landscape and ecology- developments which 
minimise negative impacts and/or enhance the 
landscape and surrounding ecology through a site 
specific landscape strategy.

• Social and economic- creating safe, social 
neighbourhoods and employment opportunities.

• Climate adaptation- resilience to future climate 
change through robust construction details, and 
flood/ drought resistant landscaping strategies.

These topics are broad and apply to various stages of 
the design and construction process. Some or all of 
these topics will be relevant depending on the scale 
and nature of the Reserved Matters Application.

Consideration must be given to the following:

• Future adaptation and integration of new 
sustainable technologies 

• Aspect / orientation of dwellings  

• Materials (both building and landscape) 

• The Council's zero carbon strategy 

Fig 9.4

Fig 9.5

Fig 9.6

Fig 9.3

Page 120



10 LANDSCAPE FRAMEWORK

BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

DESIGN CODE Fig 10.1Page 121



LANDSCAPE FRAMEWORK

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh

Fig 10.2 Page 122



109BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

10.1 Key Principles

CA
SC

AD
E 

AR
BO

RE
TU

M
G

AW
BE

R 
FO

RE
ST

CI
VI

C 
SQ

UA
RE

VE
LV

ET
 

W
O

O
D

S
M

EA
D

O
W

 
PA

RK
G

RE
EN

S 
&

 
G

LA
D

ES
G

RE
EN

 
LA

N
ES

• A tree lined street with a mix of species
• Shared cycle and pedestrian routes on either side 

of the road to be separated by a rich planted verge
• Swale on one side of the road 

• Rich woodland matrix buffering the commercial 
development from the motorway and the residential 
development with pockets of seating areas and 
usable shared spaces for commercial users.

• Good path network through the woodland linking 
the surrounding areas to one another

• Predominantly hard space with planting to act as a 
buffer between residential blocks and square

• Drop off area for school
• Flexible hard space for community events

• Retain existing woodland as much as possible
• Pathway network to link into existing public rights of 

way and new residential development

• Large water attenuation areas which are for 1:100 
year storm events so will mainly be dry basins

• Permanent water basins at the bottom of the 
attenuation areas

• Pedestrian and cycle network

• Key pocket areas of village ‘greens’ and ‘glades’ 
providing respite with informal and formal play 
areas

• Community orchards
• Pocket street tree spaces to break up and soften the 

streetscape 
• These spaces are a mixture of hard and soft areas
• Trim trail network with informal and formal play 

areas to ensure this complies with planning 
regulation requirements

• Green space along the high walls to provide 
usable amenity space for the new and existing 
communities

10 LANDSCAPE FRAMEWORK 

Fig 10.3

Fig 10.4

Fig 10.5

Fig 10.6

Fig 10.7

Fig 10.8

Fig 10.9

Page 123



Section B

REFERENCE PLAN

Indicative Employment unit

section continues

Fig 10.10

Page 124



111BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

• Proposal is for site to have a consistent average fall 
of 1:20 from East to West of the site

• Commercial area has flat plateaus due to the nature 
of how these areas will be funded to ensure the 
maximum flexibility is achieved for end users

• Some areas where large level changes are required 
should be treated to visually minimise impact by 
introducing usable 1:3 planted slopes

• Level access and inclusive design for all abilities to 
key areas should be established where possible.  
This should be in line with the Equalities Act 2010.  

Proposed Section through Gawber Forest

Section A

10.2 Landscape Framework – Levels Strategy

Fig 10.12

Fig 10.14Fig 10.13

Indicative Employment

Unit

section continues

Stepped access in the landscape

Level access footpaths in the landscapeUsable 1:3 planted slopes

Fig 10.11

Fig 10.15

Page 125



PEDESTRIAN & CYCLIST CONNECTIVITY 

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

Fig 10.16 Page 126



113BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

10.3 Pedestrian and Cyclist Connectivity

Section 01 - Primary connections - Typical Section

Section 02 - Secondary connections - Typical Section

• Proposed development should ensure priority is 
given to cyclists and pedestrians, through:- priority 
crossing points, shared space streets, wide path 
network *

• Shared Primary routes are to be a minimum of 3m 
wide

• Shared Secondary routes are to be a minimum of 
2m wide *

• Existing public rights of way should be diverted and 
enhanced by creating additional routes which link 
up to each other to provide a circular route

• Existing connections into the site should be 
retained and enhanced by creating improved 
‘gateways’ into the scheme

• Additional connections into the site are being 
proposed to create improved pedestrian 
permeability through the site *

* to be confirmed with the council, including highways.

Fig 10.19

Fig 10.20

Pedestrian, cyclist centric design

Diverted right of way

Shared pedestrian 
and cycle footway

Social space/ play space

Fig 10.17

Fig 10.18

Page 127



ECOLOGY & BIODIVERSITY

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Proposed housing backing onto 
existing housing 
Character area influence - (colour + 
grain)
Urban grain pattern

Gateway 

Primary heartspace

Strong urban edge  

Pedestrian entrance points

Existing woodland 

Landscape

School grounds

Commercial/ School

Long axial views 

Node Buildings

Place making 

Diagram 30 second Radius

Nodes Gateway + Heartspace

Illustrative Masterplan Primary Roads

Frontages 

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

1min walk from open space

Open space

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Dwellings not Fronting onto open space 

Dwellings Frontage onto open space

Open space

KEYS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Node Buildings

Secondary Heartspaces

Primary Heartspaces

Gateway  

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Employment

Residential

Commercial 

Primary School

Ecology & Biodiversity 

SITE WIDE COLOUR

STREET FURNITURE PALETTE

KEY

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Local Plan Boundary

Cascade Arboretum, Green 
Lanes and Meadow park

Woodland 

Greens and Squares

Indicative Development Zone

Landscape

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Primary street

Secondary Roads

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Secondary street

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Distincive character area 
colour palettes.

Indicative Development 
Zone

Colour influences on new 
development parcels

Surrounding building colour 
palettes.

EDGE PARAMETERS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development 
Zone

Proposed Edges

Pogmoor Land Edges

Proposed link road

Secondary heartspace

Fig 10.21 Page 128



115BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

All landscape areas across the Masterplan should 
be designed and managed to provide a flourishing, 
ecologically rich and bio-diverse landscape. 

• Management and maintenance should include 
provisions for long term habitat creation across the 
site. 

• Species rich wildflower meadows with formalised 
access routes throughout, enabling ground nesting 
species to flourish.  Signs should be incorporated 
across the scheme designating areas and their 
habitats, aiming to raise awareness of species.

• Retaining and enhancing the existing woodlands 
within the Masterplan Framework.  Woodland 
management should be sensitive to the existing 
trees, species and habitats within them. 

• Maintenance should be focussed on bio-diversity, 
encouraging the creation of log-piles and bug 
hotels within the landscape, attracting new wildlife.

• Nesting and roosting opportunities for birds and 
bats should be encouraged within the landscape 
setting and woodlands.  

10.4 Ecology and Biodiversity

Fig 10.22

Fig 10.23

Fig 10.24

Fig 10.25

Fig 10.26

Page 129



PLAY - LAP REQUIREMENTS

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

Fig 10.27 Page 130



117BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

Landscape proposals are integral to the provision 
for play across the development. The creation of 
meaningful play opportunities which maximise play 
value should be designed using natural materials 
where possible such as logs and boulders, forming an 
attractive and integral part of the landscape setting and 
further enhancing the  ‘sense of place’. 

Spaces should encourage informal play and social 
interaction, utilising natural play elements.

Key LAP Features:

• ‘Door-step’ play spaces

• Up to the age of 6

• Within 1 minute walking time of a child's home

• They should be located within approximately 100m

• Informal, immersive and sensory play 

• Rocks, logs and low earth mounding

• Play should be designed for ease of observation

• Play should be positively encouraged through 
design

• Spaces should encourage informal play and social 
interaction, not relying on play equipment

• To be positioned beside a well used pedestrian 
route

• Should include a minimum 100m² activity zone

• Planting should be designed to incorporate a mix of 
scents, colours and textures

• Play area should include a sign designating the 
space as ‘children’s play’ and that dogs are not 
welcome

10.5 Play – LAP (Local Area for Play) Requirements

Fig 10.28

Fig 10.29

Fig 10.31

Fig 10.30 Fig 10.32

Page 131



Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

PLAY - LEAP REQUIREMENTS

400m

Fig 10.33 Page 132



119BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

Play spaces within a natural setting

Play features make use of level changes

Naturalistic play encased by planting

10.6 Play – LEAP (Local Equipped Area for Play) Requirements

Fig 10.34

Fig 10.35

Fig 10.36

LEAPs should be designed specifically as a designated 
place of play with laid out features, including equipment 
for children who are beginning to play independently. 
They should be located within approximately 400m 
walking distance (5 minutes) walk from dwelling to 
play. Due to the sites topography, the actual walking 
distance should take into account winding paths on 
steeply sloping parts of the landscape. In addition to 
this, it is expected that play areas should be designed to 
make the most of the sites terrain, incorporating slopes 
and embankments into the design where necessary or 
required. 

Key LEAP Features:

• Independent play

• Approx. 20m x 20m space – Minimum activity zone 
400m²

• 10m min buffer zone between the activity zone and 
boundary of nearest property

• Informal equipment 

• Seating opportunities

• Equipment type

• Rock climbing

• Climbing

• Sliding

• Sand

• Water

• Number of  ‘play pieces’ should be consulted upon 
with local residents within the detailed design 
stages.

Page 133



PLAY - NEAP REQUIREMENTS

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

Fig 10.37 Page 134



121BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

NEAPs should be designed to provide at least a 31.6m 
x 31.6m (1000m²) activity zone, comprising an area 
specifically for play equipment, structures and a hard 
surfaced area of at least 465m² for ball game provision. 

The NEAP should provide a space for both younger 
children and teenagers to play in, offering a variety 
of activities for both age groups. Facilities should 
incorporate a M.U.G.A (area for multi-use games) such 
as football and/or basketball, as well as adequate 
provision for roller skating or cycling. Ramps for 
skateboarding or cycling, a rebound wall and a shelter 
should also be provided

Further opportunities for consultation as to the play 
facilities and types provided should be explored within 
the next stage of design. The undulating landform 
across the site lends itself to create well designed play 
spaces which utilise the landform, incorporating the 
level changes through steps, slides and bike trails/ 
pump tracks. 

Design of play areas for the development should make 
reference to the guidelines as set out in the ‘Guidance 
for Outdoor Sport and Play: Beyond the six acre 
standard’ report. 

Key NEAP Features:

• Older children/teenagers

• Inclusion of hard surfaced area (min 465m²)

• Ball games

• Wheeled activities

• Rebound wall

• Shelter

• Roller skating/ cycling

• Min 30m buffer zone

• They should be located within approximately 
1000m

Informal multi-use games area

Level changes enhance the play space

Play set within large level changes

10.7 Play – NEAP (Neighbourhood Equipped Area for Play) Requirements

Fig 10.38

Fig 10.39

Fig 10.40

Page 135



TREE FRAMEWORK

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

Fig 10.41 Page 136



123BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

• Tree species to provide ‘seasonal moments’ 
throughout the year

• Species selection should provide a variety of 
heights and forms

• Species should be selected for their individual 
interests such as; bark tone and texture/ leaf colour 
and form

• Mixed deciduous and evergreen woodland
• Species selection for their screening benefits
• Form, scale and colour should be encouraged to 

create contrast, providing a distinct and interesting 
woodland mix. 

• Retain and maintain the existing woodland 
• Enhance and build upon the existing woodland 

ensuring its preservation as an asset for local 
residents and wildlife

• Fruiting species should be encouraged throughout 
the landscape, accessible to the local community 
and its residents.

• Species selection should provide a mix of fruits and 
cultivars.

• Planting should be linear and formal in its 
arrangement

• Large ‘parkland’ trees are strongly encouraged to 
be provided within the park, establishing a parkland 
setting within the landscape.

• Species selection should provide interest and 
interaction for residents.

• Species should provide seasonal interest

• Trees to be planted within hard and soft landscape 
areas

• Species to be chosen appropriately for their 
location

• Species selection is encouraged to create and 
enhance the developments ‘sense of place’ and 
identity

• Species to be selected for their capabilities of being 
located within hard surfacing.

• Should form appropriate canopies for parking areas
• Provide a 2m clear stem where required 

CA
SC

AD
E 

AR
BO

RE
TU

M
G

AW
BE

R 
FO

RE
ST

VE
LV

ET
 

W
O

O
D

S
G

RE
EN

 
LA

N
ES

M
EA

D
O

W
 

PA
RK

G
RE

EN
S 

&
 

G
LA

D
ES

CO
M

M
ER

-
CI

AL
 C

AR
 P

AR

10.8 Tree Framework 

Fig 10.42 Fig 10.43 Fig 10.44

Fig 10.46Fig 10.45

Fig 10.47 Fig 10.48 Fig 10.49

Fig 10.51Fig 10.50

Fig 10.52 Fig 10.53 Fig 10.54

Fig 10.55 Fig 10.56 Fig 10.57

Fig 10.58 Fig 10.59

Page 137



PLANTING FRAMEWORK

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

Fig 10.60 Page 138



125BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

• Planting should be low maintenance and seasonal.
• Provision for wildlife and bio-diversity corridors 

is strongly encouraged through plant species 
selection enabling long seasonal interest and 
flowers supporting a broad range of species 
throughout the year. 

• Planting should be tolerant of both wet (during 
floods) and dry periods (during drought)

• Woodland plantings should provide a varied and 
interesting understory with a mixture of evergreen 
and deciduous species. 

• Embankments should be planted to XXXXXXXXXXXXXX 
• Grass clearings should also be included within 

these areas

• Maintenance should be but put in place to maintain 
and enhance the existing flora and fauna within the 
existing woodlands. 

• Areas where this interfaces with new development, 
should provide similar species to match the existing 
fauna

• Predominantly lawns, mixed with large swathes 
of meadows, seasonal bulbs and additional 
ornamental planting areas.

• Planting areas should be used to demarcate the 
edges of play areas, social seating areas and also as 
a buffer edge to roads and dwellings.

• Predominantly lawns, mixed with large swathes 
of meadows, seasonal bulbs and additional 
ornamental planting areas.

• Wetland/marginal plantings will form the edges 
of the basins and pond margins, with species 
tolerant of both dry and wet conditions being used 
throughout the basins.

• Simplistic stylised planting palettes should 
encourage more sensory experiences, evoking play 
and imagination.

• Species should be chosen for their individual 
characteristics, such as scent, texture, colour and 
form. 

• Shrubs and hedges should be used where clear 
and distinct boundaries are required

01
. C

AS
CA

D
E 

AR
BO

RE
TU

M
02

. G
AW

BE
R 

FO
RE

ST
03

. V
EL

VE
T 

W
O

O
D

S
05

. M
EA

D
O

W
 

PA
RK

06
. G

RE
EN

S 
&

 
G

LA
D

ES
04

. G
RE

EN
 

LA
N

ES

10.9 Planting Framework

Fig 10.61 Fig 10.62 Fig 10.63

Fig 10.64 Fig 10.65 Fig 10.66

Fig 10.67 Fig 10.68 Fig 10.69

Fig 10.70 Fig 10.71 Fig 10.72

Fig 10.73 Fig 10.74 Fig 10.75

Fig 10.76 Fig 10.77 Fig 10.78

Page 139



MATERIAL PALETTE

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

H

H

H Hard landscaped squares

Greens and glades and squares

Woodlands

Cascade arboretum

Meadows park / green lanes
Fig 10.79Page 140



127BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

• Shared pedestrian and cycle route

• 3m width

• Interspersed play and social spaces along route 

• Resin bound gravel surface to main route 

• Self binding gravel to be used in seating and 
play areas

• High quality block paved hard spaces for 
socialising/ mixed uses

• Informal routes resin bound gravel

• Play spaces rubber crumb surfacing/ bark mulch

• Squares:  Hard / soft landscaped predominantly.

• Hard squares denoted with "H" 

• Self binding gravel with timber edge to main 
routes

• Rubber crumb/bark mulch play surfaces

• Mown grass routes

• Bark footway with timber edge

• Decking walkway 

• Informal low key edged compacted earth routes

CA
SC

AD
E 

AR
BO

RE
TU

M
W

O
O

D
LA

N
D

S
M

EA
D

O
W

S 
PA

RK
/

G
RE

EN
 L

AN
ES

G
RE

EN
S 

AN
D

 G
LA

D
ES

 &
 

SQ
UA

RE
S

10.11 Material Palette 

Fig 10.80 Fig 10.81 Fig 10.82

Fig 10.83 Fig 10.84 Fig 10.85

Fig 10.86 Fig 10.87 Fig 10.88

Fig 10.89 Fig 10.90 Fig 10.91

Page 141



STREET FURNITURE PALETTE

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Proposed housing backing onto 
existing housing 
Character area influence - (colour + 
grain)
Urban grain pattern

Gateway 

Primary heartspace

Strong urban edge  

Pedestrian entrance points

Existing woodland 

Landscape

School grounds

Commercial/ School

Long axial views 

Node Buildings

Place making 

Diagram 30 second Radius

Nodes Gateway + Heartspace

Illustrative Masterplan Primary Roads

Frontages 

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

1min walk from open space

Open space

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Dwellings not Fronting onto open space 

Dwellings Frontage onto open space

Open space

KEYS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Node Buildings

Secondary Heartspaces

Primary Heartspaces

Gateway  

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Employment

Residential

Commercial 

Primary School

Ecology & Biodiversity 

SITE WIDE COLOUR

STREET FURNITURE PALETTE

KEY

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Local Plan Boundary

Cascade Arboretum, Green 
Lanes and Meadow park

Woodland 

Greens and Squares

Indicative Development Zone

Landscape

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Primary street

Secondary Roads

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Secondary street

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Distincive character area 
colour palettes.

Indicative Development 
Zone

Colour influences on new 
development parcels

Surrounding building colour 
palettes.

EDGE PARAMETERS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development 
Zone

Proposed Edges

Pogmoor Land Edges

Proposed link road

Secondary heartspace

Fig 10.92 Page 142



129BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

• The palette and materials used throughout the development should create a distinct hierarchy of character 
areas whilst also working together to provide a harmonious and consistent palette.

• Street furniture across the scheme should be developed to comply with relevant standards and 
requirements 

• Street furniture should be used as a strategy for creating ‘sense of place’ and informal wayfinding.

• Greens and squares should maintain a more 
formal aesthetic feel to street furniture. 

• A coherent and distinctive ‘family’ of furniture 
elements which read well as a group. 

• Opportunities for creating a ‘sense of place’ 
through colour and furniture design are 
strongly encouraged to create and enhance 
neighbourhood identity.

• Furniture should provide a mix of seating elements 
at various heights to suit all abilities and age 
groups. 

• Spaces should provide appropriate lighting levels, 
utilising varied lighting sources and types, whilst 
ensuring that adjacent dwellings are not in direct 
light. 

• Parkland furnishings which utilise natural materials 
and sit harmoniously within their setting. 

• Furniture should provide an array of opportunities 
for seating, informal play and socialising. 

• Furniture should be both grouped and scattered 
allowing for group socialising and sitting alone.

• Well used routes should be adequately lit, 
ensuring good visibility and route delineation. 

• Where appropriate, key spaces should be well 
lit ensuring safe and comfortable conditions for 
users.

• Bollard lighting should be the direction for 
lighting these areas. Lighting will be subject to 
adequate/ required LUX levels to be achieved 
along well used routes. 

CA
SC

AD
E 

AR
BO

RE
TU

M
, 

G
RE

EN
 L

AN
ES

 A
N

D
 M

EA
D

O
W

 
PA

RK

G
RE

EN
S 

AN
D

 S
Q

UA
RE

S
G

EN
ER

AL
 

RU
LE

S
W

O
O

D
LA

N
D

S 

• The woodlands furniture should be sympathetic to 
its setting, utilising natural materials.

• The furnishing palette should strongly encourage 
the re-use of on-site materials.

• Trees which are felled within the site should be re-
purposed e.g. as seating and log stepping stones. 

• Woodland seating, play elements and picnic areas 
should be located alongside well used routes 
creating ‘pockets’ of activity within the woodland.

• Existing woodlands should avoid lighting as to 
not disturb the native fauna, such as birds and 
bats. Lighting would have a negative impact on its 
setting.

• Proposed woodlands should designed to include 
sensitive and low-key lighting solutions as not to 
detract from potential wildlife value.

10.11 Street Furniture Palette

Fig 10.93 Fig 10.94

Fig 10.95 Fig 10.96

Fig 10.97 Fig 10.98 Fig 10.99

Fig 10.100 Fig 10.101

Fig 10.102 Fig 10.103

Fig 10.104

Page 143



WAYFINDING PALETTE

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

Fig 10.105 Page 144



131BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

Signage Should

Signage for the Masterplan should be designed as 
a family, forming Primary, Secondary and Tertiary 
signage types which read as a group to form a key 
and distinctive furniture item for the development. 

Primary signage should in general, be larger format 
and include the following information.

Secondary Signage Should

Be formed of a simplistic and elegant signage 
type which is designed to be in keeping with the 
primary and tertiary signage types.  Secondary 
signage should be more simplistic, showing users 
directional, distance and name information for 
various route options.

TE
RT

IA
RY

 S
IG

N
AG

E
SE

CO
N

D
AR

Y 
SI

G
N

AG
E

Tertiary Signage Should

Be legible and simplistic in its design and need only 
highlight the route which users are on.  Signage 
should also show the various directions a user may 
travel on the specific route if at a junction of routes. 

PR
IM

AR
Y 

G
AT

EW
AY

 S
IG

N
AG

E

10.12 Wayfinding Palette 

Wayfinding should be provided to give a consistency to development.

Fig 10.106

Fig 10.107

Fig 10.108

Page 145



SECTION 'A ' THROUGH LINK ROAD

Fig 10.109 Page 146



133BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

• 3m wide shared cycle and pedestrian link on both 
the East and West side of Cascade Arboretum 
(segregated from the link road)

• Linear swale with check dams incorporated due to 
the level change from the South to the North of the 
site

• Areas of planting and grass proposed to soften and 
green the route

• Informal path links to residential areas for improved 
pedestrian permeability

• Routes will be 'Equalities Act 2010' accessible

• Width of route varies to add interest and activity 
along the route 

• Rich and diverse selection of tree species to provide 
an interesting and varied arboretum

Roadside rain garden Sheffield precedent image

Distinct and legible pedestrian/ cycle route

Sunken social area precedent image

Variable route with additional areas 
for social and play opportunities

10.13 Link Road 

A A

Fig 10.110

Fig 10.111

Fig 10.112

Fig 10.113

Fig 10.114

Page 147



11 THE CHARACTER COMPONENTS 

BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, DRAFT MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

DESIGN CODE Fig 11.1Page 148



135BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

11 THE CHARACTER COMPONENTS

11.1 The Principal Character Areas   

This section will demonstrate the different qualities and 
principles of the character areas.  The principle charac-
ter areas are broken down into the following 'character 
components':

• Community Hub

• Central Squares

• Velvet Village

• Higham Edge

• Pogmoor Edge

• Employment A

• Employment B

• Link Road, Northern Gateway, Southern Gateway 

Page 149



 Community Hub

Employment Zone A

Employment Zone B
Pogmoor Edge 

Central Squares

Velvet Village 

Higham Edge

THE CHARACTER COMPONENTS

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

Link Road 

Fig 11.2 Page 150



137BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

 

Pogmoor Edge 

11.2 Community Hub:  example sample  Key characteristics

Fig 11.3

Key characteristics

• Dense urban grid
• Central urban square
• School, community buildings and homes 

fronting the square 
• Density:  Up to 45 units per hectare 

Precedent Project:  Marmalade Lane, Cambridge 

 Community Hub

Employment Zone A

Employment Zone B

Pogmoor Edge 

Central Squares

Velvet Village 

Higham Edge

Dominant urban grain

Page 151



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

138

11.3 Central Squares:  example sample

• Long views down east-west and north-
south routes 

• Grid of squares within urban grid of 
streets  

• Density:  Up to 40 units per hectare

Key characteristics

Precedent Project:  Great Kneighton, Cambridge 

 Community Hub

Employment Zone A

Employment Zone B
Pogmoor Edge 

Central Squares

Velvet Village 

Higham Edge

Link Road

Fig 11.4

Dominant urban grain

Secondary urban grain

Key public open spaces

Visual connection 
between spaces

Strong linear dense urban grain with framed long 
views down quiet residential streets.

Page 152



139BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

11.4 Higham Edge:  example sample  Key characteristics

• Takes colour and grain from Higham
• Looser grain 
• Greenspaces that are 'organic' in 

configuration
• Density:  Up to 40 units per hectare 

 Community Hub

Employment Zone A

Employment Zone B

Pogmoor Edge 

Central Squares

Velvet Village 

Higham Edge

Precedent Project:  
The Avenue, Saffron Walden 

Link Road

Fig 11.5

Organic form of public 
open spaces

Sinuous primary route

Secondary urban grain

Naturalistic setting with winding lanes and 
organically shaped green public spaces.

Page 153



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

140

Velvet Village 

11.5 Velvet Village:  example sample

Precedent Project:  Cane Hill, Coulsdon

 Community Hub

Employment Zone A

Employment Zone B

Pogmoor Edge 

Central Squares

Velvet Village 

Higham Edge

• Radial arrangement of streets around a 
'central public space'

• Views over mature woodland valleys 
• Looser gridded grain
• Density:  Up to 40 units per hectare

Key characteristics

Link Road

Fig 11.6

Legible central heartspace

Primary street (follows 
approximate route of 
Hermit Lane)

Radial secondary streets

Central square as a key social space

Page 154



141BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

Velvet Village 

Pogmoor Edge 

11.6 Pogmoor Edge: example 
panel

Key characteristics

• Loose organic layout but very permeable to 
pedestrian  movements and links to open 
space

• Density:  Up to 35 units per hectare 

Precedent Project:  
Derwenthorpe development, York

 Community Hub

Employment Zone A

Employment Zone B

Pogmoor Edge 

Central Squares

Velvet Village 

Higham Edge

Link Road

Fig 11.7

Legible central heartspace

Key pedestrian routes link 
through to green open 
landscape

Green open landscape

Outward looking properties relating positively to 
an open landscape context

Page 155



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

142

Key characteristics11.7 Employment Zone A:  example sample

• Larger units 
• Surrounded by dense woodland
• Square Footage:  Should equate to 43h 

of employment land combined with 
Employment Zone B 

 Community Hub

Employment Zone A

Employment Zone B

Pogmoor Edge 

Central Squares

Velvet Village 

Higham Edge

Precedent Project:  Thorpe Park, Leeds

Link Road

Fig 11.8

Larger unit sizes

Dense woodland belt

Buildings set apart within 
landscape

Larger units set in landscape adjacent to M1 
motorway surrounded with tree belt.

Page 156



143BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

Pogmoor Edge 

11.8 Employment Zone B:  example sample 

Precedent Project:  Thorpe Park, Leeds

 Community Hub

Employment Zone A

Employment Zone B

Pogmoor Edge 

Central Squares

Velvet Village 

Higham Edge

Key characteristics

• Smaller units
• Forms gateway from south 
• Square Footage:  Should equate to 43h 

of employment land combined with 
Employment Zone A 

Link Road

Fig 11.9

Smaller unit sizes

Link road

Smaller units set within open landscape surrounded 
with tree belt.

Page 157



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

144

 Community Hub

Employment Zone A

Employment Zone B

Pogmoor Edge 

Central Squares

Velvet Village 

Higham Edge

Key characteristics

• An urban arboretum 
• A dynamic space that changes in 

character along its route
• Clearly structured gateway and mid- 

points 

Northern entrance gateway space

Urban pinch-point forms visual 
gateway into residential area from 
the north.

Regular width of link road 
surroundings. Building frontages 
align with link road.

School grounds - open landscape

Linear open landscape offers north-
easterly views down the valley

Variable width of link road 
surrounding buildings. 

Urban pinch-point forms visual 
gateway into residential area from 
the south.

Linear open landscape offers north-
easterly views down the valley.

Southern entrance gateway space.

A place to orientate and decide 
on direction. Access to Higham, 
Employment zones, residential zones 
and M1 motorway.

‘Higham Edge’ character area.

Buildings visibly angled from line of 
link-road.

Barugh Green Road

M1 Motorway

‘Community Hub’ character area.

‘Central Squares’ character area.

Employment 
zone

11.9 Link Road, northern Gateway, Southern 
Gateway

Fig 11.10

Page 158



145BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

Pogmoor Edge 

11.10 Figure ground concept diagrams

Fig 11.11

Step 1: Creating an efficient figure ground within site 
parameters

Double row of houses with gardens backing

Healthscape 
area - open 
landscape

Healthscape area - open landscape

Step 2: break the blocks down to a more human scale

Step 3: Through breaking down the block, heartspaces 
form within the neighbourhood

Step 4: Create node buildings that act as focal entrance/
exit navigation points into the neighbourhood

Healthscape area - open landscape Healthscape area - open landscape

Step 5: Enhance their appearance through a possible 
form, material and/or facade language that softly 
contradicts the adjacent dwellings. In doing so, they 
act as navigation entrance/ exit points

Step 6: Pedestrian/ cycle links form through the 
neighbourhoods to create a framework for permeability

Healthscape area - open landscape Healthscape area - open landscape

Page 159



KEY

Site Boundary Line

Key Character Node Buildings

Secondary Heart Spaces

Primary Heart Spaces

Gateway Buidlings 

URBAN DESIGN PRINCIPLES

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Proposed housing backing onto 
existing housing 
Character area influence - (colour + 
grain)
Urban grain pattern

Gateway 

Primary heartspace

Strong urban edge  

Pedestrian entrance points

Existing woodland 

Landscape

School grounds

Commercial/ School

Long axial views 

Node Buildings

Place making 

Diagram 30 second Radius

Nodes Gateway + Heartspace

Illustrative Masterplan Primary Roads

Frontages 

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

1min walk from open space

Open space

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Dwellings not Fronting onto open space 

Dwellings Frontage onto open space

Open space

KEYS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Node Buildings

Secondary Heartspaces

Primary Heartspaces

Gateway  

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Employment

Residential

Commercial 

Primary School

Ecology & Biodiversity 

SITE WIDE COLOUR

STREET FURNITURE PALETTE

KEY

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Local Plan Boundary

Cascade Arboretum, Green 
Lanes and Meadow park

Woodland 

Greens and Squares

Indicative Development Zone

Landscape

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Primary street

Secondary Roads

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Secondary street

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Distincive character area 
colour palettes.

Indicative Development 
Zone

Colour influences on new 
development parcels

Surrounding building colour 
palettes.

EDGE PARAMETERS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development 
Zone

Proposed Edges

Pogmoor Land Edges

Proposed link road

Secondary heartspace

SCHOOL

CO
M

M
ER

CI
AL

Fig 11.12 Page 160



147BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

11.11 Node, Gateway and Heartspace Buildings 

The purpose of the node, gateway and heartspace 
buildings is to provide an architectural language that 
subtly differs from other buildings to create distinctive 
spaces and moments in the townscape.  Through doing 
so, they both provide the opportunity to create a sense 
of arrival and act as a navigation points throughout the 
area.  

Page 161



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

148

11.12 Principles of Heartspaces and Heartspace 
Buildings 

Heartspaces are integral to defining the character of 
an area.  They are moments of arrival and within each 
character area, serving their purpose at the heart of that 
community.  

• Higher density, three storey units are promoted 
around heart spaces.  

• Front gable facing 

• Use a colour that contrasts against the adjacent 
back ground buildings

• More ordered façade language

• Consistent building line along the street

• Terraces encouraged or narrower plots 

• Town house in character

Ideal principles: Regular, ordered and legible space 
with a clear geometry and building language.

Principles not adhered to: Irregular space with lack of 
orientation or structure.

Ideal facade principles: Homogenous and 
continuous building geometries surround 
heartspaces which can be read as a whole.

Facade principles not adhered to: Varied 
architectural language with large gaps in 
frontages.

Standard Square-

Standard Square-

Heartspace-

Heartspace-

• 
The architectural language of the node, gateway 
and heartspace buildings should subtly differ from 
the other buildings. This provides the opportunity to 
create a sense of arrival and for buildings to act as 
navigation points to help aid permeability through 
the development.

Fig 11.13

Page 162



149BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

Fig 11.14 Fig 11.15

Fig 11.16

Example image:  Heartspace buildings with 
simple repeated facades and roof forms.

Example image:  Heartspace buildings with 
regular formal window arrangements. 

Example image:  Heartspace buildings with a constant material colour palette and formal facade 
arrangement rising to up to 3 storeys in height in key heartspaces.

Page 163



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

150

11.13 Principles of Node Buildings 

• Node buildings act as ‘navigation points’ into 
heartspaces.  They are intended to stand out in a 
subtle manner.

• Node buildings are a single building

• Ensure all gable-ends should read as “front facades”

• Be monochrome in colour i.e. black, white or grey

• Project forward in the building line

• A more relaxed and playful facade language is 
encouraged and must contrast against the adjacent 
block 

• Contrasting roof forms are promoted 

• More playful facades and roofscapes are promoted 
to ensure the buildings stand out but sit within a 
coherent set of buildings 

Node buildings illustrative diagram: 

Signals route 
between urban 
blocks/ break in 
the urban block

Prominent corner 
location, protrudes 
from building line

Distinctive, contrasting 
building form and 
monochrome materials

Fig 11.17

Page 164



151BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

Fig 11.18Example image:  Node buildings - distinctive 
contrasting material to context

Fig 11.19

Fig 11.20 Fig 11.21

Example image:  Node buildings - irregular 
window arrangements to highlight them as 
‘distinctive’

Example image:  Node buildings - irregular 
window arrangements including corner 
windows may be employed

Example image:  Node buildings - distinctive 
use of materials and detailing - feature 
brickwork shown in example

Page 165



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

152

11.14 Principles of Gateway Buildings  

The purpose of gateway buildings is to signal the notion 
of going through a set of buildings or space.  They 
create a sense of arrival or departure and should align 
to the following principles.

• The language, height and colour should be 
reference the principles of node and heartspace 
buildings.   

• A gateway building could be two node buildings 
separated by a road.

• Gateways should mirror each other and be coherent

• Create a ‘pinch point’ effect.  This could be done not 
only through built form but landscape or planting.

Gateway buildings illustrative diagram: 

Distinctive, contrasting building forms and 
monochrome materials work as a pair to frame a 
view and announce a threshold between different 
spaces. 

Illustrative streetscape diagram below:

Fig 11.22

Page 166



153BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

Example image:  Gateway buildings - 
symmetrical facades and arrangement suggest 
an axis of movement

Example image:  Gateway buildings - 
distinctive materials frame a view into an urban 
block

Example image:  Gateway buildings - distinctive building forms and features employed on a pair of 
buildings either side of an key opening in an urban block

Fig 11.23 Fig 11.24

Fig 11.25

Page 167



DIRECT VIEWS OF LANDSCAPE

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Proposed housing backing onto 
existing housing 
Character area influence - (colour + 
grain)
Urban grain pattern

Gateway 

Primary heartspace

Strong urban edge  

Pedestrian entrance points

Existing woodland 

Landscape

School grounds

Commercial/ School

Long axial views 

Node Buildings

Place making 

Diagram 30 second Radius

Nodes Gateway + Heartspace

Illustrative Masterplan Primary Roads

Frontages 

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

1min walk from open space

Open space

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Dwellings not Fronting onto open space 

Dwellings Frontage onto open space

Open space

KEYS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Node Buildings

Secondary Heartspaces

Primary Heartspaces

Gateway  

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Employment

Residential

Commercial 

Primary School

Ecology & Biodiversity 

SITE WIDE COLOUR

STREET FURNITURE PALETTE

KEY

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Local Plan Boundary

Cascade Arboretum, Green 
Lanes and Meadow park

Woodland 

Greens and Squares

Indicative Development Zone

Landscape

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Primary street

Secondary Roads

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Secondary street

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Distincive character area 
colour palettes.

Indicative Development 
Zone

Colour influences on new 
development parcels

Surrounding building colour 
palettes.

EDGE PARAMETERS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development 
Zone

Proposed Edges

Pogmoor Land Edges

Proposed link road

Secondary heartspace

Fig 11.26 Page 168



155BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

11.15 Direct Views of Landscape

Ensuring  that buildings have a connection to the 
landscape is essential to health and wellbeing.  

In order to achieve this, each character area should 
have:

A minimum of 60% of dwellings should directly face 
onto a formal open space.

Page 169



PROXIMITY TO OPEN SPACE 

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh

1min walk 

   

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Proposed housing backing onto 
existing housing 
Character area influence - (colour + 
grain)
Urban grain pattern

Gateway 

Primary heartspace

Strong urban edge  

Pedestrian entrance points

Existing woodland 

Landscape

School grounds

Commercial/ School

Long axial views 

Node Buildings

Place making 

Diagram 30 second Radius

Nodes Gateway + Heartspace

Illustrative Masterplan Primary Roads

Frontages 

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

1min walk from open space

Open space

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Dwellings not Fronting onto open space 

Dwellings Frontage onto open space

Open space

KEYS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Node Buildings

Secondary Heartspaces

Primary Heartspaces

Gateway  

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Employment

Residential

Commercial 

Primary School

Ecology & Biodiversity 

SITE WIDE COLOUR

STREET FURNITURE PALETTE

KEY

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Local Plan Boundary

Cascade Arboretum, Green 
Lanes and Meadow park

Woodland 

Greens and Squares

Indicative Development Zone

Landscape

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Primary street

Secondary Roads

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Secondary street

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Distincive character area 
colour palettes.

Indicative Development 
Zone

Colour influences on new 
development parcels

Surrounding building colour 
palettes.

EDGE PARAMETERS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development 
Zone

Proposed Edges

Pogmoor Land Edges

Proposed link road

Secondary heartspace

Fig 11.27 Page 170



157BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

11.16 Proximity to Open Space 

Varied and frequent high quality public spaces are an 
essential component of the Masterplan and must be 
carried through on any detailed application.

In order to achieve this:

At least 70% of dwellings should be no more than one 
minute walk to an open space from the front door.

   

Page 171



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

158

 Community Hub

Employment Zone A

Employment Zone B
Pogmoor Edge 

Central Squares

Velvet Village 

Higham Edge

Higham

Barugh Green

Pogmoor

Gawber

Claycliffe Avenue

SITE WIDE COLOUR

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Proposed housing backing onto 
existing housing 
Character area influence - (colour + 
grain)
Urban grain pattern

Gateway 

Primary heartspace

Strong urban edge  

Pedestrian entrance points

Existing woodland 

Landscape

School grounds

Commercial/ School

Long axial views 

Node Buildings

Place making 

Diagram 30 second Radius

Nodes Gateway + Heartspace

Illustrative Masterplan Primary Roads

Frontages 

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

1min walk from open space

Open space

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Dwellings not Fronting onto open space 

Dwellings Frontage onto open space

Open space

KEYS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Node Buildings

Secondary Heartspaces

Primary Heartspaces

Gateway  

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Employment

Residential

Commercial 

Primary School

Ecology & Biodiversity 

SITE WIDE COLOUR

STREET FURNITURE PALETTE

KEY

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Local Plan Boundary

Cascade Arboretum, Green 
Lanes and Meadow park

Woodland 

Greens and Squares

Indicative Development Zone

Landscape

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Primary street

Secondary Roads

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Secondary street

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Distincive character area 
colour palettes.

Indicative Development 
Zone

Colour influences on new 
development parcels

Surrounding building colour 
palettes.

EDGE PARAMETERS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development 
Zone

Proposed Edges

Pogmoor Land Edges

Proposed link road

Secondary heartspace

Fig 11.28 Page 172



159BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

 

Pogmoor Edge 

Pogmoor

Gawber

11.17 Site Wide Colour

Background buildings might have their own character 
and vary subtly, but they should not shout or jostle 
for attention.  They might be rich with contrasts and 
surprises, but retain a certain consistent language. The 
‘site wide colour’ diagram suggests a sampling of the 
principal facade material colours in neighbouring areas. 
For example, terracotta red for the red brick which is 
prevalent in Claycliffe Avenue, the buff colour of brick 
and stone employed in Pogmoor and the mix of pale 
orange and buff brick and stone of Higham. Whilst exact 
material matching is not required,  matching with a  
similar colour palette is required.

1.  The surrounding urban settlements have distinctive 
material colour palettes which form an important part of 
the distinctive character of these areas.

2.  These colour palettes should help inform the primary 
colour palette of adjacent urban developments, forming 
harmonious extensions to the existing urban fabric. 
(Coloured render and brick may be suitable substitutes 
for the local buff stone if used sensitively.)

1. Surrounding building colour 
palettes.

2. Colour influences on new 
development parcels.

3. Distinctive character area colour 
palettes. 

3.  With influences from each of the adjoining districts 
informing the proposed development parcels, a 
patchwork of distinctive ‘villages’ should be identifiable 
in the landscape. Within each ‘village’, key spaces 
feature contrasting material colours to provide a sense 
of place. For example, an area of predominantly red 
brick may have its key public space or ‘heart-space’ 
surrounded with buildings of a contrasting buff brick or 
stone. 

To achieve this, background buildings should:

• Form a cohesive urban environment 

• Have an order or consistency, contrasting against 
node and gateway buildings

• Read as an assemblage of buildings in a block with 
a common theme

Fig 11.29 Fig 11.30 Fig 11.31

Page 173



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

160

The edges of urban blocks should have a positive 
relationship to adjacent open landscapes with primary 
building frontages and/ or gable ends of dwellings 
having large windows overlooking the open landscape. 
This ensures passive supervision of public spaces, a 
strong connection between homes and the shared 
landscape and positive long views across and into the 
site.  

Diagram below illustrates poor urban responses which 
will not be acceptable: Buildings backing onto open 
landscape offering limited views over landscape and 
little connection to public open spaces.  Exposed rear 
gardens provide less secure property boundaries.

Over time, rear boundary treatments are replaced in a 
haphazard and potentially insensitive manner.

Blank gables fail to maximise views onto the landscape 
and offer dull expanses of blank facade to the public 
realm. 

Rear gardens back onto one another to provide a 
secure ‘island’ block with well defined private rear 
gardens and semi-public front gardens fronting the 
street and open landscapes.

11.18 The Edges of Urban Blocks 

Fig 11.32

Page 174



161BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

Rear gardens should back onto one another to provide 
a secure ‘island’ block with well defined private rear 
gardens and semi-public front gardens fronting the 
street and open landscapes.

Gable ends onto these spaces should have primary 
building frontages with large windows overlooking the 
landscape.

Fig 11.33 Fig 11.34

Fig 11.35 Fig 11.36

Page 175



PRIMARY STREETS

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Proposed housing backing onto 
existing housing 
Character area influence - (colour + 
grain)
Urban grain pattern

Gateway 

Primary heartspace

Strong urban edge  

Pedestrian entrance points

Existing woodland 

Landscape

School grounds

Commercial/ School

Long axial views 

Node Buildings

Place making 

Diagram 30 second Radius

Nodes Gateway + Heartspace

Illustrative Masterplan Primary Roads

Frontages 

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

1min walk from open space

Open space

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Dwellings not Fronting onto open space 

Dwellings Frontage onto open space

Open space

KEYS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Node Buildings

Secondary Heartspaces

Primary Heartspaces

Gateway  

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Employment

Residential

Commercial 

Primary School

Ecology & Biodiversity 

SITE WIDE COLOUR

STREET FURNITURE PALETTE

KEY

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Local Plan Boundary

Cascade Arboretum, Green 
Lanes and Meadow park

Woodland 

Greens and Squares

Indicative Development Zone

Landscape

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Primary street

Secondary Roads

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Secondary street

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Distincive character area 
colour palettes.

Indicative Development 
Zone

Colour influences on new 
development parcels

Surrounding building colour 
palettes.

EDGE PARAMETERS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development 
Zone

Proposed Edges

Pogmoor Land Edges

Proposed link road

Secondary heartspace

Fig 11.37 Page 176



163BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

11.19 Primary Streets

Primary streets should:
• Be clearly demarcated for vehicular use by a kerb; 

with a minimum 100mm upstand. 
• Pedestrian footpaths should be designed at a 

minimum of 1.8m widths. 
• Where possible, pedestrian routes should also 

be provided segregated from the road enabling 
pedestrians to walk through greener surroundings. 

• Planting and grass verges should be provided 
where space allows.

• One way priority sections should be encouraged 
creating a varied streetscape

• Forward visibility should be discouraged through 
road alignment and landscaping to reduce vehicle 
speeds.

Primary street separation precedent image 

Primary street precedent image Forward visibility reduced 

Fig 11.38

Fig 11.39

Fig 11.40

Page 177



SECONDARY STREETS

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Proposed housing backing onto 
existing housing 
Character area influence - (colour + 
grain)
Urban grain pattern

Gateway 

Primary heartspace

Strong urban edge  

Pedestrian entrance points

Existing woodland 

Landscape

School grounds

Commercial/ School

Long axial views 

Node Buildings

Place making 

Diagram 30 second Radius

Nodes Gateway + Heartspace

Illustrative Masterplan Primary Roads

Frontages 

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

1min walk from open space

Open space

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Dwellings not Fronting onto open space 

Dwellings Frontage onto open space

Open space

KEYS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Node Buildings

Secondary Heartspaces

Primary Heartspaces

Gateway  

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Employment

Residential

Commercial 

Primary School

Ecology & Biodiversity 

SITE WIDE COLOUR

STREET FURNITURE PALETTE

KEY

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Local Plan Boundary

Cascade Arboretum, Green 
Lanes and Meadow park

Woodland 

Greens and Squares

Indicative Development Zone

Landscape

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Primary street

Secondary Roads

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Secondary street

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Distincive character area 
colour palettes.

Indicative Development 
Zone

Colour influences on new 
development parcels

Surrounding building colour 
palettes.

EDGE PARAMETERS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development 
Zone

Proposed Edges

Pogmoor Land Edges

Proposed link road

Secondary heartspace

Fig 11.41 Page 178



165BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

DRAFT

11.20 Secondary Streets

Secondary streets should:
• Provide a ‘shared space’ design, encouraging slower 

vehicle speeds.
• Carriageway widths should be kept to a minimum 
• The carriageway should be delineated by small kerb 

upstand
• Surface materials for the carriageway and footpath 

should be of a similar material with clear delineation 
between the two. 

• Clearly demarcated raised table access should be 
provided on ingress and egress of the secondary 
street.

Shared space character precedent image Fig 11.42

Fig 11.43

Page 179



EDGE PARAMETERS

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Proposed housing backing onto 
existing housing 
Character area influence - (colour + 
grain)
Urban grain pattern

Gateway 

Primary heartspace

Strong urban edge  

Pedestrian entrance points

Existing woodland 

Landscape

School grounds

Commercial/ School

Long axial views 

Node Buildings

Place making 

Diagram 30 second Radius

Nodes Gateway + Heartspace

Illustrative Masterplan Primary Roads

Frontages 

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

1min walk from open space

Open space

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Dwellings not Fronting onto open space 

Dwellings Frontage onto open space

Open space

KEYS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Node Buildings

Secondary Heartspaces

Primary Heartspaces

Gateway  

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Employment

Residential

Commercial 

Primary School

Ecology & Biodiversity 

SITE WIDE COLOUR

STREET FURNITURE PALETTE

KEY

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Local Plan Boundary

Cascade Arboretum, Green 
Lanes and Meadow park

Woodland 

Greens and Squares

Indicative Development Zone

Landscape

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Primary street

Secondary Roads

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Secondary street

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Distincive character area 
colour palettes.

Indicative Development 
Zone

Colour influences on new 
development parcels

Surrounding building colour 
palettes.

EDGE PARAMETERS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development 
Zone

Proposed Edges

Pogmoor Land Edges

Proposed link road

Secondary heartspace

Fig 11.44 Page 180



167BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

11.21 Edge Parameters

• Proposed houses should as a rule be set lower than existing dwellings (where possible) to reduce visual 
impacts. 

• All gradients/ embankments should not exceed 1:3 slopes
• Planting should be used as a method of screening where appropriate
• Planting species should be selected to provide year-round interest and screening and of a variety which can 

be easily maintained at a specified height

• Houses should be set lower than existing 
dwellings to reduce impact on visibility

• Max 1:3 slopes should be used where 
appropriate. Terraced treatments or retaining 
walls should be explored as shown in sections B 
and C to allow more usable garden space.  

• Min 3m flat area for garden should be allowed 
to rear of proposed dwelling.

•  Planting and trees should be used where 
appropriate, creating a soft buffer between 
proposed and existing.

• Proposed houses to be set down across most of 
the edge at a min 2m.   

• Proposed embankments should provide 
adequate screening for existing dwellings 
through appropriate planting. This should not 
detract or provide complete visual screening for 
either dwelling. 

• A mix of evergreen and deciduous species 
should be selected providing year-round 
interest and screening 

PO
G

M
O

O
R 

LA
N

D
 E

D
G

ES
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 E
D

G
ES

G
EN

ER
AL

 
RU

LE
S

ED
G

E 
TY

PE
 E

XA
M

PL
ES

 T
O

 B
E 

AV
O

ID
ED

• Houses should be set below the level of existing 
houses and only proposed on the same level if 
unavoidable.

• It it strongly recommended that houses sited 
above the level of existing dwellings should be 
avoided unless absolutely necessary.

• If this treatment type is unavoidable, adequate 
buffer planting space should be provided to 
screen direct views

• Screening/ buffer planting should not detract 
from either property, or take away considerable 
usable garden space for the dwelling. 

• Proposed dwellings should have adequate flat/ 
usable garden space and slopes should not fall 
directly to the building edge. 

Section 01 / A

Section 01 / B

Section 01 / C

Section 02

Fig 11.45

Fig 11.46

Fig 11.47

Page 181



BOUNDARIES

Gawber 

Pogmoor

Higham

Barugh Green

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Proposed housing backing onto 
existing housing 
Character area influence - (colour + 
grain)
Urban grain pattern

Gateway 

Primary heartspace

Strong urban edge  

Pedestrian entrance points

Existing woodland 

Landscape

School grounds

Commercial/ School

Long axial views 

Node Buildings

Place making 

Diagram 30 second Radius

Nodes Gateway + Heartspace

Illustrative Masterplan Primary Roads

Frontages 

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

1min walk from open space

Open space

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Dwellings not Fronting onto open space 

Dwellings Frontage onto open space

Open space

KEYS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Node Buildings

Secondary Heartspaces

Primary Heartspaces

Gateway  

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Employment

Residential

Commercial 

Primary School

Ecology & Biodiversity 

SITE WIDE COLOUR

STREET FURNITURE PALETTE

KEY

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Local Plan Boundary

Cascade Arboretum, Green 
Lanes and Meadow park

Woodland 

Greens and Squares

Indicative Development Zone

Landscape

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Primary street

Secondary Roads

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development Zone

Secondary street

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Distincive character area 
colour palettes.

Indicative Development 
Zone

Colour influences on new 
development parcels

Surrounding building colour 
palettes.

EDGE PARAMETERS

KEY

Local Plan Boundary

Indicative Development 
Zone

Proposed Edges

Pogmoor Land Edges

Proposed link road

Secondary heartspace

Fig 11.48 Page 182



169BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

11.22 Boundaries 

• The boundary types used throughout the development should create a distinct hierarchy of character areas 
whilst also working together to provide a harmonious and consistent palette and where possible link back 
to the street furniture palette

• Boundaries within these spaces should be more 
formal

• Brick walling to match the brick of the house type
• Combination of brick walling and railing is 

acceptable as long as this also responds and 
connects back to the architecture

• A combination of using hedge and railing will also 
be acceptable

• In the less formal spaces, a simple hedge will be 
viable

• These spaces will be less formal and will be a 
looser feel and some may not require a boundary 

• Low knee rail to direct people to walk onto 
footpaths 

• Post and rail fences used when big level changes 
are required

• Low native hedgerow planting to existing 
boundaries

CA
SC

AD
E 

AR
BO

RE
TU

M
, 

G
RE

EN
 L

AN
ES

 A
N

D
 M

EA
D

O
W

 
PA

RK

G
RE

EN
S 

AN
D

 S
Q

UA
RE

S
G

EN
ER

AL
 

RU
LE

S
W

O
O

D
LA

N
D

S 

• Generally these spaces will not require a 
boundary, however when they do they will be 
keeping with the character of the woodland

• Post and rail fence 
• Post and fence to prevent people crossing 

boundaries
• Native hedgerow planting to existing boundaries

Fig 11.49 Fig 11.50

Fig 11.51 Fig 11.52 Fig 11.53

Fig 11.54 Fig 11.55

Fig 11.56

Fig 11.57 Fig 11.58

Fig 11.59

Page 183



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

170

In Squares and public spaces, the road surface should 
change and/ or the road surface may be raised to the 
level of the square. However to maintain pedestrian 
safety the edge of the square must be protected by 
street furniture and or planting to avoid vehicle access 
onto pedestrian surfaces.

Key
1.Trees in narrowing
2.On street parking
3.Raised tabled pedestrian crossing
4.Carriageway narrows for designated pedestrian cross-
ing 3.8m for 10m max. 
5. Road Chicane

1.

2.

3.

5.

4.

5.5m

3.8m

3.8m

3.8m

11.23 Traffic Calming

Fig 11.60Page 184



171BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

Illustrative potential residential layout highlighting a variety of different 
parking methods which may employed.

Parking

Front Garden On Plot Parking

Unallocated Front Parking Court

On Plot Side Parking

Allocated Of Site Parking

Allocated On Street Parking

Intergral Parking Garage

Detached Garage

Car Port On Plot

11.24 Parking Types

Key

On plot front driveway parking.

On plot side driveway parking.

On plot undercroft /carport 
parking.

On plot integral garage parking.

On plot detached garage parking.

On plot designated front garden 
parking court.
(Maximum 6no. parking bays).

Off plot designated parking within 
public square.
(Maximum 4no. parking bays in 
tandem).
(No rear parking courts will be 
permitted).

On street un-designated parking 
bays. 
(Form chicanes and width restric-
tions for traffic calming).

The current visual impact of parking motor vehicles in 
our urban streetscape should not be underestimated. 
Whilst they form a part of modern lifestyles, the visual 
impact can and should be considered and reduced. 

Where possible, parking spaces are to be located to the 
side of properties to limit their visual impact from the 
street.

Generally, no more than three consecutive plots are to 
have the same parking solution to avoid a repetitive 
streetscape dominated by parking.

A more regimented and repetitive approach to parking 
may be deemed appropriate within formal squares to 
continue the more ordered architectural treatment of 
buildings within these key spaces. 

Fig 11.61

Page 185



12 FLEXIBILITY

BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

DESIGN CODE Fig 12.1Page 186



173BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE BARNSLEY WEST DESIGN CODE

12 ALLOWING FOR FLEXIBILITY 

12.1 Overview

The code has been composed to allow for flexibility.

The following diagram demonstrates a typical scenario 
where compliance is achieved and principles are 
maintained through three different outcomes.

The over-arching guiding principles are adhered to and 
interpreted slightly differently to suit evolving house 
market needs and types.

• Strong Building Lines and key buildings front main 
spaces .

• All properties front onto some type of green space.

• Strong building edge formed with housing fronting 
onto open landscape areas. Clearly defined spaces.

• Sense of enclosure and individual character to each 
key urban space. 

House

'Feature' houses - height, roof form, materiality, etc

Standard road

Shared Surface/ Shared Drive. (Traffic 
Calming and Sense of Place)

Key urban space - sense of Place- Strong Legible 
Geometry Helps to 'Read' as a Distinct Place.

Hermit Lane Character Area- Greener than Usual. 
Many Pockets of Green Space Along Road

Green Link Space (Generally Highwalls) 
Edges of Urban Plots Front onto this

Key

Sample area of 
Masterplan layout.

10% of area with a 
different layout.

10% of area with a different, 
alternative layout.

‘Green Link’

‘Green Link’

‘Green Link’

Hermit Lane

Hermit Lane

Hermit Lane

Fig 12.2

Fig 12.3

Fig 12.4

Page 187



IMAGE REFERENCES

BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)

THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST Fig 13.1Page 188



175BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
COMBINED MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

THE VISION IMAGE REFERENCES

Cover Page

0.1

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

Google Earth 

Bond Bryan

Pegasus

Gillespies

 Bond Bryan

Google Earth

Bond Bryan

Google

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Sterling Capitol 

Sterling Capitol

Bond Bryan

BMBC

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Google 

Google

Google

Bond Bryan

Google

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Aerial Photograph 

Site Photograph

Site Photograph

Timeline Diagram

Circle Diagram

Site Photograph

Aerial Photograph

Land Ownerships

Aerial Photograph

Aerial Photograph

Aerial Photograph

Aerial Photograph

Aerial Photograph

Site Photograph

Local Plan Extract

Site Photograph

Land Use Framework

Commercial Buildings on Barugh G Road

Barnsley Hospice off Hermit Lane

Local Dwellings

Site Photograph

Photographic Survey of Site

View from Hermit Lane looking left

View from within Site looking north

View from within Site looking west

View from within Site facing south-west

Site Photograph

Page 189



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
COMBINED MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

176

THE VISION IMAGE REFERENCES

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

4.35

4.36

4.37

4.38

4.39

4.40

5.1

5.2

Site Photograph

Site Photograph

Site Photograph

Site Photograph

Site Photograph

Site Photograph

Site Photograph

Site Photograph

Site Photograph

Site Photograph

Site Photograph

Rights Of Way Framework

Right Of Way

Right Of Way 

Existing Site Entrance

Right Of Way

Aerial Photo

Historic Opencast Mining

Opencast Mine in Leeds

Historic Map

Site Photograph

Site Photograph

Constraints

Opportunities

Local Amenities On Barugh Green Road

Key View Out To Local Landmarks

View Into Barnsley facing East

Aerial Photograph

Site Photograph

Design Evolution

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Sterling Capitol

Google 

Google

Google

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan 

Bond Bryan 

Google

Google

Google

Sterling Capitol

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Page 190



177BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

Illustrative Masterplan Proposal

Sustainable Movement

Green and Blue Infrastructure

Maintenance Photographs

Maintenance Areas

Strategic Flood and Drainage Infrastructure

Placemaking

Example Images: Heartspace

Example Images: Link Between neighbourhoods

Example Images: Subtle Gateway Buildings

Illustrative View: Northern Gateway

Illustrative View: Heartspaces

Illustrative View: Civic Square

Illustrative View: Entrance to Employment Zone

Site Photograph

CCG Neighbourhood Network Around MU1

Indicative Phasing Plan

Site Photograph

Bond Bryan

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Bond Bryan

Google

Google

Google

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

BMBC

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Page 191



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
COMBINED MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

178

DESIGN CODE IMAGE REFERENCES

Cover Page

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Bond Bryan

Gillespies

Bond Bryan

Gillespies

Google

Google

Google

Google

Bond Bryan

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Aerial Photograph 

Site Photograph

Urban Design Strategy

Illustrative Masterplan

Design Code Diagram

Site Photograph

Photograph

Photograph

Photograph

Photograph

Photograph

Site Photograph

Landscape Framework

Cascade Arboretum

Gawber Forest

Civic Square

Velvet Woods

Meadow Park

Greens and Glades

Green Lanes

Reference Plan

Proposed Section Through Gawber Forest

Stepped Access in the Landscape

Usable 1:3 Planted Slopes

Level Access Footpaths in the Landscape

Proposed Section

Pedestrian and Cyclist Connectivity

Primary Connections - Typical Section

Secondary Connections - Typical Section

Page 192



179BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
COMBINED MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

DESIGN CODE IMAGE REFERENCES

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Pedestrian, Cyclist Centric Design

Diverted Right of Way

Ecology and Biodiversity

Ecology and Biodiversity Photograph

Ecology and Biodiversity Photograph

Ecology and Biodiversity Photograph

Ecology and Biodiversity Photograph

Ecology and Biodiversity Photograph

Play - LAP Requirements

Play - LAP Photograph

Play - LAP Photograph

Play - LAP Photograph

Play - LAP Photograph

Play - LAP Photograph

Play - LEAP Requirements

Naturalistic Play Encased by Planting

Play Features Make Use of Level Changes

Play Spaces within a Natural Setting

Play - NEAP Requirements

Playset Within Large Level Changes

Level Changes Enhance Play Space

Informal Multi-use Games Area

Tree Framework

Cascade Arboretum Photograph

Cascade Arboretum Photograph

Cascade Arboretum Photograph

Gawber Forest Photograph                         

Gawber Forest Photograph

Velvet Woods Photograph                                                                                                

Velvet Woods Photograph

Velvet Woods Photograph

Page 193



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
COMBINED MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

180

10.50

10.51

10.52

10.53

10.54

10.55

10.56

10.57

10.58

10.59

10.60

10.61

10.62

10.63

10.64

10.65

10.66

10.67

10.68

10.69

10.70

10.71

10.72

10.73

10.74

10.75

10.76

10.77

10.78

10.79

10.80

10.81

10.82

Green Lanes Photograph

Green Lanes Photograph

Meadow Park Photograph

Meadow Park Photograph

Meadow Park Photograph

Greens and Glades Photograph

Greens and Glades Photograph

Greens and Glades Photograph

Commercial Car Park Photograph

Commercial Car Park Photograph

Planting Framework

Cascade Arboretum Photograph

Cascade Arboretum Photograph

Cascade Arboretum Photograph

Gawber Forest Photograph

Gawber Forest Photograph

Gawber Forest Photograph

Velvet Woods Photograph

Velvet Woods Photograph

Velvet Woods Photograph

Green Lanes Photograph

Green Lanes Photograph

Green Lanes Photograph

Meadow Park Photograph

Meadow Park Photograph

Meadow Park Photograph

Greens and Glades Photograph

Greens and Glades Photograph

Greens and Glades Photograph

Material Palette

Cascade Arboretum Photograph

Cascade Arboretum Photograph

Cascade Arboretum Photograph

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Page 194



181BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
COMBINED MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

Greens and Glades and Squares Photograph

Greens and Glades and Squares Photograph

Greens and Glades and Squares Photograph

Meadow Park and Green Lanes Photograph

Meadow Park and Green Lanes Photograph

Meadow Park and Green Lanes Photograph

Woodlands Photograph

Woodlands Photograph

Woodlands Photograph

Street Furniture Palette

Greens and Squares Photograph

Greens and Squares Photograph

Greens and Squares Photograph

Greens and Squares Photograph

Cascade Arboretum, Green Lanes and Meadow Park Photograph

Cascade Arboretum, Green Lanes and Meadow Park Photograph

Cascade Arboretum, Green Lanes and Meadow Park Photograph

Cascade Arboretum, Green Lanes and Meadow Park Photograph

Cascade Arboretum, Green Lanes and Meadow Park Photograph

Woodlands Photograph

Woodlands Photograph

Woodlands Photograph

Wayfinding Palette

Primary gateway signage

Secondary Signage

Tertiary Signage

Section ‘A’ Through Link Road

Roadside Rain Garden Sheffield Precedent Image

Sunken Social Area Precedent Image

Distinct and Legible Pedestrian / Cycle Route

Link Road Diagram 

Variable Route with Additional Areas for Social and Play Opportunities

10.83

10.84

10.85

10.86

10.87

10.88

10.89

10.90

10.91

10.92

10.93

10.94

10.95

10.96

10.97

10.98

10.99

10.100

10.101

10.102

10.103

10.104

10.105

10.106

10.107

10.108

10.109

10.110

10.111

10.112

10.113

10.114

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Page 195



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
COMBINED MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

182

Site Photograph

The Character Components

Community Hub: Example Sample

Central Squares: Example Sample

Higham Edge: Example Sample

Velvet Village: Example Sample

Pogmoor Edge: Example Panel

Employment Zone A: Example Sample

Employment Zone B: Example Sample

Link Road, Northern Gateway, Southern Gateway

Figure Ground Concept Diagrams

Urban Design Principles

Principles of Heartspaces and Heartspace Buildings

Heartspace Buildings with Simple Repeated Facades and Roof Forms

Heartspace Buildings with Regular Formal Window Arrangements

Heartspace Buildings with a Constant Material Colour Palette and Formal Facade 

Arrangement Rising to up to 3 Storeys in Height in Key Heartspaces

Node Buildings Illustrative Diagram

Node Buildings - Distinctive Contrasting Material to Context

Node Buildings - Irregular Window Arrangements to Highlight them as ‘Distinctive’

Node buildings - Irregular Window Arrangements Including Corner Windows

Node buildings - Distinctive Use of Materials and Detailing

Gateway Buildings Illustrative Diagram

Gateway Buildings - Symmetrical Facades and Arrangement

Gateway Buildings - Distinctive Materials Frame a View into an Urban Block

Gateway Buildings - Pair of Buildings Either Side of a Key Opening in an Urban Block

Direct Views of Landscape

Proximity to Open Space

Site Wide Colour

Surrounding Building Colour Palettes

Colour Influences on New Development Parcels

Distinctive Character Area Colour Palettes

The Edges of Urban Blocks

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

11.10

11.11

11.12

11.13

11.14

11.15

11.16

11.17

11.18

11.19

11.20

11.21

11.22

11.23

11.24

11.25

11.26

11.27

11.28

11.29

11.30

11.31

11.32

Bond Bryan

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Page 196



183BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
COMBINED MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

Edges of Urban Blocks Photograph

Edges of Urban Blocks Photograph

Edges of Urban Blocks Photograph

Edges of Urban Blocks Photograph

Primary Streets

Primary Street Separation Precedent Image

Primary Street Precedent Image

Primary Streets Diagram

Secondary Streets

Shared Space Character Precedent Image

Secondary Streets Diagram

Edge Parameters

Proposed Edges

Pogmoor Land Edges

Edge Type Examples To Be Avoided

Boundaries

Greens and Squares Photograph

Greens and Squares Photograph

Greens and Squares Photograph

Greens and Squares Photograph

Greens and Squares Photograph

Cascade Arboretum, Green Lanes and Meadow Park Photograph

Cascade Arboretum, Green Lanes and Meadow Park Photograph

Cascade Arboretum, Green Lanes and Meadow Park Photograph

Woodlands Photograph

Woodlands Photograph

Woodlands Photograph

Traffic Calming

Parking Types

Site Photograph

Sample Area of Masterplan Layout 10% of Area with a Different Layout

10% of Area with a Different Layout

11.33

11.34

11.35

11.36

11.37

11.38

11.39

11.40

11.41

11.42

11.43

11.44

11.45

11.46

11.47

11.48

11.49

11.50

11.51

11.52

11.53

11.54

11.55

11.56

11.57

11.58

11.59

11.60

11.61

12.1

12.2

12.3

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Gillespies

Bond Bryan

Gillespies

Gillespies

Page 197



BOND BRYAN 

BARNSLEY WEST, MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK (MU1)
THE VISION FOR BARNSLEY WEST

184

10% of Area with a Different, Alternative Layout

Site Photograph

12.4

13.1

Gillespies

Bond Bryan

Page 198



Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank



December 2019 | KM/NW | P18-1848.001F 

 

   

 

Pegasus Group 
Pavilion Court | Green Lane | Garforth | Leeds | LS25 2AF 

T 0113 287 8200 | W www.pegasusgroup.co.uk @pegasusgroup 

Birmingham | Bracknell | Bristol | Cambridge | Cirencester | East Midlands | Leeds | Liverpool | 
London | Manchester 

 
©Copyright Pegasus Planning Group Limited 2011. The contents of this document must not be copied or reproduced in whole or 

in part without the written consent of Pegasus Planning Group Limited 

 

 

BARNSLEY WEST MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK 

(MU1) 
 

 

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

 
LAND SOUTH OF BARUGH GREEN ROAD 

 
ON BEHALF OF BARNSLEY COUNCIL, STRATA HOMES AND STERLING 

CAPITOL PLC  
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 201



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019  

 

CONTENTS: 
 

Page No: 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 1 

2. PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK 2 

3. CONSULTATION METHODOLOGY 3 

4. CONSULTATION STATISTICS 5 

5. CONSULTATION FEEDBACK 7 

6. NON-QUESTIONNAIRE RESPONSES 24 

7. SUMMARY OF FOCUSSED BRIEFING SESSIONS 30 

8. CONSULTATION ASSESSMENT 32 

9. CONCLUSION 37 
 

 

 

APPENDICES: 
 

APPENDIX A – LEAFLET DISTRIBUTION AREA 

APPENDIX B – BARNSLEY WEST LEAFLET 

APPENDIX C – BARNSLEY CHRONICLE EXTRACT 

APPENDIX D – SITE NOTICE 

APPENDIX E – LOCATION OF DISPLAYED SITE NOTICES 

APPENDIX F – FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS 

APPENDIX G – BARNSLEY WEST WEBSITE EXTRACTS 

APPENDIX H – BARNSLEY WEST EXHIBITION BOARDS 

APPENDIX I - BARNSLEY WEST SUMMARY AND QUESTIONNAIRE 

APPENDIX J - CONSULTATION EVALUATION  

Page 202



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 1  

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) has been prepared by Pegasus 

Group on behalf of Strata Homes and Sterling Capitol Plc, working in collaboration 

with Barnsley Council. This Statement has helped to guide the emerging Barnsley 

West Masterplan Framework (MU1). 

1.2 Barnsley Council’s Local Plan was adopted in January 2019. The preparation of a 

Masterplan Framework is a requirement of the Local Plan policy MU1, to guide the 

development of the site and make sure that the policy objectives are met during 

the plan period.   

1.3 Barnsley Council are working alongside Strata Homes and Sterling Capitol Plc and 

their professional team, who have the largest land interest. Landowners and 

developers who have smaller land interests on the site are also being consulted.  

1.4 The subsequent chapters of this Statement detail the planning policy framework; 

the consultation process undertaken; provide a summary of community 

comments/views received; and demonstrates how they have been considered in 

finalising the Barnsley West Masterplan Framework. 

Page 203



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 2  

 

2. PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK 

2.1 The importance of effective community involvement in planning has been 

emphasised through the Government’s localism agenda and by publication of the 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). 

2.2 Paragraph 16 of the NPPF states that plans should be “shaped by early, 

proportionate and effective engagement between plan-makers and communities, 

local organisations, businesses, infrastructure providers and operators and 

statutory consultees.” 

2.3 As part of the Local Development Framework process introduced by the Planning 

and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, local authorities are required to produce a 

Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) to ‘front load’ the planning system 

so that the concerns of the community are addressed earlier in the plan-making 

process, with the intention that they are committed to the adopted policies of the 

development plan. The content and form of the SCI has implications for any 

public consultation undertaken and the SCI should explain the process and 

appropriate methods for effective community involvement during the preparation 

of planning policy, in this case a supplementary planning document. 

2.4 The Statement of Community Involvement adopted by Barnsley Council in 2015 

references Masterplans as a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and 

stipulates that these documents will be prepared with the involvement of the 

stakeholders and the community and will “involve a consultation period of at least 

four weeks.” A full extract from Barnsley Council’s SCI is provided below:  

11. Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) 

11.1 SPDs can take the form of Design Briefs, Masterplans, Codes of Practice or 

other issue-based documents which add detail to policies or proposals in a Local 

Plan. These documents will also be prepared with the involvement of the 

stakeholders and the community. This will involve a consultation period of at 

least four weeks. They are not subject to independent examination, but are 

adopted by the council under the authorisation process. The need for SPDs to be 

prepared will be determined during the Plan process. 

11.2 Whilst SPDs are not technically part of the Local Plan they carry weight as 

important material considerations in the determination of planning applications. 

Page 204



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 3  

 

3. CONSULTATION METHODOLOGY 

3.1 Following consideration of national and local policy, multiple methods of 

consultation were agreed with Barnsley Council Officers. 

• Public Consultation took place for a period of six weeks between 12th 

September and 24th October 2019.  

• Approximately 2,420 leaflets (Appendix A) were distributed to neighbouring 

properties (within approximately 250m of the site boundary) advertising the 

consultation process (Appendix B). 

• A special notice was issued in the Barnsley Chronicle notifying interested 

parties of the consultation process (Appendix C). 

• A number of site notifications were displayed on streets around the site two 

weeks before the first public exhibition (Appendices D and E) identifying the 

location map of these and the site notice that was displayed. 

• A series of frequently asked questions were made available to introduce the 

Masterplan Framework process (Appendix F). 

• A website was set up during the six-week consultation period, providing links 

to the exhibition material: www.barnsleywest.co.uk (Appendix G provides 

extracts from the website). 

• Ten exhibition display boards were prepared providing a clear explanation 

about the Masterplan Framework proposals through text, images and plans 

(Appendix H). These not only featured at the two public exhibitions, but were 

also available to view online and on display throughout the consultation period 

at the Library @ the Lightbox, Barnsley town centre.  An A3 information pack 

was also available at the Library. 

• A consultation summary paper and questionnaire were prepared and 

interested parties were able to access and complete the questionnaire online 

or in paper form (Appendix I).  

• A Barnsley West Masterplan Framework email address was set up for any 

electronic responses: BarnsleyWestMF@pegasusgroup.co.uk 

Page 205

http://www.barnsleywest.co.uk/
mailto:BarnsleyWestMF@pegasusgroup.co.uk


Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 4  

 

• A postal address was also available for any paper consultation responses: 

Barnsley West Masterplan Framework Consultation, Pegasus Group, Pavilion 

Court, Green Lane, Garforth, Leeds, LS25 2AF 

• Two public exhibitions were held during the consultation period to engage the 

community in dialogue and request views and feedback:  

o Monday 23rd September 2019, 3pm – 7pm - Barugh Green Club, 

Higham Common Road, Higham, S75 1LD; and 

o Thursday 10th October 2019, 3pm – 7pm - St Thomas Community 

Centre, Church St, Barnsley, S75 2RL. 

• A temporary exhibition was available at Library @ the Lightbox, Barnsley town 

centre for the duration of the six-week consultation. 

• Statutory Consultees were also engaged in the process.  

• All landowners of the site were provided with briefing sessions in advance 

of/during the consultation period.  

• A series of focused briefing sessions were held and facilitated by Barnsley 

Council including sessions for the following groups: 

o Darton West Ward Alliance 

o Representatives of Keep It Green 2014 

o Representatives of the Redbrook Tenants and Residents Association 

(TARA) 

• The draft Masterplan Framework was presented to the Design Review Panel 

for comment. 

• Regular meetings were held with officers from Barnsley Council. 

• Engagement with the Council’s Equality and Inclusion Officer and 

Communications team provided clarity on how the questionnaire could be 

tailored to maximise participation. A series of optional equality monitoring 

questions were included in the questionnaire to understand the demographics 

of participants.  

Page 206



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 5  

 

4. CONSULTATION STATISTICS 

4.1 The following section of this report identifies the comments received from the 

various mediums of consultation undertaken and explains how they have been 

considered in the evolution of the scheme design. 

4.2 Wherever possible consultation comments and suggestions have been fed into the 

final Masterplan Framework. It is important to note that some comments will not 

always be overcome through the consultation exercise and that sometimes 

contradictory views are expressed.  

4.3 Following the publicising exercise of the consultation via multiple methods and 

the distribution of 2,420 leaflets to neighbouring properties, a total of 233 people 

attended across the two public exhibitions. Photographs of the public exhibition 

are provided at Appendix I. It is considered that this level of interest represents a 

reasonable response in order to engage and understand the views of the local 

community.  

4.4 A summary of the consultation statistics is provided below and the consultation 

evaluation is provided at Appendix J: 

Consultation Statistics 

Number of attendants across the two 

public exhibitions  

233 attendees 

213 completed questionnaires  

(online and paper form) 

148 completed online 

65 completed at the exhibition/received 

by post* 

Non questionnaire responses  5 received by email  

Consultee responses 5 received by email  

Website visits  349 visits 

190 unique visits 

100% completion rate of questionnaires 

Average time to complete 23.45 mins 

*a small number of questionnaires were received shortly after the consultation period ended. These 

questionnaires have been included and considered within this Statement of Community Involvement.  

 

Page 207



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 6  

 

4.5 In addition to completion of the questionnaires and email responses, we also 

received email responses from the following consultees/stakeholders: 

• Barnsley Council Officers 

• The Coal Authority 

• National Trans Pennine Trail 

• British Horse Society 

• Yorkshire Wildlife Trust 

• Historic England 

• National Grid 

 

 

Page 208



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 7  

 

5. CONSULTATION FEEDBACK 

5.1 This section of the report carefully analyses the responses we have received 

through all the questionnaire responses. 

 

1. Do you agree with the vision of the Masterplan Framework which seeks to 

create a sustainable and inclusive community with high-quality design and 

landscaping? 

Yes 76% 

No 16% 

I don’t know 6% 

 

2. What do you think are the most important features of the existing site?  

(tick 3 options) 

Existing trees and vegetation 74% 

Greenspace 69% 

Wildlife 63% 

Short and long-distance views 37% 

Public rights of way 14% 

Existing watercourses 11% 

Mining legacy 4% 

Other 9% 

2. Other Responses No. 

All the above 9 

Existing site is greenspace - any development will generate potential  

environment/pollution problems rendering any proposed protection 

in the site plan questionnaire as irrelevant 1 

Green space and views to be obscured by houses and employment 

units taking 100% of what is available 1 

Privacy. No one looking in 1 

Happiness and well-being as it is at present 1 

The pollution in the area will get worse 1 

It cannot be sustainable when they are only proposing 30% 

greenspace 1 

Loss of greenspace / greenbelt 4 

Air quality 1 

None 1 

Distinct character of each individual village 2 

Retention of existing trees and vegetation 1 

Loss of wildlife 1 

Increased flooding 1 

 

 

 

 

Page 209



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 8  

 

3. What do you consider to be the most important points for guiding the design 

of the development? (tick 3 options) 

High quality outdoor space with clear distinction between public and 

private space 

36% 

Healthy and safe environment 36% 

Considering local distinctiveness 34% 

Sustainable design and construction incorporating low carbon and 

renewable technologies 

33% 

Clear and obvious routes for pedestrians, cyclists and motorists 26% 

Creating views to important buildings and landmarks, and protecting 

the historic environment 

25% 

Display good design using high-quality materials 13% 

Providing adequate parking 12% 

Other 21% 

3. Other Responses No. 

Don't build on site / should not be allowed to build on greenbelt /  

against development 21 

Protect existing housing from noise, pollution, disturbance from / 

view of industrial units 3 

All the above 2 

Maintaining and improving infrastructure 1 

Must connect with existing communities around site 2 

Adequate public transport 1 

Loss of view 1 

Scale down development 2 

Provision of facilities e.g. doctors, dentists, other infrastructure 1 

None of the above 3 

Using available brownfield land instead of green belt 1 

More open green space and tree planting 1 

Over-engineered transport links and roadways including better  

relief road plans 1 

Site slopes downwards which makes it difficult to protect the historic 

environment 1 

None 1 

Concerns about coalescence  1 

No employment units next to existing houses 1 

Road access/congestion 1 

Privacy 1 

Do not squeeze too many houses in the space. Parking issues 1 

Avoid overlooking by neighbours 2 

Keep existing features and skyline 1 

Retain woods and copses 1 

Adequate camouflage of industrial units 1 

Plant trees 1 

Consideration given to existing single story properties already 

present around the perimeter of the development area 1 

Doctors surgery vital as local services over subscribed 1 

Concern about development reaching maximum profitability 1 

Concerns about loss of view, greenspace, wildlife 1 

 

 

Page 210



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 9  

 

4. The council will assess planning applications to make sure an appropriate mix 

of housing is delivered. What type of homes do you think the new development 

should provide? (tick 3 options) 

Bungalow 78% 

Semi-detached 64% 

Detached 59% 

Terrace 23% 

Apartment 12% 

 

5. The council will assess planning applications to make sure an appropriate mix 

of housing is delivered. What size of homes do you think the new development 

should provide? (tick 3 options) 

1 bed 29% 

2 bed 70% 

3 bed 83% 

4 bed 47% 

5 bed 17% 

 

6. The council will assess planning applications to make sure an appropriate mix 

of housing is delivered. What tenure of homes do you think the new 

development should provide? (tick 1 option) 

Mix of both 45% 

Open market housing 34% 

Affordable housing 20% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 211



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 10  

 

7. How can the impact of development be minimised when viewed from the 

wider landscape? (tick as many as are appropriate) 

Create strong green landscape buffers to minimise the visual impact 

of the development from the wider landscape 

82% 

Make sure that the new employment units are an appropriate colour 

to reduce their prominence in the wider landscape 

42% 

Other 38% 

7. Other Responses  No. 

Prioritise active transport links 1 

Discourage private motor vehicles 1 

Make the development much smaller and less intrusive / scale down  

development 5 

Don't built it / against development / against building on greenbelt 22 

Buffer against construction noise 1 

Minimise overlooking existing properties 1 

Don't mix employment and housing 2 

M1 already at capacity 1 

40m buffer is not enough 1 

Move planned roundabout to join the junction 37 roundabout 1 

Create additions to existing communities not one sprawl 1 

Retail local wildlife networks and create nature recovery networks 1 

Destruction of greenbelt land cannot be minimised 1 

Keep buildings low level to preserve views 7 

Traffic and congestion kept to a minimum 1 

Use green screens to give the impression of wide-open green space 1 

Don't build on top of a hill / build on lower ground 2 

Against employment units 3 

Nothing has been done to make the development more appealing to  

current residents 1 

None of the above 2 

Build on existing brownfield land instead of green belt 1 

Presume new employment units refers to the large proposed  

warehousing areas. It appears no consideration has been given to 

the impact of this on the existing Higham Common Road or how this 

will affect traffic at J37 1 

Leave or create more green space 1 

Will be impossible to screen the development as it's on a downward 

sloping site 1 

Increase separation distances 2 

Prioritise community and distinction between villages over profit in 

terms of industrial units and size of overall development 1 

Concerns over loss of views 1 

Consider visual impact on existing properties overlooking this site 1 

Plant trees / retain as many trees / bushes as possible 5 

Screen industrial buildings 1 

Size of proposed development is important 1 

Consideration of views 1 

Valuation of existing houses in this area before and after building will  

make interesting reading and action 1 

Provide more green space 5 

Restricted access for longer vehicles e.g. lorries and buses 1 

Concerns about noise and light pollution from industrial buildings 1 

 

Page 212



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 11  

 

8. How can the impact of development be minimised on existing biodiversity 

features? (tick 3 options) 

Introduce new areas for wildlife within the site (wet and dry areas) 53% 

Develop landscaping schemes that encourage roosting, nesting, 

feeding and movement through the site 

52% 

Leave areas of grass to grow wild and create wildflower verges and 

meadows 

45% 

Make sure that new ponds are clean and attractive to wildlife 27% 

Incorporate design features such as bat and bird boxes into the new 

housing and design new lighting so that it does not unsettle wildlife 

20% 

Include information boards and signage to educate residents 4% 

Deliver off-site biodiversity improvements 4% 

Other 28% 

8. Other Responses No. 

By not developing the area/not building it 28 

All the above 11 

Reduce no. of houses and size of employment space 6 

None. Destruction of our landscape and wildlife 1 

Destruction of greenbelt cannot be minimised 3 

Only develop half the site 1 

Involve Yorkshire Wildlife Trust 1 

Whatever is included will have a devastating impact for the existing  

residents 1 

Build on brownfield sites 1 

None of the above 2 

Don't build on green belt when there is brownfield land available   

Take all measures to reduce traffic and improve air quality.  

Incorporate appropriate wildlife crossings 1 

Any of the above will be fine when first installed. Later, no one will 

maintain them, and they will fall into disrepair and become ugly 1 

You can't with this size of development 1 

Nothing is wrong with MU1 as it is, hedgerows will be years old and 

ecosystem there established, a few frog ponds by the developer as 

token gestures will be inert 1 

Keep current public right of way 1 

Leave existing woods / animals’ habitats 1 

Provide more green space 5 

Questions who will pay to maintain the biodiversity features 3 

Protect existing hedgerow 1 

Concerns about business of existing roads 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 213



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 12  

 

9. Informal greenspace, play spaces and allotments could be delivered as part 

of the new development. What features would encourage you to use these new 

facilities (pick 3 options) 

High-quality facilities that are clean, safe and well-maintained 46% 

Well-located facilities accessed by footpaths / cycle routes with 

secure and convenient cycle parking 43% 

Community involvement in the use of the spaces 33% 

A range of facilities to attract all age groups 28% 

Children's play area and opportunities for imaginative play to allow 

children of different ages and abilities to play together 25% 

Young people's facilities e.g. Multi-use games area/skate park 11% 

Car parking and cycle parking 10% 

Other 30% 

9. Other Responses No. 

Don't build it / protect greenbelt 20 

All the above 7 

Don't understand why we're limited to 3 of the above, they should all  

be a feature 1 

None of the above 9 

Creating a closed community. What is being done to integrate the  

existing community space into this new area? 1 

Keep and extend the already existing footpaths 1 

Existing surrounding areas don't need elaboration 1 

Nothing.  2 

Facilities aimed at dog-walkers who currently use the land 1 

Young people’s facilities should not be encouraged 1 

Car parking should not be encouraged 1 

Suspect developers will not provide to any extent these new facilities 1 

Wardens required to monitor these spaces 1 

Provide allotments 3 

Open fields similar to the existing landscape 1 

None. Why are these questions suggesting that planning has already  

been granted? 1 

The introduction to this questionnaire says that allotments will be 

part of this scheme, the above indicates could. Another promise to 

be broken before it's off the drawing board. Allotments have already 

been taken in Barugh Green to build on 1 

Against this, areas will become a congregation place for youths 1 

Skate parks and parks are a breeding ground for drug dealers and 

anti-social behaviour 1 

Will attract undesirables from other areas 2 

Fields / football pitch 1 

Questions who will pay to maintain these 2 

Footpaths through green space 2 

All should be a priority, not a maybe 1 

 

 

 

 

Page 214



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 13  

 

10. The Masterplan Framework will identify routes for pedestrians, cyclists and 

vehicles. What design features would make these routes more user-friendly? 

(tick 3 options) 

Traffic-free routes 46% 

Safe and attractive routes that are well-lit 42% 

Separate cycle and pedestrian routes 33% 

Gates / bollards to restrict unauthorised access for vehicles 31% 

Traffic calming measures 29% 

Combined cycle and pedestrian routes 14% 

Cycle-friendly junctions and smooth non-slip surfaces 12% 

High-quality signage 8% 

Other 25% 

10. Other Responses No. 

No HGV access into residential area 1 

Not allowing cyclists 1 

Don't build it / leave it as it is / protect green belt 10 

Only affects new site - not existing communities 3 

All the above 3 

Options not appropriate for housing development. Options appear 

more relevant to town centre developments. 1 

No consideration to existing communities. 1 

No routes, no signs, no lighting we already suffer from too much of 

this 1 

Infrastructure cannot cope with more cars. Already congested. 2 

Public transport 1 

Heavy duty traffic needs to be taken away from areas of habitation 1 

Should be no encouragement for vehicles or cyclists, should be 

pedestrians only 1 

Don't want any roads 1 

Existing residents need protecting from traffic 1 

Open access to the M1 for pedestrians 1 

It's a semi-rural green belt oasis with no infrastructure required for 

any housing 1 

Not having traffic calming or traffic free routes 1 

None of the above 3 

Not adding thousands of extra cars to an already saturated area 1 

Not having the routes in the first place 1 

A properly considered traffic planning scheme which correctly  

accounts for the increased traffic at M1 J37 and along the existing 

Higham Common Road and Cawthorne/Wilthorpe Road 1 

Cycle gates to be of the type that are not A frames, these are so 

narrow that some handlebars are too wide to get through. Similarly, 

mobility scooters & children’s buggies have the same issue 1 

The Plan only sends the future traffic from the development onto 

existing already heavy traffic areas 1 

No rat runs 1 

There are already problems of people riding bikes on pavements 1 

Control of on-street parking 1 

Speed limit controls 1 

Questions where pedestrian and cycle routes would go to and from 1 

Concerns about increased amounts of cars and HGVs 1 

Concerns about increased pollution 1 

Speed indicator boards on roads used as rat runs 1 

Page 215



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 14  

 

 

11. The Masterplan Framework will look at the impact of new development on 

the existing highway network. What measures could help to reduce the impact? 

(tick 3 options) 

Direct traffic away from residential areas 64% 

Promote and enable walking and cycling to the site 38% 

Promote bus use to and from the site 33% 

Make sure all facilities are acceptable to people with disabilities 

without the use of a car 25% 

Encourage train travel to and from Barnsley train station 14% 

Encourage car sharing 8% 

Make changing and shower facilities available for all employees and 

visitors to the site 5% 

Provide secure and high-visibility cycle parking facilities 4% 

Other 28% 

11. Other Responses No.  

None of these will work 1 

Don't build it / leave it as it is / don't build on greenbelt 14 

Will cause traffic problems in an already congested area 14 

Whatever is done it will still impact greatly on existing highway 

network. 2 

Create new rail station as it's not feasible to use Barnsley or 

Dodworth.  2 

Suggest park and ride facility and new bus routes 2 

Take measures to stop cars dropping children off directly at the 

school. In a safe new development if parents are going to insist in 

using their car then make them park it a mile away 1 

Acquire other land to build something similar to Cudworth parkway 1 

All the above 3 

Limit/reduce number of houses and type of employment / industrial 

space 3 

Ensure existing residents on Higham Common Road are not blighted 

by increased traffic 1 

How can Barnsley council sign up to a Climate Change policy and 

then create more cars and housing in urban Barnsley? Double 

standards 2 

Block off access to Church Street Gawber. Create new link roads 

before any building work starts. 1 

Improve existing junctions 1 

Masterplan will not encourage people to do things on mass, they 

won't car share, cycle, take the train 1 

None of these suggested measures will have a positive impact on the 

existing highway network 1 

None of the above 2 

Put weight restriction on the roads that you have already declined to 

do. Force HGVs to use main roads and install speed cameras 1 

None of the options will address the fundamental issues that 

although the areas covered by the masterplan may have adequate 

road space provided, the wider issues of congestion elsewhere 

(which already exists) and will be exacerbated by the proposals) 

have not been addressed 1 

As with all of this the above questions are written by someone who 1 

Page 216



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 15  

 

hasn't a clue about people’s habits. Directing traffic away from 

residential areas to where? In one part of the submission it’s 

plugging access to the M1 you cannot go down there on cycle or as a 

pedestrian, therefore that very point encourages vehicle use. Train 

use still requires another form of transport to reach a destination 

which costs and takes time. The impact on the existing highways is 

massive especially at peak times. Increasing the pollution that 

Barnsley Council wants to reduce before the government deadline 

date (source Barnsley Chronicle). I can hardly see how this 

development is going to advance that cause. In addition, when, as 

recently a section of the M1 was closed due to an accident there was 

gridlock for hours through Darton, Barugh Green, Higham and 

beyond. This is a tragedy of mammoth proportions, which will affect 

generations forever. 

Concerns that above measures are not feasible (e.g. people finish 

work at different times / public transport unreliable) 4 

Provide high quality local jobs (not logistics) reduce commuting to 

Leeds / Sheffield 1 

Reduce bus and train fares to encourage sustainable transport  1 

Proposed main line train service from Barnsley to Doncaster 1 

Support idea of a relief road 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 217



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 16  

 

12. What areas do you consider to be important in achieving sustainable 

development and reducing future impacts on climate change? (pick 3 options) 

Investment in green open spaces that can deliver a wide range of 

environmental and health benefits 52% 

Include landscaped areas that hold water during wet periods and 

encourage the recycling of rainwater 45% 

Sustainable design and construction techniques 36% 

Sustainably manage drainage across the site 32% 

Reduce energy use by incorporating energy efficiency measures in 

new homes and employment units 25% 

Include electric vehicle charging points 13% 

Promoting the delivery of renewable and low-carbon energy (solar 

panels, wind turbines) 13% 

Other 24% 

12. Other Responses No.  

None 2 

By not increasing the flood risk to existing properties, caused by 

developing land that doesn't need development 2 

Don't build it / against development 27 

All the above 8 

Any development is less sustainable than leaving the land alone 1 

No wind turbines 1 

None of the above 1 

Not building on green belt when there are brown field sites available 3 

Hmmm 1 

Is this question relevant? 1 

1,400 and up to 2,800 extra cars isn't going to have direct effect on 

not just climate change then air quality? Then you're even more 

deluded then even I think 1 

There are green open spaces now you cannot improve on what’s 

there already, with animals fauna & flora, air tight home have to be 

a health hazard, solar panels - residents I know who bought a new 

build property with solar panels have no intention of replacing them 

at the end of their life cycle. Who wants wind turbines near their 

homes, the noise alone is polluting and distressing? Areas to hold 

water, how? These fields are a massive soak away and still, after 

heavy rain the ditches alongside Barugh Green Road overflow. 1 

More green open spaces 1 

Concerns that rural village will be destroyed 1 

Concerns about increased traffic 1 

Concerns that proposal will worsen climate change 1 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 218



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 17  

 

13. How do you think the development could improve your health?  

(tick 3 options) 

Incorporate trees and greenspace to improve the environment 54%  

Incorporate design features to minimise air pollution 34% 

Provide a range of open space to encourage sport and exercise for 

people of different ages and abilities 30% 

Provide high-quality footpaths and cycle paths 23% 

Provide outdoor seating areas with adequate shade and shelter to 

encourage social interaction 13% 

Promote inclusive design principles to make sure all spaces and 

buildings are accessible to all members of the community 8% 

Deliver high-quality streets and spaces to encourage community 

use 7% 

Other 40% 

13. Other Responses  No.  

Do not build the development/development won't improve health 53 

Ensure industrial units are well away from existing housing 1 

Ensure industrial units are not used 24/7 1 

All the above 4 

Scale down development and leave more planting and green space 1 

Building houses and factories will cause more pollution 1 

Air pollution already affected by motorway on s. side of site. Will be  

exacerbated by employment traffic 1 

Traffic calming massively increases air pollution 1 

Remove the industrial area 1 

There are many access points into site currently. This should 

continue in new development 1 

Reduce the amount of heavy lorries which will accelerate and 

produce fumes when using new link road.  1 

None of the above 3 

Is this question a joke? 2 

No idea 1 

Whilst people say they want to live in a community they don't 

actually want to engage. This monstrous rape of the countryside will 

not create a community, what it will do is destroy the identity of the 

villages bordering the site,  as someone with significant heart 

disease the disruption, dust, exhaust fumes and the rest that comes 

with this development will do absolutely nothing to improve my 

health. 1 

This will be for the benefit of our children and grandchildren. Why 

not ask schools to ask the children 1 

Youths gather at these points creating an unsociable menacing 

atmosphere.  1 

Greater separation distances between houses 1 

Encourage wildlife 1 

 

 

 

 

Page 219



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 18  

 

14. What design features could help to create a safer neighbourhood? 

Well-lit walking and cycle routes 43% 

Well overlooked greenspaces 37% 

Landscaping to create clear separation between public and private 

spaces 34% 

Link lighting design and CCTV  33% 

Secure boundary fencing to the employment and residential units 26% 

One main entrance to community facilities to help monitor and 

manage access 13% 

Anti-graffiti coatings applied to walls that are in high risk areas 10% 

Secure cycle and bin storage 7% 

Other 26% 

14. Other Responses No. 

Longer jail sentences 1 

All the above 7 

Neighbourhood is currently safe 6 

Development will create less safe neighbourhood 3 

Don't built it/against development/leave as greenbelt 14 

Protect green belt and wildlife 1 

Some of these options make it feel like a closed off community  

would be created. How would it be integrated with existing 

community? 1 

Gun turrets 1 

More safer neighbourhood staffing and resources in existing areas 1 

No affordable housing 1 

None of the above 2 

More policing/community policing 5 

Housing price points to deter precariat social class citizens / inflate  

property costs 2 

None 1 

Apply all the above to the existing surrounding villages 1 

No rat runs 1 

Concerns about playing residential and employment uses next to 

each other 1 

Asks who is going to check and maintain sites 1 

CCTV 1 

Meetings to discuss crime in the area 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 220



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 19  

 

15. What key economic benefits of this development are important to you? (tick 

as many as are appropriate) 

Community facilities 32% 

New employment opportunities 25% 

New primary school 23% 

Economic investment to the area 21% 

Delivery of new homes 18% 

Other 50% 

15. Other Responses No. 

None 66 

Green use of the area 1 

Potential increase in wildlife value if project maximises potential 1 

Keeps taxes down 1 

Need more investment in existing facilities 1 

Attracting people from other non-Barnsley areas 1 

Zero interest in new homes we don't need 1 

Improved train connection to London 1 

Concerns that the development may decrease the value of 

surrounding properties 1 

Economic benefits? The housing will be providing cheaper commuter 

homes for people employed in Leeds and Sheffield. Warehousing and 

Units are unlikely to provide many NEW executive jobs. 1 

The area is already served by an excelled primary school. New 

school will only be for new residents. 1 

Loss of amenity value for the area 1 

Creation of a new road to lessen traffic through Higham 1 

None of the above 1 

No development on green belt / keep it as it is / against 

development 7 

Concerned about increase in traffic on already over-used roads 2 

Concerned about the pressure on Barnsley Hospital 2 

Health outcomes generated by creating healthier places 1 

Traffic reduction on Higham Common Road 1 

The days of continuous growth are over. Time to change course 1 

More affordable housing 1 

Asks whether the builders and labourers will be locals 1 

Don't build too much 1 

More services eg more shops and more regular buses 1 

Benefits will not affect existing residents 1 

Suggests new road to take traffic away from Higham Common Road 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 221



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 20  

 

16. Please write other comments you may have in relation to 

the draft Masterplan Framework 

No. of 

responses 

Principle of development 

Scale of development is too large 33 

Welcome proposal 1 

Against development/do not want development / no need for 

development 47 

Build on brownfield sites first 11 

There are vacant buildings throughout the borough already 5 

Design 

Concerns about small separation distances 11 

Would like to see more bungalows 7 

Consideration needs to be given to connecting the site with wider 

cycle/walking route networks 1 

Suggests garden space / allotments /orchard space to grow food 8 

Hopes homes are of good quality and well built 1 

Concerns about dated/boring design of new buildings 1 

Design looks disjointed 1 

Would like to see solar panels on houses 1 

Do not put houses near outer boundary for residents of Higham, 

Pogmoor, and Gawber 3 

Concerned about location of industrial units close to housing 4 

Houses look to be very densely packed 3 

Plan looks really exciting/ layout well thought out 2 

Plan is a joke 1 

Masterplan and questionnaire give very little information on what's 

really proposed 4 

Please consider disabled people/wheelchair users when you are 

constructing new green spaces and walkways. Make sure it is 

accessible for everyone. 1 

Asks if new fencing will be put up and what type it will be. 2 

Concerns about design of proposed development and link roads 5 

Concerns about location of proposed public house 1 

Concerns about height of proposed dwellings 8 

Lack of detail 9 

Asks what type of housing will be built 1 

Concerns about overlooking 6 

Concerns about design and location of employment sheds and/or 

design of housing 3 

Only the Council can decide what type, mix, tenure and quality of 

housing is required 1 

Would like to see properties specifically for the elderly or disabled 1 

Concerns that the development is not in accordance with the 

heritage and character of local villages 1 

Retirement bungalows should be built at the back of existing 

bungalows for privacy of present owners 2 

Page 222



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 21  

 

Concerns about lack of pavement on roads around development 1 

Environment 

Concerns about loss of green field/green belt land  59 

Lots of green spaces provided 1 

Concerns about loss of countryside views 6 

Concerns about damage to/loss of environment 9 

Concerns about Barnsley Council's environmental challenge of zero 

emissions / climate emergency 6 

Concerns about flooding /drainage/ that the site gets waterlogged 9 

Homes should have mandatory bird and bat boxes. Gardens should 

have areas for compost bins to be hedgehog friendly 1 

Would like to see more trees/woodland/meadows/wetlands 9 

Would like to see more green space within the development 8 

Concerns about towns becoming merged together / coalescence 16 

This will create an urbanisation of an already busy area / urban 

sprawl 7 

Existing and mature trees/hedges should be retained 2 

Asks if land will be levelled to prevent overlooking  1 

Would like a variety of types of corridors so different species can use 

them 2 

Concerns about impact on air quality 3 

Concerns about lack of land for/loss of wildlife/biodiversity 26 

Highways 

Concerns about existing pollution/traffic from nearby busy roads 30 

Consideration needs to be given to access to motorway and A628 2 

The roads should be built first 5 

Would like to see benefits to Higham village from the construction of 

a new road 1 

Higham Common Road is unfit for use by pedestrians and cyclists 1 

The link road will improve quality of life 2 

Entrance into Claycliffe Avenue needs widening 3 

Pedestrian crossing is needed across Barugh Green Road near Aldi 1 

Concerns about bus-turning facility on Higham Common Road 1 

Concerns about suitability of roads for HGVs/increase in HGVs 4 

Southern roundabout is too close to existing houses on Higham 

Common Road 1 

Concerns about lack of infrastructure 11 

Hermit Lane should be left open 1 

Suggests carbon free initiatives such as car free zones/park and 

pedal & park and ride 4 

Concerns that plan will be altered to allow vehicle access directly to 

Claycliffe Avenue. Junction is a hazard. 1 

Suggests pedestrian crossing on Barugh Green Road near Aldi 1 

Suggests not to have a pedestrian crossing on Barugh Green Road 

near chestnut tree 1 

Suggests new zebra crossings to Barugh Green Road and Claycliffe 1 

Page 223



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 22  

 

Road 

Suggests traffic calming 2 

Concerns about increase in traffic/pollution 52 

Services 

Concerns about lack of services e.g. public transport, GPs, schools 

and shops 28 

A secondary school might be appropriate 1 

Concerned about the location/type/construction of the proposed 

school 3 

During Local Plan hearings the developers outlined their vision of 

hotels, shops and other development along link road. What level of 

commercial development is proposed along this road? 1 

Public transport should be prioritised 1 

Other 

Suggests installation of reliable cycle counters  1 

Concerns about over-reliance on EV 1 

Would prefer the houses to be expensive/area is nice and should be 

kept that way 1 

Concerns about large lorries coming through the site during 

construction should  

be controlled and/or checked 5 

Concerns about access to Gawber Primary School and associated 

parking problems 1 

Suggests inclusion of community buildings for arts/sports 1 

Concerns about loss of value of property 8 

Stop this development now 2 

Concerns about lack of affordable / social housing 4 

Concerns about noise and dust during construction 5 

Council do not listen or respect local residents view so it will go 

ahead 1 

Listen to feedback from the local community 2 

Accessibility to complete the paper version of the questionnaire is 

obstructive - no paper copies available at the library  1 

Only two consultation events, both held during working hours is not 

good enough Real lack of effort to consult with residents 1 

Concerns about increase in crime 3 

Concerns that development will reduce quality of life 4 

Concerns that numerous communities will be decimated 1 

Concerns about impact on health/well-being. 16 

Put your current residents first, then consider the development 6 

The land behind Wharfedale is unsuitable for building so my 

understanding is to get around this the new houses get a nice big 

garden, how about offering neighbouring properties that land as a 

gesture of good will 1 

Benefits only developers 3 

Concerns that there is no strategy for the types of business to be 

attracted 2 

Concerns that the proposal will not create many jobs 7 

Encourages talking to other stakeholders working in Barnsley 1 

Page 224



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 23  

 

If you're doing it, do it right 1 

Feel it is badly planned 1 

Vital that the development is not a new community but adds to the 

surrounding communities 1 

Suggests another local meeting / more community consultation 3 

Unhappy with existing consultation events 1 

Concerns about limitations of questionnaire 8 

Developments dis-benefits outweighs benefits 3 

Please look at the developments in Leeds and Sheffield on 

www.citu.co.uk 1 

This consultation is a meaningless exercise 6 

Development should not be called Barnsley West. The naming of any 

district should not be the purview of the developers 1 

Concerns about threat of gas 1 

Questions are repetitive and already included in the Local Plan 1 

Asks what the proposed timescales are for planning applications, 

construction etc. 1 

Asks what the Council will be doing to help safeguard the interests of 

present residents 1 

Little or no reference to minimise the problems to existing residents 

who border the site 1 

Unnecessary building of industrial units will have a detrimental effect 

on the local community 1 

 

Page 225



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 24  

 

6. NON-QUESTIONNAIRE RESPONSES 

 

Barnsley Council Officers  

6.1 Comments have been received from relevant officers and departments at 

Barnsley Council including the following:  

• Planning Policy  

• Development Management 

• Tree Officer 

• Environmental Health  

• Health and Well-being  

• Urban Design  

• Housing and Energy 

 

The Coal Authority – 24th October 2019 

6.2 The Coal Authority are pleased to see that the site’s coal-mining legacy is 

included in the historical overview.  We also welcome identification on the 

constraints plan of the locations of the surface mining highwalls.  The 

development layout should seek to avoid building over these features and avoid 

the established location of any mine entries, and their zones of influence, which 

are present on the site.   

6.3 Any formal planning application submitted for the site will need to be supported 

by a Coal Mining Risk Assessment, or equivalent report, which should be informed 

by intrusive site investigations where necessary.  We would be pleased to 

comment on this submission in due course.      

 

National Trans Pennine Trail – 21st October 2019 

6.4 The Framework provides a unique opportunity for Barnsley Council to showcase 

its commitment to sustainable transport and safe, accessible routes, whilst 

reducing carbon emissions as part of the Framework and future development 

opportunities. 

Page 226



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 25  

 

6.5 The Masterplan vision seeks to create a sustainable and inclusive community with 

high-quality design and landscaping. Sadly, this vision is not continued 

throughout the Masterplan Framework as very often sustainable transport users 

are referred to as pedestrians only. 

6.6 All facilities should automatically be fully accessible to everyone, regardless of 

their ability and this should never be an option for people to prioritise over - it 

should be embedded throughout the Masterplan Framework. 

6.7 All references to sustainable transport links should include pedestrians and 

cyclists and, wherever possible, bridleway links should be investigated. 

Bridleways provide routes for walkers, cyclists and horse riders and therefore 

encompass all users automatically without discrimination. 

6.8 As future developments will include residential accommodation, all sustainable 

transport routes should be accessible for all, without any steps, stiles or 

footbridges. Safe road crossings should be provided, including Toucan crossings 

where appropriate – or Pegasus crossings in terms of bridleways. Cycle parking 

should also include facilities for adapted cycles. 

6.9 Clear simple signage is paramount for sustainable transport users within this new 

region to ensure users are confident that they can use the routes safely.  

6.10 Images within the Masterplan Framework should be changed to reflect a true 

representation of the intended community users (families with pushchairs, people 

using wheelchairs or cyclists). 

6.11 Links to the existing Trans Pennine Trail network within Barnsley would be 

welcomed as part of further gains from forthcoming developments and upgrading 

to existing Barnsley sections of the TPT as well as the wider sustainable transport 

offer. 

6.12 Lack of demonstration for safe routes to the proposed primary school and existing 

secondary school sites.  

6.13 In its current format the Trans Pennine Trail partnership cannot support this 

Masterplan Framework due to the lack of support for sustainable travel and 

accessibility, but it is noted that simple changes to wording can provide the 

reassurance needed and look forward to receiving an updated version. 

 

Page 227



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 26  

 

British Horse Society (included within the National Trans Pennine Trail 

response) 

6.14 Too little consideration is given to sustainability – here is an opportunity to put 

down the ground rules for developers and it must be made clear what those rules 

are in this respect. 

6.15 This Masterplan Framework provides an opportunity to link into the existing 

network of bridleways.  

6.16 Green Corridors through developments, linking to other off-road routes, are 

preferable to the currently standard option of simply tarmacking over existing 

footpaths and bridleways as part of the road development through a new estate 

or other development project.  

6.17 A robust framework needs to be put in place in order to ensure that the ‘green’ 

off-road routes and the public rights over them are replaced, if necessary, with 

something of a similar standard of amenity. 

 

Yorkshire Wildlife Trust – 24th October 2019 

6.18 We are encouraged to see that ecological surveys have been considered and 

conducted at an early stage. However, we would advise that, as a large area of 

greenspace surrounded by urbanisation, these results are not undervalued and 

are utilised to aid the design of the framework. 

6.19 The consideration of any loss or impact of the masterplan framework on trees, 

hedgerows and identified habitats, should not be underestimated. The site should 

be considered as a whole, rather than a piecemeal approach for individual 

planning applications will ensure appropriate and affordable mitigation and 

compensation can be incorporated at an early stage of development. We view this 

to be of importance due to the historical presence of woodland across the site. 

6.20 We would expect, in accordance with industry standard and good practice, that 

surveys are kept up to date (within 2 years of development).  

6.21 Encouraged to see retention of footpaths and integration into the Masterplan 

Framework. Encouraged to see retention of green corridors which should be 

enhanced and integrate into existing landscaping.  

Page 228



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 27  

 

6.22 We appreciate the consideration of ‘ecology corridors’ and would like to ensure 

these are protected from disturbance by members of the public and retained as 

dark corridors in accordance with BCT guidance. 

6.23 We are encouraged by the proposed ‘Healthscape’ approach and would be glad to 

see integration of ecological features into SUDs and attenuation design and POS 

to provide multifunctional spaces.  

6.24 We would advise that gardens do not back onto green space wherever possible to 

avoid fly tipping of garden waste and to preserve the quality of these areas. We 

would encourage sensitive lighting design of the entire scheme to protect species 

such as bats and owls; and to minimise light pollution of the local area. We would 

also be encouraged to see the development aim to achieve best practice through 

meeting low carbon standards as set out in Barnsley Zero 40 document proposed 

to be adopted. Consideration of passive houses, rain gardens and green/living 

walls, roofs and streetlights would aid the lowering of emissions during operation 

of the development. The benefits of such features for those living and working in 

such environments is well documented. Integration of other features such as bat 

and bird boxes, owl boxes, hedgehog homes/passes, and hibernacula should also 

be included in appropriate locations.   

6.25 Consideration of sustainable and low carbon construction methods must also be 

considered for the development on site.  

6.26 The Dearne Valley was designated as one of only 12 national Nature 

Improvement areas in 2012 and is cited in the Barnsley Local Plan. The MU1 area 

is outwith the 2012 Nature Improvement area boundary the best practice 

principles of “net Gain” should apply to this new flagship development.  

6.27 Detailed comments from the Dearne Valley Living Landscape Manager have been 

provided to the masterplan framework and need to be considered.  

 

Historic England – 8th October 2019 

6.28 Do not wish to offer any comments to this consultation. 

 

 

Page 229



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 28  

 

National Grid – 24th October 2019 

6.29 Confirmed there are no records of National Grid’s electricity and gas transmission 

apparatus within the Masterplan Framework area. 

 

Keep it Green – 23rd October 2019 

6.30 Keep it Green is a local campaign group formed to oppose the proposals for site 

MU1 contained in the Barnsley Local Plan (BLP). 

6.31 Whilst the Group maintain their concerns with the allocation of the site for 

development, it is acknowledged that the focus should now turn to ensuring the 

development envisaged is implemented in a manner that causes least possible 

damage to the area itself and to the living conditions of the many residents who 

live on its fringes. In other words, the development ought to make the best – 

indeed, the very best – of a very bad job.  

6.32 Concerns raised on the questionnaire and questions posed. Use of technical 

jargon.  

6.33 A summary of the main points raised include: 

• Large scale employment units over scaled in proximity to neighbouring 

residents, views into the site from its prominent location. Concerns on 

impact to residents once the employment units are in operation.  

• Concerns that high quality residential development will not be achieved. 

Planning policy needs to be considered when designing the housing 

schemes at the planning application stage.  

• The masterplan framework needs to consider existing properties which 

border the site, particularly in respect of the relationship with existing 

bungalows. Green buffer zones should be provided to safeguard and 

protect living conditions and amenities of the occupiers of the existing 

dwellings on the edges of the site. Development should not have an 

overbearing effect on the outlook of the existing dwellings. Distance 

between dwellings guidance in planning policy should be adhered to as a 

minimum.  

Page 230



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 29  

 

• Concerns around large loss of existing vegetation – at odds with the Green 

Infrastructure concept within the Masterplan Framework. Lack of 

information on management of green infrastructure. Scope for the creation 

of features such as wildflower meadows, possibly associated with the 

SUDS facilities should be considered.  

• Public rights of way and connections to green spaces should be 

incorporated into the scheme, it is recognised that this has been 

considered in the draft masterplan in some ways.  

• Concerns with location of link road in close proximity to proposed school. 

Concerns on how the proposed development will connect into the existing 

road network and neighbouring residents’ streets. Lack of pedestrian 

footpaths on some existing streets.    

• Concerns around extended period of time the site will be developed and 

how the construction phase will be managed to protect the existing 

residents’ amenity, terms of noise, air, traffic disturbance.  

• Phasing needs to be set out in the masterplan framework to ensure 

infrastructure is delivered in accordance with local policy and before the 

site is fully developed.   

 

Countryside Properties – 21st October 2019 

6.34 Confirming interest on land within the Masterplan Framework area and confirming 

their site can be delivered as a separate phase.  

Page 231



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 30  

 

7. Summary of Focussed Briefing Sessions  

7.1 Barnsley Council officers provided a number of specific briefings for key interest 

groups.  A summary of discussions is provided below: 

• Keep It Green. Two briefings were provided to representatives of Keep It 

Green during the consultation period. Members of KIG reiterated 

disappointment of the site’s allocation for development in the Local Plan 

and consider the number of houses and amount of employment land to be 

inappropriate.  The group have significant concerns relating to: loss of 

greenspace, highways impact/capacity, environmental impact, ecological 

impact, scale of employment units, outlook for existing residents, noise 

and air quality impact both during construction and once development 

completed and the scale and type of housing proposed.  The group also 

raised concerns around how the consultation has been managed and 

consider the level of detail offered inadequate to offer assurances to the 

existing community. 

• Redbrook TARA. Representatives of the TARA were provided with a round 

table discussion following the public exhibitions.  This provided the 

opportunity to seek clarification/raise concerns in relation to the housing 

estate on the north east side of the site.  Drainage featured heavily in the 

discussion due to resident’s experience of surface water flooding affecting 

their properties.  The properties currently utilise underground pumps to 

assist in dealing with the flooding issue, but issues persist following heavy 

rainfall.  Concerns were raised around the impact that more development 

could have on this issue.  In addition, the access/egress from the estate 

was raised as a significant area of concern and the potential impact that 

new development would have in worsening the situation.  Residents also 

raised concern around pedestrian safety and a lack of safe crossing points. 

• Darton Ward Alliance (please note that briefings were offered to all three 

ward alliances). A presentation was provided outlining the process 

undertaken prior to the public consultation exercise and briefing on the 

methods of consultation proposed.  Members of the ward alliance sought 

clarification on a number of key issues including capacity of the highway’s 

infrastructure, schools and what housing mix was likely including the 

proportion of affordable housing proposed on the scheme. 

Page 232



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 31  

 

• Ward member briefing. A ward member briefing was provided by council 

officers in advance of the consultation, in order to brief elected members 

on the forthcoming consultation including method and format of 

consultation material.  This was also to ensure that elected members were 

able to offer assistance to members of the public that attend members' 

surgeries with any questions relating to the consultation. 

• Landowners were offered briefings prior to the consultation in order to 

notify of the masterplan process and seek understanding of any intentions 

for their landholdings.  The majority of landowners were residents within 

the site boundary, owning title deeds to single residential properties and 

therefore interest from the perspective of protecting the outlook of their 

property.  The concerns raised primarily related to the amount and type of 

buffers provided between existing residents and proposed development 

with a key concern being the scale, type and use of the proposed 

employment units.  There were also significant concerns raised around the 

impact that construction would have in terms of noise and air quality and 

the impact that the completed development would have on their outlook 

and residential amenity. 

 

 

 

 

Page 233



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 32  

 

8. CONSULTATION ASSESSMENT  

8.1 The following section of the report identifies the common themes received 

throughout the six-week consultation period consultation and explains how they 

have been considered in the evolution of the Masterplan Framework. 

8.2 Wherever possible comments and suggestions have fed into the final Masterplan 

Framework. It is important to note that some community concerns will not always 

be overcome through the consultation exercise and that sometimes people have 

contradictory views to each other. 

8.3 All consultation responses have been shared with Barnsley Council. Copies of 

responses can be provided upon written request to Barnsley Council.  

8.4 The consultation process was widely publicised to ensure all communities and 

interested parties were notified of the consultation exercise. Multiple methods of 

publications were undertaken to ensure different parts of the community were 

targeted on across various media levels. The two exhibition events were well 

attended and generated in excess of 200 responses to the consultations.  

Themes Masterplan Framework Response 

Principle of 

Development 

A large proportion of responses raised concerns that the site should 

not be developed, despite some being aware of the site’s allocation 

within the Local Plan. The preparation of the Masterplan Framework 

does not provide an opportunity to re-open discussions around the 

principle of the development and this should not be a determining 

factor during the preparation of the Masterplan Framework.  

 

The concerns around the proposed quantum of development has been 

raised as over-development. Similarly, the site is allocated within the 

adopted Barnsley Local Plan for the development of 1,700 homes and 

43 hectares of employment space and was agreed at the local plan 

preparation stage.  

 

Barnsley Council recognise the scale of the proposed development and 

as such, Local Plan policy MU1 requires the preparation of the 

Framework Masterplan to ensure that policy objectives are met and 

the site can be developed in a comprehensive manner.   

 

The Masterplan Framework therefore provides a clear guide to 

demonstrate how the site can be developed to meet the homes and 

employment space, whilst protecting the amenity of existing residents 

throughout the development of the site.  

    
Green 

Infrastructure 

The themes emerging from the consultation are the loss of existing 

green infrastructure across the site and how the masterplan 

framework will seek to minimise disruption and protect existing 

features on site with particular reference to existing hedgerows, trees 

and planting, biodiversity network and habitats, existing public rights 

Page 234



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 33  

 

Themes Masterplan Framework Response 

of ways and connections and landscape setting. 

 

A series of landscape and ecological technical assessments have been 

undertaken which provides an understanding of the existing features 

on site and how they should be afforded consideration in the 

masterplan framework.  

 

The consideration of existing biodiversity is a key baseline 

consideration in the preparation of this masterplan framework. The 

masterplan framework proposes the retention of large areas of 

existing green infrastructure throughout the site in addition to the 

biodiversity enhancements. 

 

The masterplan framework sets out areas of consideration for the 

impact of the development on vegetation, biodiversity habitats and 

sets out the requirement for the suitable mitigation to be provided at 

the planning application stage. There is also a requirement for 

ecological and landscape management plans to be prepared to ensure 

the long term protection of identified wildlife and vegetation on site is 

maintained and enhanced where proposed.  

 

The site is currently privately-owned with limited accessibility for the 

general public by existing public rights of ways. The Masterplan 

Framework sets out the council’s requirement to retain all public rights 

of ways across the site, and the routes should be enhanced as part of 

future development proposals and this will include the consideration of 

bridleways, which provide routes for walkers, cyclists and horse riders 

and therefore encompass all users. The Masterplan Framework has 

been updated to require developers to actively engage with the 

council in respect of public rights of way on site. 

 

The masterplan framework sets out the importance for green 

infrastructure to provide safe routes for the community to navigate 

through the site and setting out key ecological areas which require 

restrictions on access in order to protect sensitive wildlife.  

 

The masterplan framework makes clear that further work will be 

required at the planning application stage through the preparation of a 

detailed landscape and visual impact assessment, to determine how 

proposed development on site will sufficiently complement the 

surrounding landscape and minimise the impact on neighbouring 

areas. Whilst, the green infrastructure strategy provides a clear view 

of how the site will be maintained and the identified landscape 

features on site, the landscape visual impact assessment will clearly 

set out where strategic landscaping is required to reduce impacts on 

the neighbouring communities.  

Future management and maintenance of the green infrastructure will 

be agreed at the planning application stage and opportunities will be 

available for private and community organisations to take a lead role 

in managing green spaces, such as the Land Trust.   

Highways and 

Movement 

Concerns have been raised by the amount of car parking and 

additional traffic the site will generate. Forthcoming planning 

applications will present the traffic modelling data which demonstrate 

Page 235



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 34  

 

Themes Masterplan Framework Response 

whether the existing highway network has capacity to safely 

accommodate additional numbers. If the modelling indicates the 

requirement for highways improvement works, these will come 

forward with future planning applications and trigger points will be 

agreed to ensure the infrastructure is delivered prior to completion of 

development.  

 

The masterplan framework recognises that public transport will play 

an essential role in reducing congestion in the Barnsley borough and 

benefits public health by encouraging walking and cycling as part of 

door-to-door journeys. On this basis, the Masterplan Framework 

requires the planning applications to be supported by a Framework 

Travel Plan. Implementation of the Travel Plan will encourage trips to 

the site to be made by sustainable (non-car) modes of transport, 

where appropriate, and help to mitigate the impact of increased 

traffic. 

 

The existing public transport accessibility of the site is unlikely to 

adequately support the development of Barnsley West and, as such 

the masterplan framework sets out the requirement for a programme 

of bus service enhancements which will be required to address 

frequency, convenience and attractiveness, and supported where 

necessary by the new highway infrastructure.  

There is an opportunity to provide high-quality frequent and direct 

public transport connections to Barnsley town centre, and the other 

main urban areas which would benefit both existing and proposed 

users.  

 

The Masterplan Framework will require planning applications to set out 

how the site has been designed to provide sustainable forms of 

transport to ensure accessibility is achieved for all.  

 

The location of the link road has been designed following a detailed 

understanding of the site’s topography and the technical requirements 

for such new road infrastructure. The new infrastructure is also 

required to connect into the existing road network. These contributing 

factors have led to the location and general alignment of the point of 

connections to the existing network and the proposed link road within 

the site. Planning applications will assess any potential harm to 

existing residents from the new highways infrastructure and 

development. The Masterplan Framework clearly sets the requirement 

for mitigation to be provided where identified and to protect amenity 

levels for existing residents.  

 

Planning applications will be required to investigate and propose 

suitable mitigation on the impact of any proposing highway and 

pedestrian connections into existing neighbouring areas around the 

whole perimeter of the site.  

  
Scale & Design We recognise the concerns raised around the relationship between the 

proposed and existing residential relationships will be considered 

during future planning applications. The Masterplan Framework will 

indicate that all boundaries around the site with existing development 

is a sensitive edge and the design code ensures the parameters set 

Page 236



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 35  

 

Themes Masterplan Framework Response 

will protect existing and proposed residential amenity levels. 

Parameters such as distance between dwellings will be reflective of 

existing local planning policy and will ensure that future planning 

applications address the sensitive boundaries and utilise the 

parameters within the design code to prevent potential harm to the 

existing residents as well as the proposed residents. 

 

The relationship between the existing residential properties and 

proposed employment phase is also set out within the masterplan 

framework. Parameters will be set to ensure the design of the urban 

design principles are considered and the transition between the two 

seeks to protect residential amenity. The distance between proposed 

employment units and existing residential areas is far in excess of 40 

metres and green infrastructure within the masterplan framework will 

guide the requirement to provide robust and functional landscaping to 

provide green buffers between the two uses. 

  
Pollution 

Control 

Comments raised recognised that the site will be delivered over 15 

years and concerns have been raised as to how residential amenity 

will be protected during the construction phase. The masterplan 

framework sets out the requirement for the best and safe practise 

construction methods to be used and prevent harm to existing 

residents in terms of the control of noise, dust and traffic. The 

masterplan framework will set out the need for future planning 

applications to be supported by construction management plans to 

ensure best practices are followed.   

 

Noise and Air modelling has been undertaken and any mitigation 

required will be supported through a planning application. 

  

Community 

Facilities 

The masterplan framework sets out the requirement for delivery of 

key community facilities and in some cases their phasing within the 

development programme to ensure the site is developed in its entirety 

before identified communities are delivered. This relates to the 

primary school, community facilities (such a health centre). 

 

During the preparation of the Local Plan, the Clinical Commissioning 

Group engaged with Barnsley Council to provide an overview of 

current and future service provision. The Infrastructure Delivery Plan 

concluded that given the recent investment in health provision in the 

borough it is unlikely that major new facilities will be required, with 

workforce being the capacity issue rather than premises. Further 

consultation will be carried out when planning applications are being 

determined. The CCG can then assist GP practices to plan and respond 

to growth, this may include workforce recruitment and/or upskilling 

the existing workforce. 

 

The local plan policy also includes the requirement for small scale 

convenience retail and community facilities as set out within the site’s 

policy allocation to cater for residents of the site as well as the 

existing wider area. Any development to meet this need should also 

provide other facilities that might be expected for the scale of 

development to ensure that the needs of the community are met. 

Such uses may include small scale convenience retail, a health centre 

Page 237



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 36  

 

Themes Masterplan Framework Response 

and a community centre.  

 

Flood Risk and 

Drainage  

Concerns have been raised around localised flooding. The masterplan 

framework requires the integration of sustainable urban drainage 

systems where possible on the site. The intention is to capture all of 

the surface water using large detention basins, ensuring that they 

maximise the benefit of holding stormwater. The drainage systems 

will ensure the risk of on-site surface water flooding beyond the site 

boundaries is prevented. 

 

Planning applications will be required to assess any flood risk potential 

from the development of the site on both the site and neighbouring 

areas beyond the site boundary. Suitable drainage strategies will be 

required to demonstrate how drainage will operate, be managed and 

maintained throughout the development.  

 

Masterplan 

Framework 

The illustrative masterplan framework has been reduced in detail to a 

concept plan setting out the high level parameters for land uses on 

the site. The detailed plot layouts are not a consideration for this 

masterplan framework.  

 

Site Notices The council have been informed that the end date for the MU1 

(Barnsley West) masterplanning consultation was incorrect on notices 

issued around the development site. The council have reviewed all 

material and can confirm this is an unfortunate error which is limited 

to the site notices only. 

 

The notices were just one form of publicity used to communicate the 

consultation. Promotion included a letter posted to over 2,400 

residents living within 250 metres of the development site, media 

releases which were published in local and regional press, a public 

notice printed in the Barnsley Chronicle and display boards in the 

Library @ the Lightbox. Alongside these traditional methods of 

communication, the council carried out a variety of digital promotion 

on our website and our social media platforms. 

 

Two public consultation events were well attended. The events 

provided the opportunity for residents to view and understand 

proposals, collect a copy of the questionnaire and gain an 

understanding of the consultation process.  

 

There are no specific regulations around consultation on Masterplan 

Frameworks and while consultation is encouraged, it is not mandatory. 

 

For all of the masterplanning sites allocated for development within 

Barnsley's Local Plan, which was adopted earlier this year, we have 

decided to follow the arrangements made for the Supplementary 

Planning Documents, with additional elements to reach as many 

people as possible.  

 

Page 238



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

December 2019 | KM | P18-1848.001E Page | 37  

 

9. CONCLUSION  

9.1 The comments and feedback received during the consultation have been reviewed 

by Barnsley Council, Strata Homes and Sterling Capitol Plc team. This 

Consultation Statement seeks to provide a summary of all responses received and 

how the Masterplan Framework has positively accommodated the comments 

raised. Where possible and feasible, changes have been made to the scheme 

design to address comments and suggestions provided. 

9.2 This Statement has set out the extent of publicity undertaken in advance of the 

consultation process and results following the six-week consultation. The 

Statement demonstrates that Barnsley Council, Strata Homes and Sterling Capitol 

Plc team have listened to all responses and sought to positively make changes to 

the Masterplan Framework where possible and provided clarification where 

required.  

9.3 There are clearly a wide range of concerns that have been raised during the 

consultation process. However they are not considered to be so unsurmountable 

that they would affect the delivery of the development.  

 

Page 239



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

 

 
Appendix A – Leaflet Distribution Area 

Page 240



© Geoplan Spatial Intelligence Limited 2018. All rights reserved. All brands and Trademarks are fully recognised as the property of their respective owners. For full copyright details please refer to www.geoplan.com

Created on 03 September 2019 15:59:41

Barnsley West - Route 2 (S70 6)

Height: 1.95 miles Delivery Count: 3313

Delivery Details
Residential delivery count 3134
Business delivery count 179
Total cost £0.00

Accommodation Type %
Detached 42.49%
Semi-detached 36.11%
Terraced  (including end-terrace) 16.14%
Purpose-Built Flats in a Residential Building 4.3%
Converted Flat 0.41%
Purpose-Built Flats in a Commercial Building 0.55%
Others 0%
Total 100%

Tenure %
Owned: Owned outright 45.68%
Owned: Owned with a mortgage or loan 36.85%
Owner occupied - Shared ownership 0.31%
Rented from - Council (local authority) 5.74%
Rented from - Housing Association /
Registered Social Landlord 0.68%

Rented from - Private landlord or letting
agency 8.92%

Rented from – Other 1.81%
Total 100%

Page 1 of 1

P
age 241



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

 

Appendix B – Barnsley West leaflet 

Page 242



www.barnsleywest.co.uk
Have your say at

 WEST
BARNSLEY

Draft Masterplan Framework Consultation
Land south of of Barugh Green Road (MU1)

Page 243



Land south of Barugh Green Road – MU1
Public Consultation: Draft Barnsley West Masterplan Framework

Developers Strata Homes and Sterling Capitol PLC 
are working in collaboration with Barnsley Council 
to prepare the Barnsley West Masterplan 
Framework document for land south of Barugh 
Green Road, Barnsley (MU1). The Barnsley West 
Masterplan Framework area is located 2km west 
of Barnsley town centre, on land between the 
communities of Gawber, Higham, Pogmoor, 
Redbrook and Barugh Green and immediately 
north-east of Junction 37 of the M1 motorway. 
The Masterplan Framework area contains open 
fields, which were previously an 
open-cast mine and later refilled.

The site is allocated for development within the 
Barnsley Local Plan, adopted in January 2019 
under Local Plan reference MU1. 
The plan proposes a mixed-use development to provide around 1,700 new homes and 43 hectares of employment land.  
The plan also includes:

- A new primary school
- Small shops and community facilities
- Brand-new infrastructure, including an access link road
- Open green space with wildlife corridors, watercourses and key pedestrian and cycle paths

As part of the Masterplan Framework residents and stakeholders need to be provided with the opportunity to feedback on the 
draft plans and main themes. The feedback will be reviewed and fed into the final Masterplan Framework. The final Masterplan 
Framework will need to be approved by Cabinet before determining any planning applications for the development of the site.

How to get involved
 
We would like to know what you think about the draft Masterplan Framework so that we can consider your views in preparing 
the final document. We would encourage you to come along to our consultation events to discuss the proposals in more detail 
with the Developers’ Team and Barnsley Council. The details of the draft Masterplan Framework are provided on consultation 
boards, which can be viewed: 

- Online: www.barnsleywest.co.uk 
- At the Library @ the Lightbox, Barnsley town centre
- At one of the public consultation events below:

Monday 23 September 2019 /  Barugh Green Club, Higham Common Road, Higham, S75 1LD     3pm - 7pm
Thursday 10 October 2019  /   St Thomas Community Centre, Church St, Barnsley, S75 2RL      3pm - 7pm 

Comments on the draft Masterplan Framework can be made by:
- Completing our questionnaire online: www.barnsleywest.co.uk
- Downloading the questionnaire online or requesting a paper copy of the questionnaire at the consultation  
  events or at the Library @ the Lightbox.

 Completed questionnaires can be returned to Pegasus Group: 
- At the consultation events 
- By email: BarnsleyWestMF@pegasusgroup.co.uk
- By post: Barnsley West Masterplan Framework Consultation, Pegasus Group, Pavilion Court, Green Lane, Garforth, Leeds, LS25 2AF

Pegasus Group will be collating the responses on behalf of Barnsley Council and the Developers.If you require assistance filling 
in the questionnaire or have language and/or disability access needs, please contact Barnsley Council on 01226 772604 or 
email masterplanning@barnsley.gov.uk.
Please make sure your comments reach us by 5pm on Thursday 24 October 2019.

The information you provide will only be used for the purposes of this consultation exercise. 
The data submitted will be held securely by Pegasus Group in accordance with General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR) and the Data Protection Act 2018. 
The Developers and Barnsley Council look forward to hearing your views.Page 244



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

 

Appendix C – Barnsley chronicle extract 

Page 245



BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

SPECIAL NOTICE
BARNSLEY WEST (MU1) 

MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK CONSULTATION

Following the adoption of the Local Plan on 3 January 2019, Barnsley 
council are working in collaboration with developers Strata and Sterling 
Capitol and their representatives to prepare a draft Masterplan Framework 
for site MU1, Land to the South of Barugh Green Road.

Details of the draft Masterplan Framework will be available to view (subject 
to Cabinet approval) from Thursday 12 September 2019: 
• Online at www.barnsleywest.co.uk
• At the Library @ The Lightbox in Barnsley Town Centre
• At one of the public exhibition events:
   • 3pm to 7pm on Monday, 23 September 2019 at Barugh Green Private
      Members Club, Higham Common Road, Higham, S75 1LD 
   • 3pm to 7pm on Thursday 10 October 2019 at St Thomas Community 
      Centre, Church Street, Gawber, S75 2RL

This public consultation seeks the community’s views on the draft 
Masterplan Framework. We would prefer to receive your comments via 
our online questionnaire which is available at www.barnsleywest.co.uk.  
Where this is not possible you can submit your comments by any of the 
following methods:
• Download and email to BarnsleyWestMF@pegasusgroup.co.uk
• Download and post to: Barnsley West Masterplan Framework
   Consultation, Pegasus Group, Pavillion Court, Green Lane, Garforth,
   Leeds, LS25 2AF.
• Hard copies will be available at Library @ The Lightbox in Barnsley Town
   Centre

Please use one method of reply only to avoid duplication of 
representations.

Your views are welcomed and will be considered in preparing the final draft 
of the Barnsley West (MU1) Masterplan Framework for adoption.

If you require assistance filling in the questionnaire or have language and/
or disability access needs please contact Barnsley council on 01226 
772604 or email masterplanning@barnsley.gov.uk.

The consultation period runs from Thursday 12 September 2019 to 
Thursday 24 October 2019.  Please make sure your comments reach 
us by 5pm.

Joe Jenkinson
Head of Planning & Building Control
PO Box 634
Barnsley 
S70 9FE

Page 246



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

 

Appendix D – Site notice 

Page 247



 Draft Barnsley West (MU1) Masterplan 
Framework Public Consultation 

  
 
 
 
 
 
Following the adoption of the Local Plan on 3 January 2019, Barnsley Council are working in collaboration with 
developers Strata and Sterling Capitol and their representatives to prepare a draft Masterplan Framework for 
site MU1, land to the south of Barugh Green Road which includes 1700 new homes, 43 hectares of employment land, 
a new primary school and supporting infrastructure. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Details of the draft Masterplan Framework will be available to view  from Thursday 12 September 2019:  
 

• Online at www.barnsleywest.co.uk 

• At the Library @ The Lightbox in Barnsley town centre 

• At one of the public exhibition events: 

o Monday, 23 September 2019, 3pm to 7pm at Barugh Green Private Members Club, Higham 

Common Road, Higham, S75 1LD  

o Thursday 10 October 2019, 3pm to 7pm at St Thomas Community Centre, Church Street, 

Gawber, S75 2RL  

How to engage: 

• Download and email the questionnaire to BarnsleyWestMF@pegasusgroup.co.uk 

• Download and post the questionnaire to: Barnsley West Masterplan Framework Consultation, 

Pegasus Group, Pavillion Court, Green Lane, Garforth, Leeds, LS25 2AF 

• Hard copies of the questionnaire will be available at the Library @ the Lightbox in Barnsley town 

centre 

If you require assistance filling in the questionnaire or have language and/or disability access needs, please 
contact Barnsley Council on 01226 772604 or email masterplanning@barnsley.gov.uk. 
 
The information you provide will only be used for the purposes of this consultation. Your views are welcomed 
and will be considered in preparing the final draft of the Masterplan Framework for adoption by Full Council. The 
data submitted will be held securely in accordance with General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).  
 

The deadline for receiving comments is 5pm, Thursday 24 September 2019 

Page 248

http://www.barnsleywest.co.uk/
http://www.barnsleywest.co.uk/
mailto:BarnsleyWestMF@pegasusgroup.co.uk
mailto:BarnsleyWestMF@pegasusgroup.co.uk
mailto:alisondalton@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:alisondalton@barnsley.gov.uk


Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

 

Appendix E – Location of displayed site notices 

Page 249



Page 250



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

Appendix F – Frequently asked questions 

Page 251



Frequently Asked Questions – Barnsley West (MU1) Masterplan Framework 

1. What is a Masterplan Framework? 

The council’s Local Plan was adopted on 3 January 2019. When the Local Plan was being 

examined it was agreed that for some of the larger, strategic sites it was necessary to 

prepare masterplan frameworks to  make sure that sites could be developed in a 

comprehensive manner, taking into account all of the infrastructure requirements. 

Looking at large allocations in this way, rather than on a site-by-site basis, makes sure we 

can make the best use of sites and secure sustainable and inclusive growth reflecting each 

of the council’s corporate priorities. 

The Masterplan Framework is a strategic document that sits beneath the Local Plan and will 

inform future planning applications. 

 

2. What is in a Masterplan Framework? 

Where Masterplan Frameworks are being sought, they shall contain the following: 

 planning policy summary 

 site location and description 

 land ownership 

 a summary of the existing evidence 

 site evaluation (opportunities and constraints) 

 land use framework 

 sustainable movement framework 

 protection of existing public rights of way routes and their incorporation within new 

development layouts 

 vehicular movement framework 

 green and blue infrastructure framework 

 placemaking framework (including design guides for character and neighbourhood 

areas where applicable) 

 sustainability and energy use 

 health and well-being 

 design evolution 

National Planning 
Policy and 
Guidance 

Barnsley Council's 
Local Plan & 

Supplementary 
Planning 

Documents 

Barnsley West 
(MU1) Masterplan 

Framework 

Planning 
Applications 

Page 252



 conceptual masterplan 

 infrastructure and delivery phasing 

Masterplan Frameworks shall be subject to public consultation and be approved by the 

council before any key planning applications are approved on the affected sites. 

Each Masterplan Framework will be bespoke and therefore  considered on a case-by-case 

basis. 

3. Why is this project necessary? 

The Local Plan requires that Masterplan Frameworks should be developed for specific large 

allocations and groups of sites. The Barnsley West (MU1) site will deliver around 1,700 new 

homes and 43 hectares for employment land.  

It is important for the council to work with developers and landowners to deliver a 

Masterplan Framework to establish the infrastructure requirements and deliver sustainable 

and inclusive growth.  

4. How will the scheme benefit Barnsley residents? 

The overall development will deliver around 1,700 new homes to help address the 

borough’s housing need and 43 hectares of employment land which will deliver a range of 

employment uses including business, general industry and storage and distribution. This will 

help to attract new businesses into the area as well as allowing existing businesses to 

expand into more suitable premises. 

Altogether this will provide short-term job opportunities during the construction phase and 

long-term job opportunities for local people.  

5. What alternatives were considered and why were these sites not deemed suitable? 

As part of the Local Plan process a range of sites were considered through the housing and 

employment site selection processes. This work was supported by a range of background 

technical reports and evidence base documents including the Green Belt Review and 

Strategic Housing Land Availability Asssessment, which determined its suitability for 

development and led to its release from Green Belt.  

6. Is the site Green Belt? 

No. The site was released from the Green Belt as part of the Local Plan process. The site is 

now allocated for mixed-use development in the adopted Local Plan and as such is 

considered suitable for development. 

7. How will the project impact the area? 

Page 253



It is envisaged that the delivery of the Masterplan Framework will positively impact both 

residents and businesses. The Masterplan Framework proposes a mixed-use development 

to provide around 1,700 new homes and 43 hectares of employment land.  Alongside 

housing and employment land the draft Masterplan Framework also includes: 

 A new primary school 

 Small shops and community facilities 

 Brand-new infrastructure, including an access link road 

 Open green space with wildlife corridors, watercourses and key pedestrian and cycle 

paths 

 

8. What provision will be made for retail and community facilities within the 

Masterplan area?  

The Masterplan provides support for small-scale convenience retail and community facilities 

in compliance with Local Plan policy TC5 Small Local Shops. At this stage, the scale and 

number of shops is not fixed. Within the Masterplan, all community facilities, including 

shops and a primary school, are located within the community hub at the northern part of 

the site.  

9. Who is responsible for producing the Masterplan? 

Developers Strata Homes and Sterling Capitol PLC are working in collaboration with Barnsley 

Council to prepare the Barnsley West Masterplan Framework document for land south of 

Barugh Green Road, Barnsley (MU1). The council’s role in this process is to  make sure that 

proposals are compliant with planning policy and delivers the anticipated outputs 

determined by the Local Plan. 

10. How will the scheme affect air quality? 

The Masterplan area is located close to the M1 motorway which is an air quality 

management area. This is due to traffic emissions causing the annual nitrogen dioxide gas 

(NO2) average to exceed targets.   

Barnsley Council has produced guidance regarding air quality considerations for planning 

applications, which says that air quality impact needs to be considered and mitigated here.  

Future planning applications are required to comply with this guidance to make sure that 

there is no deterioration in air quality in and around the Barnsley West Masterplan 

Framework area. 

 

11. Will the scheme generate excessive noise? 

Page 254

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/8747/air-quality-and-emissions-good-practice-planning-guidance.pdf


The Masterplan Framework and planning applications will consider noise impacts for 

existing and new residents. Developers will need to demonstrate that new development 

does not have an adverse impact upon the living conditions of residents. 

12. How will the scheme affect ecology / biodiversity of the site? 

As part of the Local Plan, a series of biodiversity assessments were provided for proposed 

site allocations. 

The assessments identified areas and features of significant ecological value that should be 

retained as part of any new development. These areas have been identified on the technical 

constraints plan and have informed the layout of the masterplan. 

The Masterplan Framework  will seek to retain and enhance existing trees and biodiversity 

features wherever possible and deliver a net biodiversity gain. This could be through a 

combination of on and off-site compensation measures. 

13. What are the proposals to mitigate the impact on green space? 

The Masterplan Framework will deliver a range of new green space; this could include 

informal open space, wildlife corridors and areas for children to play. 

The council has a new Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) on ‘Open Space Provision 

on New Housing Developments’, which sets out standards and guidance for new open 

space. A minimum of 15 per cent of the total site area must be kept as open space. 

The detailed design of the new open space will be advanced at the planning application 

stage.The Masterplan Framework will confirm the general area and main design principles 

for new facilities. 

The Masterplan Framework will also set out high-level principles for maintaining green 

space and the responsibilities for individual developers will be agreed through a legal 

agreement at the planning application stage. 

14. How do you know that that land is suitable for building, given it was previous an 

open-cast mine? 

During the Masterplan process, technical and intrusive ground investigation work has been 

gathered. These findings provide further information on the ground conditions. 

South Yorkshire Mining Advisory Service has also helped developers to understand the risks 

and design requirements for new sites built on open-cast backfill. 

The developers will be required to provide robust technical information at the planning 

application stage to demonstrate that development is possible and safe. 

15. What are the timescales for the project? 

Page 255

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/10938/open-space-provision-on-new-housing-developments-spd.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/10938/open-space-provision-on-new-housing-developments-spd.pdf


Following the six-week public consultation, Pegasus Group and Barnsley Council will review 

the questionnaire feedback. Following this, the final version of the Masterplan Framework 

will be prepared. This document will then be taken through the governance process with a 

view to adoption in December 2019. 

16. How is the project being funded? 

The project has been funded by developers Strata Homes and Sterling Capitol PLC. 

17. Who are the developers?  

The developers/land agents with the largest land interests are Strata Homes and Sterling 

Capitol PLC. The council are also working with developers who have smaller land interests to 

understand their intentions and aspirations. 

18.  Will new and current residents have access to schools, doctors and community 

facilities? 

Infrastructure has been considered throughout the Local Plan process through the site 

selection methodology, and in the evidence base of the Local Plan. 

The council engaged with relevant infrastructure providers in the production of the 

Infrastructure Delivery Plan, which supports the Local Plan. 

The evidence base, including the Infrastructure Delivery Plan and transport modelling, have 

been rigorously examined by the Independent Planning Inspector, who considers the Local 

Plan to be sound. These documents can be found in the Local Plan Examination library  

In addition, Local Plan Policy I1 Infrastructure and Planning Obligations states that 

development must be supported by appropriate physical, social, economic and 

communications infrastructure, including provision for broadband. New development 

should not overburden existing infrastructure. Where new development creates a need for 

new or improved infrastructure, developer contributions will be sought to make the 

development acceptable in planning terms. 

The following provides a summary of each key service in accordance with the Infrastructure 

Delivery Plan (IDP). 

Healthcare 

Barnsley Council are working with Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) to develop a 

strategy to make sure services can evolve to meet the needs of existing communities and 

population growth associated with new housing development. 

South Yorkshire Ambulance Service confirmed through the IDP that the geographical 

coverage of existing services is adequate for the level of planned growth. 

Page 256

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/planning-and-buildings/local-planning-and-development/our-new-local-plan/local-plan-examination-2016-18/local-plan-examination-library/


Policing  

During the preparation of the IDP South Yorkshire Police confirmed that there were no 

issues with current provision and non-envisaged in the foreseeable future. 

Fire and Rescue 

South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue confirmed through the IDP that they were reviewing service 

provision within the borough and that it would consider the needs of the existing 

communities as well as planned growth for the next 15 years. 

Schools 

Barnsley Council as a local authority has a statutory obligation to provide primary and 

secondary school places for pupils within the borough. 

The Local Plan identified land for new schools where demand arising from new 

development could not be accommodated within existing schools. The need for a new 

school site was identified for site MU1 through the Local Plan process. 

19. Who will live in the houses? 

Policy H6 of the Local Plan requires housing proposals to include a broad mix of house sizes, 

type and tenure to help create mixed and balanced communities.  

Policy H7 of the Local Plan requires housing developments of 15 or more houses to provide 

affordable housing. 

Due to the scale of the site, it is covered by  three affordability sub-markets including Darton 

and Barugh, South Barnsley and Worsbrough and Penistone and Dodworth, which all 

require differing affordable housing percentages. 

A calculation has been undertaken to determine how much of the site falls within each sub-

market tocalculate affordable housing requirements. This calculation has determined that 

developers should deliver 16 per cent affordable housing on-site which can include a 

mixture of affordable rent and homes for affordable ownership. 

The type, tenure and size of new affordable homes will be agreed at the planning 

application stage. 

20. What type of businesses will the site be holding? 

The Local Plan seeks a range of different employment uses. These will mainly fall within Part 

B of the Use Classes Order 1987: 

 B1 (Business) 

 B2 (General Industry) 

Page 257



 B8 (Storage or Distribution) 

To find more information out on any of the above categories visit the Planning Portal. 

Page 258

https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200130/common_projects/9/change_of_use


Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

 

Appendix G – Barnsley West website extracts 

Page 259



 Page 260



 

Page 261



 Page 262



 

Page 263



 

Page 264



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

 

Appendix H – Barnsley West exhibition boards 

Page 265



P
age 266



P
age 267



P
age 268



P
age 269



P
age 270



P
age 271



P
age 272



P
age 273



P
age 274



P
age 275



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

 

Appendix I - Barnsley West summary and questionnaire 

Page 276



 

 

 

  

Page 277



                        
 

Introduction  

Developers Strata Homes and Sterling Capitol PLC are working in collaboration with Barnsley Council to prepare the 

Barnsley West Masterplan Framework document for land south of Barugh Green Road, Barnsley (MU1).  

 

 

Site location and description  

The Barnsley West Masterplan Framework area is located 2km west of Barnsley town centre on land between the 

communities of Gawber, Higham, Pogmoor, Redbrook and Barugh Green and immediately north-east of Junction 37 of 

the M1 motorway. The Masterplan Framework area contains open fields, which were previously an open-cast mine and 

later refilled. 

 

What is a Masterplan Framework?  

The council’s Local Plan was adopted in January 2019. When the Local Plan was being examined, it was agreed that for 

some of the larger, strategic sites it was necessary to prepare masterplan frameworks to ensure that sites could be 

developed in a comprehensive manner, taking into account all of the infrastructure requirements. Looking at large 

allocations in this way, rather than on a site-by-site basis, makes sure the site achieves its full potential and can secure 

sustainable and inclusive growth, reflecting each of the council’s corporate priorities. The Masterplan Framework is a 

strategic document that sits beneath the Local Plan and will inform future planning applications. 

As part of the Masterplan Framework, residents and stakeholders need to be provided with the opportunity to feedback 

on the draft plans and main themes. This feedback will then be reviewed and fed into the final Masterplan Framework. 

The final Masterplan Framework will need to be approved by Full Council before determining any planning applications 

for the development of the site. 

 

 

Page 278



                        
 

Planning Policy summary  

The site is allocated for development within the Barnsley Local Plan, adopted in January 2019 under Local Plan reference 

MU1. The plan proposes a mixed-use development to provide around 1,700 new homes and 43 hectares of employment 

land.  The plan also includes: 

• A new primary school 

• Small shops and community facilities 

• Brand-new infrastructure, including an access link road  

• Open green space with wildlife corridors, watercourses and key pedestrian and cycle paths 

 

 

 

Page 279



                        
 

Land ownership 

A large part of the site is controlled by Strata Homes and Sterling Capitol PLC.  The rest of the site is within private 
ownership. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 280



                        
 

Vision for the Draft Barnsley West Masterplan Framework 

To create a prosperous and sustainable community, combining high-quality new homes with new jobs, new facilities and 
open space, available to new and existing residents. It will become known as Barnsley West. 
 
Barnsley has a growing need for housing and employment space. Barnsley West will play an important role in realising 
that requirement over the next 15 years. 
 
The site is well-located to provide a high-quality, sustainable, mixed-use community. Health and well-being is at the heart 
of this masterplan, as a landscape-led development. Barnsley West will create an accessible landscape for walking, cycling, 
growing food and biodiversity. 
 
The employment area is located to the south of the site, with easy access to the M1 motorway, at Junction 37. It will also 
protect the new homes from any impact of the motorway. The residential areas are situated within a rich landscape, all 
with accessible open green space. Links will be provided to the neighbouring communities by pedestrian and cycle paths. 
 
 
 

Opportunities and constraints 

There is a significant amount of technical work that is currently shaping the draft Masterplan Framework, this work is 
ongoing and will help guide the final version. 
 
The ground conditions of the site have been affected by previous open-cast mining, so there are areas where development 
is restricted. This gives the opportunity to create open green spaces across the site. 
 
The site has an existing network of rights of way and footpaths. These will be retained to create accessible pedestrian and 
cycle paths throughout the site. 
 
Key areas of woodland, watercourses and hedgerows have been identified and these will be maintained or improved to 
create a high-quality and sustainable green environment. The development will also provide sustainable drainage systems 
which are environmentally friendly ways of dealing with surface water. 
 
Extensive ecological and archaeological studies have identified no issues which restrict the development.  Habitats for 
existing wildlife will be improved in the open space areas. There will also be opportunities to grow food, with allotments 
and fruit trees on site. 
 
The proposed employment development will be provided in the southern half of the site, close to Junction 37 of the M1 
motorway, providing an easy route to the motorway network and away from existing and proposed homes.  
 
The proposed homes will be located in the central and northern parts of the site, providing connections into surrounding 
areas. The proposed school and community facilities will be located within this area, which will aim to become a 
community hub for the site and wider area.  
  
 

  

Page 281



                        
 

Opportunities Map      

                    

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 282



                        
 

Constraints Map  

 

  

Page 283



                        
 

 

Access and transport 

A new road will lead into the site, with new roundabouts at Barugh Green Road in the north and Higham Lane/High 
Common Road in the south, connected by a new link road. The road has been carefully designed so it has local character 
and includes pedestrian crossings. It will also help to reduce traffic congestion and take heavy lorries away from existing 
communities and along the link road.  
 
The road has been located closer to the western side of the development to make sure that the slopes along the road are 
not too steep, working around the existing constraints on the site.  
 
It is proposed to close Hermit Lane to traffic but the pedestrian and cycle paths will link existing and new communities, 
facilities and the open space areas. 
 

 

Landscaping   

The draft landscape masterplan will make sure wide areas of formal and informal open space are provided, including 

opportunities for community orchards, allotments and play areas. The drainage constraints will allow water features to 

be included throughout the landscaped areas. 

The link road will have trees planted alongside it to create rural landscaped access through the site. Carefully-planned 

pedestrian and cycle paths, located safely away from the link road, will create a sustainable and attractive transport 

network through the site helping to reduce air pollution.  

The proposals will create a new community with infrastructure and environments, providing health and well-being 

opportunities throughout the site.  

 

 

 

  

Page 284



                        
 

 

Illustrative Masterplan for the site 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 285



                        

 

 
Page 286



                        
 

How to get involved 

We would like to know what you think about the draft Masterplan Framework so that we can consider your views in 

preparing the final document. We would encourage you to come along to our consultation events to discuss the proposals 

in more detail with the Developers’ Team and Barnsley Council. The details of the draft Masterplan Framework are 

provided on the consultation boards, which can be viewed: 

- Online: www.barnsleywest.co.uk  

- At the Library @ the Lightbox, Barnsley town centre 

- At one of the public consultation events : 

Monday 23 
September 2019 

Barugh Green Club, Higham Common Road, Higham, S75 1LD 3pm - 7pm 

Thursday 10 
October 2019 

St Thomas Community Centre, Church St, Barnsley, S75 2RL 3pm - 7pm 

 

Comments on the draft Masterplan Framework can be made by: 

- Completing our questionnaire online: www.barnsleywest.co.uk  

- Downloading the questionnaire online or requesting a paper copy of the questionnaire at the consultation events 

or at the Library @ the Lightbox.  

Completed questionnaires can be returned to Pegasus Group:  

- At the consultation events 

- By email: BarnsleyWestMF@pegasusgroup.co.uk 

- By post: Barnsley West Masterplan Framework Consultation, Pegasus Group, Pavilion Court, Green Lane, Garforth, 

Leeds, LS25 2AF 

Pegasus Group will be collating the responses on behalf of Barnsley Council and the developers. If you require assistance 

filling in the questionnaire or have language and/or disability access needs, please contact Barnsley Council on 01226 

772604 or email masterplanning@barnsley.gov.uk. 

Please make sure your comments reach us by 5pm on Thursday 24 October 2019. 

The information you provide will only be used for the purposes of this consultation exercise.  

The data submitted will be held securely by Pegasus Group in accordance with General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) 

and the Data Protection Act 2018. 

The Developers and Barnsley Council look forward to hearing your views. 

 

  

Page 287

http://www.barnsleywest.co.uk/
http://www.barnsleywest.co.uk/
mailto:BarnsleyWestMF@pegasusgroup.co.uk
mailto:alisondalton@barnsley.gov.uk


                        
 

 

Barnsley West Draft Masterplan Framework Questionnaire 

 

Question 1 
Do you agree with the vision of the Masterplan Framework which seeks to create a sustainable and 
inclusive community with high-quality design and landscaping? (Please tick one option) 
 

Yes  

No  

Don’t know  

 

 

Question 2 
What do you think are the most important features of the existing site? (Please tick three 
options) 
 

 

Existing trees and vegetation  

Wildlife  

Short and long-distance views  

Public rights of way  

Greenspace  

Existing watercourses  

Mining legacy  

Other (please state): 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Page 288



                        
 

 

Question 3 
What do you consider to be the most important points for guiding the design of the new 
development? (Please tick three options) 
 

Creating views to important buildings and landmarks, and protecting the historic environment  

Considering local distinctiveness  

Display good design using high-quality materials  

Sustainable design and construction incorporating low carbon and renewable technology (Use 
local materials, solar panels, high insulation levels, orientate buildings to maximise solar gain) 

 

High-quality outdoor space with clear distinction between public and private space  

Healthy and safe environment  

Clear and obvious routes for pedestrians, cyclists and motorists   

Providing adequate parking   

Other (please state): 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Question 4 
The council will assess planning applications to make sure an appropriate mix of housing is delivered.  
What type of homes do you think the new development should provide? (Please tick three options) 
 

House type 

Bungalow  

Apartment  

Terrace  

Semi-Detached  

Detached   

 

 

Question 5  
The council will assess planning applications to make sure an appropriate mix of housing is delivered.  
What size of homes do you think the new development should provide? (Please tick three options) 
 

House size 

1 bed  

2 bed  

3 bed  

4 bed  

5 bed  

Page 289



                        
 

 

 

 

 

Question 6 
The council will assess planning applications to make sure an appropriate mix of housing is delivered.  
What tenure of homes do you think the new development should provide? Tenure refers to how the 
property is owned. (Please tick one option) 
 

House tenure 

Affordable housing   

Open market housing  

Mix of both  

 

 

Question 7 
How can the impact of development be minimised when viewed from the wider landscape? (Please 
tick as many options as you feel appropriate) 
 

Make sure that the new employment units are an appropriate colour to reduce their 
prominence in the wider landscape 

 

Create strong green landscape buffers to minimise the visual impact of the development from 
the wider landscape 

 

Other (please state): 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 290



                        
 

 

 

 

Question 8 
How can the impact of development be minimised on existing biodiversity features? Biodiversity is 
the variety of plant and animals and the communities or habitats they form. (Please tick three 
options) 
 

Introduce new areas for wildlife within the site (wet and dry areas)  

Deliver off-site biodiversity improvements  

Incorporate design features such as bat and bird boxes into the new housing and design new 
lighting so that it does not unsettle wildlife 

 

Develop landscaping schemes that encourage roosting, nesting, feeding and movement 
through the site 

 

Make sure that new ponds are clean and attractive to wildlife  

Leave areas of grass to grow wild and create wildflower verges and meadows  

Include information boards and signage to educate residents  

Other (please state): 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Question 9 
Informal greenspace, play spaces and allotments could be delivered as part of the new development. 
What features would encourage you to use these new facilities? (Please tick three options) 
 

Well-located facilities accessed by footpaths/cycle routes with secure and convenient cycle 
parking 

 

Community involvement in the use of the spaces   

High-quality facilities that are clean, safe and well-maintained  

Car parking and cycle parking   

A range of facilities to attract all age groups  

Children’s play area and opportunities for imaginative play to allow children of different ages 
and abilities to play together 

 

Young people’s facilities e.g. Multi-Use Games Area/Skate Park  

Other (please state): 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 291



                        
 

 

 

 

Question 10 
The Masterplan Framework will identify routes for pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles. What design 
features would make these routes more user-friendly? (Please tick three options) 
 

Traffic calming measures  

Traffic-free routes  

Combined cycle and pedestrian routes  

Separate cycle and pedestrian routes  

Safe and attractive routes that are well-lit  

Cycle-friendly junctions and smooth non-slip surfaces  

Gates/bollards to restrict unauthorised access for vehicles  

High-quality signage  

Other (please state): 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Question 11 
The Masterplan Framework will look at the impact of new development on the existing highway 
network. What measures could help to reduce the impact? (Please tick three options) 
 

Direct traffic away from residential areas   

Promote bus use to and from site  

Promote and enable walking and cycling to the site  

Provide secure and high-visibility cycle parking facilities  

Make changing and shower facilities available for all employees and visitors to the site  

Encourage train travel to and from Barnsley train station  

Make sure all facilities are accessible to people with disabilities without the use of a car  

Encourage car sharing  

Other (please state): 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 292



                        
 

 

Question 12 
What areas do you consider to be important in achieving sustainable development and reducing 
future impacts on climate change? (Please tick three options) 
 

Sustainable design and construction techniques (use local materials, incorporate solar panels, 
high insulation levels, orientate buildings to maximise solar gain) 

 

Include landscaped areas that hold water during wet periods and encourage the recycling of 
rainwater 

 

Sustainably manage drainage across the site  

Promoting the delivery of renewable and low-carbon energy (solar panels, wind turbines)  

Investment in green open spaces that can deliver a wide range of environmental and health 
benefits 

 

Reduce energy use by incorporating energy efficiency measures in new homes and 
employment units (air-tight homes, insulated roofs, double glazing) 

 

Include electric vehicle charging points  

Other (please state): 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Question 13 
How do you think the development could improve your health? (Please tick three options) 
 

Provide a range of open space to encourage sport and exercise for people of different ages 
and abilities 

 

Provide high-quality footpaths and cycle paths  

Incorporate trees and greenspace to improve the environment  

Deliver high quality streets and spaces to encourage community use  

Provide outdoor seating areas with adequate shade and shelter to encourage social 
interaction 

 

Promote inclusive design principles to make sure all spaces and buildings are accessible to all 
members of the community 

 

Incorporate design features to minimise air pollution  

Other (please state): 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 293



                        
 

 

Question 14 
What design features could help to create a safer neighbourhood? (Please tick three options) 
 

Well overlooked greenspaces  

Well-lit walking and cycle routes  

Secure boundary fencing to the employment and residential units  

Landscaping to create clear separation between public and private spaces  

Secure cycle and bin storage  

Anti-graffiti coatings applied to walls that are in high risk areas  

One main entrance to community facilities to help monitor and manage access  

Link lighting design and CCTV (security cameras)  

Other (please state): 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Question 15 
What key economic benefits of this development are important to you? (Please tick as many options 
as you feel appropriate) 
 

Delivery of new homes   

New employment opportunities   

New primary school   

Community facilities  

Economic investment to the area   

Other (please state):  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 294



                        
 

 

Question 16 
Please write other comments you may have here in relation to the draft Masterplan Framework.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Page 295



                        
 

 

Equality Monitoring Questions (Optional):  

By completing this form, you are helping us to make sure that the services and events that we run are representative of 

all potential service users/participants and will help us to identify gaps in our service delivery. The information provided 

will only be used to improve service delivery.  

The information you provide will remain confidential.  It will be stored and used in accordance with General Data 

Protection Regulation (GDPR). 

  

 

Gender 
Are you? (Please tick)   
Male  

Female  

Prefer not to say  

 

 

 

Age (Please tick) 
 
0 - 16  

16 - 20  

21 - 30  

31 - 40  

41 - 50  

51 - 60  

61 - 70  

71 - 80  

80+  

 

 

Disability  

Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a health problem or disability 

which has lasted, or is expected to last, at least 12 months? (Please tick) 
 
Yes, limited a lot  

Yes, limited a little  

No  

  

Page 296



                        
 

Ethnicity  

What is your ethnic origin? (Please tick one only) 

White 

British, English, Scottish, Welsh, or Northern Irish  

Irish  

Gypsy or Irish Traveller  

Any other white background (please write in):  

Mixed/multiple ethnic groups 

White and Black Caribbean  

White and Black African  

White and Asian  

Any other mixed background (please write in):  

Asian or Asian British 

Indian  

Pakistani  

Bangladeshi  

Chinese  

Any other mixed background (please write in):  

Black or Black British 

Caribbean  

African  

Any other Black, African or Caribbean background 
(please write in): 

 

Other ethnic group 

Arab  

Any other ethnic group (please write in):  

 

Page 297



Barnsley West Masterplan Framework (MU1) 
Land south of Barugh Green Road 
Consultation Statement  

 

 

 

 

Appendix J - Consultation Evaluation  
 

 
 

Page 298



 BARNSLEY 
 WEST Barnsley West (MU1) draft

Masterplan Framework consultation
evaluation

P
age 299



Build thriving, vibrant and family-friendly town centres full of
opportunity and potential.

Create more and better homes within the borough.

Build and maintain our infrastructure to make it easier for
everyone to enjoy all that Barnsley has to offer.

Attract investment and improve business sustainability.

Help to create new areas of employment.

Make sure residents have the skills they need for the jobs being
created.

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 300



Our coverage

The above highlights coverage received across social
media channels and editorial coverage in the media

such as Barnsley Chronicle and Sheffield Star. 

P
age 301

http://www.coveragebook.com/b/c4439097


 

 

Three press releases were issued:
one for Cabinet being asked to
approve the consultation, one for
the launch of the consultation
and one to mark the halfway
stage and encourage people to
have their say.
 
In total, the press releases
accumulated 633 page views on
Barnsley Council's website, 477 of
which were unique with people
spending an average of 1 minute
and 57 seconds on the page.

Press releases

P
age 302



The majority of our
press coverage came
from the Barnsley
Chronicle, which
published four main
articles regarding the
consultation and one
promotion for one of
the exhibition events in
the District news
section.

A special notice was
also issued to inform
residents of the
consultation taking
place, ways to fill it in
and the dates and
locations of the
exhibition events. 

 

 

 

Newspaper coverage

P
age 303



Facebook
12
posts

25,697
reach

1,174
engagements

Reactions: 12
Shares: 22
Link clicks: 171

Cover photo takeover

P
age 304



Twitter
14
posts

18,931
impressions

271
engagements

Retweets: 18
Likes: 8
Link clicks: 120

Cover photo takeoverP
age 305



Straight Talk articles, news article and
intranet banner
Opens: 5,034   Link cicks: 75

Internal Communications

A banner was added to the council's intranet site,
along with a news article, directing colleagues to
the consultation.

Three news articles were also included in
StraightTalk, a weekly newsletter which is sent to
all council employees and members.

 

P
age 306



Website statistics
From 12 September to 24 October, there were 419
page views of the Masterplanning webpage on
Barnsley Council's website.
Of those page views  34 came from the mastplanning
button on Barnsley Council's homepage, 33 from
Facebook and just 3 from Twitter.
Other successful links came from the media releases
which accumulated 76 click-throughs providing 18.15
per cent of the Masterplanning webpages total views.
Of the 419 page views 292 of these were unique.
The most popular time for viewing the page was
between 12pm and 1pm.
There was a six-day overlap between this consultation
and the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework
consultation, which finished on 17 September.

The Barnsley West website saw 349 page views
during the consultation period with 190 of those being
unique views.

 

In addition, there were 47 views, 19 unique, of the
various consultation materials on the Barnsley
West website - e.g. consultation boards,
illustrative Masterplan and Draft Masterplan
Framework - which were available in PDF format.

 

P
age 307



In total, there were 213 responses to the consultation
questionnaire with a 100 per cent completion rate. The
average time of completion was 23 minutes and 45 seconds.

Of the 213 responses, 155 were completed online, 39 at the
exhibition events and 19 by post.

A total of 233 people attended the two public consultation
events which were held at Barugh Green Club and St
Thomas Community Centre.

Approximately 2,420 leaflets were distributed to
neighbouring properties within the consultation zone area
(approx 250m)advertising the consultation process while
21 public notices were put up on and around the site two
weeks before the first exhibition event.

Display boards were on show in the Library @ the Lightbox
in Barnsley town centre during the consultation period.

 

 

 

 

What was achieved?

P
age 308



There was a distinct brand which allowed the
campaign to stand out on digital platforms and in
consultation material.

We were able to get promotion of the exhibition events
into the District news section of the Barnsley Chronicle. 

The range of material available on the council website
such as FAQs, a summary of the development and a
link to the Local Plan.

Including all information in the consultation document,
saving respondents from downloading
additional information.

Facebook was a more effective way of informing
residents than Twitter, reaching 7,000 more
people with five times more engagement, something
to consider for future consultations.

 

 

 

 

What went well?

P
age 309



Although the brand
was distinct, the original material
that came through was in
black. We felt this was too dark
and melancholic for a
consultation and changed the
main colour to purple. Feedback
on the original Facebook posts,
which used the black colour
scheme, reflected this.

The majority of comments on
social media were negative,
claiming the consultation was
nothing more than a box-ticking
exercise and any views put
forward from the public would be
ignored.

Some people who attended the
exhibition events felt their queries
about the site were not answered
by staff in attendance.

 

 

What can be improved?
A lot of the language within the
consultation material was
complex and not likely to be easily
understandable to members of
the general public. This will need
simplifying in the future to ensure
residents aren't put off by jargon
or unfamiliar language.

The timescales for the turnaround
of materials were somewhat
unrealistic given the amount of
time it takes to read through the
material and make corrections.

Amendments which were noted
by the Communications and
Marketing team were often
ignored or disappeared on newer
versions of the materials.

 

 

P
age 310



 
Equality Impact Assessment 

 

Service Name: Regeneration and Culture  

Your Name: Stacey White 

Contact Details: staceywhite@barnsley.gov.uk or 01226 772604 

Assessment Date: 20/08/2019 

Date of EIA Review: Post 5/11/2019 – following public consultation 

This is EIA being carried out because we are making the following changes (please provide some 
background/context): 
We are proposing to undertake a six week public consultation on the Barnsley West (MU1) h 
Masterplan Framework (1700 new homes and 43 hectares of employment land).  

We are making these changes because: 
The Local Plan requires large allocations to be subject to a Masterplan Framework to identify the 
infrastructure requirements and deliver sustainable and inclusive communities.  

We asked the following equality, diversity and inclusion questions to help us better understand the 
impact of the changes: 
1.  Do you agree with the vision of the Masterplan Framework which seeks to create a sustainable and inclusive 

community with high quality design and landscaping? 
2.  The Council will assess planning applications to ensure that an appropriate mix of housing is delivered. What 

kind of homes do you think the new development should provide? House Types 
3.  The Council will assess planning applications to ensure that an appropriate mix of housing is delivered. What 

kind of homes do you think the new development should provide? House Size 
4.  The Council will assess planning applications to ensure that an appropriate mix of housing is delivered. What 

kind of homes do you think the new development should provide? Tenure 

 

 

 

Page 311

mailto:staceywhite@barnsley.gov.uk


To help answer these questions we did the following things (e.g. service user or staff consultation, data 
analysis, research etc): 
1.  Present the vision within the public consultation questionnaire, quantify the number of 

respondents that answer ‘yes’, ‘no’ and ‘don’t know’ 
2.  Present a number of options within the public consultation questionnaire (house type – bungalow, 

apartment, terrace, semi-detached, detached). Asked participants to tick three options for house 
type preference. Allows the analysis of data and cross referencing with the Council’s housing needs 
assessment for the area 

3.  Present a number of options within the public consultation questionnaire (house size – one bed, 
two bed, three bed, four bed, five bed). Asked participants to tick three options for house size 
preference. Allows the analysis of data and cross referencing with the Council’s housing needs 
assessment for the area 

4.  Present a number of options within the public consultation questionnaire (house type – affordable 
rent and / or affordable home ownership, open market rent and/or owner occupation, mix of 
both). Asked participants to tick three options for housing tenure preference. Allows the analysis of 
data and cross referencing with the Council’s housing needs assessment for the area 

From this engagement/research/analysis we learnt the following things: 
1.  The overall response (213 respondents) was split between ‘yes’ (35), ‘no’ (158), ‘don’t know’ (14) 

and (6) no response. We suspect that the underlying reason for the negative response relates to 
individuals objection to the principle of development rather than the vision of the Masterplan 
Framework.  
 
Gender:  

• 97 male respondents (18 x yes, 72 x no, x 6 don’t know and 1 no response) 
• 59 female respondents (12 x yes, 40 x no, 5 x don’t know and 1 x no response) 
• 11 respondents preferred not to share their gender 11 x no) 
• 3 blank gender responses (3 x don’t know) 

Age:  
• Highest level of support from age groups 41-50 and 51-60  
• Lowest level of support from age groups 61-70 and 71-80/31-40 

 
Disability:  

• The majority of people ‘limited a little’ by disability do not support the vision (80%) 
• The majority of respondents ‘limited a lot’ by disability do not support the vision (85%) 
• The majority of respondents ‘not affected by disability’ do not support the vision (91%) 

 
Ethnicity:  

• Most people identifying as White did not support the vision 73%) 
• The majority of people identifying as British, English, Scottish, Welsh, or Northern Irish did 

not support the vision (80%) 
• All those identifying as Asian or Asian British did not support the vision (100%) 
• All those identifying as any other ethnic groups or mixed/multiple ethnic groups (including 

White and Black Carribean) did not support the vision (100%) 
 

2.  The Council will assess planning applications to ensure that an appropriate mix of housing is 
delivered. What kind of homes do you think the new development should provide? House Types 
 
Gender:  

• Male response in order of preference (top three): bungalow (63%), semi-detached (58%), 

Page 312



detached (55%) 
• Female response in order of preference (top three): bungalow (76%), semi-detached (59%), 

detached (54%) 
• ‘Preferred not to state gender’ response in order of preference (top three): detached 

(100%), semi-detached (100%), bungalow (60%). 
Age:  

• Age group 71-80 had greatest preference for bungalows (90%) 
• Age group 41-50 had greatest preference for apartments (18%) 
• Age group 51-60 had greatest preference for terrace properties (30%) 
• Age group 71-80 had greatest preference for semi-detached (67%) 
• Age group 71-80 had greatest preference for detached properties (64%) 

 
Disability:  

• Majority of people ‘limited a little’ by disability had preference for bungalows (80%) and 
semi-detached (60%) 

• Majority of people ‘limited a lot’ by disability had preference for bungalows (69%) detached 
properties (69%) 

• Respondents not affected by disability had the greatest preference for (top three): 
bungalows (65%), semi-detached (55%) and detached (53%) 

 
Ethnicity:  

• Respondents identifying as British, English, Scottish, Welsh, or Northern Irish had greatest 
preference for (top three): bungalows (67%), semi-detached (57%) and detached (53%) 

• Respondents identifying as Asian or Asian British had greatest preference for (top three): 
bungalows (100%), detached (100%) and semi-detached (50%).  

• All those identifying as any other ethnic groups or mixed/multiple ethnic groups (including 
White and Black Carribean) had greatest preference for (top three): detached (40%) with 
apartments, terraced and semi-detached properties receiving an equal number of 
responses (20%). 

 
3.  The Council will assess planning applications to ensure that an appropriate mix of housing is 

delivered. What kind of homes do you think the new development should provide? House size 
 
Gender:  

• Male response in order of preference (top three): 3 bed (70%), 2 bed (59%), 4 bed (42%) 
• Female response in order of preference (top three): 3 bed (78%), 2 bed (66%), 4 bed (42%)  
• ‘Preferred not to state gender’ response in order of preference (top three): 3 or 4 bed 

equally split (55%), 2 bed (27%) 
 
Age: 

• Age group 51-60 had greatest preference for 1 bed (37%) 
• Age group 71-80 had greatest preference for 2 beds (64%) 
• Age group 41-50 had greatest preference for 3 beds (79%) 
• Age group 71-80 had greatest preference for 4 beds (52%) 
• Age group 41-50 had greatest preference for 5 beds (27%) 

 
Disability:  

• Majority of people ‘limited a little’ by disability had  the greatest preference for (top three): 
3 beds (75%), 2 beds (70%), 4 beds (45%). 

• Majority of people ‘limited a lot’ by disability had  the greatest preference for (top three): 2 

Page 313



and 3 beds equal split (69%) followed by 1 and 4 beds equal split (31%) 
• Respondents not affected by disability had the greatest preference for (top three): 3 beds 

(72%), 2 beds (58%) and 4 beds (44%) 
 
Ethnicity: 

• Respondents identifying as British, English, Scottish, Welsh, or Northern Irish had greatest 
preference for (top three): 3 beds (71%), 2 beds (59%), 4 beds (42%) 

• Respondents identifying as Asian or Asian British had greatest preference for (top three): 3, 
4 and 5 bed properties equal split (100%) 

• All those identifying as any other ethnic groups or mixed/multiple ethnic groups (including 
White and Black Carribean) had greatest preference for (top three): equal split between 3 
and 5 bed properties (100%).  No other options were selected. 
 

4.  The Council will assess planning applications to ensure that an appropriate mix of housing is 
delivered. What kind of homes do you think the new development should provide? Housing tenure 
 
Gender:  

• Male preference: mix of both (39%) 
• Female: mix of both (49%) 
• Prefer not to say: open market (54%) 
 

Age:  
• All age groups where people responded preferred a mix of both 

Exception to this 16-20 preferred open market and 80+ split equally between mix and open 
 

Disability:  
• Majority of people ‘limited a little’ by disability had preference for mix (40%) 
• Responded ‘limited a lot’ by disability had an equal preference for mix/open (30%) 
• Respondents not affected by disability had the greatest preference for a mix of both (42%) 

 
Ethnicity:  

• With the exception of any Mixed/multiple ethnic groups (affordable) and Asian or Asian 
British – Pakistani (open) all respondents had greatest preference of a mix of both 

Which groups will be most affected by the change? (Please delete rows and information that is not 
applicable): 
Protected 
characteristic 

Details of group 
affected  

 How will they will be affected by your 
change (please give details): 

Degree of 
impact 

Sex   

The majority of male respondents do not 
support the vision, have a preference for 
bungalows, 3 bed properties and mixed 
tenure 
 
The majority of female respondents do not 
support the vision, have a preference for 
bungalows, 3 bedroom properties and 
mixed tenure. 
 
The Masterplan Framework will deliver a 
range of property types and sizes and 

 

Page 314



therefore will cater for these preferences. 

Disability 
e.g. Learning disability, 
Physical disability, 
Sensory Impairment, Deaf 
People, Mental Health etc 

 

The majority if people with a disability do 
not support the vision,have a preference for 
bungalows and 3 bed property types and a 
preference for a mixed tenure.  The 
Masterplan Framework will deliver a range 
of property types and sizes and therefore 
will cater for these preferences. 

 

Ethnicity   

Feedback from BME people was limited.  It 
is anticipated that this is low due to the 
level of ethnic diversity in this area.   
 
Of the  responses that were received, all 
Asian or Asian Mixed respondents do not 
support the vision, have a preference for 
bungalows,3/4/5 bed properties and a mix 
of tenures.  All those identifying as any 
other ethnic groups or mixed/multiple 
ethnic groups (including White and Black 
Carribean) did not support the vision, have 
a preference for detached properties, 3/5 
bedrooms and mix of tenure. 
 
The Masterplan Framework will deliver a 
range of property types and sizes and 
therefore will cater for these preferences. 

 

Age 

Lowest level of 
support from age 
groups 71-80 and 
51-60 

 

The sites are allocated in the Local Plan 
therefore the principle of development has 
been established. It is anticipated that there 
is perhaps a misconception that resistance 
to the overall vision of the Masterplan 
Framework will stop development.  

 

Other issues / characteristics you may wish to consider:  
Low income     

Carers     

Homeless     

Armed Forces 
Veterans 

    

Other       

 

What practical steps will you take to make sure that the above changes are as fair and equal as possible?  
(e.g. will you monitor outcomes for diverse groups, will you include equality actions in your plan, will you change 
an approach to make it more inclusive etc): 
  Please tick  

Page 315



Action Who? 

N
ot

 d
ue

 

N
ot

 
st

ar
te

d 

U
nd

er
w

ay
 

Be
hi

nd
 

Co
m

pl
et

e 

Da
te

 
up

da
te

d 

Include a section in the Masterplan Framework which 
confirms that the sites have been allocated in the Local 
Plan and that this vision relates to the Masterplan 
Framework.  

SW     X  

Review the updated SHMA (when available) to see how 
the data collected correlates SW  X     

        

        

        

        

 
 

Page 316



- 1 - 1

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

This matter is a Key Decision within the council’s definition and has been 
included in the relevant Forward Plan. 

Report of the Executive Director for PLACE

Hoyland North Masterplan Framework

1. Purpose of report
1.1 To update Full Council on progress in developing the Hoyland North 

Masterplan Framework and to seek approval for adoption. 

2. Recommendations
It is recommended that:

2.1 Full Council notes the progress made in the development of the 
Masterplan Framework for Hoyland North; and 

2.2 Full Council accepts the recommendation to adopt the Hoyland North 
Masterplan Framework following approval at Cabinet on 11th December 
2019.

3. Introduction
3.1 The Council’s Local Plan was adopted on 3rd January 2019. When the Local 

Plan was being examined it was agreed that for the larger sites, it was 
necessary to prepare masterplan frameworks to ensure that sites could be 
developed in a comprehensive manner taking into account cumulative 
infrastructure requirements. Looking at large allocations in this way, rather 
than a piecemeal fashion dictated by land ownerships, ensures that we can 
make the best use of sites and secure sustainable and inclusive growth 
reflecting each of our corporate priorities. 

3.2 Whilst each Masterplan Framework will be bespoke to the area, the Local Plan 
prescribes that the Masterplan Frameworks shall contain the following:

 A planning policy summary, site location and description, land ownership, a 
summary of the existing evidence, site evaluation (opportunities and 
constraints),  a land use framework, sustainable movement framework, 
protection of existing public rights of way routes and their incorporation within 
new development layouts, vehicular movement framework, green and blue 
infrastructure framework, place-making framework (including design guides for 
character and neighbourhood areas where applicable), sustainability and  
energy use, health and wellbeing, design evolution, conceptual masterplan, 
infrastructure and delivery phasing.

3.3 The Local Plan also states that Masterplan Frameworks shall be subject to 
public consultation and be approved by the Council prior to the determination 
of any planning applications on the affected sites.

Page 317

Item 3



- 2 - 2

4. Hoyland North Masterplan Framework

4.1 The Hoyland North Masterplan Framework incorporates sites: 

 Housing site references HS64, HS66, and HS56; and, 
 Employment site references ES14 and ES17

4.2 A Masterplan Framework Board for Hoyland North was established earlier this 
year. The Board consists of council officers and landowners/their agents with 
an interest in the above mentioned sites. The Masterplan Framework 
document is being produced by WYG who have co-ordinated all associated 
feasibility studies and consultations on behalf of the Board. 

4.3 The Masterplan Framework has been funded jointly by the landowners/their 
agents with a contribution from Homes England as the site lies in a designated 
Housing Zone area.  Master planning works are now nearing completion. To 
date, works commissioned include: development of the Masterplan 
Framework document, Drainage Strategy; Highways Infrastructure feasibility, 
traffic modelling, Traffic Impact Assessment, interim Travel Plan, intrusive site 
investigations and a Utility Survey. 

Three indicative layout options were presented in a six week public 
consultation exercise in August/September 2019. Full details of the public 
consultation exercise are provided within the Appended Statement of 
Community Involvement. In summary, the public consultation included: 

 Two x four hour exhibitions at Kirk Balk Academy
 One exhibition at Hoyland Library for the Ward Alliance, local 

businesses and wider public
 Display boards and information packs at Hoyland Library
 Information pack at Library @ the lightbox
 Information packs provided to the Forge Partnership for distribution to 

user groups of the Rockingham Centre
 Media releases
 Social media campaign including three short videos
 Letter drop to residents living close to the Masterplan sites
 Email notification to internal and external consultees
 Email notification to local businesses
 23 site notices erected around Hoyland Common

Following the end of the public consultation period WYG reviewed all 
questionnaire feedback. The Statement of Community Involvement and 
Design Evolution section of the Masterplan Framework set out how this 
feedback has shaped the Masterplan Framework. Examples include:

 Healthcare provision - Public consultation feedback indicated 
concerns relating to healthcare capacity. Barnsley Council has worked 
in partnership with the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) to develop 
a healthcare briefing note which sets out the current provision in 
Hoyland and a commitment to engage with local GP practices to plan 

Page 318



- 3 - 3

and respond to growth. This may include workforce recruitment and/or 
upskilling the existing workforce. 

 Schools - A number of residents raised concerns over the capacity of 
local schools. Education colleagues have assessed the current 
provision and projections based on Local Plan growth. The Masterplan 
Framework now includes wording which anticipates that intervention in 
primary provision will be required by September 2023 and that there is 
capacity in secondary schools in the South Place Planning Area into 
the foreseeable future. Barnsley Council commits to continue working 
with Kirk Balk Academy to manage pupil numbers through the 
admissions procedure given its close proximity to a number of 
masterplan framework areas.  However, the Council will also need to 
work with other secondary schools and developers on a wider basis 
within the planning area in order to ensure sufficient school places are 
available over the Local Plan period and promote sustainable travel as 
required.

 Sustainable travel – Question 14 of the consultation questionnaire 
focussed on minimising the impact of development upon the highway 
network. 47 people considered the promotion of walking and cycling 
would help to reduce the impact, whilst 31 people considered that the 
promotion of bus travel to and from the site would also help. This was 
echoed in stakeholder comments from Highways England and the 
Trans Pennine Trail Executive. As such, an interim Travel Plan 
Framework has been prepared to make sure that over-arching aims, 
objectives and targets can start to be identified for the whole 
Masterplan Framework area including for businesses, workers, 
residents and visitors. The Travel Plan Framework requires the 
appointment of a Travel Plan Manager for the whole Masterplan 
Framework area and Travel Plan Co-ordinators for individual 
developments. The Travel Plan initiatives will be progressed in 
conjunction with other sustainable travel initiatives, including the 
measures set out in the Sustainable Travel SPD. In addition, a 
Movement Framework has been developed in partnership with 
Barnsley Bus Partnership and Stagecoach to encourage bus travel. 
This includes identifying temporary diversions and new bus routes 
through the site, specification of new bus infrastructure and phasing of 
delivery. 

 Link road – The consultation questionnaire feedback indicated that of 
those who had a preferred layout, Options A and B were equally 
preferable (16 responses each). Option B (access from Shortwood 
Roundabout) has been chosen as the preferred option when balancing 
the full range of opportunities and constraints. This takes into account 
questionnaire responses which identified ‘existing trees and vegetation’ 
as the second (42 responses) and ‘wildlife’ as the third (41 responses) 
most important features of the site, as well as comments from Yorkshire 
Wildlife Trust. Option B allows the retention and enhancement of the 
existing wildlife corridor to the western part of ES17. Further 
consideration will now be given to the technical design of this road. This 
will make sure that the design achieves the right status of road to 

Page 319



- 4 - 4

address public concerns about highway impact, particularly upon 
Hoyland Common.

 Climate emergency - Following the declaration of the climate 
emergency the Masterplan Framework now sets out the Council’s 
expectations on new development. This takes into account responses 
to question 16 of the consultation questionnaire. The public considered 
the following to be important principles in achieving sustainable 
development and reducing the impact on climate change; investing in 
green open space that can deliver a wide range of environmental 
benefits (48 responses), landscaped areas that hold water during wet 
periods (44 responses), and sustainable design and construction 
techniques (41 responses). The Masterplan Framework sets out a 
requirement to; incorporate space in new homes to accommodate low-
carbon technology in the future, demonstrate compliance with the latest 
sustainability standards, and include measures to minimise carbon 
emissions and waste material over the lifetime of the development. The 
Masterplan Framework also sets out the level of detail required in 
Energy Statements. If zero carbon cannot be achieved, developers 
should demonstrate why this has not been possible and explain what 
steps have been taken in the provision of infrastructure and the design 
of individual properties to achieve zero carbon through retro fit at a 
future point.

 Stewardship and maintenance of green spaces – Green space was 
identified as the single most important feature of the existing site (60 
responses). Following concerns raised by Members and residents 
across the borough regarding the long-term maintenance of 
greenspace on new developments, there has been active engagement 
with Yorkshire Wildlife Trust and the Land Trust. Both organisations are 
amenable to partnership working, are charitable in nature, and focus on 
key principles including; biodiversity gain, health, education and 
learning, as well as community cohesion and volunteering. The 
Masterplan Framework clearly sets out the Council’s expectations in 
terms of appointing a single management organisation/trust, and 
promotes early engagement to allow for input into the design of 
biodiversity assets including attenuation basins, green space and 
swales. This will help to ‘design out’ future maintenance issues.

 Heritage and landscape impact - Design principles minimising the 
visual impact of development from the wider landscape, and 
maximising views to and from Hoyland Lowe Stand (Grade II Listed) 
have been advanced following a strong public response to questions 
nine and 10 of the consultation questionnaire. The Masterplan 
Framework now includes a number of design principles relating to the 
design of new employment units. These include; a requirement for the 
delivery of strong landscape buffers (63 responses), appropriate colour 
palettes for larger buildings so that they sit comfortably within the wider 
natural landscape (rather than taking design cues from existing 
employment units (49 responses)), and identifying opportunities for 
green roofs on employment buildings (43 responses). These design 
principles will be used to assess future planning applications. 

Page 320



- 5 - 5

 Housing mix – Questions 6-8 of the consultation questionnaire 
focussed on the type, size and tenure of housing to be delivered. The 
greatest preference was for:

o Semi-detached (51 responses), bungalows (49 responses) and 
detached (41 responses) 

o 3 bed (59 responses), 2 bed (51 responses) and 4 bed (35 
responses)

o A mix of market and affordable homes (34 responses)
The Masterplan Framework promotes a range of different housing 
densities creating ‘character areas’ that can accommodate a range of 
house types, tenures and sizes to reflect preferences expressed 
through the public consultation (cross-referencing with the most up-to-
date Strategic Housing Market Assessment). Lower density areas will 
include some single storey properties, with higher density areas 
including 2, 2.5 and 3 storey houses, terrace and townhouses, along 
with a number of apartments (including older persons accommodation 
where appropriate).

 Broadband infrastructure - Following further consultation on the 
delivery of broadband infrastructure, the Masterplan Framework has 
evolved to include a requirement for developers to deploy gigabit-
capable full-fibre broadband infrastructure across the whole Masterplan 
Framework area. This is above and beyond the current requirement for 
full-fibre broadband infrastructure therefore future-proofing the 
development. In addition, the Masterplan Framework will support the 
deployment of broadband infrastructure from a range of providers, this 
will avoid one provider monopolising the new development and offer 
consumers choice and competition. The Masterplan Framework also 
includes design principles to minimise the impact of infrastructure upon 
place making principles, including; visual impact and physical 
obstructions on footpaths and cycleways.

 Crime - The Police Architectural Liaison Officer has been consulted to 
develop design principles which ‘design out’ crime. Feedback from the 
consultation questionnaire considered the following features to be most 
important; well-lit walking and cycle routes (41 responses), linking 
CCTV and lighting (38 responses), and delivering well-overlooked 
greenspaces (36 responses). There is reference to creating safe 
spaces throughout the Masterplan Framework with specific reference to 
appropriate lighting of routes, natural surveillance of the public realm 
and secure storage for cycles at new homes, employment units and 
greenspace facilities. South Yorkshire Police will continue to be 
consulted as planning applications are submitted.

 Design of green space, play spaces and new cricket facility – 
Public feedback indicated that to maximise usage, new facilities should 
be; high-quality that are clean, safe and well-maintained (53 
responses), a range of facilities to attract all age groups (38 
responses), and well-located facilities accessed by 
footpaths/cycleways. The illustrative layout and text in the Masterplan 
Framework has been informed by the public consultation feedback and 
comments from the English Cricket Board (ECB) and Sport England. 
The Masterplan Framework shows a new cricket facility at the heart of 

Page 321



- 6 - 6

the residential development along with a children’s play area which 
creates a strong focal point. This provision along with green corridors 
throughout the Masterplan Framework area will provide a range of 
formal and informal spaces. Design principles within the Masterplan 
Framework emphasise the need for over-looking of green spaces, 
clean and well-maintained signage, appropriate surfacing, lighting and 
resting places throughout the development. These principles seek to 
maximise usage and provide a range of formal and informal spaces to 
attract all age groups.

4.4 The Hoyland North Masterplan Framework area has the capacity to deliver 
765 housing units across three sites (HS56, HS64, and HS66) and 37 
hectares of employment land. The development of such a large area of land to 
meet the identified and accepted need for new jobs and homes will have some 
inevitable adverse impacts. In recognition of this, the Masterplan Framework 
includes mitigations and requirements for more detailed work to be undertaken 
at the planning application stage so that further mitigation can be secured if 
required.

4.5 Appendices comprise the following: 

 Appendix 1: Masterplan Framework document 
 Appendix 2: Masterplan Framework Appendices
 Appendix 3: Statement of Community Involvement 
 Appendix 4: Equalities Impact Assessment

 Appendix A: Financial Implications (not required)

4.6 As well as having regard to all necessary Planning Policy and Supplementary 
Planning Document (SPD) requirements, the Hoyland North Framework 
document also considers:

 Topographical constraints
 Existing biodiversity assets 
 Coal mining legacy 
 Access and potential crossing requirements 
 Impact upon the Strategic Road Network
 Travel planning 
 Public Rights of Way and the relationship with the Trans Pennine Trail
 Heritage assets – Hoyland Lowe Stand and buffer
 Archaeological constraints
 Climate change and sustainability
 Infrastructure phasing and delivery
 School place planning
 Public health and service planning
 Delivery of open space
 New formal recreation facilities
 Air quality
 Acoustic measures

Page 322



- 7 - 7

 Utilities including broadband infrastructure

5. Consideration of alternative approaches

5.1 The Council could have instructed an independent masterplanning consultant 
to produce the Masterplan Framework however the Council has worked in 
partnership with developers to shape the scope and format of the document, 
including the process for public consultation. This approach is consistent with 
the Local Plan which promotes working with developers, partners and 
agencies to facilitate development on key sites.

6. Proposal and justification

6.1 It is recommended that Full Council approve the proposal to adopt the 
Hoyland North Masterplan Framework.

6.2 The Masterplan Framework will allow development to come forward on 
strategic sites, ensuring that new developments positively support, and 
contribute to, existing communities, their services and infrastructure.

7. Implications for local people / service users

7.1 The Hoyland North Masterplan Framework will support the development of 
significant housing and employment growth across this Principal Town. The 
consultation process has allowed the local community and its stakeholders to 
help in the shaping and phasing of development in a comprehensive manner. 
The Masterplan Framework addresses key issues raised through the public 
consultation (see paragraph 4.3).

7.2 Ultimately, the aim is to ensure environmental, social and economic conditions 
are balanced in order to promote sustainable development for the benefit of 
local place and service users. The Masterplan Framework creates an 
appropriate framework to help achieve this but it will not be until a planning 
application is received that a detailed assessment can be undertaken to 
confirm for definite whether the proposed development of the site reflects the 
requirements of the Local Plan as a whole and is acceptable when taking into 
account other material planning considerations such as the Masterplan 
Framework and suite of Supplementary Planning Documents.

8. Financial implications
8.1 Consultations have taken place with representatives of the Service Director – 

Finance (S151 Officer).

8.2 This report seeks Full Council approval for the adoption of the spatial 
framework, in respect of the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework.

8.3 The cost of the masterplan work has already been agreed and funded by the 
developers, Local Plan surplus and Local Capacity Fund.

8.4 There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report.

Page 323



- 8 - 8

8.5 The financial implications of the overall implementation of the masterplan 
works and specifically any costs associated with the key issues highlighted in 
paragraph 7.1 will be subject of further report to Members, once the outcome 
is finalised.

8.6 The Masterplan Framework if approved will contribute to the Council’s core 
Council Tax and Business Rate income target currently included in the 
ongoing medium term financial strategy.

9. Employee implications

9.1 There are no issues arising directly from this report.

10. Communications implications

10.1 A Communications Strategy and Statement of Community Involvement has 
been produced for the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework.

11. Consultations
11.1 Consultations have already been undertaken with the Portfolio Holder for 

PLACE, Local Members, Historic England, Highways England, Sport England 
and English Cricket Board as well as local stakeholders, residents and 
businesses through the public consultation exercise. 

12. The Corporate Plan and the Council’s Performance Management 
Framework

12.1 The Local Plan is a key Council strategy document that will support the 
achievement of each of the three main priorities set out in the Corporate Plan 
and the 8 Town Spirit objectives. The Masterplan Framework document will 
ensure that housing and employment growth is delivered in a comprehensive 
manner with the support of the local communities they will enhance. 

13. Tackling Health Inequalities

13.1 A Health Impact Assessment was produced to consider the Local Plan 
proposals on health. This considered the impact of the various policies within 
the plan on the health of various communities as well as whether they 
contribute to the ambitions of the Corporate Plan and reduce health 
inequalities. It concluded that as a whole the plan would potentially improve 
the health of residents and help address health inequalities. 

13.2 A representative from Public Health is a member of the masterplan board and 
has assisted in the production of a DRAFT Health Impact Assessment for the 
Hoyland North Masterplan Framework. This will continue to evolve as 
planning applications come forward.

14. Climate Change & Sustainable Energy Act 2006

14.1 The Masterplan Framework includes key principles relating to sustainability 
and energy usage, in line with national policy and the adopted Local Plan 

Page 324



- 9 - 9

policies. Sustainability is a golden thread which runs through all sections of 
the Masterplan Framework, particularly with regards to travel and overarching 
design principles for all aspects of new development. Paragraph 4.3 confirms 
how the Masterplan Framework has evolved following declaration of the 
climate emergency. 

 15. Risk Management Issues

15.1 There is a risk that the Masterplan Framework is not well received by the local 
community. However, the community consultation exercise has presented an 
opportunity to involve local communities at an early stage to ensure that the 
Masterplan Framework addresses key concerns and is shaped by the views of 
the local community. Given the robust community consultation it is considered 
that the final version of the Masterplan Framework has been prepared with 
support of the local communities. In addition, all sites were consulted upon as 
part of the Local Plan consultation process. 

16. Promoting Equality & Diversity and Social Inclusion
16.1 The Local Plan was subject to an overarching Equalities Impact Assessment 

which considered its policies and procedures. This concluded that all policies 
and proposals apply to all sectors of the community equally. The policies 
make provision for a range of housing types to meet differing needs. The 
design policy D1 also seeks to ensure that development is designed to be 
accessible to all. The SPD’s and Masterplan Framework have been prepared 
in the context of these policies to ensure that equality, diversity and social 
inclusion are promoted. 

17. List of Appendices

 Appendix 1: Masterplan Framework document 
 Appendix 2: Masterplan Framework Appendices
 Appendix 3: Statement of Community Involvement 
 Appendix 4: Equalities Impact Assessment

 Appendix A: Financial Implications (not required)

Office Contact:        Sarah Cartwright                  Date:   10/12/2019           

Page 325



This page is intentionally left blank



HOYLAND NORTH BARNSLEY
Masterplan Framework Report

December 2019

P
age 327



2 Masterplan Framework Report

P
age 328



Hoyland North Barnsley 3

01 Vision and introduction

02  Understanding the site and context

03  Review of planning policies

04  Technical baseline analysis

05 Design process

06 Masterplan framework

07 Infrastructure requirements

08 Implementation and delivery

09  Summary

10  Glossary and appendices

06

10

26

28

36

46

64

70

74

76

Contents

Document Verification

Client: Barnsley council, Harworth Group and Hoyland Development Ltd.
Project: Hoyland North, Barnsley 
Job number: A098949-046   
Document title: Masterplan Framework Report   
Status: Final   
Date: December 2019  
Document reference: A098949-046-50

This report is copyright: © WYG Environment Planning Transport Limited, 2019 All 
drawings and photographs are by WYG Environment Planning Transport Limited unless 
stated otherwise. Drawings based on the Ordnance Survey material with the permission of 
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown 
Copyright 1000240. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

WYG
 
Quay West at MediaCityUK, Trafford Wharf Road, 
Trafford Park, Manchester, M17 1HH
Tel: +44 (0)161 872 3223    
  
www.wyg.com

P
age 329



4 Masterplan Framework Report

Figures
• Figure 1: Wider site location - Page 

10
• Figure 2: Key views into/out of site 

- Page 11
• Figure 3: Historical development - 

Page 13
• Figure 4: Local facilities - Page 19
• Figure 5: Wider green infrastructure 

- Page 21
• Figure 6: Site location - Page 22
• Figure 7: Land ownership - Page 23
• Figure 8: Extract from Local Plan - 

Page 27
• Figure 9: Technical constraints - 

Page 29
• Figure 10: Urban design analysis - 

Page 35
• Figure 11: Option A - Page 40
• Figure 12: Option B - Page 41
• Figure 13: Option C - Page 42
• Figure 14: Masterplan framework - 

Page 47

• Figure 15: Urban design/
placemaking - Page 49

• Figure 16: Landscape and green 
infrastructure - Page 51

• Figure 17: Movement framework - 
Page 55

• Figure 18: Character areas - Page 
59

• Figure 19: Phasing - Page 71

Tables 
• Table 1: Technical supporting 

documents
• Table 2: Breakdown of land 

ownership areas
• Table 3: Barnsley council’s 

Greenspace Assessment (2016)
• Table 4: Land use budget 
• Table 5: Residential and 

employment trajectory rates

Technical supporting documents commissioned for the Masterplan Framework

Discipline Title Company Reference No. Date
Transportation Transport and Access Appraisal Report Fore Consulting Version 4.0 28 May 2019

Transportation Hoyland Transport and Access Report 
(Version 4.0) Review AECOM Version 4.0 June 2019

Transportation Interim Travel Plan Optima 19186-P1 28 October 2019

Transportation Shortwood Roundabout 
Supplementary Highway Capacity Note Mosodi 18005-P1 November 2019

Drainage Drainage and Flood Risk Statement JPG Consulting 5003 – 1.v.1 2 December 2016

Drainage Drainage Strategy JPG Consulting
5003-JPG-XX-00-
DR-D-1403-SO-
PO1

April 2019

Drainage Foul Water Drainage Strategy for the 
Commercial Plots JPG Consulting 5003-JPG-XX-XX-

BN-1400-S2-P01 November 2019

Utilities Hoyland Masterplan – Utility Services 
Report

Silcock Leedham 
Consulting Engineers 11222 Rev P3 30 October 2019

Ground 
Investigation/Land 

Stability
Depth of Made Ground Drawing JPG Consulting

5003-JPG-ZZ-XX-
DR-G-1203-S1-
PO1

February 2019

Ground 
Investigation/Land 

Stability
Drawing Showing Previous Intrusive 
Investigation JPG Consulting 5003-SK18 February 2019

Ground Investigation Technical Briefing Note JPG Consulting 5003-JPG-XX-XX-
BN-0400-S2-P01 November 2019

Ground Investigation Phase 1 Ground Conditions Report 
Land at Rockingham (ES14) WSP 70019822-001 March 2016

Ground Investigation Phase 2 Ground Conditions Report Plot 
2 (ES14) WSP 70018922-1602 October 2016

Ground Investigation Desk Study Report HCA Land Plot 2 
(EC14) Abbeydale 151066DS January 2017

Ground Investigation Ground Investigation Report Abbeydale 151087GI September 2019

Table 1: Technical supporting documents

P
age 330



Hoyland North Barnsley 5

This page has been left intentionally blank

P
age 331



6 Masterplan Framework Report

Vision and 
introduction

The green infrastructure will 
enable connectivity and integration 
of the new development with 
existing communities and provide 
strong, convenient connections 
to existing services and facilities 
within Hoyland and to the new 
employment areas along the Dearne 
Valley Parkway.

The new communities will be of a 
high-quality build and landscape 
design that responds sensitively and 
positively to the unique historic and 
natural landscape, townscape and 
topography.

A golden thread running through 
the Masterplan Framework process 
is health and well-being principles 
and sustainability initiatives.

Homes overlooking the ‘village green’ and ‘heart’ of the community

VISION
Good planning is about creating 
places where people want to live, 
work and spend time. Importantly, the 
Masterplan Framework exercise has 
developed an overall vision for the 
Hoyland North site as follows: 

Create a mixed-use community 
comprising around 765 new homes 
and 37 hectares of employment land 
with associated infrastructure to 
the north of Hoyland’s urban area 
set within a greenspace network 
that supports multi-functions and 
activities (e.g. health, biodiversity, 
drainage, recreation, play, formal 
sport and community events).

The cricket ovals and pavilion will 
be the ‘heart’ of the community, 
creating a focal point and centre for 
the surrounding residents.

01

P
age 332



Hoyland North Barnsley 7

PURPOSE OF THE MASTERPLAN 
FRAMEWORK 
Hoyland North comprises the 
collection of housing and employment 
sites allocated in the council’s Local 
Plan which was adopted on 3 January 
2019. When the Local Plan was being 
examined, it was agreed that for some 
larger sites it was necessary to prepare 
Masterplan Frameworks with the key 
purposes being as follows: 
• To demonstrate that in principle 

each allocation is capable of being 
developed without significant 
issues; 

• To enable comprehensive, efficient 
and timely delivery of development 
including essential infrastructure 
requirements; 

• To make sure high-quality design is 
achieved. 

The Local Plan sets out the definition 
and content of the Masterplan 
Framework at paragraph 6.12.

It states: “Planning policy summary, 
site location and description, land 
ownership, a summary of the 
existing evidence, site evaluation 
(opportunities and constraints), 
land use framework, sustainable 
movement framework, protection of 
existing public rights of way routes 
and their incorporation within new 
development layouts, vehicular 
movement framework, green and 
blue infrastructure framework, 
place-making framework (including 
design guides for character and 
neighbourhood areas where 
applicable), sustainability and 
energy use, health and well-being, 
design evolution, conceptual 
masterplan, infrastructure and 
delivery phasing. Masterplan 
Frameworks shall be subject 
to public consultation and be 
approved by the Council prior to 
the determination of any planning 
applications on the affected sites. 
Each Masterplan will be bespoke and 
therefore will be considered on a 
case by case basis”.

SUMMARY OF THE PROPOSALS
Hoyland North Masterplan Framework 
comprises employment and residential 
allocations including: 
• Approximately 765 homes 

including a range of sizes, types 
and tenures;

• Employment sites within Use 
Classes B1(c), B2 and B8 – light 
industrial, general industry, storage 
and distribution;

• Delivery of cricket facilities;
• Strategic multi-functional green 

infrastructure;
• Strategic sustainable urban 

drainage (SuDS).

A requirement of the Masterplan 
Framework process is for local 
residents and stakeholders to be 
provided with an opportunity to 
feed back. There has been effective 
engagement and the final version 
of the Masterplan Framework has 
taken into account the feedback. 
The Masterplan Framework has been 
approved on 19 December 2019 
by the full council and is a material 
consideration in the determination of 
future planning applications.

PARTNERSHIP APPROACH
Throughout the Masterplan Framework 
process Barnsley council has been 
working with developers and land 
promoters who have the largest land 
interests. These are Harworth Group 
(ES17) and Hoyland Developments 
Limited (HS56, HS64 and HS66). 
Developers who have smaller land 
interests on sites which make up ES14 
have also been consulted in shaping 
the Masterplan Framework. 

P
age 333



8 Masterplan Framework Report

LAND OWNERSHIP AND CURRENT 
PLANNING STATUS
There are multiple land ownerships 
within the Masterplan Framework. The 
following list provides a summary of 
land ownership for each Local Plan site 
allocation: 
• HS64/HS66/HS56 – These sites 

are owned by the Fitzwilliam 
Wentworth Estate with Hoyland 
Development Limited advancing 
them for residential development 
through a land promotion 
agreement;

• ES17 – Harworth Group own the 
site and are actively promoting the 
allocation for employment uses; 

• ES14 (Eastern parcel) – Owned by 
Barnsley council who are in the 
process of disposing of the site;

• ES14 (Central Parcel) – Owned by 
Ernest V Waddington Limited who 
are promoting the site for a range 
of employment uses;

• ES14 (Western Parcel) – Owned 
by Hartwood Estates Ltd who are 
promoting the site for a range of 
employment uses;

• Mr Reckless – Owns a small parcel 
of land within site allocation ES14 
to the south of the eastern parcel 

owned by Barnsley council. There 
is no development proposed 
within this parcel of the Masterplan 
Framework area.

THE PROFESSIONAL TEAM
This report draws on the practical 
experience and knowledge of the 
respective technical experts: 
• WYG have acted as lead planning 

and Masterplan consultants to steer 
and coordinate the technical work 
and provide the design principles 
and analysis;

• Fore Consulting has been 
responsible for preparing the 
transport assessment work which 
has informed the highway junction 
analysis as well as the accessibility 
and sustainability strategy;

• Silcock Leedham has identified 
the existing utilities present on site 
and the potential constraints and 
opportunities imposed by them. 
They have estimated the service 
loads required to supply electricity, 
gas and water to the proposed 
development;

• JPG Consulting have provided 
inputs in relation to ground 
investigation and land stability 

issues to address the historic 
underground and open-cast mining 
that has taken place on the site;

• Contributions from a range of 
officers from Barnsley council in 
relation to transport, education, 
health and wellbeing, recreation 
provision, biodiversity and drainage 
have influenced and informed 
decisions.

PROCESS FOR PREPARING THE 
MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK
This report is a concise document 
that builds upon the evidence base 
that was progressed to justify the site 
allocations during the preparation of 
the now adopted Local Plan. 

Set against the policy context in 
the adopted Local Plan, this report 
examines the capacity of the sites 
based on the opportunities and 
constraints.

A preferred Masterplan Framework 
plan has been identified which is 
underpinned by a set of framework 
plans to address the following themes: 
• Transport and movement; 
• Green and blue infrastructure;

• Placemaking. 

The rationale behind these framework 
plans is explained in order to 
understand how the preferred 
Masterplan Framework Plan has been 
shaped and evolved. 

The report then examines an approach 
to delivery and the identification of 
critical strategic infrastructure required 
for each phase of development. A 
key tool in preparing the Masterplan 
Framework is the Infrastructure 
Delivery Schedule (IDS) found 
in appendix 7 that identifies the 
type, location and phasing of new 
infrastructure.

This Masterplan Framework represents 
a point in time that has been reached 
between the key parties based on 
the evidence received and evaluated 
to date. It seeks to achieve a policy 
compliant development that delivers 
the overarching vision.

Whilst key ‘fixes’ have been agreed 
as part of the Masterplan Framework 
process, it is important to note that 
as further information and evidence 

becomes available, priorities may 
change. Given the high-level nature of 
this Masterplan Framework process, 
the scheme will continue to evolve, 
and so certain features of the scheme 
will remain flexible and subject to 
further refinement as discussions move 
forward with key parties and further 
technical work emerges. 

The contents of this Masterplan 
Framework provide a clear set of 
assumptions to give the certainty 
required to help make informed 
decisions about the scale and nature 
of future planning applications. Any 
specific changes that may emerge 
following the approval of the 
Masterplan Framework will be dealt 
with and reviewed as part of any 
planning applications submitted. 

01

P
age 334



Hoyland North Barnsley 9

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT
A requirement of the Masterplan 
Framework was for residents and 
stakeholders to be provided with 
an opportunity to feed back on the 
draft plans and the main themes. 
The Masterplan Framework has been 
advanced following meaningful 
engagement with a wide section 
of the community to make sure 
that the proposal reflects the vision 
and priorities of present and future 
communities. The approach adopted 
and the feedback received is set out 
within the Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI) report which is a 
supporting document listed at the 
front of this document.

The SCI report and the evolving design 
process outlined in section 5 of the 
Masterplan Framework identify the 
key changes that have been made as 
a result of stakeholder and community 
engagement. 

P
age 335



10 Masterplan Framework Report

STRATEGIC CONTEXT
The site is located on the northern 
edge of Hoyland Common, 
approximately 9.6km (6 miles) south 
east of Barnsley with Rotherham just 
over 11km (7 miles) to the south east. 
Sheffield city centre lies 12km (7 miles) 
south of the site and Doncaster is 
located 25km (16 miles) to the east. 
Leeds city centre, due north of the site, 
is 50 minutes via train and 30 minutes 
by car at a distance of approximately 
30km.

Figure 1: Wider site location (Source: Esri. Digital Globe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, 
and the GIS User Community) (Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database rights 2018)

Hoyland North

Sheffield

Rotherham

Manchester

Chester

Liverpool

Preston

PEAK DISTRICT

THE PENNINES

SHERWOOD FOREST

Doncaster

Scunthorpe

Hull

Lincoln

Nottingham

Barnsley

York

M
1Huddersfield

Bradford Leeds

Understanding 
the site and 
context

02

NorthP
age 336



Wentworth Castle

Hoyland Lowe Stand

HOYLAND COMMON

HOYLAND

BIRDWELL

BLACKER HILL

Key views across valley

St Peter’s Church

WORSBROUGH

STAINBROUGH

Hoyland North Barnsley 11

WIDER CONTEXT
There are several long-distance views 
to and from the Masterplan Framework 
area including Hoyland Lowe Stand, St 
Peter’s Church, and Wentworth Castle. 
These key views to local landmarks 
should be carefully considered 

THE SITE
The plan below illustrates where the 
Masterplan Framework area lies within 
Hoyland.

Figure 2: Key views into/out of site (Source: Google Earth © 2019 Infoterra Ltd and Bluesky)

Bird’s eye view site location from west (Source: Harworth Group)

M1

DEA
RNE V

ALL
EY

 PA
RKWAY

SHEFFIELD ROAD

Kirk Balk 
Playing Fields

Hoyland 
Lowe Stand

throughout the Masterplan Framework 
process. Further detail is provided later 
in this document.

NorthP
age 337



12 Masterplan Framework Report

HISTORICAL DEVELOPMENT
The historic maps adjacent show how 
the Masterplan Framework area has 
developed over time.

It is evident that the majority of 
built form was constructed in the 
1930-1950s. These maps also show 
the important crossroad junction of 
Sheffield Road and Hoyland Road was 
established as early as 1895.

There was a railway that ran north of 
the site, which served Rockingham 
Colliery. The site had a reservoir within 
it and opened between 1873 and 1979 
(source: nmrs.org.uk). The site was then 
used as a tip however this use has now 
ceased. 

The A6195 Dearne Valley Parkway (dual 
carriageway section) opened in 1998.

The plan (figure 3) opposite illustrates 
how development has expanded 
within the locality. Built form was 
originally established along Sheffield 
Road, Hoyland Road and High Street. 
Between 1901 and 1950 development 
has been predominantly focused 
around these areas with wider growth 

1895 (© Crown Copyright and Database Rights (2019) 100022264)

1948 (© Crown Copyright and Database Rights (2019) 100022264)

1930 (© Crown Copyright and Database Rights (2019) 100022264)

1990 (© Crown Copyright and Database Rights (2019) 100022264)

02

P
age 338



Hoyland North Barnsley 13

Figure 3: Historical development

KEY

to the north and south of Hoyland 
occurring from 1950 onwards.

There are several listed buildings in 
Hoyland and Birdwell. Two of these 
listed buildings are Grade II Listed 
namely, Hoyland Lowe Stand and St. 
Peter’s Church along Hawshaw Lane 
to the south east of the Masterplan 
Framework area. To the south west 
of the Masterplan Framework area is 
a scheduled monument, Dovecote at 
Glebe Farm approximately 940m away. 
Elsecar Conservation lies just over 2km 
away from the Masterplan Framework 
area.

North

P
age 339



14 Masterplan Framework Report

Examples of surrounding employment built form (Source: Google Earth © 2019 Infoterra 
Ltd and Bluesky)/Harworth Group)

View from Wentworth Castle, north west 
of the Masterplan Framework area

Colour palette based 
on the surrounding 
landscape shown 
below

Colour palette based 
on employment 
built form examples 
adjacent

02
LOCAL CHARACTER
It is important to recognise the existing 
local character around Hoyland, so that 
future proposals for the Masterplan 
Framework area can reflect the local 
character within the materials, design 
and scale.

Employment character
There are various scales and sizes 
of employment built form around 
Hoyland. This is reflected in the images 
opposite. However, future proposals 
should go further to incorporate local 
colours and materials that would sit 
more comfortably with the natural 
landscape.

a) Scale and massing
Existing local employment units vary 
in size, depending on the use, from 
large warehouses to smaller office 
units. The design of the building 
should be appropriate for its end 
employment use and seek to minimise 
visual harm upon the wider landscape. 
All employment units should have a 
‘human scale’ frontage to assist with 
legibility.

Building forms should be 
uncomplicated, high-quality and 
compliment the wider landscape 
character.

Service yards should not be dominant 
features from the link road and Dearne 
Valley Parkway. Careful consideration 
should be given to the security of 
employment units and service yards 
so that security fencing does not 
detract from the overall development. 
Developers will also need to consider 
ecologically sensitive lighting in order 
to minimise harm to biodiversity. 

b) Colours and materials
The materials and colours used for 
units nearest the site are similar in 
colour, being of white or grey, with 
the exception of a blue unit with 
yellow stripes. It is crucial that the 
employment units are sympathetic 
to the surrounding natural landscape 
and complement the local area. New 
development should not seek to take 
design cues from existing employment 
buildings where they contrast with the 
natural landscape. Proposals should 
seek to enhance the distinctiveness of 
the area.

P
age 340



Hoyland North Barnsley 15

In addition to the built form colour 
palette based on surrounding 
employment built form, shown to the 
left, the accompanying colour palette 
demonstrates the neutral tones of 
the surrounding landscape. From a 
viewpoint looking towards the site 
from Wentworth Castle, north east 
of the Masterplan Framework area 
which has key views to Hoyland Lowe 
Stand, it is clear that the proposed 
employment area must respond 
sensitively to the surrounding context 
and demonstrate an awareness of 
mid and long-range views to and 
from Hoyland Lowe Stand. Materials 
will need to respect the setting of 
the heritage assets and provide 
consistency across the Masterplan 
Framework area.

c) Rooflines
The roofs on the existing commercial 
units consistently present hipped 
roofs with a central ridge. The majority 
of rooflines have a low angled pitch 
which lowers the overall height of 
the units, appearing almost flat from 
a distance. Proposals should explore 
opportunities for green roofs in order 
to soften the appearance of roofscapes 
and deliver biodiversity and drainage 
gains.

P
age 341



16 Masterplan Framework Report

02
Residential character
An assessment of the building form, 
materials, use of space and landscape 
within the vicinity of the Masterplan 
Framework area has been undertaken 
to inform the key principles and design 
character of the residential proposals. 

a) Materials
Residential building materials vary 
within the vicinity of the masterplan 
area. More traditional buildings, 
including a number of listed buildings 
and structures, have been constructed 
using coursed sandstone with slate 
roofs. More recently constructed 
buildings present a range of brick 
colours including red, brown and 
buff. Render is not uncommon, and 
is a feature on the upper storeys 
of buildings to the south of the 
masterplan area. Rough cast can also 
be seen used in the same style.

b) Rooflines
Residential rooflines typically include 
gable and hipped roofs and cross-hips 
are a common feature. Steep pitches 
featuring gable dormer windows are 
typical. There are also examples of 
eyebrow dormers in places. Chimney 

stacks are typical of housing of 
varying ages within the vicinity of the 
masterplan area. The roof form within 
the Masterplan Framework housing 
allocation sites will be informed by 
the density and character in each area. 
There may be opportunities to include 
a range of rooflines/features in order 
to provide visual interest and help new 
development to follow the topography 
of the land.

c) Details/styles
Detailing on nearby residential 
buildings includes large quoins 
(both modern and traditional), stone 
lintels and patterned brickwork. Sash 
windows are common on traditional 
properties, however a range of window 
styles can be seen in Hoyland.

b) Front boundary treatments
Front gardens of nearby properties 
range from small areas, predominantly 
along the frontage of terraces 
properties, to large, grassed front 
gardens, many featuring mature trees 
fronting the street. 

These spaces are typically bounded 
by stone or brick walls. There are 
examples of dry stone walls in the area, 
as well as low stone walls, or brick 
walls with fences. Gateposts emphasise 
the key access points. The landscaped 
areas to the front of properties make 
a positive contribution towards the 
residential setting and demonstrate the 
importance of incorporating feature 
landscaping along the streetscene.

P
age 342



Hoyland North Barnsley 17

Details/styles

Rooflines

Front boundary treatments Colour palette of 
local residential 
built form

Materials

P
age 343



18 Masterplan Framework Report

LOCAL FACILITIES
As the facilities plan opposite 
illustrates, there are an array of 
amenities and facilities available in 
close proximity to the site. 

From a 2km walking catchment radius 
measured from an indicative central 
point within the entire Masterplan 
Framework area, it has been 
demonstrated that future residents and 
employees at the various sites will be 
within walking distance of the areas of 
Hoyland Common, Birdwell, Tankersley 
and Blacker Hill as well as the majority 
of Hoyland Principle Town. This means 
that commuter journeys to and from 
these areas can be undertaken on 
foot subject to suitable infrastructure 
connections.

Within 400m of the site there are a 
range of local shops associated with 
Hoyland Common local centre to the 
south, with an Aldi supermarket to the 
west of the site.

Due to the close proximity of 
Hoyland town centre to the east, 
there are an abundance of local retail 
facilities within the recognised 2km 

walking distance, primarily between 
Southgate, Milton Road and the 
B6097 High Street. The Hoyland Local 
Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) 
centre is located between Milton Road 
and High Croft. A briefing note from 
the Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) can be found in appendix 2.
 
The nearest dental practice (Fern 
Cottage Dental Practice) is located 
on the northern side of the B6096 
Hoyland Road, to the south west 
of the Masterplan Framework area. 
Further dental provision (Hoyland 
Family Dental Centre) is available on 
the western side of Milton Road within 
Hoyland town centre. 

The nearest primary school (West 
Meadows Primary School) is located 
adjacent to the junction with the 
B6096 Hawshaw Lane and West Street. 
Hoyland Common Primary School 
is located to the west of the A6135 
Sheffield Road. Further primary schools 
are located to the east of the site (St 
Helens Catholic School and Hoyland 
Spring Wood Primary School). 

The nearest secondary school (Kirk 

Balk Academy) is located east/south-
east of West Meadows Primary School. 
Refer to appendix 6 to see plans 
showing schools in the Hoyland area.

PUBLIC TRANSPORT
There are frequent bus services 
operating from various bus stops 
surrounding the site. Four bus stops 
are located on the northern and 
southern side of the B6096 Hawshaw 
Lane/Hoyland Road. Bus stops are also 
provided along the A6135 Sheffield 
Road and to the north west of the 
Masterplan Framework area along the 
A61 Sheffield Road. Collectively the 
bus stops provide access to the No.2, 
66, 67, 67a, 67b, 67c, 72, 72a, 482 and 
X17 bus services. 

As part of a combined journey, the 
Masterplan Framework area offers the 
opportunity to travel further afield 
from Elsecar train station which is 
approximately 2.3km to the south 
east, this is also on a bus route. Cycle 
parking is also available at Elsecar train 
station.

Trains operate half hourly between 
Leeds and Nottingham in both 

directions, Monday to Saturday with 
a reduced service on Sunday. Trains 
also operate between Huddersfield 
and Sheffield, once an hour Monday 
to Sunday calling at local stations 
including Wombwell, Barnsley, 
Wakefield Kirkgate, Penistone as well 
as Chapeltown and Meadowhall.

NATIONAL CYCLE NETWORK
Part of the National Cycle Network 
route is located to the south and south 
east of the Masterplan Framework 
area. This particular section of the 
route runs from Chesterfield to Leeds 
via Elsecar and Barnsley Canal which is 
known as Route 67.

The Trans Pennine Trail runs along the 
disused Barnsley canal from RSPB Old 
Moor to Elsecar Heritage Centre, which 
is approximately 5km (3 miles). This 
can be accessed from the Masterplan 
Framework area via Tankersley Lane or 
Sheffield Road to the west.

02

P
age 344



Hoyland North Barnsley 19

Figure 4: Local facilities

KEY

North

P
age 345



20 Masterplan Framework Report

EXISTING GREEN 
INFRASTRUCTURE
The site is largely reclaimed land 
with relatively young woodland 
plantations and pasture fields 
which are contained by a series of 
hedgerows. Whilst the site is not of 
overall high ecological value, there 
are areas that have been identified as 
being of ecological significance. These 
are located within the western portion 
of site allocation ES17 and another is 
located immediately to the south of 
Shortwood Roundabout in the north 
(HS56); one is a hedgerow in the south 
of HS66; the remainder are woodland 
blocks and certain hedgerows within 
HS64.

All these potential constraints have 
been carefully reviewed to determine 
their value and where possible these 
natural assets have been protected 
as an integral part of the scheme. 
We have assessed the likely impact 
of the development and identified 
an appropriate overarching Green 
Infrastructure strategy that ensures any 
harm is addressed through suitable 
mitigation measures to achieve an 
overall biodiversity net gain of at least 

10 percent and vegetation provision. 
Future planning applications will be 
required to justify any loss of existing 
green infrastructure and provide 
a clear strategy for mitigation/
compensation, where the loss of 
existing green infrastructure is 
unavoidable. Wildlife corridors will be 
provided across the allocated sites.

Within the surrounding area, there is 
a high value ecological area known as 
Shortwood Local Wildlife Site (LWS) 
which lies approximately 400m to the 
north of the Masterplan Framework 
area, beyond the Dearne Valley 
Parkway. There may be the potential 
to deliver an ecological corridor link 
between this designation and the 
ecological area we are proposing 
to protect which is situated within 
the western part of the Masterplan 
Framework area.

There are also several existing 
recreational areas situated in close 
proximity to the site boundaries 
including the playing fields and 
children’s play equipment at King 
George V playing fields to the 
south and enclosed football pitches 

02
managed by Kirk Balk Academy to 
the south east. The location, nature 
and accessibility of these facilities has 
been considered in the context of an 
open space strategy for the Masterplan 
Framework area to make sure relevant 
access standards to recreation 
provision can be achieved for the new 
occupants of the development.

P
age 346



Hoyland North Barnsley 21

Figure 5: Wider green infrastructure

KEY

North

P
age 347



22 Masterplan Framework Report

THE SITE
The Masterplan Framework area 
extends to approximately 67.62 
hectares and is located approximately 
9.6km south east of Barnsley town 
centre. As the plan adjacent shows, it 
is bound by the A6195 Dearne Valley 
Parkway to the north and the existing 
residential development of Hoyland 
Common to the south, east and west; 
with a range of employment and 
supporting uses to the west towards 
the M1.

Site levels
Levels vary throughout the site. The 
land falls from the south east towards 
the north of the Masterplan Framework 
area, these levels are evident on the 
adjacent plan. The average site levels 
range from 175.5m AOD (above 
ordnance datum) around Hoyland 
Lowe Stand to 136.5 AOD south of 
Dearne Valley Parkway (A6195). The 
land in ES14 is flatter, averaging 137m 
AOD.

Figure 6: Site location

KEY

02
North

P
age 348



Hoyland North Barnsley 23

Figure 7: Land ownership

Previous and current use
A large area of the Masterplan 
Framework area has been subject to 
open-cast mining which took place 
in the 1950s and 1970s and was 
known as the Hoyland Common and 
Rockingham Open-cast Site. Following 
backfilling of the mines and the 
completion of a landscape restoration 
programme, the Masterplan 
Framework area has returned to 
agricultural use accommodating 
pasture fields separated by hedgerows 
and semi-mature woodland corridors.

The land in the west closely relates 
to the new Rockingham Roundabout 
layout and these parcels comprise 
disused vacant areas with limited 
vegetation cover. 

LAND OWNERSHIP
There are multiple land ownerships 
within the Masterplan Framework area. 
Refer to page 8 for a detailed land 
ownership breakdown.

North

P
age 349



24 Masterplan Framework Report

Hoyland Lowe Stand

View eastwards across Barnsley council parcel of ES14

Garages in the western area of parcel HS64Photo locations

SITE PHOTOGRAPHY
The images here illustrate the 
Masterplan Framework area’s existing 
character and features. In particular, 
views out of the site, site levels, 
existing vegetation and Hoyland Lowe 
Stand (a Grade II Listed Building) 
immediately to the south east of the 
site boundary.

1 2

3

2

3

4

5

6

7

1

02

P
age 350



Hoyland North Barnsley 25

Views north from the north eastern parcel of HS56

Area of wetland planting around the existing pond in parcel ES17 Looking south from the public right of way running through parcel HS64

Southern views of HS64 from the public right of way running through the site

6

4 5

7

P
age 351



26 Masterplan Framework Report

The Barnsley Local Plan was adopted 
in January 2019 and this document 
provides the starting point in the 
decision-making process regarding 
future development.

The Local Plan sets out a need to 
deliver 2,567 new homes (including 
sites with planning permission) in 
Hoyland up to the end of the plan 
period – 2033. Hoyland is one of six 
Principle Towns in the borough, which 
together with Urban Barnsley are a 
focus for growth. Closely linked with 
the housing requirement is the growth 
of jobs within Hoyland. Policy E2 
confirms the allocation of 110.9ha of 
employment land also to be delivered 
over the period up to 2033. 

Where large-scale growth is 
proposed, certain housing and 
employment allocations have been 

Review of 
planning policies

grouped together where they have 
a strong inter relationship. The Local 
Plan requires the production of a 
Masterplan Framework for larger 
sites and groups of interrelated sites. 
Each Masterplan Framework will be 
unique and make sure developments 
include essential infrastructure. It 
will also reduce any adverse impacts 

Each of the specific allocations within 
the Local Plan refers to a number of 
development principles and these are 
summarised in the Planning Policy 
Audit at appendix 1. The Planning 
Policy Audit also identifies other Local 
Plan policies that are relevant to the 
Masterplan Framework process and 
have been given due consideration in 
terms of shaping the final outcome. 

Within the Planning Policy Audit, other 
material policy considerations have 
been identified in particular a range of 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
(SPD’s). The first tranche of eighteen 
SPD’s dealing with a range of topic 
areas were approved on May 2019. A 
further eight SPD’s were adopted in 
November 2019.

Reference is also made to the council’s 
overarching strategies including; health 

and well-being, employment, energy, 
equality, diversity and inclusion, 
housing and transport, and air quality. 
The aims and objectives of these 
documents have been considered and 
applied to this Masterplan Framework 
process. 

Table 2: Breakdown of Local Plan allocation areas

Site reference Site area (ha) Proposed uses
HS64 – Land North of Hoyland 
Road, Hoyland Common 20.7 615 dwellings

HS56 – Land off Shortwood 
Roundabout, Hoyland 3.2 80 dwellings

HS66 – Land West of Upper 
Hoyland Road 6.14 70 dwellings

Total 30 765 dwellings

Site reference Site area (ha) Proposed uses

ES14 – Rockingham 8.9 Employment/Business, General 
Industry and Storage and Distribution 

ES17 – Land South of Dearne 
Valley Parkway 28.2 Employment/Business/General 

Industry and Storage and Distribution 
Total 37.1

Residential

Employment

03

to acceptable levels and provide 
distinctive, high-quality places that 
successfully merge with the existing 
area in order to deliver sustainable 
communities. 

The site areas relevant to the Hoyland 
North Masterplan Framework site 
allocations can be seen below.

P
age 352



Hoyland North Barnsley 27

Figure 8: Extract from Local Plan (© Crown Copyright and Database Rights (2019). 100022264)

KEY

Hoyland North 
Masterplan Framework
Local Plan housing 
allocation
Local Plan employment
land allocation

North

P
age 353



28 Masterplan Framework Report

A strong technical evidence base 
has been collated, initially as part of 
justifying the site allocations through 
the Local Plan process. A summary 
of these baseline assessments can be 
found in appendix 1.

Further selected studies have been 
commissioned to inform decisions 
regarding the Masterplan Framework 
and these reports are listed at the front 
of this document. These topic areas 
relate to the following:
• Transportation
• Drainage
• Services and utilities
• Ground investigation
• Urban design

These technical reports have allowed 
a more detailed testing of the 
Masterplan Framework layouts and the 
associated Framework plans that can 

Technical 
baseline 
analysis

be found in Section 6.

TECHNICAL CONSTRAINTS AND 
OPPORTUNITIES 
Biodiversity
As part of the Local Plan process the 
site has been subject to ecological 
surveys to identify areas of significant 
value. 

The majority of the site is considered 
to be relatively low-value habitat 
for wildlife including broad leaf 
plantation woodland, semi-improved 
grassland and scrub. The largest area 
of significant ecological value is to 
the west of ES17 which includes an 
existing pond, swamp, semi-improved 
grassland, trees and scattered scrub. 
Other smaller areas of trees and 
hedgerows are also considered to be 
of significant ecological value. These 
features have been influential in 
preparing a Green Infrastructure Plan 
and coordinated Green Infrastructure 
Strategy. The Masterplan Framework 
will seek to retain areas of significant 
ecological value. 

The Masterplan Framework will deliver 
a net biodiversity gain (improve on 

the current situation) of not less than 
10 percent, this may be achieved 
through a combination of on-site 
and off-site compensation measures 
that will be agreed with the council’s 
Biodiversity Officer. This could include 
improvements to nearby Local Wildlife 
Sites (LWS).

At the planning application stage 
developers will provide protected 
species surveys which set out any 
mitigation measures required to 
protect species such as reptiles, bats, 
breeding birds and great-crested 
newts.

Trees
With regards to the trees, the 
Masterplan Framework area is largely 
reclaimed land with relatively young 
plantations although there are a 
number of occasional larger trees. The 
trees, woodlands and hedges within 
the Masterplan Framework area do 
pose a constraint and will need to be 
properly assessed in terms of their 
value and suitability for retention on 
a site by site basis as part of future 
planning applications. There is a strong 
emphasis on retaining these features 

and enhancing them where feasible. 

The level changes across the 
Masterplan Framework area will 
require the removal of a significant 
amount of woodland planting and 
as such significant new tree and 
woodland planting will be essential 
to mitigate for the loss of trees, to 
provide screening and to contribute 
towards the biodiversity gain of the 
Masterplan Framework area.

Visual and landscape character
As part of the Local Plan process a 
Local Character Assessment (LCA) was 
prepared. The Masterplan Framework 
area sits within ‘E4 – Hoyland Settled 
Woodland Farmland’. The character 
of this area is defined by complex 
relationships between previous 
industrial activity (mining), urban 
settlement, arable farmland and 
woodland. 

The assessment concludes that the 
Masterplan Framework area has the 
potential to deliver new development 
with relatively limited harm on the 
landscape character as it is already 
quite urbanised. The assessment 

recommends that the layout of new 
development should incorporate 
landscape features to partially screen 
development from the Dearne Valley 
Parkway (A6195) and wider area.

Whilst there is an existing network of 
green infrastructure running through 
the area, it is of low to moderate 
value as confirmed in the Local Plan 
Biodiversity Assessment. The most 
sensitive features including trees, 
hedgerows and vegetation will 
be retained, however there is the 
opportunity to reshape the landscape 
setting to strengthen the character 
and achieve a multi-functional role 
including supporting wildlife corridors 
and providing access to greenspace 
for residents, as well as creating focal 
points for placemaking opportunities. 

Services and utilities
There is an existing 11kV overhead 
powerline running through site 
allocation HS64, although it is assumed 
this will be redirected underground as 
part of the development of this site 
allocation.

04

P
age 354



Hoyland North Barnsley 29

Figure 9: Technical constraints

KEY

There is also a water pumping station 
located within the south west area 
of HS64 that creates a physical and 
visual constraint within the site. Careful 
consideration will be required to make 
sure that this feature sits comfortably 
within the residential development.

North

P
age 355



30 Masterplan Framework Report

Ground conditions
Deep underground mining on the 
Masterplan Framework sites (at depths 
of between 60-440m) ceased in 
1977, meaning the ground should be 
stable enough to accommodate new 
development. However, a large area 
has been subject to open-cast mining 
which took place in the 1950s and 
1970s and was known as the Hoyland 
Common and Rockingham Open-cast 
Site.

When the site was backfilled (new 
material imported to replace the coal 
that had been removed) it was not 
compacted to create development 
platforms. JPG are currently exploring 
engineering solutions to make sure 
that all new development does not 
suffer from differential settlement 
(subsidence). The pink areas identified 
on the Technical Constraints Plan show 
areas of high wall (where backfilled 
ground meets untouched ground). This 
may limit the level of development 
at these locations however JPG 
are working to identify practical 
engineering solutions (without being 
excessively costly) to reduce this 
constraint to allow the high walls to 

be partially remediated (stabilised) 
so that the maximum amount of land 
is available for development. The 
remediation strategies would need to 
be undertaken on a case by case basis.

Flood risk and drainage strategy
The Masterplan Framework area lies 
within Flood Zone 1 and is therefore 
at low risk of flooding from fluvial 
sources (rivers and streams). All 
planning applications over one hectare 
will be accompanied by a Flood Risk 
Assessment, this will be assessed by 
Barnsley council and the Environment 
Agency.
• Surface water - Given that the 

Masterplan Framework area has 
been subject to open-cast and 
underground mining, it is not 
recommended that surface water 
is allowed to soak-away into the 
ground. A Drainage Strategy 
has been developed for the site 
by JPG and this recommends 
sustainable drainage systems 
including detention basins (wet or 
dry basins which hold water during 
wet periods). Water would then be 
released at a controlled rate into a 
positive discharge point (an existing 

watercourse). The Sustainable 
Urban Drainage (SuDs) detention 
basins are shown on the Technical 
Constraints Plan and these could 
serve the individual allocations 
or deliver a combined solution 
for new developments within the 
Masterplan Framework. Subject 
to further consideration there 
may also be the opportunity to 
investigate swales (grass-covered 
channels which allow surface water 
to flow overland) throughout the 
Masterplan Framework area, and 
a combination of above ground 
attenuation measures alongside 
underground tanks and oversized 
pipes. 

• Foul water - There is a 375mm 
diameter public combined sewer in 
Hoyland Road and it is envisaged 
that the residential development 
could discharge into this network. 
There is currently a pumping 
station within the Masterplan 
Framework area (HS64) and due to 
site levels it may be necessary to 
direct foul water via the pumping 
station.

The proposed strategy for 

discharging foul water drainage 
generated from ES14 and ES17 is to 
connect to an existing public foul 
water sewer (150 diameter) located 
to the north of the Dearne Valley 
Parkway. Further work is required 
on the design and construction of 
the connecting infrastructure as 
this will be located on land owned 
by Harworth Group and Barnsley 
council. 

Heritage
There are no designated heritage 
assets within the Masterplan 
Framework area and it does not lie 
in a conservation area. The nearest 
significant heritage assets are Hoyland 
Lowe Stand (Grade II Listed Building) 
and St Peter’s Church (also a Grade 
II Listed Building) both of which lie 
beyond the south eastern extent of the 
Masterplan Framework area. The Local 
Plan site allocation policy for HS66 
requires a no development buffer 
around Hoyland Lowe Stand (shown 
as green hatching on the Technical 
Constraints Plan). The extent of this 
constraint has been confirmed by 
Historic England.

The Masterplan Framework will need 
to give careful consideration to the 
design, scale and positioning of 
new development on HS66 as well 
as the design and maintenance of 
new landscaping. The layout of new 
development should also maximise 
views of the heritage assets from 
within the site and the wider area. It 
should also consider views from the 
Lowe Stand. This will help to contribute 
towards the character of the new 
development. 

The heritage assets of Hoyland Lowe 
Stand and St Peter’s Church present 
an opportunity to develop the identity 
and character of the development as 
well as create and frame important 
views and vistas.

Archaeology
In terms of below ground heritage 
assets, the initial evidence suggests 
that there are no buried archaeological 
remains of value, this is due to the 
open-cast mining of the site. Where 
the ground remains undisturbed, 
there may be archaeological remains, 
however desktop work suggests 
that any remains would not be 

04

P
age 356



Hoyland North Barnsley 31

sufficiently significant to prevent future 
development.

At the planning application stage 
developers will be required to submit 
an appropriate archaeological 
investigation, this may include intrusive 
investigations (trial trenching). 

Access
There is potential for a range of access 
points into the Masterplan Framework 
area to access new residential and 
employment development. A key 
aspect of the transport strategy for 
the development is achieving a link 
road between Dearne Valley Parkway 
(A6195) to the north with the B6096 
Hawshaw Lane to the south to divert 
traffic from the development away 
from Hoyland Common. It has been 
identified that a link road is required 
prior to the delivery of more than 250 
dwellings associated with allocation 
HS64. This is due to capacity issues as 
the initial phases of this development 
will access onto Hoyland Road and 
Hawshaw Lane and there are potential 
capacity issues at the junction of 
Hoyland Road/Sheffield Road to 
the south west of the Masterplan 

Framework area, which will be relieved 
once the link road is constructed. 

The development parcels associated 
with site allocation ES14 will be 
accessed from a number of entry 
points specifically designed off 
the newly created Rockingham 
Roundabout scheme. Site allocation 
ES17 will take access directly off 
Dearne Valley Parkway off Shortwood 
Roundabout.

Pedestrian and cycle network
It is vital that the potential to walk or 
cycle to the development allocations is 
maximised. 

Accordingly, the development strategy 
for each allocation will include the 
provision of high-quality, safe and 
convenient walking and cycling routes 
to make sure that there is good 
connectivity through the Masterplan 
Framework area as well as connections 
to the existing infrastructure on the 
surrounding network, in particular 
the Trans Pennine Trail and National 
Cycle Route 67. As part of this 
strategy, the existing public rights of 
way running through the Masterplan 

Framework area as shown on the 
plan are proposed to be retained 
and enhanced. There may also be 
opportunities to divert existing routes 
subject to agreement with Barnsley 
council’s Footpath Officer. 

P
age 357



32 Masterplan Framework Report

Greenspace and recreational analysis
Barnsley council’s Greenspace 
Assessment (2016) for Hoyland 
provides a summary of assets (see 
table 3 below). Barnsley’s Playing 
Pitch Strategy (2016-2019) provides 
an overview of existing facilities in 
Hoyland. In 2016 there was unmet 
demand for 801 cricket matches in the 
south area (the highest level across the 
borough).

The Strategy acknowledges that 
there are potential issues with leases 
that could impact on security of 
tenancy particularly for Rockingham 
Colliery Cricket Club (currently at 
Rockingham Sports Ground). It is 
identified that two new wickets and 

drainage improvements are required at 
Rockingham Sports Ground.

The strategy supports wider 
investment in quality pitches and 
ancillary facilities to support the 
continued sustainability of cricket.

The Local Plan site specific policy for 
site ES13 (outside the Hoyland North 
Masterplan Framework area), seeks 
to: “Relocate the area of Rockingham 
Sports ground that falls within the site 
boundary to an appropriate location 
within Hoyland Principal Town. The 
replacement pitch and associated 
facilities must be constructed and 
available for use before development 
on the existing sports ground 

site commences.” It is therefore 
appropriate for the Hoyland North 
Masterplan Framework to consider the 
issue of accommodating an element 
of existing sports provision that is 
currently delivered at Rockingham 
Sports Ground.

Within the Masterplan Framework 
area there is a small parcel of land that 
was historically used as allotments 
(HS64). However the quantum of 
greenspace to be provided through 
the Masterplan Framework will include 
an allowance that seeks to compensate 
for the loss, and will be of a type that 
is more appropriate for the needs of 
the existing and future residents and 
characteristics of the site.

Based on this information, the 
guidance that features within the Open 
Space SPD and working together with 
the council, a greenspace strategy for 
the Masterplan Framework area has 
been agreed. This strategy is explained 

04
within the Infrastructure Delivery 
Schedule (IDS) at appendix 7 and 
section 6 of this report. 

Health and well-being principles
Health and well-being principles are 
a golden thread running through 
the Masterplan Framework process 
to make sure that proposals create 
a strong, healthy and just society. 
The Masterplan Framework has had 
regard to the 12 themes set out within 
Barnsley council’s ‘Comprehensive 
Health and Well-being Impact 
Assessment Tool’ as well as the 
Active Design Principles from Sport 
England (2015). The principles of the 
Framework follow the three pillars of 
health and well-being which are: 
• To increase physical and mental 

wellbeing. The proposal will include 
initiatives to encourage walking, 
cycling, greenspaces, social 
interaction and employment;

• As part of the technical assessment 
work, careful consideration has 
been given to mitigate negative 
impacts relating to air, noise, water 
and ground pollution;

• The Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG) will work with GP’s 

to coordinate and commission 
services to meet the needs of the 
local population. 

Sustainability and energy usage
Promoting sustainable development 
and reducing the borough’s impact 
on climate change are the overarching 
principles of this Masterplan 
Framework in accordance with the 
Local Plan and the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF). The use 
and development of the Masterplan 
Framework has been assessed against 
the objective of securing sustainable 
development within Barnsley to meet 
its environmental, economic and social 
needs. On this basis the proposal will 
look to deliver the following qualities 
of sustainability:
• A mixed-use scheme with a balance 

of residential, business and a range 
of public open spaces including 
recreational areas all connected by 
public footpaths/cycleways;

• A mix of housing that includes a 
range of house types, sizes and 
tenures encouraging community 
stability;

• Protection and/or enhancement 
of the quality of natural assets 

Hoyland (including Hoyland Common and Blacker Hill)
Overall finding • Hoyland does not have the range of greenspaces to meet local 

standards

Parks and open 
spaces

• Hoyland lacks parks at district and borough level although these are 
available in adjoining areas

• Parts of Hoyland have no access to parks and open spaces

Child and youth 
facilities

• Deficient in Equipped Play Areas, LEAP and NEAP facilities. Large areas 
of Hoyland have no access to these.

• Adequate access to youth facilities
• Quality of all types of child and youth facilities need improving

Outdoor sports 
facilities

• The area has adequate local sports facilities plus 2 district level facilities
• The quality of facilities need improving

Green ways • There is insufficient provision of Green Ways and those provided need 
improving

Natural areas • There is very little provision of natural areas and none in the built up 
area. The quality of those provided need improving

Allotments • Allotments are available but the majority need improving
Table 3: Barnsley council’s Greenspace Assessment (2016)

1Figures may be less in reality, as some 
pitches are rated only standard, and the 
spare capacity is at times other than the 
peak demand as well as not taking into 
account games that can be played on 
artificial surfaces.

P
age 358



Hoyland North Barnsley 33

including water and biodiversity;
• High-quality well-designed 

development taking into account 
local distinctiveness;

• Promote walking, cycling and 
public transport use in order to 
reduce car dependency;

• Relatively high densities to promote 
efficient use of land.

The council has declared a climate 
emergency (September 2019), with 
a strategy for the borough achieving 
zero carbon by 2045 (Zero 45). As the 
Council strives to achieve this goal, 
new developments will be asked to 
play their part and through further 
work, consideration will be given to the 
following measures:
• Creating energy efficient well-

insulated buildings in order to 
reduce carbon emissions;

• Use renewable energy sources (e.g. 
solar, wind, biofuels) for all or part 
of their energy needs to reduce 
carbon emissions;

• Sustainability standards such as 
BREEAM and CEEQUAL when 
designing developments;

• Creating sustainable drainage 
systems to safely deal with surface 

water run-off and minimising the 
risk of flooding;

• Identifying opportunities to 
incorporate space within new 
dwellings to accommodate low 
carbon technology in the future, 
this will make sure that new 
development is durable and 
adaptable;

• Minimising waste and use of 
materials throughout the lifetime of 
the development;

• Encourage recycling;
• Identifying opportunities for green 

roofs;
• Travel plans to encourage active 

and sustainable travel.

Consideration will be given to the 
latest Building Regulations for 
housing, BREEAM for employment 
and CEEQUAL for infrastructure, 
landscaping and public realm. This 
will include identification of suitable 
low-carbon technologies, investigating 
renewable energy solutions and 
Combined Heat Power (CHP). Subject 
to feasibility, this approach will 
make sure that the development is 
future-proofed particularly given 
the anticipated build out rates over 

a 10-year period. An allowance has 
been made in the utility report for the 
provision of electric vehicle charging 
points for employment and residential 
development, and alternative 
technologies given that domestic 
gas boiler installation in residential 
properties will be obsolete from 2025. 

Future applicants should also note that 
the council’s local validation checklist 
requires the submission of an Energy 
Statement for residential schemes 
over 10 plus dwellings and non-
residential schemes of 1,000sqm plus. 
The Energy Statement should clearly 
set out measures that will be included 
to deliver a carbon zero development. 
If zero carbon cannot be achieved, 
developers should demonstrate why 
this has not been possible and explain 
what steps have been taken in the 
provision of infrastructure and the 
design of individual properties to 
achieve zero carbon through retro fit 
at a future point.

P
age 359



34 Masterplan Framework Report

URBAN DESIGN ANALYSIS
Hoyland Lowe Stand and St. Peter’s 
Church are key features within the 
setting of the area and the wider 
landscape character. It is important 
that these key views towards and from 
these historic features is integrated 
into the proposals throughout the 
Masterplan Framework area. The 
Masterplan Framework area can also 
be seen from long distances, therefore 
the appearance, form and materials 
used in the proposals must fit in with 
the high-quality built form and natural 
surroundings, particularly the existing 
urban fringe of Hoyland.

Neighbouring properties/uses
A number of residential properties 
are located along the boundary of the 
Masterplan Framework area. Detailed 
planning applications should make 
sure that appropriate separation 
distances and boundary treatments are 
incorporated to protect the amenity of 
existing and future residents. 

Careful consideration should be 
given to the relationship between 
employment and residential 
development, as well as the visual, 

noise and air quality impact of the 
Dearne Valley Parkway (A6195) to the 
north of the Masterplan Framework 
area, and existing uses to the south 
of ES14. Planning applications should 
include relevant assessments to 
demonstrate an acceptable level of 
residential amenity, and consider 
appropriate mitigation measures 
including substantial landscape buffers.

Adjacent land uses/sensitive edges
There are areas of existing homes 
adjacent to the site boundary. In 
particular areas, there will need to be 
an appropriate landscape buffer. 

SITE CAPACITY
The shape of the Masterplan 
Framework has been influenced by 
a range of technical studies and a 
summary of the main constraints that 
need to be addressed in the delivery of 
the sites are:
• Land stability from the former 

open-cast mine areas requiring 
engineered foundations on certain 
areas of the site and further 
investigation of the high wall 
corridors regarding ‘high risk’ 
zones;

areas;
• Consolidate existing vegetation and 

landscaping;
• Reduce higher risk high wall 

corridor;
• Location and extent of proposed 

play area;
• Investigating housing/commercial 

densities.

The Risk Audit Table in appendix 4 
outlines the current approach adopted 
by this Masterplan Framework to 
consider the opportunities listed 
above. It also identifies further 
potential mitigations measures 
that could be explored to increase 
development yield for the sites if 
required. 

Along with investigating these 
opportunities, the table considers their 
risk profile and provides guidance in 
terms of the next steps that should 
be progressed as applications are 
prepared. 

Given the high-level nature of 
this Masterplan Framework, the 
contents of the table should be seen 
as an important starting point to 

• Undulating topography with steep 
gradients in sections will require 
earthwork engineering solutions;

• Protection of heritage assets at 
Hoyland Lowe Stand and St Peter’s 
Church, both of which are Grade II 
Listed;

• Selected areas of significant 
ecological areas including a pond, 
wildlife corridor, woodland and 
hedgerow vegetation.

The above constraints are of note 
as they have had the most impact in 
terms of the amount and location of 
development that can potentially be 
achieved.

To make sure that the development 
capacity for both residential and 
commercial can reflect the amounts 
identified within the Local Plan site 
allocations, a Risk Audit Table has 
been prepared and can be found in 
appendix 4. This assesses the various 
opportunities available to increase 
development yield throughout the 
Masterplan Framework. These include:
• Increase plateau development 

areas for ES17;
• Reduce the dry detention SuDs 

conduct ongoing detailed work to 
support development proposals. The 
underlying objective will be to provide 
compelling evidence that the land uses 
within the Masterplan Framework area 
can be delivered in the most efficient 
manner with the intention to achieve 
the development yield figures set out 
within the Local Plan for each site 
allocation.

At the start of the Masterplan 
Framework process the project team 
agreed key assumptions for the use, 
amount and scale of development 
for each of the site allocations so 
that technical disciplines, such as 
transportation and utilities could 
assess the likely cumulative impact of 
the overall proposed development. The 
Land Use Table in appendix 5 provides 
a breakdown in the anticipated scale of 
development for each site allocation. 
This is based on the Local Plan 
calculation for determining yield for 
both employment and residential uses 
and current planning status. These 
land use assumptions have then been 
applied to the different aspects of the 
Masterplan Framework process.
For housing developments, the target 

04

P
age 360



Hoyland North Barnsley 35

Figure 10: Urban design analysis

figure is to deliver an average net 
density of 40 dwellings per hectare 
(dph). This assumes 80 percent of the 
gross site area would be developable. 
This average density requirement is 
based on Policy H6 of the Local Plan 
and relates to making an efficient use 
of land. 

To meet this requirement and 
accommodate a number of other 
factors such as: site topography; the 
ability to create placemaking character 
areas; lower-density areas at the 
interface with sensitive heritage assets 
and existing residential areas; and 
higher-density areas in more accessible 
locations, the development parcels 
identified within the Masterplan 
Framework assume a range of 
densities between 30 dph to 60 dph 
net.

KEY

North

P
age 361



36 Masterplan Framework Report

KEY DESIGN PRINCIPLES
The following diagrams set out the key 
design principles for the Masterplan 
Framework area and demonstrate how 
the proposed development should 
respond to key design considerations.

Key views and vistas
There are multiple views to and from Hoyland Lowe Stand and St Peter’s Church 
across the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework area and wider landscape. 
These are important landmarks for Hoyland and can also be seen from Wentworth 
Castle, to the north west. High-quality materials, appearance and good design 
are fundamental to the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework sites and the 
surrounding area.

Connected routes and functional greenspace
There are a range of public rights of way within and surrounding the Masterplan 
Framework area. These will be enhanced and retained where possible, integrating 
new connections and links. Valuable hedgerows, vegetation and trees should be 
retained as well as the pond and watercourse which are significant ecological 
assets. The heritage buffer is to be used as a functional, informal open space with 
views to Hoyland Lowe Stand. Street furniture should be carefully located to avoid 
cluttering pedestrian and cycleways throughout the Masterplan Framework area. 
Entrances to pedestrian and cycle routes should be clearly defined and users 
should be separated wherever possible. This could be achieved through different 
surface material, and clear and well-maintained signage. 

05

Design 
process

1 2

P
age 362



Hoyland North Barnsley 37

Connectivity
Hoyland Common local centre and the wider facilities in Hoyland town centre 
are walkable from the Masterplan Framework area. The infrastructure for cyclists, 
pedestrians and vehicles seeks to achieve direct connections between new and 
existing facilities in order to bring people closer to their destinations. The clear 
gateway entrances into the Masterplan Framework area will provide legibility and 
encourage integration between new and existing communities.

Integrated community and well-being
The village green is the ‘heart’ of the new neighbourhood with the cricket pavilion 
being a key community asset. The built form will be complementary to the 
existing character of Hoyland Common and will create a local sense of place. The 
pockets of coordinated green infrastructure will improve well-being and linkages 
throughout the area. Clear and well-maintained signage should be delivered 
throughout the Masterplan Framework area to direct users to wider destinations 
including Hoyland town centre, the Trans Pennine Trail and National Cycle Route.

North

3 4

P
age 363



38 Masterplan Framework Report

DESIGN ADVISORY PANEL
Having regard to achieving a high-
quality of design and in the spirit 
of testing good design solutions, 
the evolving Masterplan Framework 
process has been subject to two 
reviews by an independent body 
known as the Barnsley Urban 
Renaissance Design Advisory Panel.

The first review took place at an early 
stage in the Masterplan Framework 
process on 18 March 2019 and 
whilst the panel were comfortable 
that the scheme was heading in 
the right direction they made some 
recommendations relating to: 
• assessing the three dimensions of 

the site; 
• ensuring there was coordination 

between placemaking and the 
delivery of key infrastructure such 
as the link road; 

• focusing on a clear movement 
framework that emphasises cycling 
and walking;

• understanding in more detail 
the relationship of the proposed 
employment area (ES14 and ES17) 
to the Dearne Valley Parkway, 

the new link road and the new 
residential development. 

The design panel also expressed 
concern that the use of generic house 
types should be avoided as they 
would be a major barrier to enabling 
character and a sense of place. Finally, 
they encouraged new or existing green 
or blue landscaping to play a strong 
role in placemaking and playing a 
positive role as functional spaces. 

At a more advanced stage in the 
Masterplan Framework process, the 
second design panel review was 
held on 23 October 2019. The panel 
reiterated their support for the design 
approach that the project team had 
followed and were confident that the 
recommendations they had previously 
outlined were being addressed. The 
design panel chair acknowledged 
lots of work had been done since the 
first presentation, including sections, 
a better understanding of levels/link 
road, connections and access which 
are key, and as a result place-making 
and an engineering balance had been 
achieved.

DESIGN WORKSHOP
A design workshop was held on 
30 April 2019 to collaborate with 
landowners, officers and designers 
involved in the Masterplan Framework 
process. A summary of the workshop is 
set out below:
Access, gateways and roads
• Potential for employment to 

be accessed from Shortwood 
Roundabout; this would allow 
early delivery of the lower plateau 
of ES17. Potential to also use this 
to access the eastern residential 
parcels on HS56;

• Option to access wider residential 
development from Shortwood 
Roundabout;

• There needs to be a design brief for 
gateways;

• Access for all, not just cars – needs 
good connectivity;

• Residential road to follow the 
contour lines and cross high wall 
perpendicular where possible;

• Road through residential could be 
stopped up near heritage buffer 
(HS66) to avoid creating a link 
through the Masterplan Framework 
area (Hoyland Road to Shortwood 
Roundabout);

• Bus route to be considered which 
would run through the western 
area of the Masterplan Framework 
area.

Open space, public rights of way, 
pedestrian and cycle links
• Play spaces to be within higher risk 

development zones where possible; 
• Delivery of open space within the 

heritage buffer on HS66.

Residential
• Cannot build on land immediately 

to the south east of Shortwood 
Roundabout due to the 
topography.

Cricket pitches and pavilion
• Pitch needs to be well overlooked; 
• Pavilion is community asset.

Biodiversity
• New woodland creation throughout 

the Masterplan Framework area via 
within high wall zones;

• High-value wetland/swamp/
grassland area plus woodland and 
hedges should also be retained;

• Creation of new green corridors 
and pedestrian/cycle links.

Heritage buffer
• Suggestion that new development 

follows the contours along the 
perimeter of the heritage buffer 
(HS66);

• Informal play space with natural 
play equipment to be sensitive if 
located within the heritage buffer 
(HS66);

• Formal play space/equipment to 
be located outside of the heritage 
buffer zone if possible.

Placemaking
• There is a vista towards Lowe Stand 

from the north east of the site;
• The cricket pitch to be a focal point 

of the Masterplan Framework area;
• Long-range views of the 

employment units to consider.

05

P
age 364



Hoyland North Barnsley 39

Design workshop (30th April 2019)

P
age 365



40 Masterplan Framework Report

North

1. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING 
2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE CHECKED WITH ALL OTHER RELEVANT DRAWINGS.

3. ANY DISCREPANCIES CHECK WITH WYG, IF IN DOUBT ASK.
4. DRAWING TO BE USED FOR PURPOSES OF THE ISSUE AND NOTED ON PLAN

WYG Group
creative minds safe hands

©  WYG Environment Planning Transport Limited 2013

WYG
Quay West at MediaCityUK, Trafford Wharf Road, 
Trafford Park, Manchester, M17 1HH

Tel: +44 (0)20 7250 7500
Email: uld@wyg.com  www.wyg.com

Barnsley Council, Harworth Group 
and Hoyland Develoments Limited

Hoyland North, Barnsley

Illustrative Masterplan - Option A

DATE: 01.08.19 SCALE: 1:2500 @ A1

DRAWING NO: 

36

REVISION: 

-

PROJECT NO: 

A098949-046

DRAWN BY / REVIEWED BY: RR / AC

KEY

Registered in England Number: 3050297

REVISIONS

REV AMENDMENTS BY DATE

- ---

Pond

115.1m

109.2m

Pond

Pond

164.6m

145.9m

147.6m

157.5m

174.3m

Drain

143.2m

143.8m

D
ra

in

Drain

Drain

151.1m

150.2m

144.5m

147.2m

149.1m

154.3m

143.1m

149.2m

148.6m

152.6m

149.7m

147.2m

155.8m

151.8m

143.9m
145.4m

151.2m

147.8m

148.6m

148.7m

149.6m

152.2m

162.5m

177.1m

169.2m

170.7m

177.4m

156.4m

157.9m

162.2m

180.7m

175.0m

176.2m

141.7m

148.4m

150.6m

143.6m

155.8m

151.8m

145.1m

161.8m

153.9m

159.4m

0
.9

1
m

 R
H

D
e
f

U
n
d

D
ef

BS

Drain

Pond

U
P
PER

 H
O

YLA
N

D
 R

O
A

D

SHEFFIELD RO
AD

HOYLAND R
OAD

TANKERSLEY LANE

H
A
W

SH
A
W

 L
A
N

E

ROCKINGHAM

ROUNDABOUT

SHORTWOOD

ROUNDABOUT

A 6
195 D

EA
RNE V

ALL
EY

 P
ARKW

AY

Proposed
cricket pitch
with pavilion

LAP

Potential
LEAP

Kirk Balk

Playing Field

ES17

(Harworth Group)

0 50 100 150 200 m

Hoyland
Lowe
Stand

Potential for New
Landscaping

Potential for New
Landscaping

Cricket nets and

indicative parking

Possible upgrade of LEAP

to NEAP if NEAP / LEAP

not delivered on site

King George V

Playing Field

HS66

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

ES14

(Hartwood Estates)

ES14

(Ernest V

Waddington Limited)

ES14

(Mr Reckless)

ES14

(Barnsley Council)

HS56

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

*

HS64

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

Site boundary

KEY

Low density

Retained trees / vegetation

Spine / primary road

Shared surface street

Private drive

Pedestrian / cycle route

Proposed trees / vegetation

Indicative SuDS ponds

Medium density

Public open space

High density

Commercial parcels

Residential parcels

Proposed appropriate landscape buffer

Opportunity for landmark building

Traffic calming feature

Design subject to levels*

LAP - Local Area of Play

LEAP - Locally Equipped Area of Play

NEAP - Neighbourhood Equipped Area of Play

MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK 
OPTIONS
During the design process, three 
Masterplan Framework layout options 
were tested through a steering group 
and public consultation process. The 
options were shared with councillors 
and the public to provide clarity that 
three potential access points had 
been identified. These options are 
shown on the following pages along 
with a summary of advantages and 
disadvantages for each one. 

OPTION A
Main access from Rockingham 
Roundabout (with access to the 
northern part of ES17 and HS56 from 
Shortwood Roundabout).

Advantages
• Reduces traffic around Hoyland 

Common, particularly at the 
crossroad junction on Sheffield 
Road;

• New link road utilises an existing 
roundabout spur;

• New link road would be delivered 
on Barnsley council owned land 
(ES14) therefore maximising the 
developable area of other sites in 

the Masterplan Framework area;
• Provides a direct link from Junction 

36 of the M1 motorway which 
would be attractive to potential 
occupiers of the residential and 
employment units;

• Improved cycle and footpath links 
connecting Hoyland Common 
and existing employment units at 
Gateway 36;

• Introducing an access off 
Shortwood Roundabout would 
allow delivery of employment uses 
on the northern part of ES17 in the 
short term.

Disadvantages
• New link road would cross an area 

identified as having significant 
ecological value;

• The structure required to cross the 
area of significant ecological value 
and watercourse would require 
significant investment;

• Would require the diversion of an 
existing public rights of way

• Would require high-quality cycle 
and pedestrian links to the northern 
part of employment site ES17 as 
there would be no direct vehicle 
access from the southern parcel of 

ES17 or Hoyland Common through 
the new housing development;

• Further investigation work is 
required to fully understand the 
design and risks associated with 
constructing a new link road over 
an area of high wall;

• As the new link road would not 
serve the entire Masterplan 
Framework area there would be 
additional costs associated with 
providing a secondary access off 
Shortwood Roundabout.

05

Figure 11: Option A

NorthP
age 366



Hoyland North Barnsley 41

North

1. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING 
2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE CHECKED WITH ALL OTHER RELEVANT DRAWINGS.

3. ANY DISCREPANCIES CHECK WITH WYG, IF IN DOUBT ASK.
4. DRAWING TO BE USED FOR PURPOSES OF THE ISSUE AND NOTED ON PLAN

WYG Group
creative minds safe hands

©  WYG Environment Planning Transport Limited 2013

WYG
Quay West at MediaCityUK, Trafford Wharf Road, 
Trafford Park, Manchester, M17 1HH

Tel: +44 (0)20 7250 7500
Email: uld@wyg.com  www.wyg.com

Hoyland North, Barnsley

Illustrative Masterplan - Option B

SCALE: 1:2500 @ A1

DRAWING NO: 

37

REVISION: 

-

PROJECT NO: 

A098949-046

DRAWN BY / REVIEWED BY: RR / AC

KEY

Registered in England Number: 3050297

REVISIONS

REV AMENDMENTS BY DATE

- ---

Pond

115.1m

109.2m

Pond

Pond

164.6m

145.9m

147.6m

157.5m

174.3m

Drain

143.2m

143.8m

D
ra

in

Drain

Drain

151.1m

150.2m

144.5m

147.2m

149.1m

154.3m

143.1m

149.2m

148.6m

152.6m

149.7m

147.2m

155.8m

151.8m

143.9m
145.4m

151.2m

147.8m

148.6m

148.7m

149.6m

152.2m

162.5m

177.1m

169.2m

170.7m

177.4m

156.4m

157.9m

162.2m

180.7m

175.0m

176.2m

141.7m

148.4m

150.6m

143.6m

155.8m

151.8m

145.1m

161.8m

153.9m

159.4m

0
.9

1
m

 R
H

D
e
f

U
n
d

D
ef

BS

Drain

Pond

U
P
PER

 H
O

YLA
N

D
 R

O
A

D

SHEFFIELD RO
AD

HOYLAND R
OAD

TANKERSLEY LANE

H
A
W

SH
A
W

 L
A
N

E

ROCKINGHAM

ROUNDABOUT

SHORTWOOD

ROUNDABOUT

A 6
195 D

EA
RNE V

ALL
EY

 P
ARKW

AY

Proposed
cricket pitch
with pavilion

LAP

Potential
LEAP

HS66

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

Kirk Balk

Playing Field

0 50 100 150 200 m

ES14

(Hartwood Estates)

Hoyland
Lowe
Stand

Potential for New
Landscaping

Potential for New
Landscaping

Cricket nets and

indicative parking

ES14

(Ernest V

Waddington Limited)

Possible upgrade of LEAP

to NEAP if NEAP / LEAP

not delivered on site

ES17

(Harworth Group)

ES14

(Mr Reckless)

ES14

(Barnsley Council)

HS56

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

*

King George V

Playing Field

HS64

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

Site boundary

KEY

Low density

Retained trees / vegetation

Spine / primary road

Shared surface street

Private drive

Pedestrian / cycle route

Proposed trees / vegetation

Indicative SuDS ponds

Medium density

Public open space

High density

Commercial parcels

Residential parcels

Proposed appropriate landscape buffer

Opportunity for landmark building

Traffic calming feature

Design subject to levels*

LAP - Local Area of Play

LEAP - Locally Equipped Area of Play

NEAP - Neighbourhood Equipped Area of Play

Barnsley Council, Harworth Group 
and Hoyland Develoments Limited

DATE: 01.08.19

OPTION B
Main access from Shortwood 
Roundabout.

Advantages
• Reduces traffic around Hoyland 

Common, particularly at the 
crossroad junction on Sheffield 
Road;

• New road utilises an existing 
roundabout spur on Shortwood 
Roundabout;

• Retention of an area identified as 
having significant ecological value 
(west of ES17);

• Avoid diversion of existing public 
rights of way (west of ES17);

• Opportunity to maximise views of 
Hoyland Lowe Stand from the new 
road off Shortwood Roundabout 

• Improved cycle and footpath links 
to the west of the site;

• Ability to deliver all employment 
development on ES17 in the short 
term.

Figure 12: Option B

Disadvantages
• Earthworks and engineering 

solutions need to address the 
change in levels from Shortwood 
Roundabout;

• Formation of development 
platforms as the new link road 
sweeps up the landscape, this may 
result in some loss of efficiency;

• Due to the levels, the new link road 
will run up the slope of the site at 
a lower level than the residential 
platforms. This may create 
placemaking challenges and reduce 
opportunities for new homes to 
face directly onto the street;

• Would require high-quality 
pedestrian and cycle links to the 
west of the Masterplan Framework 
area linking with Gateway 36 as no 
vehicular access is proposed.

NorthP
age 367



42 Masterplan Framework Report

North

1. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING 
2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE CHECKED WITH ALL OTHER RELEVANT DRAWINGS.

3. ANY DISCREPANCIES CHECK WITH WYG, IF IN DOUBT ASK.
4. DRAWING TO BE USED FOR PURPOSES OF THE ISSUE AND NOTED ON PLAN

WYG Group
creative minds safe hands

©  WYG Environment Planning Transport Limited 2013

WYG
Quay West at MediaCityUK, Trafford Wharf Road, 
Trafford Park, Manchester, M17 1HH

Tel: +44 (0)20 7250 7500
Email: uld@wyg.com  www.wyg.com

Hoyland North, Barnsley

Illustrative Masterplan - Option C

SCALE: 1:2500 @ A1

DRAWING NO: 

38

REVISION: 

-

PROJECT NO: 

A098949-046

DRAWN BY / REVIEWED BY: RR / AC

KEY

Registered in England Number: 3050297

REVISIONS

REV AMENDMENTS BY DATE

- ---

Pond

115.1m

109.2m

Pond

Pond

164.6m

145.9m

147.6m

157.5m

174.3m

Drain

143.2m

143.8m

D
ra

in

Drain

Drain

151.1m

150.2m

144.5m

147.2m

149.1m

154.3m

143.1m

149.2m

148.6m

152.6m

149.7m

147.2m

155.8m

151.8m

143.9m
145.4m

151.2m

147.8m

148.6m

148.7m

149.6m

152.2m

162.5m

177.1m

169.2m

170.7m

177.4m

156.4m

157.9m

162.2m

180.7m

175.0m

176.2m

141.7m

148.4m

150.6m

143.6m

155.8m

151.8m

145.1m

161.8m

153.9m

159.4m

0
.9

1
m

 R
H

D
e
f

U
n
d

D
ef

BS

Drain

Pond

U
P
PER

 H
O

YLA
N

D
 R

O
A

D

SHEFFIELD RO
AD

HOYLAND R
OAD

TANKERSLEY LANE

H
A
W

SH
A
W

 L
A
N

E

ROCKINGHAM

ROUNDABOUT

SHORTWOOD

ROUNDABOUT

A 6
195 D

EA
RNE V

ALL
EY

 P
ARKW

AY

Proposed
cricket pitch
with pavilion

LAP

Potential
LEAP

Kirk Balk

Playing Field

0 50 100 150 200 m

Hoyland
Lowe
Stand

Possible upgrade of LEAP

to NEAP if NEAP / LEAP

not delivered on site

Potential for New
Landscaping

Potential for New
Landscaping

Cricket nets and

indicative parking

ES17

(Harworth Group)

King George V

Playing Field

HS66

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

ES14

(Hartwood Estates)

ES14

(Ernest V

Waddington Limited)

ES14

(Mr Reckless)

ES14

(Barnsley Council)

HS56

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

*

HS64

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

Site boundary

KEY

Low density

Retained trees / vegetation

Spine / primary road

Shared surface street

Private drive

Pedestrian / cycle route

Proposed trees / vegetation

Indicative SuDS ponds

Medium density

Public open space

High density

Commercial parcels

Residential parcels

Proposed appropriate landscape buffer

Opportunity for landmark building

Traffic calming feature

Design subject to levels*

LAP - Local Area of Play

LEAP - Locally Equipped Area of Play

NEAP - Neighbourhood Equipped Area of Play

Barnsley Council, Harworth Group 
and Hoyland Develoments Limited

DATE: 01.08.19

Figure 13: Option C

OPTION C
Main access off a new roundabout on 
the Dearne Valley Parkway (A6195) 
(with access to the northern part 
of ES17 and HS56 from Shortwood 
Roundabout)

Advantages
• Creation of a new roundabout on 

the Dearne Valley Parkway between 
Rockingham Roundabout and 
Shortwood Roundabout;

• Reduces traffic around Hoyland 
Common, particularly at the 
crossroad junction on Sheffield 
Road;

• Retention of areas identified 
as having significant ecological 
value (west of ES17 and south of 
Shortwood Roundabout);

• Avoid diversion of existing Public 
Rights of Way (west of ES17);

• A central road through 
employment site ES17 would 
improve both its commercial profile 
and accessibility.

Disadvantages
• New road design will require 

significant investment due to 
the earthworks and engineering 
solutions needed to address the 
change in levels;

• The formation of development 
platforms on employment site 
ES17 may result in some loss of 
efficiencies;

• As the new road serving the 
residential areas would run through 
employment site ES17, this may 
create placemaking challenges, 
particularly in terms of creating an 
attractive gateway entrance into 
the new residential area from the 
Dearne Valley Parkway.

05

NorthP
age 368



Hoyland North Barnsley 43

SUMMARY
The advantages and disadvantages 
of each link road option has been 
assessed and reviewed through 
discussions with key stakeholders. 
Public consultation feedback 
suggested that Options A and B 
were equally preferable (refer to 
the following page). The consensus 
reached by the project team is to 
progress Option B as the preferred 
highway layout for the purposes of 
advancing the Masterplan Framework. 
This option is considered the most 
suitable based on the benefits that 
would be achieved, in particular 
the retention of the existing wildlife 
corridor to the west of ES17.

P
age 369



44 Masterplan Framework Report

PUBLIC CONSULTATION
The project team responsible for 
developing the Hoyland North 
Masterplan Framework has undertaken 
comprehensive and meaningful public 
consultation. The strategy for public 
engagement had regard to relevant 
planning legislation, government 
guidance along with the council’s 
Community Engagement Strategy and 
relevant planning policies found within 
the Local Plan.

A Statement of Community 
Involvement has been prepared in 
support of the Masterplan Framework 
(see associated technical supporting 
documents) and provides details of 
the consultation process, including 
identification of key stakeholders. 

The public engagement strategy 
has made sure that the community 
of Hoyland Common was informed 
about the consultation process and 
there has been a sufficient level of 
information to allow them to make 
informed judgements and opinions. A 
large proportion of the respondents 
that have engaged in the process have 

expressed support for the proposal in 
principle and the concerns that have 
been raised dealt with as part of the 
masterplan process. This includes 
technical considerations such as 
transport, ecology, heritage, design 
and drainage. Feedback relating to 
specific themes has been used to 
refine and enhance the proposals.

Detailed matters raised within the 
community consultation process 
will be subject to further discussion 
with the council’s Development 
Management Team at the planning 
application stage.

05

Extract from online questionnaire - 
August 2019

P
age 370



Hoyland North Barnsley 45

What is a Masterplan Framework and why is it required?
The council’s Local Plan was adopted on 3 January 2019. When the Local Plan was being examined 
it was agreed that for some of the larger, strategic sites it was necessary to prepare masterplan 
frameworks to ensure that sites could be developed in a comprehensive manner taking into account 
all of the infrastructure requirements. Looking at large allocations in this way, rather than a on a site 
by site basis, ensures that we can make the best use of sites and secure sustainable and inclusive 
growth reflecting each of the council’s corporate priorities.

The Masterplan Framework is a strategic document that sits beneath the Local Plan and will inform 
future planning applications.

Vision: Through a bespoke Masterplan Framework create a sustainable and inclusive community on the edge of 
Hoyland comprising around 765 new homes and 37 hectares of employment land with associated infrastructure.

The new community would be of a high quality design within a strong landscape setting that responds positively to 
the surrounding environment and enables connectivity and integration with the existing community.

Site Location looking east from junction 36 on the M1

Introduction

SITE LOCATION
Kirk Balk 

Playing Fields

M1 - Junction 36

Sheffield Road

A6195 Dearne Valley Parkway

Rockingham 
Roundabout

Birdwell

Hoyland Common

Shortwood 
Roundabout

Hoyland 
Lowe Stand

Upper 
Hoyland Road

National Planning 
Policy and Guidance

Barnsley Council’s 
Local Plan and 
Supplementary 

Planning Documents

Hoyland North 
Masterplan 
Framework

Planning
Applications

As part of the Masterplan Framework residents and stakeholders need to be provided with the 
opportunity to feedback on the draft plans and main themes. This feedback is then reviewed and 
fed into the final Masterplan Framework. The Masterplan Framework will need to be approved by 
Cabinet before determining any key planning applications.

Who is involved?
Barnsley Council are working in collaboration with WYG, developers and land agents who have the 
largest land interests, these are Harworth Group (ES17) and Hoyland Developments Limited (HS56, 
HS64 and HS66). Developers who have smaller land interests on sites which make up ES14 are also 
being consulted.

Background work 
There is a significant amount of technical work that is currently shaping the Masterplan Framework, 
this work is ongoing and will help shape the final version of it.

Masterplan Framework area 
The Hoyland North Masterplan Framework area is located to the north of Hoyland Common, 
approximately 5.9km south of Barnsley town centre and immediately west of Junction 36 of the M1 
motorway. The Masterplan Framework area contains open fields and agricultural land which gently 
slopes from Hoyland Common to the Dearne Valley Parkway (A6195). 

North Dearne Valley Parkway beyond which is Shortwood Business Park and Gateway 36 
employment units 

East Residential properties facing onto Upper Hoyland Road

South Hoyland Lowe Stand, St Peters Church Cemetery, residential properties facing onto 
Hawshaw Lane and Hoyland Road (B6096)

West King George V Playing Field, residential properties facing onto Tinker Lane, Rockingham 
Street and Church View, Hoyland Dismantling and Rockingham Business Park

Rockingham Roundabout is located to the north-western part of the Masterplan Framework area 
and Shortwood Roundabout to the north-eastern part. Both of these roundabouts provide access 
opportunities into the Masterplan Framework area.

Local plan site allocations and level of anticipated development

Residential

Site reference Site area (Hectares) Proposed use

HS64 19.25 615 dwellings

HS56 6.39 80 dwellings

HS66 2.6 70 dwellings

Total 28.24 765 dwellings

Employment

Site reference Site area (Hectares) Proposed use 

ES14 8.71 Employment – Business, General 
Industry and Storage and Distribution 

ES17 28.6 Employment – Business, General 
Industry and Storage and Distribution

HOYLAND NORTH MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

Land Ownership Plan

LAND OWNERSHIP

BIRDWELL

HOYLAND COMMON

HOYLAND

Extract from the Local Plan © Crown Copyright and Database Rights (2019). 100022264

KEY

Hoyland North
Masterplan Framework

Local Plan Housing
Allocation

Local Plan Employment
Land Allocation

North

1. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING 
2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE CHECKED WITH ALL OTHER RELEVANT DRAWINGS.

3. ANY DISCREPANCIES CHECK WITH WYG, IF IN DOUBT ASK.
4. DRAWING TO BE USED FOR PURPOSES OF THE ISSUE AND NOTED ON PLAN

WYG Group
creative minds safe hands

©  WYG Environment Planning Transport Limited 2013

WYG
Quay West at MediaCityUK, Trafford Wharf Road, 
Trafford Park, Manchester, M17 1HH

Tel: +44 (0)20 7250 7500
Email: uld@wyg.com  www.wyg.com

Barnsley Council, Harworth Group 
and Hoyland Develoments Limited

Hoyland North, Barnsley

Illustrative Masterplan - Option A

DATE: 01.08.19 SCALE: 1:2500 @ A1

DRAWING NO: 

36

REVISION: 

-

PROJECT NO: 

A098949-046

DRAWN BY / REVIEWED BY: RR / AC

KEY

Registered in England Number: 3050297

REVISIONS

REV AMENDMENTS BY DATE

- ---

Pond

115.1m

109.2m

Pond

Pond

164.6m

145.9m

147.6m

157.5m

174.3m

Drain

143.2m

143.8m

D
ra

in

Drain

Drain

151.1m

150.2m

144.5m

147.2m

149.1m

154.3m

143.1m

149.2m

148.6m

152.6m

149.7m

147.2m

155.8m

151.8m

143.9m
145.4m

151.2m

147.8m

148.6m

148.7m

149.6m

152.2m

162.5m

177.1m

169.2m

170.7m

177.4m

156.4m

157.9m

162.2m

180.7m

175.0m

176.2m

141.7m

148.4m

150.6m

143.6m

155.8m

151.8m

145.1m

161.8m

153.9m

159.4m

0
.9

1
m

 R
H

D
e
f

U
n
d

D
ef

BS

Drain

Pond

U
P
PER

 H
O

YLA
N

D
 R

O
A

D

SHEFFIELD RO
AD

HOYLAND R
OAD

TANKERSLEY LANE

H
A
W

SH
A
W

 L
A
N

E

ROCKINGHAM

ROUNDABOUT

SHORTWOOD

ROUNDABOUT

A 6
195 D

EA
RNE V

ALL
EY

 P
ARKW

AY

Proposed
cricket pitch
with pavilion

LAP

Potential
LEAP

Kirk Balk

Playing Field

ES17

(Harworth Group)

0 50 100 150 200 m

Hoyland
Lowe
Stand

Potential for New
Landscaping

Potential for New
Landscaping

Cricket nets and

indicative parking

Possible upgrade of LEAP

to NEAP if NEAP / LEAP

not delivered on site

King George V

Playing Field

HS66

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

ES14

(Hartwood Estates)

ES14

(Ernest V

Waddington Limited)

ES14

(Mr Reckless)

ES14

(Barnsley Council)

HS56

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

*

HS64

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

Site boundary

KEY

Low density

Retained trees / vegetation

Spine / primary road

Shared surface street

Private drive

Pedestrian / cycle route

Proposed trees / vegetation

Indicative SuDS ponds

Medium density

Public open space

High density

Commercial parcels

Residential parcels

Proposed appropriate landscape buffer

Opportunity for landmark building

Traffic calming feature

Design subject to levels*

LAP - Local Area of Play

LEAP - Locally Equipped Area of Play

NEAP - Neighbourhood Equipped Area of Play

Following careful consideration of the Local Plan requirements, technical constraints and key principles for creating a Masterplan Framework, three high level concept layouts have been developed. These 
options show how the Masterplan Framework area could deliver employment uses, new homes, appropriate access, open space, biodiversity enhancements, landscape buffers and drainage solutions whilst 
taking into consideration place-making principles. 

The key differences between the three options are as follows: 
• Option A – Main access from Rockingham Roundabout (with access to the northern part of ES17 and HS56 from Shortwood Roundabout)
• Option B – Main access from Shortwood Roundabout 
• Option C – Main access off a new roundabout on the Dearne Valley Parkway (A6195)

OPTION A

Design Proposals

OPTION A
Main access from Rockingham Roundabout (with access to the northern part of ES17 and HS56 from Shortwood Roundabout)

Disadvantages
• New link road would cross an area identified as having significant ecological 

value
• The structure required to cross the area of significant ecological value and 

watercourse would require significant investment
• Would require the diversion of existing public rights of way
• Will require high quality cycle and pedestrian links to the northern part of 

employment site ES17 as no direct vehicle access from the southern parcel 
of ES17 or Hoyland Common through the new housing development

• Further investigation work is required to fully understand the design and 
risks associated with constructing a new link road over an area of highwall

• As the new link road would not serve the entire Masterplan Framework 
area there would be additional costs associated with providing a secondary 
access off Shortwood Roundabout

Advantages
• Reduces traffic around Hoyland Common, particularly at the crossroad 

junction on Sheffield Road
• New link road utilises an existing roundabout spur
• New link road would be delivered on Barnsley Council owned land (ES14) 

therefore maximising the developable area of other sites in the Masterplan 
Framework area

• Provides a direct link from Junction 36 of the M1 motorway which would be 
attractive to potential occupiers of the residential and employment units

• Improved cycle and footpath links connecting Hoyland Common and 
existing employment units at Gateway 36

• Introducing an access off Shortwood Roundabout would allow delivery of 
employment uses on the northern part of ES17 in the short term

KEY

North

1. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING 
2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE CHECKED WITH ALL OTHER RELEVANT DRAWINGS.

3. ANY DISCREPANCIES CHECK WITH WYG, IF IN DOUBT ASK.
4. DRAWING TO BE USED FOR PURPOSES OF THE ISSUE AND NOTED ON PLAN

WYG Group
creative minds safe hands

©  WYG Environment Planning Transport Limited 2013

WYG
Quay West at MediaCityUK, Trafford Wharf Road, 
Trafford Park, Manchester, M17 1HH

Tel: +44 (0)20 7250 7500
Email: uld@wyg.com  www.wyg.com

Hoyland North, Barnsley

Illustrative Masterplan - Option B

SCALE: 1:2500 @ A1

DRAWING NO: 

37

REVISION: 

-

PROJECT NO: 

A098949-046

DRAWN BY / REVIEWED BY: RR / AC

KEY

Registered in England Number: 3050297

REVISIONS

REV AMENDMENTS BY DATE

- ---

Pond

115.1m

109.2m

Pond

Pond

164.6m

145.9m

147.6m

157.5m

174.3m

Drain

143.2m

143.8m

D
ra

in

Drain

Drain

151.1m

150.2m

144.5m

147.2m

149.1m

154.3m

143.1m

149.2m

148.6m

152.6m

149.7m

147.2m

155.8m

151.8m

143.9m
145.4m

151.2m

147.8m

148.6m

148.7m

149.6m

152.2m

162.5m

177.1m

169.2m

170.7m

177.4m

156.4m

157.9m

162.2m

180.7m

175.0m

176.2m

141.7m

148.4m

150.6m

143.6m

155.8m

151.8m

145.1m

161.8m

153.9m

159.4m

0
.9

1
m

 R
H

D
e
f

U
n
d

D
ef

BS

Drain

Pond

U
P
PER

 H
O

YLA
N

D
 R

O
A

D

SHEFFIELD RO
AD

HOYLAND R
OAD

TANKERSLEY LANE

H
A
W

SH
A
W

 L
A
N

E

ROCKINGHAM

ROUNDABOUT

SHORTWOOD

ROUNDABOUT

A 6
195 D

EA
RNE V

ALL
EY

 P
ARKW

AY

Proposed
cricket pitch
with pavilion

LAP

Potential
LEAP

HS66

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

Kirk Balk

Playing Field

0 50 100 150 200 m

ES14

(Hartwood Estates)

Hoyland
Lowe
Stand

Potential for New
Landscaping

Potential for New
Landscaping

Cricket nets and

indicative parking

ES14

(Ernest V

Waddington Limited)

Possible upgrade of LEAP

to NEAP if NEAP / LEAP

not delivered on site

ES17

(Harworth Group)

ES14

(Mr Reckless)

ES14

(Barnsley Council)

HS56

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

*

King George V

Playing Field

HS64

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

Site boundary

KEY

Low density

Retained trees / vegetation

Spine / primary road

Shared surface street

Private drive

Pedestrian / cycle route

Proposed trees / vegetation

Indicative SuDS ponds

Medium density

Public open space

High density

Commercial parcels

Residential parcels

Proposed appropriate landscape buffer

Opportunity for landmark building

Traffic calming feature

Design subject to levels*

LAP - Local Area of Play

LEAP - Locally Equipped Area of Play

NEAP - Neighbourhood Equipped Area of Play

Barnsley Council, Harworth Group 
and Hoyland Develoments Limited

DATE: 01.08.19

HOYLAND NORTH MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

Area of wetland around the existing pond 
within the western area of the site

Hoyland Lowe StandSouthern views from the public right of 
way running through the site

Views north from the north eastern 
edge of the site boundary

LOCAL AMENITIES PLAN

Local Amenities

Facilities plan with photo locations

BIRDWELL

HOYLAND COMMONTANKERSLEY

BLACKER HILL

JUMP

HOYLAND

ELSECAR

KEY

1 3

1

2

3

4

2 4
^

^

^

LOCAL AMENITIES 
Shops, Services and Facilities Future residents and 
employees will be able to access shops, services and facilities in 
Hoyland Common, Hoyland Town Centre, Birdwell, Tankersley and 
Blacker Hill. The majority of the offerings are within 2km of the 
site which means that people will be able to travel on foot subject 
to good footpath connections being provided.

Hoyland Town Centre offers a range of shops as well as general 
and second hand markets on Tuesdays, Thursdays and Saturdays.

Leisure The site is located within walking distance of Hoyland 
Leisure Centre and Kirk Balk Academy. The centres offer a range 
of facilities which include swimming, gymnasium and court hire.

PUBLIC TRANSPORT 
Buses There are frequent bus services operating from various 
bus stops surrounding the site. These are within walking distance 
and offer services to Barnsley Town Centre (via Birdwell), Hoyland 
Town Centre, Chapeltown, Elsecar, Broomhill and Manvers (via 
Cortonwood).

Trains Elsecar Train Station is located approximately 2.3km 
east of the site. Trains operate half hourly between Leeds (via 
Barnsley) and Nottingham (via Sheffield) Monday to Saturday with 
a reduced service on Sunday. This allows people to travel to and 
from the site via train as part of a combined journey.

LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE
Infrastructure Delivery Plan Infrastructure issues 
have been considered throughout the Local Plan process. The 
council engaged with relevant infrastructure providers during 
the production of the Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) which 
supports the Local Plan. This can be found in the Local Plan 
Examination library.

Barnsley council’s Local Plan Policy I1 ‘Infrastructure and Planning 
Obligations’ states that development must be supported by 
appropriate physical, social, economic and communications 
infrastructure. New development should not overburden existing 
infrastructure. Where new development creates a need for new 
or improved infrastructure, developer contributions will be sought 
to make the development acceptable in planning terms.

Healthcare Barnsley Council are working with Barnsley 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) to develop a strategy to 
ensure that services can evolve to meet the needs of existing 
communities and population growth associated with new housing 
development.

South Yorkshire Ambulance Service confirmed through the 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan that the geographical coverage of 
existing services is adequate for the level of planned growth.

Policing During the preparation of the Infrastructure Delivery 
Plan (IDP) South Yorkshire Police confirmed that there were 
no issues with current provision and non-envisaged in the 
foreseeable future.

Fire and Rescue South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue 
confirmed through the Infrastructure Delivery Plan that they 
were reviewing service provision within the borough and that it 
would consider the needs of the existing communities as well as 
planned growth for the next 15 years.

Schools Barnsley Council as a local authority has a statutory 
obligation to provide primary and secondary school places for 
pupils within the borough. The Local Plan identified land for new 
schools where there it was demonstrated that demand arising 
from new development could not be accommodated within 
existing schools. A new school site was not identified in Hoyland 
through the Local Plan process. Barnsley Council’s Education 
Department are working with colleagues in Assets and Planning 
Policy to assess the short, mid and long term impact on school 
place planning within the South West School Place Planning Area. 
Where evidence demonstrates that pupil numbers will exceed 
the capacity of existing schools, there are a number of options 
available to the authority. This could include reviewing existing 
schools to identify opportunities for expansion, managing the 
geographical distribution of pupils through the admissions 
procedure, or identifying a site for the delivery of a new school. 
Barnsley Council will monitor projections closely and take action 
where necessary.

^

HOYLAND NORTH MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

North

1. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING 
2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE CHECKED WITH ALL OTHER RELEVANT DRAWINGS.

3. ANY DISCREPANCIES CHECK WITH WYG, IF IN DOUBT ASK.
4. DRAWING TO BE USED FOR PURPOSES OF THE ISSUE AND NOTED ON PLAN

WYG Group
creative minds safe hands

©  WYG Environment Planning Transport Limited 2013

WYG
Quay West at MediaCityUK, Trafford Wharf Road, 
Trafford Park, Manchester, M17 1HH

Tel: +44 (0)20 7250 7500
Email: uld@wyg.com  www.wyg.com

Hoyland North, Barnsley

Illustrative Masterplan - Option B

SCALE: 1:2500 @ A1

DRAWING NO: 

37

REVISION: 

-

PROJECT NO: 

A098949-046

DRAWN BY / REVIEWED BY: RR / AC

KEY

Registered in England Number: 3050297

REVISIONS

REV AMENDMENTS BY DATE

- ---

Pond

115.1m

109.2m

Pond

Pond

164.6m

145.9m

147.6m

157.5m

174.3m

Drain

143.2m

143.8m

D
ra

in

Drain

Drain

151.1m

150.2m

144.5m

147.2m

149.1m

154.3m

143.1m

149.2m

148.6m

152.6m

149.7m

147.2m

155.8m

151.8m

143.9m
145.4m

151.2m

147.8m

148.6m

148.7m

149.6m

152.2m

162.5m

177.1m

169.2m

170.7m

177.4m

156.4m

157.9m

162.2m

180.7m

175.0m

176.2m

141.7m

148.4m

150.6m

143.6m

155.8m

151.8m

145.1m

161.8m

153.9m

159.4m

0
.9

1
m

 R
H

D
e
f

U
n
d

D
ef

BS

Drain

Pond

U
P
PER

 H
O

YLA
N

D
 R

O
A

D

SHEFFIELD RO
AD

HOYLAND R
OAD

TANKERSLEY LANE

H
A
W

SH
A
W

 L
A
N

E

ROCKINGHAM

ROUNDABOUT

SHORTWOOD

ROUNDABOUT

A 6
195 D

EA
RNE V

ALL
EY

 P
ARKW

AY

Proposed
cricket pitch
with pavilion

LAP

Potential
LEAP

HS66

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

Kirk Balk

Playing Field

0 50 100 150 200 m

ES14

(Hartwood Estates)

Hoyland
Lowe
Stand

Potential for New
Landscaping

Potential for New
Landscaping

Cricket nets and

indicative parking

ES14

(Ernest V

Waddington Limited)

Possible upgrade of LEAP

to NEAP if NEAP / LEAP

not delivered on site

ES17

(Harworth Group)

ES14

(Mr Reckless)

ES14

(Barnsley Council)

HS56

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

*

King George V

Playing Field

HS64

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

Site boundary

KEY

Low density

Retained trees / vegetation

Spine / primary road

Shared surface street

Private drive

Pedestrian / cycle route

Proposed trees / vegetation

Indicative SuDS ponds

Medium density

Public open space

High density

Commercial parcels

Residential parcels

Proposed appropriate landscape buffer

Opportunity for landmark building

Traffic calming feature

Design subject to levels*

LAP - Local Area of Play

LEAP - Locally Equipped Area of Play

NEAP - Neighbourhood Equipped Area of Play

Barnsley Council, Harworth Group 
and Hoyland Develoments Limited

DATE: 01.08.19

KEY

North

1. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING 
2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE CHECKED WITH ALL OTHER RELEVANT DRAWINGS.

3. ANY DISCREPANCIES CHECK WITH WYG, IF IN DOUBT ASK.
4. DRAWING TO BE USED FOR PURPOSES OF THE ISSUE AND NOTED ON PLAN

WYG Group
creative minds safe hands

©  WYG Environment Planning Transport Limited 2013

WYG
Quay West at MediaCityUK, Trafford Wharf Road, 
Trafford Park, Manchester, M17 1HH

Tel: +44 (0)20 7250 7500
Email: uld@wyg.com  www.wyg.com

Hoyland North, Barnsley

Illustrative Masterplan - Option B

SCALE: 1:2500 @ A1

DRAWING NO: 

37

REVISION: 

-

PROJECT NO: 

A098949-046

DRAWN BY / REVIEWED BY: RR / AC

KEY

Registered in England Number: 3050297

REVISIONS

REV AMENDMENTS BY DATE

- ---

Pond

115.1m

109.2m

Pond

Pond

164.6m

145.9m

147.6m

157.5m

174.3m

Drain

143.2m

143.8m

D
ra

in

Drain

Drain

151.1m

150.2m

144.5m

147.2m

149.1m

154.3m

143.1m

149.2m

148.6m

152.6m

149.7m

147.2m

155.8m

151.8m

143.9m
145.4m

151.2m

147.8m

148.6m

148.7m

149.6m

152.2m

162.5m

177.1m

169.2m

170.7m

177.4m

156.4m

157.9m

162.2m

180.7m

175.0m

176.2m

141.7m

148.4m

150.6m

143.6m

155.8m

151.8m

145.1m

161.8m

153.9m

159.4m

0
.9

1
m

 R
H

D
e
f

U
n
d

D
ef

BS

Drain

Pond

U
P
PER

 H
O

YLA
N

D
 R

O
A

D

SHEFFIELD RO
AD

HOYLAND R
OAD

TANKERSLEY LANE

H
A
W

SH
A
W

 L
A
N

E

ROCKINGHAM

ROUNDABOUT

SHORTWOOD

ROUNDABOUT

A 6
195 D

EA
RNE V

ALL
EY

 P
ARKW

AY

Proposed
cricket pitch
with pavilion

LAP

Potential
LEAP

HS66

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

Kirk Balk

Playing Field

0 50 100 150 200 m

ES14

(Hartwood Estates)

Hoyland
Lowe
Stand

Potential for New
Landscaping

Potential for New
Landscaping

Cricket nets and

indicative parking

ES14

(Ernest V

Waddington Limited)

Possible upgrade of LEAP

to NEAP if NEAP / LEAP

not delivered on site

ES17

(Harworth Group)

ES14

(Mr Reckless)

ES14

(Barnsley Council)

HS56

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

*

King George V

Playing Field

HS64

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

Site boundary

KEY

Low density

Retained trees / vegetation

Spine / primary road

Shared surface street

Private drive

Pedestrian / cycle route

Proposed trees / vegetation

Indicative SuDS ponds

Medium density

Public open space

High density

Commercial parcels

Residential parcels

Proposed appropriate landscape buffer

Opportunity for landmark building

Traffic calming feature

Design subject to levels*

LAP - Local Area of Play

LEAP - Locally Equipped Area of Play

NEAP - Neighbourhood Equipped Area of Play

Barnsley Council, Harworth Group 
and Hoyland Develoments Limited

DATE: 01.08.19

Design Proposals

OPTION B
Main access from Shortwood Roundabout (with access to the northern part of ES17 and HS56 from Shortwood Roundabout)

Disadvantages
• New road design will require significant investment due to the earthworks 

and engineering solutions needed to address the change in levels from 
Shortwood Roundabout 

• Formation of development platforms as the new link road sweeps up the 
landscape, this may result in some loss of efficiency 

• Due to the levels, the new link road will run up the slope of the site at a 
lower level than the residential platforms. This may create placemaking 
challenges and reduce opportunities for new homes to face directly onto the 
street

• Will require high quality pedestrian and cycle links to the west of the 
Masterplan Framework area linking with Gateway 36 as no vehicular access 
is proposed

OPTION B

Advantages
• Reduces traffic around Hoyland Common, particularly at the crossroad 

junction on Sheffield Road
• New road utilises an existing roundabout spur on Shortwood Roundabout
• Retention of an area identified as having significant ecological value (west of 

ES17)
• Avoid diversion of existing public rights of way (west of ES17)
• Opportunity to maximise views of Hoyland Lowe Stand from the new road 

off Shortwood Roundabout 
• Improved cycle and footpath links to the west of the site
• Ability to deliver all employment development on ES17 in the short term

HOYLAND NORTH MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

Ground contamination and land stability Deep underground mining at the site (at depths of between 
60-440m) ceased in 1977, meaning the ground should be stable enough to accommodate new development.

A large area of the site has been subject to open cast mining which took place in the 1950’s and 1970’s and was known as the 
Hoyland Common and Rockingham Open Cast Sites. When the site was backfilled (new material imported to replace the coal that 
had been removed) it was not compacted to create development platforms. JPG are currently exploring engineering solutions 
to make sure that all new development does not suffer from differential settlement (subsidence). The pink areas identified on the 
Technical Constraints Plan (above) show areas of highwall (where backfilled ground meets untouched ground). This may limit the 
level of development at these locations however JPG are working to identify suitable engineering solutions that would allow us to 
maximise the overall amount of land available for development. 

Biodiversity As part of the Local Plan process the site has been subject to ecological surveys to identify areas of 
significant value. The majority of the site is considered to be low value habitat for wildlife as it is farming land, broad leaf 
plantation woodland, semi-improved grassland and scrub. The largest area of significant ecological value is to the west of ES17 
which includes an existing pond, swamp, semi-improved grassland, trees and scattered scrub. Other smaller areas of trees 
and hedgerows are also considered to be of significant ecological value. The Masterplan Framework will seek to retain areas 
of significant ecological value as far as possible. The Masterplan Framework will deliver a net biodiversity gain (improve on the 
current situation), this may be achieved through a combination of on-site and off-site compensation measures that will be agreed 
with Barnsley Council’s Biodiversity Officer. This could include improvements to nearby Local Wildlife Sites.

At the planning application stage developers will provide protected species surveys which set out any mitigation measures 
required to protect species such as Great Crested Newts, reptiles, bats, breeding birds and water voles.

The nearest protected trees are located on Hawshaw Lane, outside the Masterplan Framework.

Landscape Character As part of the Local Plan process a Local Character Assessment (LCA) was prepared. The 
Masterplan Framework area sits within ‘E4 – Hoyland Settled Woodland Farmland’. The character of this area is defined by 
complex relationships between previous industrial activity (mining), urban settlement, arable farmland and woodland. The 
assessment concludes that the Masterplan Framework area has the potential to deliver new development with relatively 
limited harm on the landscape character as it is already quite urbanised. The assessment recommends that the layout of new 
development should incorporate landscape features to partially screen development from the Dearne Valley Parkway (A6195) and 
wider area.

Heritage There are no designated heritage assets within the Masterplan Framework area and it does not lie within a 
conservation area. The nearest heritage assets are Hoyland Lowe Stand (Grade II Listed Building) and St Peters Church (Grade II 
Listed Building), both lie beyond the south-eastern boundary of the Masterplan Framework area. The Local Plan identifies a ‘no 
development’ buffer around Hoyland Lowe Stand (on site HS66, shown in green on the Technical Constraints Plan (above), this 
will help to protect the historic settling of Hoyland Lowe Stand. 

The Masterplan Framework will need to give careful consideration to the design, scale and positioning of new development on 
HS66 as well as the design and maintenance of new landscaping. The layout of new development should also maximise views 
of the heritage assets from within the site and the wider area. This will help to contribute towards the character of the new 
development. 

Archaeology The initial evidence suggests that there are no buried archaeological remains of value, this is due to the 
open cast mining of the site. Where the ground remains undisturbed there may be archaeological remains, however desktop 
work suggests that any remains would not be sufficiently significant to prevent future development. At the planning application 
stage developers will be required to submit an appropriate archaeological investigation, this may include intrusive investigations 
(trial trenching).

Flood risk and drainage The Masterplan Framework area lies within Flood Zone 1 and is therefore at low risk of 
flooding from fluvial sources (rivers and streams). All planning applications over 1 hectare will be accompanied by a Flood Risk 
Assessment, this will be assessed by Barnsley Council and the Environment Agency.

• Surface Water Given that the Masterplan Framework area has been subject to opencast and underground mining, it is not 
recommended that surface water is allowed to soakaway into the ground. A Drainage Strategy has been developed for the 
site and this recommends sustainable drainage systems including detention basins (wet or dry basins which hold water during 
wet periods). Water would then be released at a controlled rate into a positive discharge point (an existing watercourse). The 
Sustainable Urban Drainage detention basins (SUDs) are shown on the Technical Constraints Plan (above) and these could 
serve individual plots or deliver a combined solution for all new development.

• Foul Water There is a 375mm diameter public combined sewer in Hoyland Road and it is envisaged that the residential 
development could discharge into this network. There is currently a pumping station within the Masterplan Framework area 
(HS64) and due to site levels it may be necessary to direct foul water via the pumping station. Further consideration is being 
given to the foul water strategy for the new employment development. 

Technical Considerations
KEY

TECHNICAL CONSTRAINTS PLAN

HOYLAND NORTH MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

OPTION C

North

1. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING 
2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE CHECKED WITH ALL OTHER RELEVANT DRAWINGS.

3. ANY DISCREPANCIES CHECK WITH WYG, IF IN DOUBT ASK.
4. DRAWING TO BE USED FOR PURPOSES OF THE ISSUE AND NOTED ON PLAN

WYG Group
creative minds safe hands

©  WYG Environment Planning Transport Limited 2013

WYG
Quay West at MediaCityUK, Trafford Wharf Road, 
Trafford Park, Manchester, M17 1HH

Tel: +44 (0)20 7250 7500
Email: uld@wyg.com  www.wyg.com

Hoyland North, Barnsley

Illustrative Masterplan - Option C

SCALE: 1:2500 @ A1

DRAWING NO: 

38

REVISION: 

-

PROJECT NO: 

A098949-046

DRAWN BY / REVIEWED BY: RR / AC

KEY

Registered in England Number: 3050297

REVISIONS

REV AMENDMENTS BY DATE

- ---

Pond

115.1m

109.2m

Pond

Pond

164.6m

145.9m

147.6m

157.5m

174.3m

Drain

143.2m

143.8m

D
ra

in

Drain

Drain

151.1m

150.2m

144.5m

147.2m

149.1m

154.3m

143.1m

149.2m

148.6m

152.6m

149.7m

147.2m

155.8m

151.8m

143.9m
145.4m

151.2m

147.8m

148.6m

148.7m

149.6m

152.2m

162.5m

177.1m

169.2m

170.7m

177.4m

156.4m

157.9m

162.2m

180.7m

175.0m

176.2m

141.7m

148.4m

150.6m

143.6m

155.8m

151.8m

145.1m

161.8m

153.9m

159.4m

0
.9

1
m

 R
H

D
e
f

U
n
d

D
ef

BS

Drain

Pond

U
P
PER

 H
O

YLA
N

D
 R

O
A

D

SHEFFIELD RO
AD

HOYLAND R
OAD

TANKERSLEY LANE

H
A
W

SH
A
W

 L
A
N

E

ROCKINGHAM

ROUNDABOUT

SHORTWOOD

ROUNDABOUT

A 6
195 D

EA
RNE V

ALL
EY

 P
ARKW

AY

Proposed
cricket pitch
with pavilion

LAP

Potential
LEAP

Kirk Balk

Playing Field

0 50 100 150 200 m

Hoyland
Lowe
Stand

Possible upgrade of LEAP

to NEAP if NEAP / LEAP

not delivered on site

Potential for New
Landscaping

Potential for New
Landscaping

Cricket nets and

indicative parking

ES17

(Harworth Group)

King George V

Playing Field

HS66

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

ES14

(Hartwood Estates)

ES14

(Ernest V

Waddington Limited)

ES14

(Mr Reckless)

ES14

(Barnsley Council)

HS56

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

*

HS64

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

Site boundary

KEY

Low density

Retained trees / vegetation

Spine / primary road

Shared surface street

Private drive

Pedestrian / cycle route

Proposed trees / vegetation

Indicative SuDS ponds

Medium density

Public open space

High density

Commercial parcels

Residential parcels

Proposed appropriate landscape buffer

Opportunity for landmark building

Traffic calming feature

Design subject to levels*

LAP - Local Area of Play

LEAP - Locally Equipped Area of Play

NEAP - Neighbourhood Equipped Area of Play

Barnsley Council, Harworth Group 
and Hoyland Develoments Limited

DATE: 01.08.19

KEY

North

1. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING 
2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE CHECKED WITH ALL OTHER RELEVANT DRAWINGS.

3. ANY DISCREPANCIES CHECK WITH WYG, IF IN DOUBT ASK.
4. DRAWING TO BE USED FOR PURPOSES OF THE ISSUE AND NOTED ON PLAN

WYG Group
creative minds safe hands

©  WYG Environment Planning Transport Limited 2013

WYG
Quay West at MediaCityUK, Trafford Wharf Road, 
Trafford Park, Manchester, M17 1HH

Tel: +44 (0)20 7250 7500
Email: uld@wyg.com  www.wyg.com

Hoyland North, Barnsley

Illustrative Masterplan - Option B

SCALE: 1:2500 @ A1

DRAWING NO: 

37

REVISION: 

-

PROJECT NO: 

A098949-046

DRAWN BY / REVIEWED BY: RR / AC

KEY

Registered in England Number: 3050297

REVISIONS

REV AMENDMENTS BY DATE

- ---

Pond

115.1m

109.2m

Pond

Pond

164.6m

145.9m

147.6m

157.5m

174.3m

Drain

143.2m

143.8m

D
ra

in

Drain

Drain

151.1m

150.2m

144.5m

147.2m

149.1m

154.3m

143.1m

149.2m

148.6m

152.6m

149.7m

147.2m

155.8m

151.8m

143.9m
145.4m

151.2m

147.8m

148.6m

148.7m

149.6m

152.2m

162.5m

177.1m

169.2m

170.7m

177.4m

156.4m

157.9m

162.2m

180.7m

175.0m

176.2m

141.7m

148.4m

150.6m

143.6m

155.8m

151.8m

145.1m

161.8m

153.9m

159.4m

0
.9

1
m

 R
H

D
e
f

U
n
d

D
ef

BS

Drain

Pond

U
P
PER

 H
O

YLA
N

D
 R

O
A

D

SHEFFIELD RO
AD

HOYLAND R
OAD

TANKERSLEY LANE

H
A
W

SH
A
W

 L
A
N

E

ROCKINGHAM

ROUNDABOUT

SHORTWOOD

ROUNDABOUT

A 6
195 D

EA
RNE V

ALL
EY

 P
ARKW

AY

Proposed
cricket pitch
with pavilion

LAP

Potential
LEAP

HS66

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

Kirk Balk

Playing Field

0 50 100 150 200 m

ES14

(Hartwood Estates)

Hoyland
Lowe
Stand

Potential for New
Landscaping

Potential for New
Landscaping

Cricket nets and

indicative parking

ES14

(Ernest V

Waddington Limited)

Possible upgrade of LEAP

to NEAP if NEAP / LEAP

not delivered on site

ES17

(Harworth Group)

ES14

(Mr Reckless)

ES14

(Barnsley Council)

HS56

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

*

King George V

Playing Field

HS64

(Hoyland Developments

Limited)

Site boundary

KEY

Low density

Retained trees / vegetation

Spine / primary road

Shared surface street

Private drive

Pedestrian / cycle route

Proposed trees / vegetation

Indicative SuDS ponds

Medium density

Public open space

High density

Commercial parcels

Residential parcels

Proposed appropriate landscape buffer

Opportunity for landmark building

Traffic calming feature

Design subject to levels*

LAP - Local Area of Play

LEAP - Locally Equipped Area of Play

NEAP - Neighbourhood Equipped Area of Play

Barnsley Council, Harworth Group 
and Hoyland Develoments Limited

DATE: 01.08.19

Design Proposals

Main access off a new roundabout on the Dearne Valley Parkway (A6195) (with 
access to the northern part of ES17 and HS56 from Shortwood Roundabout)

Disadvantages
• Significant costs associated with the creation of a new roundabout 
• New road design will require significant investment due to the earthworks 

and engineering solutions needed to address the change in levels
• The formation of development platforms on employment site ES17 may 

result in some loss of efficiencies 
• As the new road serving the residential areas would run through 

employment site ES17, this may create placemaking challenges, particularly 
in terms of creating an attractive gateway entrance into the new residential 
area from the Dearne Valley Parkway

OPTION C

Advantages
• Creation of a new roundabout on the Dearne Valley Parkway between 

Rockingham Roundabout and Shortwood Roundabout 
• Reduces traffic around Hoyland Common, particularly at the crossroad 

junction on Sheffield Road
• Retention of areas identified as having significant ecological value (west of 

ES17 and south of Shortwood Roundabout)
• Avoid diversion of existing Public Rights of Way (west of ES17)
• A central road through employment site ES17 would improve both its 

commercial profile and accessibility 

HOYLAND NORTH MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

Design Considerations
KEY

URBAN DESIGN ANALYSIS

Movement and transport
• Access There is potential for a range of access points into the residential and employment areas. A key aim of the Transport 

Strategy is to direct traffic away from Hoyland Common, particularly the crossroad junction on Sheffield Road. Traffic modelling 
suggests that the existing highway network can accommodate 250 new homes on HS64 before a new access is required from 
the Dearne Valley parkway (A6195). This consultation seeks views on three potential access options, these are as follows: 

- Option A Main access from Rockingham Roundabout 
- Option B Main access from Shortwood Roundabout
- Option C Main access off a new roundabout on the Dearne Valley Parkway (A6195)

(all options will show access to the northern part of ES17 and HS56 from Shortwood Roundabout)
• Street Hierarchy The street hierarchy looks to provide a series of linked routes designed to reflect expected traffic levels. 

In prioritising streets (principle means of access, secondary and tertiary streets) the developments will create high quality, 
safe and convenient routes for motorists, cyclists and pedestrians. Pedestrian and cycle routes will be linked into the existing 
network where possible to encourage trips on foot and on bicycle. The Masterplan Framework will also incorporate existing 
public rights of way however these may be redirected to create convenient routes through the new development.

• Public Transport Barnsley Bus Partnership will be consulted throughout the development of the Masterplan Framework 
to establish whether the route of existing bus services can be diverted through the site. It is envisaged that direct, safe and 
attractive walking routes to bus stops will be provided to encourage use of public transport for residents, employees and 
visitors.

• At the planning applications stage developers will be required to submit Travel Plans which set out how sustainable travel 
measures will be implemented, monitored and reviewed over an agreed period.

Neighbouring properties and uses The Masterplan Framework will consider the amenity of existing 
and future residents. All future planning applications will need to demonstrate adequate separation distances and appropriate 
boundary treatment to prevent loss of privacy. Planning applications for employment development will need to demonstrate that 
there would not be an adverse impact upon the amenity of existing and future residents. New employment development should 
be sensitively designed and new homes could incorporate mitigation measures to guard against nuisance. This approach will 
allow residential and employment development to be delivered on neighbouring sites. 

Placemaking A key principle of the Masterplan Framework is incorporating design measures to create a sense of place 
and distinctive build environment. There is an opportunity to create entrances into the Masterplan Framework area which create 
a sense of arrival and become local landmarks. This could be achieved through the arrangement of buildings and positioning of 
hard and soft landscaping. The objective is to deliver distinguishable and recognisable places to give residents, employees and 
visitors a positive experience. 

The Masterplan Framework will deliver housing at different densities (35-55 dwellings per hectare) and this will create a series of 
residential areas that vary in character. Due to the topography (levels) of the site it is envisaged that the employment units will be 
set at a lower level than the new residential properties.

Greenspace and recreation facilities The Masterplan Framework will include a series of open spaces 
including formal recreation facilities (potentially a cricket facility with pavilion and associated infrastructure), areas for children’s 
play and informal open space. 

• Formal recreation facilities Barnsley Council is reviewing formal sports facilities across the whole of Hoyland given that large 
scale growth is also proposed to the west and south of the area. The outcome of this review will become clearer as masterplan 
frameworks are prepared for the areas to the south and west of Hoyland, during which the future of Rockingham Sports 
Ground will be considered. This could result in relocation of that facility or investment in the existing ground. Regardless of this, 
there is an identified need for an additional cricket pitch with multiple wickets in the Hoyland area so each of the masterplan 
options show a proposed cricket facility, including a multi-use pavilion, practice nets and car parking. This would be at the 
heart of the new housing development.

• Children’s play facilities It is envisaged that within the Masterplan Framework area there will be a range of children’s play 
facilities. This could include a Local Area of Play (LAP – for younger children aged 4-6 years old) and Local Equipped Area for 
Play (LEAP – suitable for all ages) or Neighbourhood Equipped Area of Play (NEAP – suitable for all ages but includes a Multi-
Use Games Area (MUGA)). It is acknowledged that there may be an opportunity to improve existing facilities at King George V 
Playing Field off Tinker Lane.

• Informal open space A series of informal open spaces will be created throughout the Masterplan Framework area, this will 
be a combination of the following: 

- Retained areas of significant ecological value
- Constrained land which is more difficult to build on (highwall zones)
- A minimum of 15 percent of the gross site area from all new housing development sites 
- Drainage detention basins will also provide areas of greenspace which would fill with surface water during wet periods
- Public rights of way (which could include cycle and pedestrian routes)
- Landscape buffers 

These spaces will offer a range of benefits including: 
- Help to soften the appearance of new development 
- Reduce the visual impact of the development from 

the wider area
- Create placemaking focal points
- Create habitats for wildlife 

- Provide attractive walking and cycling linkages 
throughout the site

- Provide a green buffer between the residential and 
employment development

HOYLAND NORTH MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

Planning Strategy The Local Plan sets out that Masterplan Frameworks should be adopted 
prior to the determination of any planning applications on the affected sites.

Barnsley Council has acknowledged that less strategic proposals could come forward in the short 
term, however developers are required to demonstrate that the proposal is unlikely to prejudice 
the overall Masterplan Framework objectives, particularly with regard to technical, environmental 
and place-making issues. Due weight will also be given the previous historic planning decisions that 
have already been approved. A number of sites within the Masterplan Framework area already have 
planning consents:

TIMESCALES
The proposed timescales are as follows: 
• August to September 2019 – Public consultation 
• September to October 2019 – Review public consultation feedback
• November 2019 – Develop the final version of the Masterplan Framework
• December 2019 – Adoption of the Masterplan Framework by Barnsley Council

HOW TO ENGAGE 
• Use the QR code to the right to go straight to the 

online questionnaire 

• Download and print the online questionnaire through 

WYG’s website www.wyg.com/hoyland-north and

- email to public.consultation@wyg.com or

- post to: WYG, Rowe House, 10 East Parade, Harrogate, HG1 5LT

• Hard copies of the questionnaire are available at our exhibition events, 

Hoyland Library (High Croft, Hoyland, S74 9AF) and the

Library @ The Lightbox in Barnsley Town Centre

The information you provide will only be used for the purposes of this consultation exercise. All feedback will 

be considered and changes to the proposals will be made where possible and appropriate. The final Masterplan 

Framework will need to be approved by Full Council before adoption. The data you have submitted will be held 

securely by WYG in accordance with General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).

The Masterplan Framework will continue to evolve, incorporating technical work as it becomes available. The public consultation is an opportunity for key stakeholders and the local community to provide 
important feedback on the Masterplan Framework themes and to help shape the final document.

Thank you for taking the time to let us know your thoughts on the 
Hoyland North Masterplan Framework.

Next Steps

Site Allocation 
Reference Ownership / Control Planning Application 

Reference Proposal

ES14 Waddington 2018/0745 Erection of A3 Café 
and drive-thru facility

ES17 Hoyland 
Developments Limited 2016/1531 Outline consent for

100 dwellings
Each future planning application will be determined on its own merits and considered on a case by 
case basis.

Cricket pitch, overlooked by homes

A traffic calming / road feature to aid pedestrians / cyclists Greenspace through a residential area

DESIGN EXAMPLES

Play space within open space, overlooked by homes

HOYLAND NORTH MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

Site Section A-A

Hoyland North

Dwg Nº: A098949-046-20 Rev: -

Quay West at MediaCityUK, Trafford Wharf Road, Trafford Park, Manchester, M17 1HH
020 7250 7500                     uld@wyg.com          www.wyg.com

Drawn:PC Checked:AC         Date: 29/04/2019

Project title:

Drawing title:

Scale 1:1000 @ A1 0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 150100 110 120 140130 160 170 180 190 200 210 220 230 240 250 260 270 280 290 300Metres Metres

Scale 1:1000

A6195 Embankment Proposed Commercial

Public Right of Way Proposed dwellings

Proposed commercial 

Kirk Balk Playing FieldProposed Residential Existing Residential

Utilities and services A Utility Report is currently being prepared, this identifies existing utility infrastructure 
(water, gas, electricity, broadband) and the potential opportunities and constraints associated with the existing provision. The 
report will estimate the service load requirements from the new development and this will help to identify where infrastructure 
improvements/upgrades are required. Initial findings suggests that the following works are required: 
• Water - 3km mains water pipe
• Electricity - Capacity is available at Elsecar and Worsbrough Park Primary Sub-Stations. The 11kV boards and connections to 

the Masterplan Framework area would need to be upgraded.

The Utility Report will confirm when these upgrades are required in line with the phasing of new development.

Health and well-being Establishing a series of guiding health and well-being principles is fundamental to the 
Masterplan Framework, this will help to ensure that proposals create a strong, healthy and just society for existing and future 
residents as well as employees. A Health Impact Assessment (HIA) is being developed as part of the Masterplan Framework 
process, this will include key themes in the Sport England Active Design Principles. The three pillars of health and well-being will 
also be followed: 
• Health improvement considerations – to increase physical and mental well-being. The Masterplan Framework will include 

initiatives to encourage walking and cycling, deliver greenspaces, promote social interaction and employment
• Health protection considerations – as part of the technical assessment work careful consideration needs to be given to 

reducing the negative impacts relating to air, noise, water and ground pollution
• Health infrastructure considerations – as mentioned, the CCG will ensure that services are being commissioned and 

delivered to meet the needs of the local population

Sustainability and energy usage In line with Local Plan policy, the Masterplan Framework aims to reduce 
the impact on climate change. Sustainability and energy usage will be a principle consideration when developing the Masterplan 
Framework with detailed measures being outlined at the planning application stage. Key considerations would include: 
• The feasibility of renewable and low carbon energy (solar panels, wind turbines)
• Encourage convenient and integrated access by public transport, cycle and on foot
• Efficient use of natural resources such as grey water recycling (reusing waste water from buildings)
• Protection or enhancement of the quality of natural assets including water and biodiversity
• Creating high quality, well designed development taking into account local distinctiveness
• Improved quality of local landscapes and protection of the character of the wider countryside
• Preservation or enhancement of the historic and cultural features of acknowledged importance

Design Considerations

View towards Dearne Valley Parkway showing under pass with public right of way

Section A-A (Proposed)

Section A-A (Existing)

Looking east from Rockingham RoundaboutA bird’s eye view of the site from the west

Site Section A-A

Hoyland North

Dwg Nº: A098949-046-20 Rev: -

Quay West at MediaCityUK, Trafford Wharf Road, Trafford Park, Manchester, M17 1HH
020 7250 7500                     uld@wyg.com          www.wyg.com

Drawn:PC Checked:AC         Date: 29/04/2019

Project title:

Drawing title:

Scale 1:1000 @ A1 0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 150100 110 120 140130 160 170 180 190 200 210 220 230 240 250 260 270 280 290 300Metres Metres

Scale 1:1000

A6195 Embankment Site Area Kirk Balk Playing Field

Public Right of Way

Existing Residential Hawshaw 
Lane

Site location showing section location below

A

A

SECTIONS

SITE PHOTOS

HOYLAND NORTH MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK

Hawshaw 
Lane

Consultation Boards - August 2019

P
age 371



46 Masterplan Framework Report

The Masterplan Framework opposite 
and associated framework plans in 
this document are illustrative but 
have been informed by a review of 
relevant policy, detailed analysis of the 
Masterplan Framework area and its 
context, stakeholder engagement and 
community consultation.

The Masterplan Framework sets out 
the expected approach for bringing 
forward development proposals within 
the Masterplan Framework area. All 
new development should deliver 
development in accordance with 
good design practice as set out in the 
National Design Guide. 

Land use budget
The proposed scheme in its entirety 
amounts to a total of approximately 
67ha and this is broken down into key 
land use components in the table to 
the right:

06

Masterplan 
framework

EmploymentResidential

Site
Constraints/development 
requirement areas

Area (ha) %

HS64 (Hoyland 
Developments)

Retained woodland/ecological asset 1.11 5
Proposed woodland planting 0.22 1
Appropriate landscape buffer 0.22 1
Green corridors 4.19 20
Equipped children’s play areas 0.04 0
Cricket facility 2.68 13
Development parcels 12.53 60
Sub total 20.99 100

HS66 (Hoyland 
Developments)

Retained woodland/ecological asset 0.08 1
Proposed woodland planting 0 0
Appropriate landscape buffer 0 0
Green corridors 0.16 3
Proposed heritage landscape buffer 3.56 58
Development parcels 2.34 38
Sub total 6.14 100

HS56 (Hoyland 
Developments)

Retained woodland/ecological asset 0.25 8
Proposed woodland planting 0.04 1
Appropriate landscape buffer 0 0
Green corridors 1.04 33
Development parcels 1.76 56
Link road 0.08 3
Sub total 3.17 100
Total 30.3 -

Site
Constraints/development 
requirement areas

Area (ha) %

ES14 (Harworth 
Group)

Retained woodland/ecological asset 4.05 14
Proposed woodland planting 4.37 16
Substantial landscape strips along 
internal highway

0 0

Green corridors 5.05 18
Link road 0.53 2
Development parcels 14.14 50
Sub total 28.14 100

ES14 (Other - 
not including 
Mr Reckless 
parcel)

Retained woodland/ecological asset 0 0
Proposed woodland planting 0 0
Substantial landscape strips along 
internal highway

1.05 12

Green corridors 0.35 4
Access road 0.11 1
Development parcels 7.32 83
Sub total 8.83 100
Total 36.97 -

Table 4: Land use budget

P
age 372



Hoyland North Barnsley 47

Figure 14: Masterplan Framework

KEY

North

P
age 373



48 Masterplan Framework Report

06

Illustrative computer generated image (CGI) of homes overlooking cricket pitch and pavilion

standard house types with a strong 
architectural ethos, based on positive 
and distinctive local vernacular. Dual 
aspect properties help overlook the 
street and open space, improving 
natural surveillance.

It is also crucial to consider the 
edges of the employment built form, 
particularly the southern area of ES14 
which requires a landmark building to 
create a strong frontage and gateway 
into the Masterplan Framework area 
from junction 36 of the M1.

Key junctions and movement
The link road that runs through the 
Masterplan Framework area is an 
integral piece of infrastructure which 
also needs to translate the change 
in typology between residential 
and employment areas. There are 
several important junctions where 
pedestrians and cyclists will cross the 
link road, here a change of surface 
and/or material will be necessary. The 
Rockingham Roundabout is also a key 
junction arrangement to refer to, as is 
the response of the development to 
the Dearne Valley Parkway.

URBAN DESIGN/PLACEMAKING 
FRAMEWORK 
Gateways and key views
Pedestrian, cycle and vehicular 
gateways are important to highlight 
arrival points, way-finding and help 
with legibility. The plan adjacent 
identifies areas where important 
gateways are located within the 
proposal. The design of development 
in these prominent locations should 
be exemplary to create a strong first 
impression of the development and act 
as local landmarks. Proposals should 
make the best use of high-quality 
materials and include a comprehensive 
and high-quality scheme for hard and 
soft landscaping to deliver an attractive 
public realm.
 
There are key views towards Hoyland 
Lowe Stand and St Peter’s Church 
which should be emphasised through 
future proposals.

Landmark buildings
The gateways and edges of residential 
parcels should be accompanied by a 
dual aspect or feature dwelling that 
guide residents/visitors around the 
development. This will involve non-

Green corridors and spaces 
A number of new green corridors are 
proposed and these are orientated to 
accommodate the high wall mining 
constraint, as well as surface water 
attenuation areas and swales. These 
green corridors serve a number of 
important functions, linking different 
parts of the site and creating 
connectivity in visual, landscape and 
wildlife terms with the surrounding 

area. The green corridors that run 
through the Masterplan Framework 
area connect to the wider area, 
supporting walking and cycling. It is 
clear from the extent and location of 
greenspaces that the character of this 
Masterplan Framework area will be 
defined fundamentally by the quality 
of the retained and new green open 
spaces. All greenspaces should be 
safe, social and inclusive in order to 

provide social integration and well-
being. It is expected that all street 
furniture delivered within the public 
realm is consistent in terms of being 
of high-quality design and constructed 
of materials that complement the 
character of the area. Street furniture 
should be carefully located to allow 
users to rest and also promote social 
interaction. 

P
age 374



Hoyland North Barnsley 49

KEY

The central ‘heart’ to the development 
is the cricket facility, which is a focal 
point for the whole Masterplan 
Framework area, as illustrated in the 
visual adjacent.

North

Figure 15: Urban design/placemaking

P
age 375



50 Masterplan Framework Report

LANDSCAPE AND GREEN 
INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY 
Key drivers of the landscape strategy
Having regard to landscape, ecology 
and hydrological appraisal work the 
key drivers of the landscape strategy 
are as follows:
• Retaining green corridors in 

strategic locations has informed 
where areas of open space are best 
located;

• Creating new wildlife corridors 
across all allocated sites where they 
are not otherwise retained; 

• The significant ecological areas 
of planting and trees have been 
retained where possible;

• The existing pond and watercourse 
in the north west of the Masterplan 
Framework area has been retained, 
which is an attractive feature, not 
only for biodiversity but for those 
using the public right of way 
adjacent;

• Using the site levels to inform the 
locations of the SuDS ponds;

• The heritage buffer has created an 
area for informal open space that 
overlooks Hoyland Lowe Stand;

• The opportunities to strengthen 
character and derive benefits from 

06
green infrastructure;

• Provide high-quality public realm. 

Recreation provision
Generous formal open space provision 
is embedded and located in the green 
infrastructure network and provides 
a range of accessible recreational, 
sports, play and semi-natural 
greenspace. The Landscape and Green 
Infrastructure Plan and the related 
Green Infrastructure IDS table identify 
the extent, type and character of this 
provision. 

In accordance with the SPD guidance 
for Open Space Provision on 
New Housing Developments, the 
development will include a central 
Locally Equipped Area of Play (LEAP). 
The Masterplan Framework must also 
deliver a Neighbourhood Equipped 
Area of Play (NEAP - including Multi 
Use Games Area (MUGA)), this 
could be delivered on-site or via 
enhancement of the existing LEAP 
facility at King George V playing fields 
off Tinker Lane. There could also be an 
opportunity within each development 
parcel to provide play areas for 
smaller children. In accordance with 

the naturalistic approach to green 
infrastructure across the Masterplan 
Framework area, play equipment 
would feature timber and natural 
materials, wherever practical. Open 
space within the heritage buffer (HS66) 
should be publicly accessible and offer 
an opportunity for imaginative play 
within a more natural environment. 
Open spaces should be well-located, 
range in size and support a variety 
of activities wherever possible. This 
will allow children of different ages 
and abilities to play throughout the 
Masterplan Framework area.

Formal sports pitch provision will 
be included amounting to an area 
of 2.66ha and this will deliver one 
full sized adult cricket pitch and one 
adult/junior/training cricket pitch, 
car park, practice nets, pavilion and 
maintenance shed. The cricket pitches 
should be enclosed by bow top 
railings or a post and rail fence that 
prevents unauthorised vehicular usage 
but retains openness. The facility is 
well-located being at the heart of the 
Masterplan Framework area, secure 
and convenient cycle parking should 
be provided at the cricket facility and 

other recreation areas allow users to 
access via bicycle. 

The detailed specification of these 
facilities will require input from Sport 
England, Barnsley council, the English 
Cricket Board and Yorkshire Cricket 
Board. An appropriate management 
strategy for the cricket facility and 
recreational provision will be required 
to make sure that this high-quality 
facility remains clean, safe and well-
maintained.

Ecological enhancement
The vast majority of the site comprises 
relatively low-grade habitat. However, 
there are specific ecological areas of 
importance and these relate to: 
• The ponds, watercourse, grassland 

and some of the woodland 
within the western portion of site 
allocation ES17;

• Area to the south of Shortwood 
Roundabout;

• Existing woodland planting and 
stretches of old hedgerows.

As part of a careful programme of 
integration consistent with multi-
functional green infrastructure 

strategies, the ecological enhancement 
measures to support biodiversity 
include:
• Recreate species rich grassland/

meadow in public open space 
areas;

• Pro-actively manage the 
safeguarded wildlife sites;

• Create open water features in 
association with sustainable 
drainage systems;

• Where appropriate enhance 
existing hedgerow networks 
and make sure boundaries are 
permeable to wildlife;

• Retain and enhance the 
existing corridors formed by 
the watercourse and associated 
woodland habitats;

• Create new wildlife corridors across 
other allocated sites where they are 
not being otherwise retained;

• By adopting these measures, 
the Masterplan Framework will 
make sure that the habitats for 
wildlife are enhanced with at least 
a 10 percent increase in habitat 
value for wildlife compared to 
the pre-development baseline in 
accordance with the requirements 
of the new Environmental Bill.

P
age 376



Hoyland North Barnsley 51

KEY

Developers will need to justify any loss 
of green infrastructure, particularly 
important ecological areas, and set 
out a clear strategy for mitigation and/
or compensation as part of future 
planning applications, where the loss 
of existing green infrastructure is 
unavoidable.

North

Figure 16: Landscape and green infrastructure

P
age 377



52 Masterplan Framework Report

Management and maintenance of 
green infrastructure
The management, governance and 
stewardship of the proposed green 
and blue infrastructure opportunities 
have only been considered in principle 
at this stage. 

The likely option will be for the 
new residents and occupiers of the 
employment units is to enter into a 
service charge arrangement run by 
a local management organisation or 
trust who specialise in maintaining 
open space provision, detention basins 
and swales. When determining the 
management arrangement structure, 
consideration should be given to the 
following:
• making sure that there would be 

opportunities to secure biodiversity 
gains;

• community engagement to deliver 
added social value;

• include management of hard and 
soft landscaping;

• purpose, power, responsibilities, 
financial arrangements and internal 
procedures of the open space 
owner(s)/manager (management 
body/entity/organisation);

• preference for a single 
management organisation for 
all areas of green and blue 
infrastructure unless very special 
reasons why this cannot be 
achieved;

• annual reporting to the council for 
the first five years of management;

• incorporation of information 
boards and signage to educate 
residents;

• stewardship on par with those 
being implemented for garden 
communities.

This approach will be subject to further 
work including assessing the scope 
and management required and the 
feasibility of management models, 
funding sources and legal structures. 
Developers should engage with a local 
management organisation or trust at 
an early stage so that they can input 
into the design of green and blue 
infrastructure.

The vision for transferring green 
and blue infrastructure to a land 
management arrangement is based 
around core principles for residents 
and occupiers: 
• They should be instrumental in the 

major decisions that affect their 
new community; 

• They should have an ongoing role 
in ‘co-producing’ the planning, 
decision and commissioning of 
services; 

• They should make sure that 
the benefits of biodiversity 
enhancements are continued in 
perpetuity;

• They would be the beneficiary 
of the initiatives funded by the 
management organisation and are 
therefore best placed to evaluate 
the impact of these initiatives.

06

P
age 378



Hoyland North Barnsley 53

This page has been left intentionally blank

P
age 379



54 Masterplan Framework Report

MOVEMENT FRAMEWORK – A 
CONNECTED AND INTEGRATED 
SITE STREET HIERARCHY
Pedestrian and cycle links
Pedestrian and cycle links between the 
development and key local facilities 
including the employment areas have 
been assessed and where necessary 
suggested improvements. Based on 
walking and cycling catchment areas, 
the surrounding facilities in Hoyland 
Common, Birdwell and Hoyland 
Principle Town are within cycling and 
walking distance for the majority of 
prospective residents and employees. 

A targeted programme of works is 
required to enhance the key linkages 
and these are identified on figure 17 
as well as the related Infrastructure 
Delivery Schedule (IDS) Table in 
appendix 7 which provides an 
assessment of the strategic footpath, 
cycleway and bridleway routes. The IDS 
categorises the key routes as follows:
• Existing public rights of way 

proposed to be enhanced and or 
redirected;

• Proposed new strategic footpaths, 
cycleway routes;

• Proposed new crossing points.

06
The assessment work in the IDS gives 
an indicative length and suggested 
surface materials to implement either 
an enhanced route or the creation of a 
new route.

Within the Masterplan Framework area, 
priority has been given to achieving 
traffic-free pedestrian and cycle routes 
to the schools and local centre by 
extending and enhancing the existing 
routes. 

Pedestrian and cycle crossing places 
have been added where the routes 
meet the highway to provide safe links 
to important community building such 
as West Meadows Primary School.
 
Clear and well-maintained signage 
should be delivered throughout 
the Masterplan Framework area to 
direct users to wider destinations 
including Hoyland town centre, the 
Trans Pennine Trail and National Cycle 
Route. Linkages should be maintained 
throughout the delivery of all site 
allocations to ensure that links are not 
severed for any length of time. Surface 
material of all pedestrian and cycle 
routes should be appropriate to the 

character of the area. All routes should 
be appropriately lit and incorporate 
measures to prevent unauthorised 
access. Resting places should be 
incorporated so that routes are 
attractive to all users.

Public transport provision
A key aspect of achieving a well-
connected development is the 
objective of promoting sustainable 
modes of transport and reducing the 
need to travel by private vehicles. This 
should include good provision for 
public transport.

A good level of bus service currently 
runs along Hoyland Road and Sheffield 
Road.

Coverage of existing bus stops within 
and around the Masterplan Framework 
area indicates that existing routes 
would serve a significant proportion of 
the development. This means that the 
first phase of residential development 
can be served by existing bus services 
subject to the diversion and delivery 
of bus stops. Additional bus stops 
would be added across the Masterplan 
Framework area as the development 

progresses. For the employment 
elements, ES14 can be served by 
the existing bus service provision on 
Sheffield Road. However initial bus 
accessibility to serve the early phase of 
ES17 will require improved connectivity 
for pedestrians to provide an easy 
walking link to the existing bus services 
in advance of the wider scheme being 
delivered. Pedestrian routes (temporary 
and permanent) will need to be direct, 
safe and attractive with appropriate 
lighting and surfacing. The first phase 
of employment development on ES17 
will reserve areas along the first section 
of link road to deliver high-quality 
facilities; bus laybys, shelters, seating, 
real-time information upon completion 
and adoption of the full link road. 
All bus routes should be designed to 
minimise on-street parking, this will 
make sure that buses can run through 
the Masterplan Framework area 
without obstruction.

In terms of considering mid to later 
phases, it is essential that the link 
road between Dearne Valley Parkway 
and Hawshaw Lane is provided as 
soon as possible to create the desired 
level of bus accessibility. There are 

various options being considered, all 
of which would be enabled by the 
central link road running through the 
development to make sure all residents 
and employees would be within 
400m of a bus stop. Discussions with 
Stagecoach have focused upon the 
diversion of bus route services number 
66, 72 and 72A through the site. There 
is a need to make sure the proposed 
new link road and connecting access 
points are of an appropriate geometric 
design and standard to be able to 
accommodate buses. The link road 
also needs to be available from an 
early stage (this is necessary to provide 
the best chance of commercial viability 
of services). There may also be the 
opportunity to investigate high-density 
residential development within this 
bus corridor given that this will benefit 
from access to sustainable travel. 
Elsecar train station can also be 
accessed via the number 66, 72 
and 72A bus services, which stop 
approximately 160m to the north of 
the station entrance.

P
age 380



Hoyland North Barnsley 55

North

Figure 17: Movement framework

KEY

P
age 381



56 Masterplan Framework Report

Travel plan
It is recognised that travel plans are a 
valuable tool to reduce traffic from the 
development.

Travel plans for the site would need 
to set target levels for cycling, walking 
and bus use and establish measures 
for monitoring and enforcement. The 
Optima Interim Travel Plan Framework 
requires the appointment of a Travel 
Plan Manager for the whole of the 
Masterplan Framework area and 
individual Travel Plan Co-ordinators will 
need to be appointed for individual 
development parcels (both to be 
funded by the developers). Developers 
will need to prepare Residential and 
Workplace Travel Plans.

It is envisaged that to increase and 
encourage sustainable travel and 
movement habits, contributions will be 
required to travel plan initiatives such 
as: enhancement of local bus services, 
Sustainable Travel Fund (assistance 
with season ticket purchase), freely 
available and accessible real-time 
public transport information, interest 
free loans for season ticket purchase, 
car share database, car club vehicles, 

promotion of home working, provision 
of local pedestrian and cycle route 
maps. The travel plan initiatives will 
be progressed in conjunction with 
other sustainable transport measures 
proposed as a package for the 
development and will be an integral 
part of the transport assessment 
work required as part of any planning 
application.

The Sustainable Travel SPD requires 
secure storage at each new dwelling 
and secure, convenient, undercover 
storage for bicycles at employment 
units. In addition, it is expected that 
employment units will include shower 
facilities, changing, drying and storage, 
facilities to recharge batteries of 
e-bikes, and cycle repair kits available 
free of charge.

Design measures should be 
incorporated to encourage appropriate 
vehicle entry and exit routing 
between the different land uses of the 
Masterplan Framework area and the 
surrounding communities and highway 
networks (HS64). 

HEALTH IMPACT ASSESSMENT
Given the high-level stage in the 
process a proportionate assessment 
has been undertaken of the 
Masterplan Framework proposals and 
the relevant evidence base against 
the 12 themes that feature with the 
Council’s Health Impact Assessment 
(HIA) tool to determine the likely 
impact on different groups in locality 
and wider society. A number of 
these key themes cut across and are 
consistent with established good 
planning principles and achieving 
important sustainable initiatives that 
are embedded with the principles 
of this Masterplan Framework. At 
this stage the principles have been 
considered at a high level and the 
HIA will continue to evolve and be 
tested with key stakeholders involved 
as detailed planning applications 
are brought forward. This will make 
sure that any negative impacts are 
addressed, and appropriate mitigation 
measures are put in place as well 
as ensuring that the positive effects 
are maximised to the full. The HIA 
will consider proposals against the 
following principles:
• The location, affordability, design, 

06
sustainability, energy efficiency, 
accessibility of new homes;

• The encouragement of regular 
physical exercise and social 
integration by providing attractive, 
safe and convenient environments 
that are accessible to all;

• Creating linkages to local shops 
and services to encourage access to 
healthy food supplies;

• Minimising construction impacts, 
air and noise pollution; 

• Opportunities for reducing car 
dependency and the provision 
of convenient, safe, sustainable 
transport options;

• The ability to reduce crime and fear 
of crime as a result of a carefully 
considered approach to design;

• The construction phase, long-term 
B Class and supporting facilities 
jobs being able to assist in securing 
economic growth as job security, 
job satisfaction and sense of 
contribution can play a part in 
improved mental well-being;

• Promotion of renewable energy, 
reduction of carbon emissions and 
minimising flood risk;

• Facilitating social interaction 
and creating healthy inclusive 

communities;
• Having access to quality healthcare 

services, access to other quality 
public and community services 
such as schools, social services, 
libraries, community facilities to 
promote a good quality of life.

P
age 382



Hoyland North Barnsley 57

This page has been left intentionally blank

P
age 383



58 Masterplan Framework Report

CHARACTER AREAS
This document sets out five character 
areas that could provide a range of 
house typologies and densities. This is 
illustrated on the plan opposite: 

a) Commercial Parkway West
This is an area defined at present by 
highway infrastructure. It is an area in 
need of development to soften the 
infrastructure character and to bring 
high-quality buildings (including a 
landmark building) and substantial 
landscape into play to establish a 
stronger sense of place. This area 
will be will be characterised by 
employment buildings and will be an 
important gateway into the Masterplan 
Framework area from junction 36 
of the M1. It should deliver a high-
quality environment that sets the 
design quality for the wider Masterplan 
Framework area. 

b) Employment Avenue
This part of the site will be 
characterised by employment 
buildings (combination of B1, B2 and 
B8) offering employment opportunities 
across a range of sectors in order to 
provide residents with opportunities to 

earn above average incomes.

The topography adds depth to the 
site with buildings stepping up the 
hill from the Dearne Valley Parkway. 
The form and massing of the built 
development will be critical in order 
to ensure wider landscape impacts 
are accessible given the visibility of 
the site from a number of short and 
long distance vantage points to the 
north. A Landscape and Visual Impact 
Assessment will therefore be essential 
at the planning application stage in 
order to ensure that the development 
sits comfortably within the landscape 
and makes a strong contribution to the 
character of the area.

The landscape setting of roads and 
development platforms, and the 
structural planting stepping up the 
hill make a strong contribution to this 
area as an avenue. The avenue can be 
created by any number of landscape 
treatments and planting approaches. 

c) Eastern Mixed-Use Gateway
This is a small but important area 
of character. It marks the arrival 
point into the scheme from Dearne 

Valley Parkway and includes strategic 
landscape for both residential and 
employment parcels and a SuDS 
attenuation pond. The transition 
of residential to employment 
development is designed through a 
change in link road design, gateway 
feature, landscape treatment, street 
lighting and surface material. Design 
measures should be incorporated 
to encourage appropriate vehicle 
entry and exit routing between the 
different land uses of the Masterplan 
Framework area and the surrounding 
communities and highway networks 
(HS64). 

The topography in this area is also 
important as the development and 
link road starts to traverse the hillside. 
The residential parcels have a direct 
interface with the existing residential 
areas around Upper Hoyland Road. The 
character of residential development 
here is important and should create 
an attractive public face. Subject to 
dealing with level changes, residential 
development should front onto the 
link road, with private drives creating 
an attractive set-back from the link 
road and provide an opportunity for 

substantial landscaping.

d) Hoyland Crescent
This area feathers back into the 
existing residential properties to 
the north of Hoyland Common. The 
grain of the streets is derived from 
the ground study of streets and 
buildings. The development parcels 
and the street structure connect with 
the existing settlement pattern. The 
scale and density of streets/residential 
development are towards the lower 
end of the scheme overall and this 
relates well to the existing pattern of 
development. Residential properties on 
the eastern margin of the developable 
area of site allocation HS66 should 
be single storey in height and include 
an appropriate site layout and 
sympathetic design that reflects the 
setting, scaling, massing, details and 
materials. This will protect the historic 
setting of Hoyland Lowe Stand located 
immediately to the east.

e) The Common
This is the heart of the development 
focused around the cricket facilities, 
community pavilion and children’s 
play facility (LEAP or NEAP). Routes 

through Hoyland Crescent lead to The 
Common. This area is prominent in 
terms of landscape and topography, 
cresting the hill down towards the 
employment area. The higher density 
in this location should frame the 
greenspace and define this area as the 
heart of the Masterplan Framework 
area. Residential development should 
overlook the greenspace and comprise 
high-quality materials, fenestration 
and detailing in order to create a 
high-quality residential environment. 
Residential development should 
include townhouses, terraces and 
apartments (including older persons 
accommodation where appropriate). 
This area should also include high-
quality, well-maintained landscaping 
which softens the transition between 
the built form and greenspace. The 
section of link road from Hoyland 
Road/Hawshaw Lane should 
incorporate tree planting to create an 
attractive entrance into the Masterplan 
Framework area.

06

P
age 384



Hoyland North Barnsley 59

KEY

North

Figure 18: Character areas 

P
age 385



60 Masterplan Framework Report

06

Low density example

Hoyland Lowe 
Stand buffer

Medium density example

RESIDENTIAL SAMPLE AREAS
Areas of the Masterplan Framework 
have been broken into particular 
densities. These densities are low, 
medium and high and relate to the 
existing built form surrounding the 
Masterplan Framework area:
• Low density – 30-40 dwellings per 

hectare (dph);
• Medium density – 40-50 dwellings 

per hectare;
• High density – 50-60 dwellings per 

hectare.

The following pages illustrate what 
these densities could look like.

Medium density
Residential parcels where the density 
is notated as medium should be 
designed as follows:
• Properties are 2-2.5 storey to 

reflect existing homes in Hoyland 
Common. 2.5-3 storeys to highlight 
focal points and gateways around 
the development; framing open 
space, key views and aid way-
finding;

• Dwellings vary from semi-detached, 
terraces and some detached;

Low density
Following the guidance from Historic 
England, the dwellings located on the 
eastern margin of the developable 
area of HS66, nearest Hoyland Lowe 
Stand, will need to be single storey. 
Properties fronting the heritage buffer 
towards Hoyland Lowe Stand should 
incorporate private drives to create 
an informal edge to the heritage 
buffer. These properties should be 
designed to avoid a car dominated 
streetscene, and include appropriate 
landscaping to soften the transition 

• Homes should front onto the street 
and open space;

• Dual aspect properties should be 
located on corners to create active 
frontages and natural surveillance; 

• Frontage parking should be 
avoided wherever possible with a 
strong emphasis on landscaped 
frontages.

between the green heritage buffer and 
built form. The site layout should seek 
to maximise views to and from the 
Lowe Stand and be of a sympathetic 
design that reflects the setting, scaling, 
massing, details and materials. The 
roofscape of residential development 
on HS66 should be appropriate to 
protect the setting of Hoyland Lowe 
Stand. Lower-density development 
will also be located to the west of the 
Masterplan Framework area adjacent 
to Tinker Lane in order to reflect the 
scale of existing bungalow properties.

P
age 386



Hoyland North Barnsley 61

Cricket pitch

High density example Examples of good design (Source: WYG)

EXAMPLES OF GOOD DESIGN
The images to the right are seen as 
good design examples due to:
1. Homes overlooking greenspace, 

resting places and opportunities 
for social interaction, swale sits 
comfortably in the green corridor, 
with trees breaking down the scale 
of buildings;

2. Pedestrian/cycle priority with ramps 
as well as steps provides ‘access for 
all’ and promotes active travel;

3. Interesting style of buildings 
integrating green corridors with 
informal/imaginative play and wild-
flower meadow;

4. Attenuation basins are overlooked 
with varied roofscape giving visual 
interest, buildings frame the open 
space and there is a considered use 
of a range of high-quality materials;

5. High-quality landscaping, shared 
surfaces help soften transition from 
built form to greenspace, depth in 
fenestration, strong front boundary 
treatment to define private and 
public space;

6. Tree lined road with swales 
running along the edge creates an 
attractive route.

High density
Areas of higher density development 
will be situated across housing 
allocations HS56, HS64 and HS66 
which bound employment allocation 
ES17. Higher density development 
should also frame the cricket facilities 
and greenspace at the heart of the 
Masterplan Framework area on HS64. 
These will include a mix of 2, 2.5 and 3 
storey houses, including terraces and 
townhouses, along with a number of 
apartments (including older persons 
accommodation where appropriate). 

Parking for apartments will be carefully 
considered to avoid car dominated 
frontages. Areas of higher density 
development will need to demonstrate 
that the streetscene will not be overly 
dominated by car parking. 

1 2

3 4

5 6

P
age 387



62 Masterplan Framework Report

06

Primary road
Terraced 
homes Bungalows

Retained and 
enhanced trees/

vegetation

Private 
drive

PRoW

High density housing Heritage buffer/
informal play area

Retained 
hedgerow

176.1m
182.7m

169m
163.8m

167.1m

Hoyland Lowe 
StandPrivate 

drive

135.7m

151.6m 157.8m
165m 164m 168m166m 170.7m

Employment
unitExisting 

employment
unit

A6195 Dearne 
Valley Parkway Employment

unit

Harworth Group

Link road
Service area

Retained and enhanced 
trees/vegetation

Retained and enhanced 
trees/vegetation

Retained and 
enhanced trees/

vegetation

High density housing Kirk Balk playing field

Existing house

Hawshaw Lane

Section A-A

Section B-B

Existing section line

SECTIONS
The sections below illustrate what 
the site could look like based on the 
Masterplan Framework. 

P
age 388



Hoyland North Barnsley 63

Section A-A
Hoyland Lowe Stand is a significant 
landmark within the area, therefore the 
homes that face this historic asset must 
be designed sensitively.

A

A

B

B

C

C

D
D

140.3m

158m

138.1m

163m160m

137.6m
144.3m

146.8m

Attenuation
pond

Link road
Proposed 
dwelling

PRoWPrivate 
drive

High density 
housing

High density 
housing

Section C-C

Section D-D
Section locations

Section B-B
The relationship between the 
residential and employment is an 
essential part of the Masterplan 
Framework. Both uses must strive to 
relate to Hoyland through character, 
massing, storey height, materials and 
design. 

Due to the level changes in the
Masterplan Framework area, the storey 
heights are critical to make sure that 
the developments are in keeping with 
their surroundings.

Section C-C
The integration of the SuDS 
throughout the Masterplan Framework 
area amidst the house types provide 
an attractive feature that homes will 
overlook.

Section D-D
It is important that dwellings front 
on to the street and open spaces, 
including the proposed link road, 
which is demonstrated in this section.

North

P
age 389



64 Masterplan Framework Report

APPROACH TO INFRASTRUCTURE 
DELIVERY
The proposals include a phasing 
delivery strategy that identifies the 
timing, funding and provision of key 
infrastructure requirements coming 
forward. As part of the study work, 
the consultancy team, together with 
statutory bodies and the council 
officers have provided evidence and 
opinions. These views have resulted 
in the need to assess the triggers in 
sequencing infrastructure delivery to 
accord with the policy requirements 
set out within the Local Plan. 

The key elements of strategic 
infrastructure that are required to 
support the vision and aims of securing 
sustainable development at Hoyland 
North have been identified in the 
Infrastructure Delivery Schedule (IDS) 
in appendix 7. The IDS concentrates 

Infrastructure 
requirements

07

on infrastructure requirements that are 
strategic in nature and common to the 
delivery of a number of development 
parcels where coordination of delivery 
is crucial. 

Site-specific plot infrastructure will 
be required on a more detailed basis 
relating to the development parcels. 
Whilst the IDS identifies strategic utility 
provision, more detailed information 
regarding power, water, broadband 
connection and foul drainage will 
need to be undertaken to make sure 
that it is in step with the requirements 
of each phase of development and 
that provision is coordinated between 
phases. 

At present, the source of funding 
for the majority of the strategic 
infrastructure items are balanced 
between developer funding, the 

potential to secure external funding in 
relation to the link road and Section 
106 contributions. 

From the IDS, key assumptions have 
been made and these are highlighted 
as follows:
Transportation
a) Highway improvement works
The transport appraisal has concluded 
that no significant/major off-site 
highway works are required. 

b) Link road between Dearne Valley 
Parkway/Hawshaw Lane
Over the course of the Masterplan 
Framework process careful 
consideration has been given to the 
suitability and feasibility of a range of 
options to identify an appropriate link 
road between Hoyland Road/Hawshaw 
Lane and the Dearne Valley Parkway. 
Each has been assessed in terms of 

their advantages and disadvantages in 
order to provide an alternative means 
of access diverting traffic away from 
Hoyland Common local centre. The 
concept plan shows the preferred 
option which is a link road between 
Shortwood Roundabout and Hoyland 
Road/Hawshaw Lane.

More detailed feasibility work is 
currently ongoing to make sure 
that the design of the road can 
achieve the required highway 
standards particularly given the steep 
topography in this area of the site 
and the likely earthworks that will be 
required. However initial indications 
suggest from discussions with the 
relevant technical experts and council 
officers that this proposed link road 
alignment can be delivered through 
an engineered solution with minimum 
refinement and deviation to that 

currently shown on the plan. 

During this initial process, 
consideration has been given to the 
form and function of the link road 
so that the highway design and road 
width allows for appropriate access 
to the employment uses on ES17 
off Shortwood Roundabout as well 
a catering for a future bus service 
through the Masterplan Framework 
area. However, where the link road 
cuts through the residential element 
the road design seeks to adopt a 
Manual for Streets approach with 
the introduction of traffic calming 
and placemaking principles. Design 
measures should be incorporated 
to encourage appropriate vehicle 
entry and exit routing between the 
different land uses of the Masterplan 
Framework area and the surrounding 
communities and highway networks 

P
age 390



Hoyland North Barnsley 65

(HS64). 

Therefore, the function and character 
of the road will change along its 
length. In particular, the width will 
vary between 7.3m in the northern 
section to serve the employment 
provision to 6.75m in the south where 
it becomes a street to serve the 
residential element. By adopting this 
approach, the link road will not only 
align with the design objectives of the 
Masterplan Framework but also serve 
the local traffic needs generated by the 
development by diverting traffic flows 
away from Hoyland Common.

Confidence is high that the preferred 
link road is likely to be feasible, 
however work will continue to explore 
a design and engineering solution 
that satisfies key criteria. Should 
new technical evidence become 

available that demonstrates that the 
preferred link road alignment is not 
feasible, then there would still be 
an opportunity to re-consider the 
alternative options presented as part 
of the public consultation exercise.

c) Sustainable travel
In terms of ensuring an appropriate 
level of bus services is provided, the 
early phases of the development can 
be supported by the existing services 
with modest costs associated with 
providing strategically located bus 
stops within the first phase of houses 
and enhanced walking connections 
from the employment sites. Through 
discussions with Barnsley Bus 
Partnership (including South Yorkshire 
Passenger Transport Executive (SYPTE) 
and Stagecoach) the proposed trigger 
point to justify the re-routing of the 
existing bus service through the first 

phase is before occupation of the 
50th dwelling. In the second phase 
(5+ years) the proposed solution is to 
divert bus route service numbers 66, 
72 and 72A through the Masterplan 
Framework area using the new link 
road connection.

Based on the variables considered, 
Stagecoach has recommended that the 
additional service would be triggered 
by completion of the 250th dwellings 
/adoption of the link road. Further 
consideration will be required as to 
whether this approach to re-route the 
bus service would require subsidising, 
and if so, whether the anticipated S106 
contribution for Sustainable Travel 
(based on the adopted SPD) would 
generate a sufficient sum to cover this 
cost in full. 

Embedded in the Masterplan 
Framework layout is the creation of 
logical and well-connected pedestrian 
and cycle links. The proposal is 
to enhance existing public rights 
of way, create new routes, as well 
as new crossing points on the 
highway network at key locations 
(to be determined). These routes are 
specifically identified in figure 17 and 
this information should be read in 
conjunction with the IDS.

To increase and encourage sustainable 
travel a series of travel plan initiatives 
are proposed (see Interim Travel Plan 
that forms part of the supporting 
suite of documents) and these would 
be required at certain points in the 
phasing of the development. 

P
age 391



66 Masterplan Framework Report

Strategic green infrastructure 
Strategic green infrastructure is an 
important element in defining and 
creating the placemaking qualities 
of the proposal. There are a variety 
of proposed green infrastructure 
spaces ranging from informal spaces, 
detention basins and wildlife corridors 
together with more formalised sports 
pitches and play areas. These are all 
captured within the landscape and 
green infrastructure plan (figure 17) 
and associated IDS identified green 
infrastructure categories.

The formal sport provision will provide 
an adult and an adult/junior/training 
pitch together with community 
pavilion, practice nets and car parking. 
The location of these facilities is shown 
within the heart of the residential 
parcel (site HS64) so that it integrates 
into the new community and provides 
a strong focal point.

The Masterplan Framework seeks 
to deliver a cricket facility to enable 
the relocation of existing sports 
provision from Rockingham Sports 
Ground. As such, this provision cannot 
be considered equivalent to ‘new’ 

provision as there would be a potential 
loss of existing sports provision 
elsewhere. This will be clarified during 
the development of the Hoyland West 
Masterplan Framework. The council will 
work with the developers/landowners 
to agree the split between ‘new’ 
and replacement formal recreation 
facilities.

A seamless relocation is needed in 
relocating the cricket facilities from 
Rockingham Sports Ground to the 
new facilities proposed at Hoyland 
North. On this basis the earthworks, 
drainage and plateaus need to be 
created along with installation of the 
square (including wickets) during the 
first phase of the housing development 
to allow an appropriate bedding in 
period.

The technical specification of the 
new cricket facilities will follow the 
guidelines set out by Sport England, 
England and Wales Cricket Board (ECB) 
and Yorkshire Cricket Board (YCB).
Reference to the management and 
maintenance of green and blue 
infrastructure has been considered for 
the Masterplan Framework area within 

section 6 (see page 52). 

Strategic SuDS drainage
For the provision of surface water 
drainage, the assumed approach at this 
stage is to attenuate all the anticipated 
volume on a strategic basis outside the 
defined development parcel areas as 
they not only provide a storage facility 
but also add biodiversity and amenity 
value as part of the network of green 
infrastructure. The recommendation 
by JPG is for this entire strategic 
infrastructure to be ideally provided on 
an upfront basis within phase 1 of the 
development. It is envisaged that each 
land promoter within the Masterplan 
Framework can deliver their drainage 
strategy independently of each other. 

Strategic foul water
In terms of assessing foul water 
drainage, the sewer network has 
been modelled by JPG and for the 
residential element the Masterplan 
Framework area can discharge to a 
375mm diameter public combined 
sewer network in Hoyland Road 
although due to site levels, it is likely 
a proportion of the site may need to 
be pumped. As the existing public 

combined sewer in Hoyland Road 
discharges to an existing foul water 
pumping station located within HS64 it 
may be possible to discharge domestic 
foul water either to this pumping 
station directly or to the 375mm 
diameter sewer immediately before the 
pump station.

The proposed strategy for discharging 
foul water drainage generated from 
ES14 and ES17 is to connect to an 
existing public foul water sewer (150 
diameter) located to the north of the 
Dearne Valley Parkway. Further work 
is required on the capacity, design 
and construction of the connecting 
infrastructure as this will be located on 
land owned by Harworth Group and 
Barnsley council. 

Education strategy
The education strategy as set out 
within the IDS assumes the following 
approach in line with anticipated 
phasing and rate of delivery of the 
development:
Primary school provision
Based on current projections it is 
anticipated that intervention will 
be required by September 2023 to 

address an anticipated shortfall in 
primary school places. It is considered 
that a potential solution is to expand 
an existing primary school within 
Hoyland in order to deliver additional 
capacity. This would be secured by 
S106 based on the figures in the 
adopted Supplementary Planning 
Document applicable at the time of the 
application being determined.
 
Secondary school provision
Secondary school capacity is available 
across the South School Place Planning 
Area into the foreseeable future, 
although places in specific schools 
cannot be guaranteed. Barnsley council 
will continue to work specifically with 
Kirk Balk Academy to manage pupil 
numbers through the admissions 
procedure given its close proximity to 
a number of Masterplan Framework 
areas. The council will also need to 
work with other secondary schools and 
developers on a wider basis within the 
planning area in order to make sure 
sufficient school places are available 
and promote sustainable travel as 
required. 

Notwithstanding the above, future 

07

P
age 392



Hoyland North Barnsley 67

school capacity will change as updated 
information on likely admissions 
becomes available. Given the 
timescales involved in completing 
a development of this scale, school 
place capacity will need to be reviewed 
throughout the development to ensure 
that contributions are made if there 
is likely to be inadequate capacity 
within the planning area as a result 
of new demand arising from this 
development.

Strategic utilities and services 
Consultants Silcock Leedham has 
identified the existing utilities present 
on the site and potential constraints 
and opportunities imposed by these 
services. They have estimated the 
service loads required to supply 
electricity, gas and water to the 
proposed development. By outlining 
the general capacity constraints in 
the local utility network they have 
anticipated the reinforcements and 
requirements to supply the proposed 
development. 

For gas, the connection to the site will 
be via Upper Hoyland Road Junction 
from a 180 PE MP MAIN as well as via 

Rockingham Roundabout from a 6” CI 
LP MAIN.

For electricity, the connection to the 
first phase of housing can be made 
to the existing 11kV high voltage 
network.

However, for ES17 the first phase 
will require an upgrade to the 
switchboard(s) at the existing primary 
substation at Worsborough. Harworth 
Group are committed to dealing with 
these initial upgrade works on an 
upfront basis but would expect these 
costs to the shared on a fair basis with 
the other land promoters through 
a suitable mechanism. On a wider 
basis the principle of this approach 
should also be the case in relation 
to the upgrade of the switchboard(s) 
at Elsecar primary substation that is 
required to deliver the anticipated 
growth for the whole of Hoyland over 
the Local Plan period.

Consideration in the future capacity of 
utilities has been given to the recent 
Government announcement regarding 
banning gas boilers in new homes 
from 2025 and the likely impact this 

will have on electricity draw (assuming 
that the alternative to a gas boiler is 
electricity). In addition, the anticipated 
electricity capacity for the Masterplan 
Framework takes into account future 
adoption and integration of new 
sustainable technologies and includes 
electric vehicle charging points which 
have been identified in the Sustainable 
Travel SPD as:
• One electric vehicle charging 

point per dwelling with dedicated 
parking;

• One charging point per 10 spaces 
of unallocated parking (visitor 
parking);

• 10 percent of parking spaces for 
commercial/retail and industrial.

For water, the connection would be 
taken from an existing water main 
running via a 24” CI main that is 
located in Rockley Lane (Grid Ref: 
433926, 401729). These works will 
generally include a connection within 
the main identified, and route a new 
350mm main 3km from this point of 
connection to the entrance of Hoyland 
North Masterplan Framework area off 
the Dearne Valley Parkway. 

Within the Masterplan Framework 
area, there may be a requirement for 
diversions of existing gas, electricity 
and water mains, these will need to be 
reviewed at the detailed stage.

P
age 393



68 Masterplan Framework Report

Digital communications infrastructure
Advanced, high-quality and reliable 
digital communications infrastructure 
is essential for economic growth and 
social well-being (NPPF Paragraph 
112). Local Plan policy I1 confirms that 
developments must be supported by 
appropriate infrastructure, including 
provision for broadband. The 
deployment of gigabit-capable full 
fibre digital infrastructure from a range 
of providers to new developments will 
support this approach.

Developers will be asked to consider 
installing gigabit-capable full fibre 
infrastructure from two suppliers 
in order to provide choice and 
competition to consumers. A variety 
of infrastructure providers are keen 
to deploy gigabit-capable full-fibre 
infrastructure on employment and 
residential sites. Various incentives may 
be available such as payments made to 
the developer for the right to deploy, 
and deployment offered free of charge 
to the developer. 

Developers should engage with 
infrastructure suppliers at an early 
stage to confirm that gigabit-capable 

full-fibre broadband can be delivered 
to all new development in a timely 
manner. Developers should consider 
the infrastructure requirements of the 
wider Masterplan Framework area 
in order to avoid prejudicing future 
infrastructure delivery and creating a 
need for retrospective works.

Occupiers should be able to access 
broadband (ideally from a choice of at 
least two providers) upon occupation 
of the premises. Developers should 
also consider their ability to upgrade 
infrastructure in the future in order to 
minimise disruption to occupiers/users.

In developing detailed proposals, 
developers should consider the 
following design principles: 
• minimise and/or mitigate against 

the visual presence of infrastructure 
on the façade of buildings;

• minimise physical obstructions on 
footpaths and cycle ways;

• maximise the use of recessed 
infrastructure;

• carefully consider the location of 
cabinets to minimise visual clutter 
in the streetscene.

07

P
age 394



Hoyland North Barnsley 69

This page has been left intentionally blank

P
age 395



70 Masterplan Framework Report

APPROACH TO DEVELOPMENT 
PHASING
The delivery of infrastructure and 
phasing of the development has been 
approached in accordance with the 
following principles: 
• Infrastructure to be provided in 

a timely way in order to reduce/
mitigate the impact of the 
development; 

• A comprehensive and coordinated 
approach to strategic infrastructure 
delivery is required in order to 
make sure the overall Masterplan 
Framework aspirations are met; 

• Avoiding the creation of parcels 
of land or isolated pockets of 
development that do not relate to 
their surroundings as it is important 
to create a sense of place as quickly 
as possible within the defined 
character areas; 

• Early provision of key transport 

Implementation 
and delivery

08

infrastructure is recognised as 
being an essential requirement 
to reduce the impact of the 
development upon the existing 
highway network. The key 
assumption in this regard is that 
the early delivery of the link road 
between Hoyland Road and the 
Dearne Valley Parkway will come 
forward prior to the development 
of more than 250 houses;

• The initial phases of development 
will make best use of the existing 
bus services. A fully integrated 
bus service running through the 
Masterplan Framework area is to 
be operational upon delivery of 250 
dwellings and adoption of the link 
road;

• There is an opportunity for 
multiple delivery outlets on site 
for both housing and employment 
development. The phasing and 

delivery strategy seeks to maximise 
this opportunity based on the 
location, character and size of the 
development parcels; 

• Logical sequencing of the 
development parcels has been 
considered to avoid any adverse 
environmental impacts associated 
with construction traffic and 
activities on the early phases of 
development.

The phasing plan splits the Masterplan 
Framework into two distinct phasing 
areas. Phase 1 relates to the first five-
year period and focuses on housing 
development off Hoyland Road/
Hawshaw Lane. The initial phase of 
employment development is along the 
Dearne Valley Parkway corridor (ES14 
and northern parcel of ES17). Both 
these uses will also deliver appropriate 
SuDs provision as well as substantial 

landscaping and open space. 
The remainder of the Masterplan 
Framework area is identified as 
Phase 2 which will be delivered post 
the five-year period. The trajectory 
tables below provide an overview of 
the assumed delivery rates for both 
housing and employment.

P
age 396



Hoyland North Barnsley 71

KEY

North

Figure 19: Phasing

P
age 397



72 Masterplan Framework Report

08
ASSUMPTIONS AROUND THE 
RATE OF DELIVERY
The developer-led housing trajectory 
in table 5 sets out an expected 
year-on-year trajectory and this has 
informed the assumptions regarding 
the phased delivery of infrastructure. 
It is anticipated that delivery will start 
in 2020 following adoption of the 
Masterplan Framework and will initially 
be delivered by one housebuilder 
building at a rate of 50 dwelling per 
annum in the first five-year period 
plus the affordable housing provision 
at 10 percent. However, it is assumed 
in the second five-year phase, two 
housebuilders would build at the 
same rate together with the affordable 
housing provision.

For the employment uses, it is again 
anticipated that the start on site would 
be in 2020 following adoption of the 
Masterplan Framework, and it has 
been assumed that the rate of delivery 
would be 10,000sqm per annum2. 
Given the overall capacity the likely 
time for completion would be 15 years.

HOUSING MIX ASSUMPTIONS
It is recognised that the housing 
allocations will need to deliver a 
housing mix (size, type and tenure) 
to help create mixed and balanced 
communities. The housing mix will not 
only provide family housing but also 
homes for young people as well as 
bungalows on selected areas. All new 
housing, irrespective of tenure, should 
be functional, healthy and sustainable.

Housing sites within the Masterplan 
Framework area are expected to 
deliver 10 percent affordable housing. 

The housing split will be informed by 
the latest Affordable Housing SPD and 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment 
(SHMA). 

PLANNING STRATEGY
The Local Plan site policies for 
allocations HS56, HS64, HS66, ES14 
and ES17 require the production of a 
Masterplan Framework to guide new 
development and make sure that the 
policy objectives are delivered. The 
Hoyland North Masterplan Framework 
was adopted on 19 December 2019 
and will be a material consideration 

in the determination of planning 
applications for individual sites.

It is acknowledged that the Masterplan 
Framework is based on technical 
information available at the time of 
preparation. A degree of flexibility may 
need to be applied at the planning 
application stage but any deviation 
would need to be clearly justified and 
agreed with Barnsley council.

Future planning applications would 
also need to have regard to the up to 
date Environmental Impact Assessment 
(EIA) legislation and relevant case law 
to determine whether screening /
scoping opinions are required in the 
context of reviewing the cumulative 
impact of the proposal on the basis 
of the overarching development 
requirements for the whole Masterplan 
Framework area. 

Developers will be required to present 
future planning applications to the 
Barnsley Urban Renaissance Design 
Advisory Panel at an early stage for the 
panel to review and input. 

Overall capacity Approximately 150,000sqm based on the Barnsley
Growth Model

Anticipated Start 
Date 2020

Assumed Rate of 
Delivery per annum 10,000sq.m per annum 

Likely Completion 15 year or 2035

Overall capacity 765 dwellings

Anticipated Start 
Date 2020

Assumed Rate of 
Delivery per annum

 Period Assumptions Dwellings

1st 5 Year Period 
2020-2025

1 housebuilder 50 
dwellings per year x 5 
years

250

Affordable housing 10% 
of 50 dwellings x 5 25

Sub total 275

Outstanding balance 490

Remaining Phase 
2026-2030

2 housebuilders 100 
dwellings per year x 4.4 
years

445

Affordable housing 10% 
of 100 dwellings per year 
x 4.4 years

45

Likely Completion 9.45 years or 2029

Table 5: Residential and employment trajectory rates

Residential

Employment

2This assumed trajectory was provide by 
Harworth Group PLC

P
age 398



Hoyland North Barnsley 73

This page has been left intentionally blank

P
age 399



74 Masterplan Framework Report

MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK 
OBJECTIVES
The overriding ambition of this project 
is to deliver an attractive, high-quality 
and well-designed development. This 
has been influenced by a series of 
site-specific development framework 
objectives focusing on:
• Delivering a sustainable mixed-

used development which links 
with and complements the existing 
settlement pattern of Hoyland; 

• Special features of the site and 
its context having regard to the 
landscape setting, the undulating 
topography and the heritage assets 
particularly relating to Hoyland 
Lowe Stand;

• The provision of quality new homes 
which would include a wide range 
of housing typologies, densities 
and tenures to offer both market 
and affordable housing;

Summary

09

• Making sure that the development 
will promote sustainable modes 
of transport, creating walkable 
neighbourhoods and easy access to 
bus stops;

• A key aspiration is to create strong 
connectivity through pedestrian 
and cycle routes to link a series of 
green corridors to key destinations 
within the surrounding area; 
By adopting this approach, the 
development will deliver both 
sustainability and health and well-
being benefits;

• Retention of higher-value 
ecological areas, creation of new 
wildlife corridors and delivery of at 
least percent biodiversity net gain 
across the site upon completion 
(compared to pre-construction 
values);

• Development would provide a 
mix of employment uses to meet 

market and local needs to make 
sure it becomes an attractive place 
to work as well as live;

• The Masterplan Framework area 
presents several constraints 
including its topography, landscape 
features and ground conditions and 
these have influenced the design 
framework in a positive manner;

• Creation of a ‘heart’ within the 
Masterplan Framework area to 
provide a cricket facility and 
community asset.

 
Placemaking strategy
At the heart of the Masterplan 
Framework area are the cricket pitches 
and community pavilion which will 
act as a focal point. In addition to 
this, landmark buildings will help to 
characterise as well as create strong 
frontages and gateways into the 
Masterplan Framework area. The 

proposed link road is a vital piece of 
infrastructure that will serve residential 
and employment areas and must be 
sensitive to the change in land use 
across the sites. Connectivity will be 
provided throughout the Masterplan 
Framework area for pedestrians and 
cyclists through the creation of green 
corridors.

Landscape strategy
The key drivers for the landscape 
strategy in the Masterplan Framework 
area are: retaining green corridors, 
ecological areas and ponds, using site 
levels to inform SuDS pond locations 
and providing a heritage buffer. Using 
these drivers allows for the provision 
of recreation facilities, ecological 
enhancement and the sustainable 
management of green and blue 
infrastructure within the Masterplan 
Framework area.

Movement strategy
Through the movement strategy, 
consideration has been given to the 
street hierarchy. The pedestrian and 
cycle links create a well-connected 
and well-integrated place, leading to a 
highly legible framework to access the 
wide range of services and facilities in 
close proximity. 

In terms of public transport, the 
existing bus services within and around 
the site could service the initial phases 
of the development. For future phases, 
it is essential that a link through the 
development between Dearne Valley 
Parkway and Hoyland Road/Hawshaw 
Lane is provided to create the desired 
level of bus access and allow existing 
bus services to be diverted through the 
development. 

It is also acknowledged that the 

P
age 400



Hoyland North Barnsley 75

implementation of the Interim Travel 
Plan as well as the approach to 
parking requirements will ensure a 
sustainable and well-designed form of 
development.

Highway strategy
Using information from the Local 
Plan evidence base, in particularly the 
traffic assumptions made by AECOM 
on behalf of Barnsley council as part 
of the strategic modelling exercise 
undertaken for the M1 Junction 36 
improvement works and further 
detailed transport appraisal work, an 
assessment has been made of the 
traffic impact of the development on 
the surrounding highway network. 
This work has informed the likely 
impact on key local junctions. A new 
link road connecting Dearne Valley 
Parkway to Hoyland Road/Hawshaw 
Lane is proposed prior to the delivery 
of more than 250 dwellings on site 
HS64 and this will relieve traffic at the 
junction of Hoyland Road and Sheffield 
Road. Other than this requirement it 
is concluded that no significant/major 
off-site junction improvements are 
required.

 Health and well-being
A key principle and golden thread 
running through the evolving 
Masterplan Framework has been the 
approach to delivering health and 
well-being initiatives that would not 
only benefit the new occupants of 
the proposed development but also 
having regard to the wider Hoyland 
community. We have carried out an 
initial Health Impact Assessment using 
the council’s framework tool, and 
this exercise clearly indicates that the 
range of measures associated with 
the development will have a positive 
impact on health across a variety of 
local groups and individuals. 

Sustainability and climate change
The council declared a climate 
emergency in September 2019 with the 
objective for the borough to achieve 
zero carbon by 2045 (Zero 45). The 
new developments associated this 
Masterplan Framework will look to 
play their part. Consideration will be 
given to the latest Building Regulations 
for housing, BREEAM for employment 
and CEEQUAL for infrastructure, 
landscaping and public realm. This 
will include identification of suitable 
low-carbon technologies, investigating 

renewable energy solutions and 
Combined Heat Power (CHP). Subject 
to feasibility, this approach will 
make sure that the development is 
future-proofed particularly given the 
anticipated build out rates over a 10-
year period.

Drainage strategy
The technical drainage infrastructure 
requirements have been considered 
within the context of the overall 
green infrastructure objectives and 
it is considered that a strategy of 
detention basins in open space 
serving all parts of the development 
can be achieved. A continued level of 
flexibility to the strategy is required 
in order to consider opportunities to 
use underground storage attenuation 
for surface water with a view to 
maximising the development yield for 
the whole Masterplan Framework area.

Implementation and delivery
Clear assumptions have been made 
regarding the approach to phasing 
of the development and the rate of 
housing and employment delivery. 
These assumptions have been guided 
and informed by the technical 
constraints, the Masterplan Framework 

objectives as well as market and 
delivery factors. The key assumptions 
are as follows: 
• Anticipated start for both housing 

and employment is 2020; 
• The trajectory for the housing 

element has been divided into two 
phases each representing a 5-year 
year period with an envisaged total 
build out of around 10 years;

• It is assumed for the employment 
element that 50,000sqm will be 
delivered within a five year phase 
leading to a completion within a 
15-year period.

In terms of infrastructure delivery, 
the key strategic elements required 
to support the vision and aims of 
securing truly sustainable development 
at Hoyland North are identified within 
the Infrastructure Delivery Schedule 
(IDS) found at appendix 7. 

This IDS table focuses on strategic 
infrastructure requirements including 
transportation, education, green 
infrastructure, drainage and utility 
services. It provides clarity on the 
following questions: 
• What infrastructure is required to 

support the scheme? 

• When it needs to be delivered? 
• How it will be delivered?

PLANNING STRATEGY AND THE 
WAY FORWARD 
The contents of this Masterplan 
Framework will be a material 
consideration in the determination of 
planning applications for individual 
sites.

CONCLUSIONS
The Hoyland North Masterplan 
Framework provides a firm foundation 
for Barnsley council and land 
promoters to create a great place 
and new community in which to live 
and work. The initiatives of delivering 
sustainability and health and well-
being beneficial outcomes are at the 
heart of the scheme. Through the 
principles identified in this document 
there is an opportunity to shape a 
new sustainable suburb for Hoyland 
whilst fulfilling the aspirations of the 
Local Plan by delivering housing and 
economic growth but also setting the 
benchmark for future high-quality 
development.

P
age 401



76 Masterplan Framework Report

Glossary and 
appendices

10

GLOSSARY
• AOD - Above Ordnance Datum
• BREEAM - Building Research 

Establishment Environmental 
Assessment Method

• CCG - Clinical Commissioning 
Group

• CEEQUAL - Civil Engineering 
Environmental Quality Assessment 
and Award Scheme

• DPH - Dwellings Per Hectare
• EIA - Environmental Impact 

Assessment
• GI - Green Infrastructure
• HIA - Health Impact Assessment
• IDS - Infrastructure Delivery 

Schedule
• LCA - Landscape Character 

Assessment
• LEAP - Local Equipped Area for Play
• LWS - Local Wildlife Sites
• NEAP - Neighbourhood Equipped 

Area for Play

• NPPF - National Planning Policy 
Framework

• MUGA - Multi-use Games Area
• RSPB – Royal Society for the 

Protection of Birds
• SCI - Statement of Community 

Involvement
• SHMA - Strategic Housing Market 

Assessment
• SPDs - Supplementary Planning 

Guidance
• SuDS - Sustainable Urban Drainage 

System
• SYPTE - South Yorkshire Passenger 

Transport Executive

APPENDICES
• Appendix 1 - Planning Policy Audit
• Appendix 2 - CCG Briefing Note
• Appendix 3 - Baseline Technical 

Summary Tables for:
- Drainage Assessment and 

Review (Feb 2019)
- Landscape and Visual 

Assessment and Review (March 
2019)

- Heritage Assessment and 
Review (March 2019)

- Archaeology Assessment and 
Review (March 2019)

• Ecological Assessment and 
Review (March 2019)

• Appendix 4 - Risk Audit Table to 
increase development yield

• Appendix 5 - Land Use Assumption 
Matrix

• Appendix 6 - Plans showing 
primary and secondary schools in 
south area

• Appendix 7 - Infrastructure Delivery 
Schedules (IDS)

- Transportation
- Green infrastructure
- Drainage
- Education
- Services/utilities

P
age 402



Hoyland North Barnsley 77

P
age 403



 
WYG, Quay West at MediaCityUK, Trafford Wharf Road, 

Trafford Park, Manchester, M17 1HH
T: +44 (0)161 872 3223 W: www.wyg.com

P
age 404



HOYLAND NORTH BARNSLEY
Masterplan Framework Appendices

December 2019

P
age 405



2 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 3

01  Planning Policy Audit

02   Clinical Commission Group Briefing Note

03   Baseline Technical Analysis

• Table 1 - Baseline Ecological Assessment

and Review

• Table 2 - Baseline Heritage Assessment

and Review

• Table 3 - Baseline Archaeology Assessment

and Review

• Table 4 - Baseline Landscape and Visual 

Assessment and Review

• Table 5 - Baseline Drainage Assessment and 

Review

04

18

20

70

74

82

86

Contents

Document Verification

Client: Barnsley Council, Harworth Group and Hoyland Development Ltd.
Project: Hoyland North, Barnsley 
Job number: A098949-046   
Document title: Masterplan Framework Appendices   
Status: Final   
Date: December 2019  
Document reference: A098949-046-51

This report is copyright: © WYG Environment Planning Transport Limited, 2019 All drawings 
and photographs are by WYG Environment Planning Transport Limited unless stated otherwise. 
Drawings based on the Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey 
on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 1000240. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.

WYG
 
Quay West at MediaCityUK, Trafford Wharf Road, 
Trafford Park, Manchester, M17 1HH
Tel: +44 (0)161 872 3223    
  
www.wyg.com

04   Land Use Schedule

05  Risk Audit Schedule

06  Plan Showing Primary and Secondary

Schools in South Area

07  Infrastructure Delivery Schedule

P
age 406



4 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 5

 

1 
 

Hoyland North Planning Policy Audit (November 2019) 
Summary of Policy Documents and Implications for Masterplan Framework 
 
The Development Plan Relevance to Masterplan Framework process  
Barnsley Local Plan (Adopted January 2019) 
This document provides local planning policy for future development of Barnsley up to 2033. The Local Plan allocates sites for 
employment and housing, sets the planning context for Barnsley Town Centre, protects and enhances green spaces and 
infrastructure; and contains policies to secure high quality development and environment.  

The adopted Local Plan is up to date and is the starting point for in the decision-making process as 
set out within Section 38 of the 2000 Planning Act and the relevant contents of the 2018 NPPF.  
 

Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham Joint Waste Plan (March 2012) WCS7: Managing waste in all developments - applies to all development. 
Other Material Policy Considerations Relevance to Masterplan Framework process 
Adopted SPD’s: 
• Trees and Hedgerows 
• Residential amenity and siting of building 
• Open Space provision on new housing developments 
• Heritage impact statements 
• Financial contributions for schools 
• Design of housing development 
• Biodiversity and geodiversity 
• Affordable housing 
• Parking 
• Planning obligations 
• Sustainable travel 
• Development on land affected by contamination  
• Section 38 agreements 
• Section 278 agreements 

All of these documents were adopted in 2019. 

Strategies: 
• Health and Wellbeing (2014 - 2019) 
• Public Health Strategy 
• Health and Care – The Barnsley Plan (2016-2020) 
• Barnsley Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (2016) 
• Employment and Skills Strategy: More and Better Jobs (2016-2020) 
• Aspirations of the SCR LEP Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) 
• Housing Strategy (2014-2033) 
• Transport Strategy (2014-2033) 
• Community Engagement Strategy (2017-2020) – note the BMBC Corporate Plan 2017-2020 
• Economic Strategy-Jobs and Business Plan (2014-2017) and Three year review (2017) 
• Air Quality Action Plan (2017) 
• Energy Strategy (2015-2025) – note that the Council has announced a Climate Emergency and will be preparing further 

documentation on the Zero 40 and Zero 45 targets 
• Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy (July 2018 – June 2020) 

These documents provide strategic principles which should be implemented across the borough to 
achieve the overall goals.  

Barnsley Local Plan (Adopted) 

Policy Summary Relevance to Masterplan Framework process 

Policy GD1 
General 
Development 
 
 

Proposals for development will be approved provided there is no significant adverse effect on living conditions 
and residential amenity of existing and future residents, proposals will not adversely affect the potential 
development of a wider area of land, there is no adverse impact on the environment, natural resources, waste. 
The proposed development should provide adequate privacy and have no adverse impacts on surrounding 
uses.  

A well-designed layout with limited impact on surrounding area and amenity is required.  
 
 
 
 

Policy GD1 
General 
Development 
(Para. 6.12) 
 

Masterplan Frameworks  
‘Where such are being sought, they should contain the following: 
Planning policy summary, site location plan and description, land ownership, a summary of the existing 
evidence, site evaluation, land use framework, sustainable movement framework, protection of existing rights 
of way routes and their incorporation within new development layouts, vehicular movement framework, green 
and blue infrastructure framework, place-making framework, sustainability and energy use, health and 
wellbeing, design evolution, conceptual masterplan, infrastructure and delivery phasing.  

This requirement is the underlying reason why the Masterplan Framework has been commissioned. 

Planning 
Policy Audit

Appendix 1

P
age 407



6 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 7

 

2 
 

 
Masterplan Frameworks will be subject to public consultation and should be approved by the Council prior to 
the determination of any planning applications on the affected sites.’ 

Policy SD1 
Presumption in 
favour of 
sustainable 
development 

As per the NPPF definition. We will work proactively with applicants jointly to find solutions which mean that 
proposals can be approved wherever possible, and to secure development that improves the economic, social 
and environmental conditions in the area. 

Sustainable development principles should guide the Masterplan Framework. 

Policy LG2 
Location of 
Growth, Policy E1 
Providing 
Strategic 
Employment and 
Locations, and 
Policy E2 The 
distribution of 
new employment 
sites 

The policy provides the settlement hierarchy for Barnsley and growth will be directed to urban areas, principal 
towns and villages in that order. Principal towns including Hoyland will be the focus for housing, employment, 
shopping, leisure, education, health and cultural activities and facilities will be directed.  
 

The principle of significant development being absorbed in this location has been accepted.  
 
Of the 297ha of employment land in sustainable locations identified in policy E1, 110.9ha of this in 
Hoyland. 

Policy ES14 
Rockingham 
8.9ha  
 

Proposals for this site will be subject to the production of a Masterplan Framework including housing site 
reference HS64; HS66; HS56 and employment site reference: ES14 and ES17. Proposals should provide 
appropriate access to employment site ES17 and housing site HS64; consider the impact on residential amenity 
and include appropriate mitigation where necessary; and consider potential impact on nearby Shortwood and 
Hay Green Local Wildlife Sites with appropriate mitigation where necessary; and retain the hedgerow along the 
north edge. 

1. Access to be provided from the site to employment site ES17 and housing site HS64 
2. Provide acceptable residential amenity and mitigation where necessary; 
3. Provide necessary mitigation for nearby Local Wildlife Sites (Shortwood and Hay Green); and 
4. Retain hedgerow along northern edge. 

Policy ES17 Land 
South of Dearne 
Valley Parkway 
28.2ha 
 

Proposals for this site will be subject to a production of a Masterplan Framework (as above including site 
references: HS64; HS66; HS56; ES14 and ES17). Proposals should provide access to housing site references 
HS64, HS66 and HS56; protect and retain the areas of woodland, species-rich neutral grassland, pond and 
stretches of older hedgerows and possible investigation (habitat potential for newts) prior to any development; 
consider and minimise the impact on the setting of listed buildings through appropriate design and 
landscaping; ensure development respects the landscape and wider countryside, and introduce mitigation 
measures where appropriate to address impacts on the adjacent Green Belt and countryside; and protect and 
retain the green way, public footpaths and bridleways, cutting through and along the periphery of the site in 
the design of the layout. 

1. Provide access to sites HS64, HS66 and HS56;  
2. Protect and retain areas of woodland, species rich neutral grassland, pond and old hedgerows; 
3. Consider and minimise impact on setting of listed buildings; 
4. Respect surrounding wider landscape and green belt and provide mitigation where appropriate;   
5. Retain and protect green ways and public footpaths across and along the borders of the site and 
make provision for them in the design of the layout. 
 
*Site has potential to habitat newts and investigation is recommended prior to any development.   

 
Policy E3 Uses on 
employment land 
 

The following uses will be allowed on employment sites: research and development, and light industry; general 
industrial; and storage or distribution. Ancillary uses will be allowed where appropriate in scale. Other 
employment generating uses may be considered on their merits, particularly in terms of providing jobs, skills 
and contribution to the boroughs GVA.  

Consider acceptable employment uses on employment allocations ES14 and ES17. 

Policy HS56 Land 
off Shortwood 
Roundabout, 
Hoyland 
(Indicative 
number of 
dwellings 80) 
 

Proposals will be subject to the production of a Masterplan Framework and should demonstrate the proposals 
will positively support and complement the comprehensive wider development of the area. Development on 
this site will be expected to retain, enhance and manage the hedgerow on the east side; provide acoustic 
measures to mitigate against noise from the road; and provide appropriate access. 
 
*Archaeological remains may be present on this site therefore proposals must be accompanied by an 
archaeological assessment (including field evaluation if necessary) which also includes the following: 

o Information identifying the likely location and extent of the remains, and the nature of the remains; 
o An assessment of the significance of the remains; and 
o Consideration of how remains would be affected by the proposed development. 

1. To retain and enhance the hedgerow on the east side; 
2. Provide acoustic measures (buffer) to mitigate against noise from the road. 
3. Provide suitable access arrangements. 
 
*Supporting Archaeological Assessment likely to be required.  
 
Note Policy H1 - overall housing requirement 21,546 net additional homes during the plan period 
(2014-2033) / 1,134 dpa. Policy H2 directs 12% of the total housing supply to Hoyland (2,263 
dwellings). 

Policy HS64 Land 
North of Hoyland 
Road, Hoyland 
Common 
(Indicative 
number of 
dwellings 615) 
 

Development on this site will be subject to a comprehensive Masterplan Framework including the sites mention 
above and site HS66 below. Proposals should ensure all hedgerows and woodland blocks are retained, 
enhanced and managed and appropriate access provided; a wildlife corridor is created across the site; acoustic 
measures are provided to mitigate against road noise; and proposals respect the historic setting of Hoyland 
Lowe Stand and the St Peters Church yard to the east by use of appropriate site layout, sympathetic design 
that reflects the setting, appropriate scaling, massing, details and materials.   
 
Archaeological remains maybe present onsite and proposals should be accompanied by an appropriate 
archaeological assessment (including field evaluation if necessary). Any assessment should include the 

1. All hedgerows and woodland blocks should be retained; 
2. Create a wildlife corridor across the site; 
3. Provide appropriate acoustic measures to mitigate against noise from the road; and  
4. Proposals should be of an appropriate design and layout to respect the historic setting of 

Hoyland Lowe Stand and St Peters Church churchyard (to the east). 
 
*Archaeological Assessment required 

 

3 
 

following: 
o Information identifying the likely location and extent of the remains, and the nature of the remains; 
o An assessment of the significance of the remains; and 
o Consideration of how remains would be affected by the proposed development. 

Policy HS66 Land 
west of Upper 
Hoyland Road 
(Indicative 
number of 
dwellings 70).  
 

Development will be subject to the production of a Masterplan Framework for the Hoyland North Area. 
Development proposals should ensure access to the site is taken through housing allocation HS64. Access 
infrastructure should be capable of allowing development of the whole masterplan area, retain, enhance, 
manage species-rich hedgerows and plantation woodland at the north, plus create a wildlife corridor along the 
site; protect historic setting of Hoyland Lowe Stand (to the east) by limiting development on the site to the 
area shown on the Policies Map; restricting the height of dwellings to a single storey at the eastern margin of 
the developable area; and providing appropriate site layout and sympathetic design that reflects the setting, 
scaling, massing, details and materials. 
 
Archaeological remains maybe present on this site and proposals should be accompanied by appropriate 
archaeological assessments that include: 

o Information identifying the likely location and extent of the remains, and the nature of the remains; 
o An assessment of the significance of the remains; and 
o Consideration of how remains would be affected by the proposed development. 

1. Site access should be through housing site HS64;  
2. Retain, enhance, manage species rich hedgerows and woodland to the north;  
3. Create wildlife corridor along site; 
4. Protect historic setting of Hoyland Lowe Stand immediately to the east by restricting height of 

dwellings to single storey on the eastern margin of the developable area, limiting development 
to area shown on policies map, and provide an appropriate site layout and sympathetic design 
and orientation of buildings to create an attractive edge to the development facing the Listed 
Building, respect the setting of the Lowe Stand, and retain the appreciation of the rural setting 
of the Listed Building in medium and long-distance views from the west.  

 
*Archaeological Assessment required 

Policy H6 Housing 
Mix and Efficient 
Use of Land 
 

To ensure that development makes the most efficient use of land housing proposals should include a broad 
mix of house sizes, type and tenure to help create mixed and balanced communities. Homes should also be 
suitable for different types of households and be capable of being adapted to meet the changing needs of the 
population (i.e. Lifetime Homes). 
 
*A density of 40 dwellings per hectare will be expected in Urban Areas and Principal Towns including Hoyland. 
Lower densities will be supported where it can be demonstrated as necessary i.e. ‘necessary for character and 
appearance, need, viability or sustainable design reasons’. 

1. Mix and house types should be informed by evidence in up-to-date SHMA; 
2. Consider density of 40 dwellings per hectare if possible. Lower densities maybe supported where 
is can be demonstrated as necessary i.e. ‘necessary for character and appearance, need, viability 
or sustainable design reasons’. 

Policy H7 
Affordable 
Housing 

Housing development of 15 dwellings or more will be expected to provide affordable housing. 10% affordable 
housing is expected in Hoyland subject to viability assessments.  
 

10% affordable housing on sites with more than 15 dwellings. 
 
*More information is provided in the Affordable Housing SPD. 

Policy T1 
Accessibility 
Priorities 

The policy introduces transport strategy programmes on development-transport corridors which aim to improve 
sustainable transport and circulation in line with the Accessibility Improvement Zone (AIZ), particularly 
between Principal Towns.  
 

The Masterplan Framework area falls within the AIZ and financial contributions will be required in 
line with Sustainable Travel SPD. Note: Policy T1 promotes sustainable transport links, promote 
high quality public transport. Also, transport modelling of junction 36 and surrounding network has 
been undertaken to inform the masterplan. 

Policy T3 New 
Development and 
Sustainable Travel  
 
 

New developments should be located and designed in order to reduce the need to travel, be accessible to 
public transport and meet the needs of pedestrians and cyclists. Minimum parking requirements for parking, 
cycles, motorbikes, scooters, mopeds and disabled people should be policy compliant and necessary Transport 
Assessments and Travel Plans should be provided in line with the NPPF.  
 
*Where levels of accessibility through public transport are unacceptable or it is not possible to make provision 
for parking on site, financial contributions will be sought* 
 

1. Supporting Transport Assessment and Travel Plan will be required; 
2. Parking spaces for cycles, motorbikes, vehicles, disabled spaces should meet minimum 

requirements; and  
3. Consider reducing the need to travel, accessibility to public transport and user-friendly 

environment for pedestrians and cyclists.  
 
Masterplan Framework should consider (at a high level) the principles to be assessed in a 
Transport Assessment (para 12.51 of Local Plan):  

• Reducing the need to travel 
• How accessible is the development by all forms of transport 
• Whether the site access can deal with the predicted level of traffic (note FORE Consulting 

Traffic Impact Assessment) 
• Measures to encourage walking, cycling and public transport 
• Mitigation avoiding unnecessary physical highway improvements and promoting innovative 

and sustainable transport solutions 
* See more information in the Sustainable Travel SPD below. 

T4 New 
Development and 
Transport Safety 

Safe, secure and convenient access and movement. 
 
*mitigating action or financial contributions from developers to enable necessary improvements to go ahead* 

Safe, secure and convenient access and movement. 
 

Policy D1 High 
Quality Design 
and Place Making 
 
 

Design Principles: 
Development is expected to be of high quality design and will be expected to respect, take 
advantage of and reinforce the distinctive, local character and features of Barnsley, including: 

• Landscape character, topography, green infrastructure assets, important habitats, woodlands and 
other natural features; 

Provide a safe and high-quality design with clear connections to the surrounding street and 
pedestrian network whilst assimilating onto the surrounding landscape and townscape character. 
Note that detailed design will come at the planning application stage however the broad principles 
of D1 should be considered through the Masterplan Framework. 
 

P
age 408



8 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 9

 

4 
 

• Views and vistas to key buildings, landmarks, skylines and gateways; and 
• Heritage and townscape character including the scale, layout, building styles and materials of the built 

form in the locality. 
 

Through its layout and design development should: 
• Contribute to place making and be of high quality, that contributes to a healthy, safe and sustainable 

environment; 
• Complement and enhance the character and setting of distinctive places, including Barnsley Town 

Centre, Penistone, rural villages and Conservation Areas; 
• Help to transform the character of physical environments that have become run down and are lacking 

in distinctiveness; 
• Provide an accessible and inclusive environment for the users of individual buildings and surrounding 

spaces; 
• Provide clear and obvious connections to the surrounding street and pedestrian network; 
• Ensure ease of movement and legibility for all users, ensure overlooking of streets, spaces and 

pedestrian routes through the arrangement and orientation of buildings and the location of entrances; 
• Promote safe, secure environments and access routes with priority for pedestrians and cyclists; 
• Create clear distinctions between public and private spaces; 
• Display architectural quality and express proposed uses through its composition, scale, form, 

proportions and arrangement of materials, colours and details; 
• Make the best use of high quality materials; 
• Include a comprehensive and high quality scheme for hard and soft landscaping; and 
• Provide high quality public realm. 

 
In terms of place making development should make a positive contribution to achieving qualities of a 
successful place such as character, legibility, permeability and vitality. 

*See Design SPD section below. 
 

Note: para 13.5 of the Local Plan, developments should follow design standards and guidance 
including: 

• BfL 12 
• Secured By Design 
• Manual for Streets (residential) 
• Manual for Streets 2 (wider applications) 
• South Yorkshire Residential Design Guide 

 

Policy LC1 
Landscape 
Character 

Development should retain and enhance the character and individuality of Landscape Character Areas. Follow requirements specified in employment allocation policies ES14 and ES17, and housing 
allocation policies HS56, HS64 and HS66. Para 13.8 and 13.9 of the Local Plan – Landscape 
Character Assessment of Barnsley Borough (2002 and 2016 update – area E4). 

Policy HE1 The 
Historic 
Environment 

Encourage developments which will help in the management, conservation, understanding and enjoyment of 
Barnsley’s historic environment. 

Conservation, understanding and enjoyment of Hoyland Lowe Stand through positive design on 
HS66. 

Policy HE2 
Heritage 
Statements and 
general 
application 
procedures 

Proposals that are likely to affect known heritage assets or sites should include relevant heritage statement of 
significance and setting. Proposals for outline planning permission will not be accepted if the development 
affects a conservation area, a listed building or any other designated asset. Detailed plans will be required to 
assess likely impact of development upon significance of heritage assets affected.  
 
For sites with significant archaeological potential, a desk-based assessment maybe required.  

Description of heritage significance and archaeological desk-based assessments will be required to 
support proposals.  
 
Detailed applications should be supported by visualisations illustrating the impact on views of 
Hoyland Lowe Stand from the west.  

Policy HE3 
Developments 
affecting Historic 
Buildings 
 

Proposals which affect historic significance such as locally listed buildings or their settings should seek to 
conserve and where appropriate enhance the building’s significance. 

Respect historic settings in terms of scale/form/massing/architectural detail and use of appropriate 
materials for development proposal; and 
 
Exploit opportunities to better reveal the significance of a building where elements exist that 
detract from its special interest. 

Policy HE6 
Archaeology 
 

Applications for development on sites where archaeological remains may be present must be accompanied by 
an appropriate archaeological assessment (including a field evaluation if necessary). 
 
Where preservation of remains is not justified, permission will be conditional requiring appropriate 
recording/analysis/interpretation/ dissemination and archiving.  

Archaeological assessments required in line wording in site specific policies. Note para 9.6 of the 
Local Plan – the ‘developable’ area of some sites have been reduced to take into account areas of 
archaeological, ecological and heritage value.  

 

Policy Gl1 Green 
Infrastructure 

The policy aims to protect, enhance and create an integrated network of connected multi-functional Green 
infrastructure assets to provide attractive environment that meets environmental, social and economic needs of 
communities; enhances the quality of life of present and future residents; help meet the challenge of climate 
change; respects local distinctiveness , historical and cultural heritage; secures linkages between green and 
blue spaces and to enhance biodiversity and landscape character. Green Infrastructure will be secured by 
protecting open space, creating new open spaces as part of new development and through developer 
contributions. 

Hoyland is in the Nature Improvement Area and Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure policies and 
guidance apply. 

 

5 
 

Policy GS1 Green 
Space 
 

New residential developments will be required to provide or contribute towards green space in line with the 
standards set out in the Green Space Strategy in accordance with the Infrastructure and Planning Obligations 
Policy and Open Space SPD. Where green space is required an assessment will be carried out to determine the 
most appropriate provision, considering site characteristics and constraints. 

See actions relating to Open Space SPD below. 

Policy GS2 Green 
Ways and Public 
Rights of Way 
 

Where development affects an existing Green Way or Public Right of Way it must protect the existing route 
within the development; or include an equally convenient and attractive alternative route. 
 
Where new development is close to a Green Way or Public Right of Way it may be required to provide a link to 
the existing route; and/or improve an existing route; and/or contribute to a new route. 

Consider providing or improving connections and access to create places that connect with each 
other and encourage walking, cycling and the use of public transport. Alternative routes must be 
equally convenient and attractive. *Financial contributions may also be required to contribute to 
new routes. 

Policy BIO1 
Biodiversity and 
Geodiversity 
 

Development should conserve and enhance the biodiversity and geological features by protecting important 
sites, habitats and species of significance; maximising biodiversity and geodiversity opportunities in and around 
new developments; conserving and enhancing the form, local character and distinctiveness of the boroughs 
natural assets and important strategic wildlife corridors; proposals will be expected to have followed the 
national mitigation hierarchy (avoid mitigate, compensate); encouraging provision of biodiversity 
enhancements. Development which may harm a biodiversity or geological feature or habitat, will not be 
permitted unless effective mitigation and/or compensatory measures can be ensured. 

To consider opportunities to maximise biodiversity and geodiversity.  
 
*Financial contributions might be required on line with Policy Gl1 Green Infrastructure and site 
specific policies*   

Policy CC1 
Climate Change  

The policy seeks to reduce the causes of and adapt to the future impacts of climate change. New 
developments should promote the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions through sustainable design and 
construction techniques, be located and designed to reduce the risk of flooding, use Sustainable Drainage 
Systems (SUDs), promote renewable and low carbon energy and contribute to green infrastructure and 
encourage biodiversity gains.  

To consider and provide mitigation towards climate change issues throughout all stages of the 
master plan process.  

Policy CC2 
Sustainable 
Design and 
Construction 
 

Development should minimise resource and energy consumption through the inclusion of sustainable design 
and construction features, where this is technically feasible and viable. 
 
All non-residential development will be expected, to achieve a minimum standard of BREEAM ‘Very Good’ (or 
any future national equivalent).  

1. Details of likely sustainable measures should be identified through the Masterplan 
Framework process to inform the Energy Statement at the planning application stage. 

2. Non-residential development should achieve a minimum of ‘Very Good’ BREEAM standards.  
3. Consideration should be given to the information outlined in the forthcoming Energy and 

Sustainability SPD. 
Policy CC3 Flood 
Risk 
 
 

Proposals are expected to demonstrate how they make a positive contribution to reducing or managing flood. 
Development on brownfield sites are expected to reduce surface water run off by at least 30% and on 
greenfield sites, they should maintain or reduce existing run-off rates and implement the use of SUDS in line 
with policy CC4.  

To consider ways to reduce and manage flooding, and the use of Sustainable Drainage Systems 
(SUDS). 

Policy CC4 
Sustainable 
Drainage Systems 
(SuDS) 

All major developments should use Sustainable Drainage Systems (SUDs) to manage surface water drainage, 
unless it can be demonstrated that all types of SUDs are inappropriate. 
 
 

The Masterplan Framework should be supported with conceptual drainage plans or SUDs design 
statement. 
 
Detailed planning applications should be supported by detailed drainage plans or SUDs design 
statement including their operation, management and maintenance.  

Policy CC5 Water 
Resource 
Management 

To conserve and enhance the Boroughs water resources proposals will be supported which:  
• do not result in the deterioration of water courses and which conserve and enhance:  

• the natural geomorphology of water courses;  
• water quality; and  
• the ecological value of the water environment, including watercourse corridors 

• make positive progress towards achieving ‘good’ status or potential under the Water Framework 
Directive in the boroughs surface and ground water bodies; 

• Manage water demand and improve water efficiency through appropriate water conservation 
techniques including rainwater harvesting and grey-water recycling; and 

• Dispose of surface water appropriately and improve water quality through the incorporation of SuDS, 
in accordance with Policy CC4. 

Proposals should conserve and enhance the existing watercourse to the west of ES17. 

RE1 Low Carbon 
and Renewable 
Energy  

Developments should be designed and constructed to be energy efficient through using the principles of 
passive design, including high insulation levels, solar heating, natural lighting and ventilation, thermal mass 
and passive cooling. Thereafter, decentralised, renewable or low carbon energy sources should be considered 
for use in order to reduce carbon dioxide. Emissions and achieve the appropriate carbon compliance targets as 
defined in the Building Regulations. 
 

Proposals should include information regarding energy efficiency and information to show the local 
environment will be protected. Developers could also include information regarding the potential 
for decentralised energy supply across the Masterplan Framework area using available low carbon 
and/or renewable energy sources. Feasibility of establishing a district heat network with a low 
carbon heat resource could be examined to serve both residential and non-residential buildings. 
Consideration should be given to the information outlined in the forthcoming Energy and 
Sustainability SPD. 

UT2 Utilities 
Safeguarding  

The policy seeks to protect existing services and utilities from development that will adversely affect them.  
 

Consider location and protection of utilities facilities.  

Policy l1 Development should be supported by suitable physical, social, economic and communications infrastructure Financial contributions may be necessary for infrastructure purposes and these requirements 

P
age 409



10 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 11

 

6 
 

Infrastructure and 
Planning 
Obligations 

and contributions may be necessary to meet all on and off-site infrastructure requirements to enable provision 
of appropriate infrastructure. 

should be identified as early as possible through the Masterplan Framework process.  

Policy l2 
Educational and 
Community 
Facilities 

The policy seeks to support provision of schools, educational facilities and other community facilities. If local 
schools do not have capacity resulting from new housing, contributions will be sought under policy I1 to ensure 
enough school places are provided before the development goes ahead. 

Financial implication as detailed in Financial contributions for schools SPD. 
 
*£16,000 per pupil place in primary schools (total based on 21 pupils per 100 homes) 
*£16,000 per pupil place in secondary schools (total based on 15 pupils per 100 homes) 

CL1 Contaminated 
and Unstable 
Land 

The policy seeks to protect future users and occupiers of a development where it would be affected by 
contamination or stability issues, or where contamination may present a risk to the water environment. The 
policy also sets out planning application requirements demonstrating appropriate investigation and detailed 
safety measures. 

Planning applications to be accompanied by reports and detailed safety measures. 

Poll1 Pollution 
Control and 
Protection 

Development should demonstrate that it is not likely to result, directly or indirectly, in an increase in air, 
surface water and groundwater, noise, smell, dust, vibration, light or other pollution which would unacceptably 
affect or cause a nuisance to the natural or built environment or to people. We will not allow development of 
new housing or other environmentally sensitive development where existing air pollution, noise, smell, dust, 
vibration, light or other pollution levels are unacceptable and there is no reasonable prospect that these can be 
mitigated against. 
Developers will be expected to minimise the effects of any possible pollution and provide mitigation measures 
where appropriate. 

Note comments below in the Air Quality Action Plan regarding M1 corridor and limits around 
Birdwell/Sheffield Road. Also note comments regarding noise i.e. from employment and Dearne 
Valley link road. 

Other Material Policy Considerations 

SPD Summary Relevance to Masterplan Framework process 
Trees and 
hedgerows SPD 

This document supplements Policy BIO1 in the Adopted Local Plan in terms of trees and hedgerows and their 
role in biodiversity and geological features. Trees and Hedgerows on development sites should be retained and 
protected wherever possible to enhance the quality of the environment. A supporting full Tree Survey to 
BS5837:2012 will be required.  
 
Consideration should be given to the impact on trees, hedgerows, woody habitats and the species they 
encompass. Development proposals should be supported by comprehensive ecological reports.  

Tree Survey and Ecological surveys will be required to inform the detail of layouts and support 
development proposals (as per the Council’s planning application validation requirements) but at 
this stage the high-level evidence work is acceptable to inform the Masterplan Framework process.  

Sustainable travel 
SPD  

This document complements Local Plan policies T1 (Accessibility Priorities), T3 (New Development and 
Sustainable Travel) and l1 (Infrastructure and Planning Obligations). The objective is to ensure that new 
developments are accessible via public transport, walking and cycling is acceptable in order to promote 
sustainable transport and active travel. As such, financial contributions will be sought through S106 
Agreements to contribute towards public transport and/or active infrastructure enabling appropriate mitigation 
of transport impacts arising from proposed schemes.  
 
In addition, developments are required to provide electric vehicle charging points in accordance with the table 
below as minimum: 

 

1. Transport impacts should be considered through appropriate assessments including Transport 
Assessments and Travel Plans. Where proposals are speculative or outline, an interim Travel 
Plan will be required. 

2. 1 charging point per dwelling with dedicated parking. 
3. 1 charging point per 10 spaces of unallocated parking (visitor parking). 
4. 10% of parking spaces should have electric charging points for commercial/retail and industrial. 
5. Contributions will be sought on developments or 10 dwellings or more.  

Residential 
amenity and the 
siting of buildings 
SPD 
 
 

This document complements Local Policy D1 High Quality Design and Place Making. It states that new 
developments should be designed to fit in with their surroundings in terms of height, spacing, massing, 
landscaping and design (e.g. choice of materials, details such as position of windows, architectural features, 
walls/fences) and not cause undue loss of amenity to existing and future residents. In this respect outlook, 
amenity, privacy and daylight/sunlight should be appropriately. 
  
 
 

The guidance states that suitable daylight to a dwelling is achieved where an unobstructed vertical 
angle of 25 degrees can be drawn from the centre point of the lowest window, the 25-degree rule. 
 
Appropriate separation distances should be considered carefully. Buildings with 3 storeys plus 
should have a minimum of 30m from the windows of any habitable room nearby dwellings or the 
distance required by the 25- and 45-degree rules. (The larger the footprint the greater the 
distance). 

Affordable 
housing SPD 
 
 

This document is in line with Local Plan Policy H7 Affordable Housing.  
The Local Plan requires 10% affordable housing provision for Hoyland. As a result of viability issues, the SPD 
acknowledges that this was tested at the Local Plan Examination and should not be tested again. It does, 
however, leave an option open for a developer to justify affordable housing provision below the Council’s 

To consider 10% Affordable Housing requirement in design concept subject to viability 
considerations and agreed distribution throughout the scheme. 
 
50% of Open Market Value is given as the indicative transfer value should the developer provide 

 

7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

requirement but the onus will be on the developer to justify that circumstances have changed and submit 
sufficient evidence. The SPD confirms that within the viability appraisal calculation the Council will consider a 
suitable development profit to be a maximum of 20% of gross development value. The Council will seek to 
recover costs associated with a viability review.  
 
Other requirements in the SPD are as follows:  

• Negotiations with Registered Providers should begin well in advance of when a planning application is 
submitted;  

• New affordable housing will be expected to meet the minimum internal and external floorspace 
requirements set out within the South Yorkshire Design Guide;  

• The Council will not support the grouping of affordable units together in large numbers, but instead 
small clusters should be dispersed throughout the development;  

• For Hoyland the proposed affordable housing tenure split is 8% affordable homes for rent and 2% 
affordable home ownership.  

 
The SPD outlines alternative delivery of affordable housing which could include:  

• Transfer free service land to a Registered Provider or Council to enable them to deliver affordable 
housing within the site;  

• Offsite provision such as enabling empty homes to be brought back into use;  
• A commuted sum equivalent to the cost of onsite provision taking into account the fact that there will 

be a corresponding increase in the market housing on the application site. The formula for agreeing a 
commuted sum will be Open Market Value less the transfer value which would be 50% of OMV for 
affordable housing ownership property and 50% of OMV for affordable homes for rent.  

 
All the above options could only be achieved following a robust justification that onsite provision is not 
appropriate.  

robust justification for off-site delivery via a commuted sum. 
 
*Affordable housing should be indistinguishable from open market in terms of design. Affordable 
housing should meet the minimum space standards set out in the Design of Housing Development 
SPD (as per the South Yorkshire Residential Design Guide (SYRDG) – Technical Requirements 
section 4A.2 (p130-131). 
 
Local Validation Requirement includes Affordable Housing Statement for 15+ units. 

Biodiversity and 
geodiversity SPD 

Development proposals which might harm biodiversity or geodiversity interest should follow the mitigation 
hierarchy which is to avoid, mitigate, compensate. Major developments should consider incorporating 
quantifiable benefits including new woodland, new wetland, enhancing areas of poor-quality environment, 
improving public access, improving the management of existing habitats and use of bird and bat boxes.  
 

Include quantifiable benefits and features which support biodiversity and geodiversity in layout 
particularly if elements of the Masterplan Framework might harm these existing interests. 

Design of housing 
development SPD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The layout and design of new housing development must ensure that high standards of privacy, light and 
outlook are provided for existing and proposed residents. 
 
External Spacing Standards 

• Where front elevations face a road, minimum of 12m separation distance is required for dwellings of 
the same height to achieve desired streetscape, 

• Minimum back-to-back dimension between facing habitable rooms should be 21metres. If dwellings 
are more than two storeys back to back separation distance should increase by 3m, 

• Proposed habitable room windows at first floor level and above should be a minimum of 10m from the 
boundary of any private garden and habitable room windows which they would face  

• Proposed walls without habitable room windows (gable) should be at least 12 metres from original 
habitable room windows. The distance should increase by 2m for every additional storey, 

• Rear gardens of proposed dwellings should be at least 50m2 for two-bedroom houses/bungalows and 
60m2 for houses/bungalows with three or more bedrooms, 

• Shared private space for flats must be a minimum of 50m2 plus an additional 10 m2 per unit as 
balcony space or added to shared private space. Where private space cannot be provided balconies of 
a minimum of 3m2 must be provided. 
 

Internal spacing standards 
Internal spacing standards should meet requirements set out in the South Yorkshire Residential Design Guide 
section 4A.2, (p130-131). 
 
Character 

• Design of new developments must be based on an appraisal of existing landscape and settlement 
character - to maintain the character area in which the site is located if this is a positive source. Where 
there is no specific positive source to draw on, the development should be designed to create 

The Masterplan Framework should reflect: 
1. Appropriate separation distances in determining development parcels,  
2. Appropriate character following appraisals of area,  
3. Include cycling or walking routes and green corridors to improve quality of air, 
4. Principles in Secured by Design, 
5. Guidance in Manual for Streets, 
6. Opportunities to improve the health and wellbeing of the residents of new development. 
 
Considerations should include:  

• Promoting inclusive design, meeting the needs of disabled people and accessibility needs 
• Identify opportunities to access local facilities and greenspace 

 
Make provision of suitable car parking arrangements and waste storage and landscaping.  
 
The SPD includes updated design requirements that reflect best practice (including the SYRDG).  
 
Note the Local Validation Requirements include:  

• Air Quality Assessment 
• Building for Life 12 Assessment 

P
age 410



12 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 13

 

8 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

character, 
• Based on an appraisal that identifies any existing positive features within the site and assesses the 

advantages and disadvantages of retaining them, 
• Based on an appraisal of the townscape of the site and surrounding area and their relation to 

topography and be responsive, 
• Views into and out of the site should be considered and where the local topography varies a visual 

impact assessment should be undertaken to influence the layout and design, 
• New developments should be specific to their location and seek to co-ordinate the landscape 

framework, street pattern, route hierarchy and townscape to create a coherent public realm and open 
space network, 

• Large schemes the pattern of house types and designs should be varied to create visual interest and 
support character areas within the development, 

• Elevations and fenestration should be designed in such a way that they provide relief, depth texture 
and modelling, 

• Window and door openings should have enough recess in the reveal to give visual articulation, 
• Design and Access Statement should be provided and include the above analysis. 

 
Health and Well-being 
Major schemes could include walking and cycling routes linking through the development, or the create green 
corridors to improve air quality. The design of open spaces should be inclusive to meet the needs of children 
and young people and the elderly population. 
*Supporting information on the promotion of health and well-being can be included in Design and Access 
Statements:  
• Adequate internal spaces for bike storage, dining and kitchen facilities 
● Adequate private or semi-private outdoor space per dwelling 
● Car parking spaces are minimised across the development, along with utilisation of electric vehicle re-
charging infrastructure where appropriate  
● Well-designed buildings with passive surveillance – see the Health and Well-being Strategy and Public Health 
Strategy for further information 
 
Designing Out Crime 
Development should take account of the guidance within the Secured by Design 
 
Streets 
Layout should reflect principles of Manual for Streets (noting Healthy Streets Approach (adapt from London. 
People focussed guidance which covers air quality, feelings of safety, crossings, noise, places to rest 
https://tfl.gov.uk/corporate/about-tfl/how-we-work/planning-for-the-future/healthy-streets).  
Streets should be designed to achieve appropriate vehicular speeds as below: 

• No more than 20mph where principally serving residential areas, 
• No more than 15mph for shared space streets where segregation between motor vehicles and other 

road users is reduced, and 
• Higher design speeds of up to 30mph may be appropriate on existing routes within built up areas, on 

bus routes and on larger developments where the extent of 20mph streets would exceed around 1km 
but proposals for design speeds exceeding 20-mph will be determined on a case by case basis. 

 
Developments should meet technical guidance requirements relating to street and parking geometry contained 
in the South Yorkshire Residential Guide Annex 4B (p133-154).  
 
Residential Parking and Guidance 
Developments will be expected to meet the standards for parking design set out in the South Yorkshire 
Residential Design Guide considering parking as an integral part of the design of residential development. The 
maximum number of front of dwelling parking spaces acceptable in a row is four.  Side of dwelling parking 
spaces should not occur on the corners of junctions, as they weaken the street scene.  
 
Landscape Design 
Should be designed to help the development fit into its surroundings and soften its visual impact. The planting 
of trees, hedges and shrubs in prominent locations will improve the appearance of a site and may provide 

 

9 
 

ecological benefits.   
 
Recycling 
All new development must be designed with storage space for waste and recycling. In design terms bins 
should not be visible from within the public realm and shared private space when stored. Communal bin 
storage areas should be in robust materials that will withstand vandalism. 

Open space SPD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This document supports Policy GS1 of the Adopted Local Plan.  A minimum of 15% of the site area for new 
housing developments must be open space. Highway verges, visibility splays, landscaped strips adjacent to 
roads and private gardens should not be included in this calculation. Opportunities to retain and enhance 
features of ecological and visual importance should be explored. Greenspace serves an important role in 
providing habitat for wildlife as well as providing opportunity for people: open space should incorporate habitat 
for wildlife wherever possible and any landscaping should further enhance existing habitats with the use of 
appropriate native species.  The SPD also highlights that natural features such as wildlife corridors and the 
potential for SUD’s detention basins can form a substantial proportion of the 15% which is useful clarification.  
 
The type should include the three categories below, and be appropriate to the character of the site, location, 
layout and nature of housing and adjoining land uses and in line with the South Yorkshire Residential Design 
(2011) 
 
Child and Youth facilities: Equipped children’s play areas 

• Over 100 houses: Provision generally required on site with natural surveillance, minimum of 400sqm. 
and at least 5 items of play equipment including a multi play item. Swings are separate to this. 
Financial contribution for offsite facilities may be acceptable if a suitable site is located nearby. 

 
Neighbourhood Equipped Areas for Play (NEAP)  
Should have a minimum play zone of 1000sqm and no less than 8 items of play equipment with the relevant 
safety surfacing and should include either a space for free use games, multi-use games area, BMX or Skate 
Park facility 
 
Informal play space and informal landscaped areas (including natural and semi-natural areas, 
allotments and green ways) 

• Over 40 houses: Provision should be made on site and the area can be used for low-key games, 
include landscaped mounds and informal play spaces, informal paved areas, low walls and tree trunks. 
Guardrails should be provided where there is any risk of road-related accidents. One or two simple 
items of static equipment may be included with appropriate safer surfacing financial contribution to 
enhance informal space off site may be acceptable if any is located nearby. 

 
Formal recreation (sports pitches, courts, greens etc.) 

• More than 200 houses: Provision will be required on site. Where this is not possible, a financial 
contribution to provide or enhance facilities off site will be required. 

 
For the development of this scale, the guidance recommends that provision should be made for all these 
facilities on site. However, the SPD confirms that it is also possible to have a combination of on and offsite 
provision which creates further flexibility.  
 
The SPD identify the Council’s preferred approach to the future maintenance of new open space which is by 
way of a management company. The Council’s preference will be for a Community Interest Company (CIC) to 
be formed with its members being residents of the new development.   
 
In Appendix 2 there is a table which identifies the contributions per dwelling for offsite provision for 
greenspace which reflects the costs of providing new or enhanced greenspace. These range from £693.01 for 
a one-bedroom dwelling to £2,135.73 for a four plus bedroom dwelling.  
 
Contributions for maintenance of onsite open space will be calculated for a period of 15 years and will 
generally fall within the range of £5.86 to £9.78 per sqm depending on the type of open space. These figures 
are useful when looking at the overall viability of the Masterplan Framework area.   
 

15% of developable land is required for Open Space. 
 
*Contribution figures have been updated as demonstrated in table below: 
 

 
 
Investigate the approach to the future contributions model for maintaining Open space provision. 
 
Note para 9.7 of the Local Plan – compensation would be required for loss of existing greenspace 
should allocations come forward. Compensation could include on site retention and enhancement, 
off site replacement or financial contribution. This will be determined via an assessment as to the 
most appropriate compensatory measure. 

P
age 411



14 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 15

 

10 
 

Heritage impact 
statements SPD 

This SPD supports Local Plan Policy HE2 and provides guidance on how to produce a heritage impact 
assessment (HIA) for applications which directly affect heritage assets or heritage settings. There may also be 
a requirement for an HIA when a proposal has the potential to impact a non-designated heritage asset or its 
setting including archaeological sites that have never been assessed or not statutorily designated but have a 
heritage value. In this case, an appropriate desk-based assessment or a field evaluation will be required, and it 
is advised to discuss archaeological implications with the South Yorkshire Archaeology Service. 
 

Impact on known heritage assets and settings should be considered and HIA is likely to be 
required. The following information as broken down in the three stages should be included in 
assessments: 

 
Stage 1: Gather known information about the site, including historic colour photographs, historic 
maps and so forth from numerous information sources, 
 
Stage 2: Written Description providing description of the site and its setting and a summary of the 
site’s significance, and 
 
Stage 3: Proposals and justification. Proposals should be designed to avoid or minimise any harm 
to the significance of the heritage asset. Assessments should generally explain the following 
questions: 

• Why is the proposed work required?  
• Could your requirements be met in a different way?  
• What would the benefits be of the proposed work?  
• Could the proposed work harm the heritage asset or put it at risk in any way? 
• Do you understand the heritage asset well enough to make an informed decision?  
• Will the benefits outweigh any harm?  
• Could you avoid (mitigate) any minor impacts on the heritage asset?  
• Is the scale, design, materials proposed for any proposed works appropriate?  
• Is any proposed work in the least damaging place? 

 
Sites considered to include archaeological interest may be required to provide an accompanying 
appropriate desk-based assessment. This applies to housing allocations HS56, HS64 and 
HS66.  

Financial 
contributions to 
schools SPD 

The SPD supports Local Plan Policy l1 Infrastructure and Planning Obligations. New housing developments give 
rise to the need for additional school places, both primary and secondary. However, schools are sometimes full 
and do not always have spare places for new pupils. In this case, developers can make a financial contribution 
to provide physical space needed to accommodate new pupil places at the local school that would serve the 
new housing development. Alternatively, a developer may wish to directly build an extension to a local school 
to provide the new space needed.   
 
Financial contribution will be required for following planning applications: 

• Housing developments of more than 5 homes,  
• Where there is insufficient capacity in schools or is likely to be so prior to the end of the plan period,  
• There is need for contributions to ensure schools are in an appropriate condition.  

 
The calculations will be calculated as follows: 
Number of pupils generated 
The number of pupils a development should accommodate should be calculated as below: 

• Primary school pupils - 21 pupils per 100 homes. 
• Secondary school pupils - 15 pupils per 100 homes. 

 
No requirement for contribution 
Single bedroom homes, homes designed for elderly people, sheltered accommodation will not be required to 
make financial contributions to schools. 
 
How financial calculation is calculated  
For the cost of school places, the Government recommends using figures from the latest Local Authority 
Scorecard as a basis of the cost per pupil place.  

• Figures are rounded to the nearest thousand and for Primary Schools a contribution of £16,000 should 
be made for each place. For secondary school places a contribution of £16,000 must be made for each 
place.  

 
This calculation will apply to most of the cases. However, a different approach might be required depending on 

*£16,000 per pupil place in primary schools (total based on 21 pupils per 100 homes) 
*£16,000 per pupil place in secondary schools (total based on 15 pupils per 100 homes) 
 
 

 

11 
 

factors affecting the capacity of schools.  

Planning 
Obligations 
SPD  

Where contributions are required for school places or sustainable travel, these will take precedence and are 
non-negotiable. Contributions will also be required to fund highway works, for example through section 278 
and section 38 agreements.  
 
It may be necessary to consider the cumulative effect of several developments and joint contributions towards 
infrastructure might be necessary. All new development should therefore make appropriate provision to 
contribute towards offsetting the additional pressures it has created whether this is through on or off-site 
provision of facilities or financial contributions within appropriate timescale. 

• Consider Open Space Provision 15% 
• Affordable Housing 10% 
• Sustainable travel options/connections 
• £16,000 per primary place and £16,000 per secondary school place required 

 
The proposed new SPD makes it clear that contributions for school places and sustainable travel 
are non-negotiable.  
 

Parking SPD The SPD recognises that the availability of car parking has a major influence on a person’s choice of transport. 
The restriction and control of parking facilities within all new developments / redevelopment, especially in 
areas which are readily accessible by other modes of transport, has an effect on the choice of transport 
promoting more sustainable choices, and also potentially releases land for other uses. Cycle, motor cycle and 
car parking, including parking for the disabled, must be considered from the outset as part of a comprehensive 
strategy. 
 
Table 1 in the SPD sets out parking standards for broad categories of development and includes the threshold 
to which they will be applied. 

Reference is made to Table 1 entitled Car Parking Standards Maximum numbers of spaces allowed.  
 
Key relevant uses are: 

• Offices/business: 1 space per 30sqm gross floor area 
• General Industry: 1 space per 50-500sqm depending on gross floor area of the unit 
• Storage and Distribution: varies depending on gross floor area of the unit 
• Housing and flats: 1 space for dwellings with 1 or 2 bedrooms 2 spaces for dwellings 

with 3 or more bedrooms 

Development on 
land affected by 
contamination 
SPD 

Where the future users or occupiers of a development would be affected by contamination or stability issues, 
or where contamination may present a risk to the water environment, proposals must be accompanied by a 
report. Where measures are needed to allow the development to go ahead safely, these will be required as a 
condition of any planning permission. 

A report will be required to support individual planning applications where future users/occupiers 
would be affected by contamination or stability issues, or where contamination may present a risk 
to the water environment. 

Section 38 
agreements 

SPD to ensure that highway works are delivered to the satisfaction of all parties. Consideration during the design of highway infrastructure. 

Section 278 
agreements 

Linked to Local Plan policy T4 to make sure that development is carried out safely.  New development will be expected to be designed and built to provide all transport users within 
and surrounding the development with safe, secure and convenient access and movement. 

Strategy Summary Relevance to Masterplan Framework process 

Health and 
Wellbeing 
Strategy (2014-
2019) – and 
Health and Care – 
The Barnsley Plan 
(2016-2020) – 
Barnsley Joint 
Strategic Needs 
Assessment 
(2016) 

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy was prepared with a vision for Barnsley residents to lead healthy, safe and 
fulfilling lives; and identify, access, direct and manage their individual health and wellbeing needs; and support 
their families and communities to live healthy with independent lifestyles. To shape and support this vision, 
principles have been set with the aim to produce safe and sustainable health and care systems. The principles 
also introduce shared responsibility which encourages people and communities to take responsibility and 
positive action to improve their health and wellbeing; and promotes independence which encourages and 
enables healthy lifestyles. 
 
Building and environment resilience is acknowledged as a key contributing factor at both an individual and 
community level, through the protection and promotion of health and wellbeing in communities. It is 
encouraged to create resilient communities and supportive environments. This view is supported in Section 8 
of the Design of Housing Development Consultation Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (2019) which 
encourages developers to improve the health and wellbeing for residents of new developments. The planning 
SPD encourages opportunities for developers to improve the health and wellbeing of residents by including 
walking and cycling routes linking through the developments, creating of green corridors to improve air quality, 
and adopting an inclusive approach when designing open spaces.   

The principles of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy inform the Masterplan Framework process. 
 
The Barnsley Joint Strategy Needs Assessment highlights key lifestyle factors including; 
unemployment, poor housing conditions and inactive lifestyles. 
 
 

Energy Strategy 
(2015-2025) 

The Energy Strategy provides clear aims to secure a greener and more sustainable borough through 
encouraging and supporting businesses and local communities to recognise and grasp the opportunities and 
benefits of engaging and investing in greater energy efficiency and local, low carbon, energy production. 
 
Land Use Planning - Buildings are responsible for a large percentage of the total energy consumption and 
are often energy consuming and CO2 emitting, and planning policies in the recently adopted Local Plan 
(January 2019), encourage development of low-carbon energy production (including energy infrastructure) and 
ensure that general development implements good design principles which in turn minimises both the energy 
consumption and emission of greenhouse gases and other air pollutants. The policies seek to address the 
challenges of climate change for new developments including sustainable building construction and drainage 
systems, flood risk alleviation, low carbon and renewable energy. Installation of solar PV arrays on roofs to 
provide energy infrastructure may well be required to service business parks on potential schemes like 

The principles reflected should inform the Masterplan Framework process. Note that a draft Energy 
SPD is currently being prepared and will be consulted upon shortly. The Local Validation 
Requirements include the need for an Energy/Sustainability Statement for 10+ dwellings and non-
residential schemes of 1,000sqm+.   
 
Note that the Council has announced a Climate Emergency and will be preparing further 
documentation on the Zero 40 and Zero 45 targets. 
 

P
age 412



16 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 17

 

12 
 

Rockingham Business Park, Dearne Valley Parkway. 
 
Transport - Emissions from transport are a known major cause of poor air quality and Local Plan policy T3 
encourages the use of electric vehicles by requiring electric charging points on new developments, promotes 
developments that are designed to reduce the need to travel, thereby, contributing to the reduction of carbon 
emissions, and promotes accessibility to public transport and user-friendly environments for pedestrians and 
cyclists.  

Employment and 
Skills Strategy: 
More and Better 
Jobs (2016-2020) 
and aspirations of 
the SCR LEP 
Strategic 
Economic Plan 
(SEP) 

Sits alongside the Local Plan and highlights the aspirations to raise the ambition of Barnsley business, 
institutions, people and communities, improve education, employability and work-readiness, improve routes 
into work, enhance business skills and progression within the workplace. Note that a weakness is connectivity 
and transport costs to jobs (p 22), aspiration to improve the number and quality of jobs in Barnsley. 

Acknowledge the desire to increase employment opportunities within the Borough and connectivity 
between residential and employment. 

Transport 
Strategy (2014-
2033) 

Transport vision includes: promoting economic growth and strategic connections, promote inclusion, 
accessibility, and better quality of life, promote high quality natural environment, local air quality and climate 
change, promote safety, security and health. 

Acknowledge the priorities of the Transport Vision, including; promote sustainable travel and 
parking options for residents, visitors and business to employment locations, attractions, 
interchanges and also reduce the adverse impact of travel on people and the environment. 

Housing Strategy 
(2014-2033) 

Supporting new housing development, building high quality, desirable and sustainable homes, develop strong 
and resilient communities, and support younger, older and vulnerable people to live independently. 

Acknowledge strategic objectives of the Housing Strategy; support new housing development; 
build high quality, desirable and sustainable homes; develop strong and resilient communities; and 
support younger, older and vulnerable people to live independently. Also acknowledge desire for 
larger units (4 and 5 bed), improve range and quality of homes, reduce carbon emissions, raise 
standards in the design and build quality for all new homes, support young people in accessing 
housing, ensure appropriate affordable housing, enable more people to buy homes on the open 
market, and allows for an element of private rent. 

Community 
Engagement 
Strategy (2017-
2020) – note the 
BMBC Corporate 
Plan 2017-2020 

Aims: increase effectiveness and efficiency of engagement activity, strengthen community involvement, 
strengthen links between groups, develop the role of local businesses. 

Undertake public consultation in line within the Strategy and acknowledge this within the WYG 
Statement of Community Engagement Report. Note three main priorities of the Local Plan: thriving 
and vibrant economy; people achieving their potential; and strong and resilient communities. 

Economic 
Strategy - Jobs 
and Business Plan 
(2014-2017) and 
three year review 
(2017) 

Themes include: investment in infrastructure (addressing infrastructure constraints and strategic transport 
connections), attracting inward investment (via BMBC Inward Investment Team), growing existing business 
(Enterprise Barnsley) and higher productivity start-ups. Also, Superfast broadband coverage (see para’s 4.19-
4.20 of the Local Plan) phased roll out due for completion towards the end of 2019. 

Acknowledge aspirations and programmed delivery of superfast broadband within Masterplan 
Framework. 

Air Quality Action 
Plan (2017) 

Sets out proposed Air Quality Action Plan measures (table 14), including: carriageway improvements, 
encourage uptake of lower emission vehicles, Barnsley Bus Partnership Agreement, planning application (AQA 
and mitigation, etc. 

Note Policy AQ1 Development in Air Quality Management Areas. 
 
Note that the M1 corridor is an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) and our Technical Officer 
(Chris Shields) has advised that NO2 concentrations are close to exceeding air quality standards at 
locations along Sheffield Road in Birdwell. Pollution control and mitigation therefore requires 
careful consideration to ensure there is no deterioration in area quality in this area. Note that this 
closely aligns with Travel Plan and public health agendas (such as Active Travel). 

 
Local Validation Requirements include the need for Air Quality Assessments where development is 

 

13 
 

 

within or adjacent to an AQMA. 

Equality, Diversity 
and Inclusion 
Strategy (July 
2018 – June 
2020) 
 

The Strategy seeks to promote equality and fairness in the community, this includes:  
• A town centre that is accessible, safe and welcoming to all;  
• Accessible and inclusive services that don’t leave people behind;  
• Barnsley’s diverse communities and their contributions are celebrated;  
• Reducing negative experiences, impacts and perceptions of migration;  
• Young people with additional needs achieve better outcomes 

Consider strategic objectives throughout the development of the Masterplan Framework and future 
planning applications. 

P
age 413



18 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 19

Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group (CCG) 
Briefing Note

Appendix 2
Briefing Note: Hoyland North Masterplan Framework - Healthcare  

Prepared jointly by Barnsley Council and NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG) 

Infrastructure Delivery Plan (2015) 

During the preparation of the Local Plan, the CCG engaged with Barnsley Council to provide 
an overview of current and future service provision. 

NHS Barnsley CCG formed in April 2013 and is a membership organisation bringing 
together all general practices serving residents of the Barnsley Borough.  

The CCG has around £400 million funding for health services including Hospital, Community 
and Primary Medical Services (GPs) for Barnsley residents. The level of funding available is 
based on a national formula which is linked to population size and various other factors 
including deprivation levels and the age profile of the local population. The cost of increasing 
health provision is therefore intended to be met by funding from central government and 
NHS England using this formula. NHS England work with the local CCGs, via a Delegation 
Agreement, to ensure services are being commissioned and delivered to meet the needs of 
the local population and assure the CCG’s plans for transformation and sustainability of 
healthcare provision.  

During the preparation of the Infrastructure Delivery Plan the CCG confirmed that there were 
no specific issues for the provision of health infrastructure. Through discussions with 
representatives of the Barnsley CCG and Barnsley Hospital it was confirmed that the NHS in 
Barnsley have the physical infrastructure in place to deliver the required level of health 
provision, based on historical growth, but that the level of development (alongside other 
external factors) may result in increased pressure on the hospital’s A&E service provision 
and on Primary Medical Service provision. The Trust is continuing to develop its Estates 
Strategy which will guide the use and development of the hospital site. The CCG is also 
reviewing its estates strategy in light of the recent publication of the Long Term Plan and 
Primary care Network development. 

The Infrastructure Delivery Plan concluded that given the recent investment in health 
provision in the borough it is unlikely that major new facilities will be required, with workforce 
being the capacity issue rather than premises. 

Hoyland North Masterplan Framework and GP Practices 

The CCG has recently had sight of Barnsley Council’s housing trajectory down to 
neighbourhood level enabling the CCG to see where the specific proposals are planned in 
relation to the GP practices within the area. The Hoyland North Masterplan Framework area 
sits within the South CCG Neighbourhood Network and is covered by four GP practices. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 1: Summary of GP Practices covering the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework 
area 

GP Practice  Neighbourhood Patient list size at 
July 2019 

The Grove Medical 
Practice, Birdwell 
 

Central 5,129 

Hoyland First  South  13,015 
Hoyland Medical 
Practice 

South 12,107 

Wombwell Medical 
Centre 

South  9,934 

 

Future Service Provision  

The CCG is establishing a robust plan with Barnsley Council to ensure the CCG and local 
GPs are consulted early in the planning of new housing developments. The CCG has 
committed to consulting with GP practices that are likely to be significantly impacted by the 
housing growth set out in the Local Plan and sites with planning permission. Early 
involvement with consultation plans will ensure that the CCG has the opportunity to work 
with GP practices to assess the possible impacts on capacity, workforce and any estate 
implications arising from the plan. This, in turn, will ensure that service provision and patient 
access is not compromised.  

Early engagement will begin as part of the Masterplan Framework process and further 
consultation when planning applications are being determined. The CCG can then assist GP 
practices to plan and respond to growth, this may include workforce recruitment and/or 
upskilling the existing workforce. 

P
age 414



20 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 21

Table 1 - 
Baseline 
Ecological 
Assessment 
and Review

Appendix 3

This page has been left intentionally blank

P
age 415



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 2322

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

2 
HG2122 

March 2019 

 

Table 1A: Ecology – Barnsley Council Evidence Base  
Site Reference Document Details Status Summary/Key Findings 

LP 
Evidence 

Draft LP Adopted 
LP 

 

(Part H2) HOY2 ES14 BMBC – Local 
Ecological Impact 
dated 18 April 2013  

Evidence to support 
the Local Plan 
process covering 
18.7Ha prepared by 
Wildscapes  

The site forms an important link in a wildlife corridor running 
from the M1 to the Dearne Valley. The full scale, scope and 
location of the mitigation necessary to maintain the functioning 
of this corridor should be considered not just on the level of 
this site individually but with reference to decisions on the 
wider development opportunities. Subject to addressing this 
issue, development of a more limited nature could be carried 
out with a more minimal ecological impact. If possible, the 
hedgerow along the north edge of the retained during 
development.  
 
Lapwings were recorded suggesting that they may breed here.  
 
With reference to the data search, no significant issued for 
protecting or priority species have arisen for this site.  
 
Figure 1 (see attached) shows the Phase 1 habitat for the site 
and Figure 2 (see attached) shows the area with significant 
ecological value.  

 
 

1 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Hoyland North Masterplan Framework – Infrastructure Delivery Schedules – 
November 2019 

 

Table 1: Education Infrastructure Delivery Schedule 

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Primary School 
Place Provision 

Expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) in 
the Hoyland 
area. New 
school if 
expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) is not 
achievable 
(location TBA) 

Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 2023 
assuming a 
start on site in 
2020 in 
accordance with 
the housing 
trajectory  

Given the 
timescales for the 
delivery of 
housing Barnsley 
Council will 
continue to plan, 
monitor and 
manage school 
places and make 
sure that 
contributions are 
made if there is 
likely to be 
inadequate 
capacity within 
the planning area 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions. 
Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 
2023 

S106 
contribution 
should 
reflect the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools 
SPD  
 
It is noted 
that the 
S106 
Agreement 
for planning 
consent 
2016/1531 
requires a 
S106 
contribution 
of £211,530 
towards 
education 

Secondary School 
Place Provision 

Existing 
secondary 
schools within 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 

Capacity 
available across 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 
into the 
foreseeable 
future however 
a requirement 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions 

BASELINE HERITAGE ASSESSMENT 
AND REVIEW (MARCH 2019)  

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

3 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Site Reference Document Details Status Summary/Key Findings 
LP 

Evidence 
Draft LP Adopted 

LP 
 

(Part H5) 
(Part H5) 
(Part H5) 

HOY5 
H77 
AC29 

ES17 
HS66  
HS56 

BMBC - Ecological 
Impact dated 22 
April 2013  

Evidence to support 
the Local Plan 
process covering 
38Ha prepared by 
Wildscapes. 

The ecological value of this site lies in in the variety and extent 
of the habitat’s present rather than specific species or features. 
It forms an important connective link in a chain of similar 
habitats stretching from the M1 to Upper Hoyland. 
Consequently, any major development of the site will of 
necessity, damage its ecological value and function. 
Development of a more limited nature, for example of the 
horse grazing pastures adjacent to the existing houses could be 
carried out with a more minimum ecological impact. The areas 
of woodland, species – rich and natural grassland, pond and 
stretches of old hedgerows should be retained and protected.  
 
To maintain the functioning of the corridor, the site should be 
considered in the context of other adjacent development 
opportunities.  
 
The site has potential as a habitat for Great Crested Newts 
which may require specific mitigation measures to be adopted.  
 
Figure 1 (see attached) shows the Phase 1 habitat map for the 
site and Figure 2 (see attached) shows the area with significant 
ecological value.  

HOY9 H16 HS64 BMBC Local 
Ecological Impact 
dated 21 October 
2010 

Evidence base to 
support the Local 
Plan covering 
20.2Ha. 

Pasture land with a mix of fencing, hedge and scrub along the 
external and internal boundaries. Sections of structured 
planting break up the fields.  
 
Hedgerows should be retained and young woodland sections of 

P
age 416



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 2524

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

4 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Site Reference Document Details Status Summary/Key Findings 
LP 

Evidence 
Draft LP Adopted 

LP 
 

the site should be protected as important for wildlife. Rest of 
the site is horse grazed land and has little ecological value. 
Japanese Knotweed is present in south of site which would 
need professional removal (see Drawing G2461.01.64 dated 
November 2010 for further assessment).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

5 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 1: ES14 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

5 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 1: ES14 

 

P
age 417



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 2726

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

6 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 2: ES14 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

6 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 2: ES14 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

7 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 3: ES17/HS66/HS65 

 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

7 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 3: ES17/HS66/HS65 

 

 

P
age 418



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 2928

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

8 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 4: ES17/HS66/HS65 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

8 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 4: ES17/HS66/HS65 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

9 
HG2122 

March 2019 

 

Figure 5: HS64 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

9 
HG2122 

March 2019 

 

Figure 5: HS64 

 

P
age 419



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 3130

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

10 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Table 1B: Ecology - Land Promoters Evidence 
 

Local Plan 
Reference 

Document Title 
and Date Status Summary/Key Findings BMBC Response 

Draft Adopted  
H16 
H77  
AC29 

HS64 
HS66 
HS56 

Ecological Appraisal 
prepared by 
Envirotech Version 2 
dated 15 September 
2016 

Document 
prepared to 
support 
Phase 1 
outline 
Application 
(2016/1531) 
on Site 
H16/HS64 
but covers a 
significant 
wider area. 

This site was visited on three separate occasions between June, July 
and August 2016 by two licensed ecologists and a water sample 
collected from the nearby pond for eDNA analysis. This was 
returned negative for Great Crested Newts.  
 
A full botanical survey of the site was undertaken (Drawing Figure 5 
within the report (see attached). A survey was also undertaken to 
establish the presence of bats, amphibians, nesting birds, brown 
hares and badgers at the site or in proximity.  
 
The plan specimens recorded at the site are all common in the local 
area and are considered of low ecological value. Domestic gardens 
and/or sympathetic landscaped open space is considered to offer 
habitat of equal or great ecological value.  
 
None of the hedgerows around the site perimeter were considered 
important under the Hedgerow Regulations (1997). The trees and 
hedges of the site boundary are all young and of low quality. Low 
numbers of common bat species were recorded foraging over the 
site. No bats were recorded roosting on near the site. It is proposed 
that some roosting provision for bats will however be incorporated 
into the proposed development into the site. 

To be confirmed. 

HOY5 ES17 Ecological Appraisal 
prepared by FPCR on 
behalf of Harworth 

Prepared to 
support a 
proposed 

The majority of the site comprises low value habitat of arable land, 
species poor semi improved grassland, broad leafed plantation 
woodland, improved grassland and scrub. Habitats present on site 

See email from Alison 
Dalton to Joanne 
Neville dated 16 April 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

11 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Estates – October 
2017 

business 
park 
development 
comprising 
warehouse, 
housing and 
associated 
parking, lorry 
compounds 
and 
infrastructure 
(includes 
allocation 
ES15). (Not 
submitted) 

which are of high biodiversity value consist of a small compartment 
of semi natural broadly woodland, the hedgerows and semi-
improved grassland in association with Pond 1 which is of higher 
species diversity but not sufficiently species – rich to meet the Local 
Wildlife Status (see attached Figure 1 – Phase 1 – Habitat Plan).  
 
A bat survey (2015) at the southern most field is of greatest value 
to bats, however, activity was still considered to be low here. It is 
recommended that on site hedgerows, mature trees and woodland 
are all retained and buffered where possible to maintain the 
commuting and foraging resources present on site for the local bat 
population. There were no trees on buildings present on site which 
were considered to offer roosting potential for bats but it is 
recommended that bat boxes are installed. 
  
Breeding bird survey was undertaking in 2015 and it was found that 
the site supports breeding bird assemblages typical of the on-site 
habitats. It is recommended that any ground and vegetation 
clearance occurs prior to the breeding bird season (March to 
September inclusive).  
 
Reptile surveys were undertaken in 2015 during which no reptiles 
were recorded on site therefore no further survey or mitigation is 
considered necessary.  
 
Water vole survey was undertaken in 2016 and no evidence was 
recorded – no further survey or mitigation required.  
 
During a Great Crested Newt (GCN Survey) undertaken by AES in 
2013, GNS Nymphs were recorded in Pond P1. Surveys undertaken 
in 2015 and 2017 by FPCR recorded no GNS and so it is considered 

2018. 

P
age 420



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 3332

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

12 
HG2122 

March 2019 

likely that only a very small GNS population is present on site. 
Consequently, precautionary mitigation is required to minimise the 
risk of GCN being harmed.  
 
Japanese Rose was recorded in association with the plantation 
woodland which is a non-native species. It is recommended that this 
plan be dug up and buried on site during works. 

HOY5 ES17 Great Crested Newt 
Report prepared by 
FPCR dated October 
2017 (Draft 1) 

Prepared to 
support a 
proposed 
business 
park 
development 
comprising 
warehouse, 
housing and 
associated 
parking, lorry 
compounds 
and 
infrastructure 
(including 
allocation 
ES15). (Not 
submitted) 

A total of six waterbodies (P1, P1a, P1b, P2, P4 and P5) were 
surveyed during May and June 2017 (see drawing figure 1 – 6424 – 
E/01 entitled Pond Location Plan (see attached).   
 
No Great Crested Newts were recorded. Smooth newts were 
recorded in ponds P1, P1a, P1b, P2 and P4. Common frog was also 
recorded.  
 
Based on previous aquatic surveys of Pond P1 and the FPCR surveys 
in 2015 and 2017, it is considered reasonably unlikely that GCEN are 
present within this water body.  
 
Pond P2 – it advises mitigation of a ‘fingertip’ search prior to work 
surrounding the pond of appropriate habitats within 60m of the 
pond and should take place outside of the hibernating season 
(typically November to February inclusive). Other mitigation 
measures include removing all vegetation from site or raising it on 
pallets for centrally locating it within arable land to remove any 
potential for habitation of these species. Protective fencing should 
be installed around al ponds and no machinery/plant or construction 
materials should be stored within fenced areas. 
 

‘Our ecologist accepts 
the GCN report’s 
assertion that they 
have done enough 
GCN surveying. 
However, he does not 
agree that it can be 
assume that the 
species are not 
present in or around 
Pond P1 at all. It is 
more likely that they 
are present in low 
numbers based on a 
ES’ findings in 2013. 
Our ecologist does 
not agree that a 60m 
buffer from Pond 2 is 
now sufficient within 
which to carry out a 
finger tip search for 
the species of any 
habitats proposed for 
impact by 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

13 
HG2122 

March 2019 

development – this 
should be 250m’. 
(email dated 16 April 
2018). 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

14 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 6: HS64/HS66/HS56 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

14 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 6: HS64/HS66/HS56 

 

P
age 421



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 3534

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

15 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 7: ES17 

 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

16 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 8: GCN Pond Locations  

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

15 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 7: ES17 

 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Ecological Assessment and Review  
 

16 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 8: GCN Pond Locations  

 

P
age 422



36 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 37

Table 2 - 
Baseline 
Heritage 
Assessment 
and Review

Appendix 3

This page has been left intentionally blank

P
age 423



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 3938

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Heritage Assessment and Review 
 

2 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Table 2A: Heritage – Barnsley Council Evidence Base  
Site Reference Document Details Status Summary/Key Findings 

LP 
Evidence 

Draft LP Adopted 
LP 

 

253 H16 HS54 Initial Heritage 
Assessment prepared 
in 2016.   

Evidence to support 
Local Plan  

Setting: Amber/Adverse Impact  
 
Main significance of asset (Hoyland and Lowe Stand) relates to 
aesthetic and historic value. Contribution to setting medium 
due to impact on medium/long distant views.  
 
H16 is 180m to the south west of Hoyland Lower Stand and 
220m to the west of St Peters Church. There is therefore some 
potential for landscape setting impact on both assets in terms 
of long distance views from Lowe Stand and the curtilage of St 
Peter’s Church – the churchyard burial ground. Overall impact 
should be mitigated by reduction in site area of H77 (HS66).  
 
Mitigation: site should respect heritage setting of Hoyland Lowe 
Stand and the churchyard of St Peter’s Church to the east by 
using appropriate site layout, sympathetic design that reflects 
the setting, appropriate scale, massing, details and materials.  

570 H77 HS66 Initial Heritage 
Assessment prepared 
on in 2016.  

Evidence to support 
Local Plan 

Setting: Red/adverse impact resulting in substantial harm.  
 
H77 (HS66) lies immediately adjacent to Hoyland Lowe Stand 
and 138m from St Peter’s Church. Whilst the setting of the 
churchyard can be protected by mitigation measures within 
H16/HS64, the setting on the church itself is relatively 
demarcated and bound by Hawshaw Road. However, the 
setting of Hoyland Lowe Stand includes inter-visibility and views 
both near and of the far landscape. The Stand was constructed 

 
 

1 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Hoyland North Masterplan Framework – Infrastructure Delivery Schedules – 
November 2019 

 

Table 1: Education Infrastructure Delivery Schedule 

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Primary School 
Place Provision 

Expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) in 
the Hoyland 
area. New 
school if 
expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) is not 
achievable 
(location TBA) 

Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 2023 
assuming a 
start on site in 
2020 in 
accordance with 
the housing 
trajectory  

Given the 
timescales for the 
delivery of 
housing Barnsley 
Council will 
continue to plan, 
monitor and 
manage school 
places and make 
sure that 
contributions are 
made if there is 
likely to be 
inadequate 
capacity within 
the planning area 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions. 
Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 
2023 

S106 
contribution 
should 
reflect the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools 
SPD  
 
It is noted 
that the 
S106 
Agreement 
for planning 
consent 
2016/1531 
requires a 
S106 
contribution 
of £211,530 
towards 
education 

Secondary School 
Place Provision 

Existing 
secondary 
schools within 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 

Capacity 
available across 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 
into the 
foreseeable 
future however 
a requirement 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions 

BASELINE HERITAGE ASSESSMENT 
AND REVIEW (MARCH 2019)

P
age 424



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 4140

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Heritage Assessment and Review 
 

4 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Site Reference Document Details Status Summary/Key Findings 
LP 

Evidence 
Draft LP Adopted 

LP 
 

proposed buffer of non-development zone to the west of 
H77/HS66 will contribute to the mitigation of this allowing the 
longer distant views of the allocation site to be subsumed 
within the wider developed and mixed use landscapes.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Heritage Assessment and Review 
 

3 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Site Reference Document Details Status Summary/Key Findings 
LP 

Evidence 
Draft LP Adopted 

LP 
 

as a folly and viewing platform and intended both to be seen 
and see from. As such, a significant buffer/non-developable 
zone is required to the west and site policy for appropriate 
layout and design is required.  
 
Development of the site shall respect the historic setting of this 
listed building by restricting the height of dwellings to two 
storeys at the eastern margin of the developable area.    

-  HOY2 ES14 Initial Heritage 
Assessment prepared 
in 2016. 

Evidence to support 
Local Plan 

Setting: Green – no adverse impact.  
 
Western edge of HOY2 (ES14) is close (at 112m at east) to 
Stone Bar Farmhouse south of Moor Lane. There is little 
contribution or impact on the setting of this property due to 
Junction 36 roundabout.  
 
Tankersley Mine Rescue Station is 135m to west, however, no 
contribution or impact on setting due to the modern 
development in between and no inter-visibility.  

-  HOY5 ES17 Initial Heritage 
Assessment prepared 
on in 2016.  

Evidence to support 
Local Plan 

Archaeology – Green.  
 
Heritage Setting: Green – no adverse impact – mitigation for 
H77/HS66 would mitigate the impact of this site.  

939 AC29 HS56 Initial Heritage 
Assessment prepared 
in 2016.  

Evidence to support 
Local Plan 

Archaeology – Amber/Green. 
 
Heritage Setting: Green – no adverse impact.  
 
Whilst relatively distant, this allocation might be considered just 
within the setting of Hoyland Lowe Stand. However, the 

P
age 425



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 4342

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Heritage Assessment and Review 
 

5 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Table 2B: Heritage – Land Promoter Evidence Base  
Local Plan 
Reference 

Document Title 
and Date 

Status Summary/Key Findings Barnsley Council Response 

Deposit 
Draft 

Adopted 
Version 

 

H77 HS66 Built Heritage 
Assessment 
prepared by WYG 
dated August 
2018. 

Prepared on 
behalf of 
Hoyland 
Development 
Limited to object 
to the Local Plan 
Main 
Modification to 
increase the 
development 
exclusion zone. 

The report identifies heritage assets in the site’s 
vicinity and what impact will arise from the 
development of the site upon their respective 
setting and significance.  
 
There are no designated assets on the site and it 
does not lie within a Conservation Area. Hoyland 
Lowe Stand (Grade II Listed) is located to the 
immediate east of the site. Its heritage 
significance is primarily due to its historic value. 
The site provides the heritage asset with a semi-
rural setting. The report accepts that the 
proposed development the site will result in an 
alteration of the setting of a listed building 
(further loss of its rural setting) and therefore the 
proposed development of the site will have a 
degree of impact. In NPPF terms, it is considered 
that a degree of harm (as a result of the 
development within the setting of the asset) 
would be less than substantial. This harm could 
be mitigated through appropriate site planning 
and landscape design within the eastern most 
portion of the site becoming open space to 
maintain the unbuilt character of this part of the 
site. If the majority of the field immediately to the 

Summary of feedback with Barnsley 
Council and Historic England (HE) 
following meeting on 8 January 
2019:  
 
 HE highlighted the importance of 

Lowe Stand particularly views 
from the medium and wider 
context. HE also acknowledged 
that views from the Hoyland 
Lowe Stand were important.  

 HE considered the WYG heritage 
assessment was inadequate as it 
did not provide sufficient 
commentary on the medium and 
long distant views nor the 
relationship with the Wentworth 
Estate.  

 HE considers the buffer 
identified in the Local Plan to be 
a minimum however, there is 
scope for some tweaking in 
order to create better place-
making (i.e. not a rigid line of 
development).  

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Heritage Assessment and Review 
 

6 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Local Plan 
Reference 

Document Title 
and Date 

Status Summary/Key Findings Barnsley Council Response 

Deposit 
Draft 

Adopted 
Version 

 

west of the Hoyland Lowe Stand became open 
space the existing field boundary (approximately 
70m to the west of the listed building) could be 
retained and form the boundary of the 
buffer/open space.  
 
 

 HE considered it would be 
advantageous to improve access 
to the Lowe Stand, however, this 
should not affect the character, 
significance and the setting of 
the structure.  

 HE were uncomfortable with play 
equipment being located within 
the buffer at it would diminish 
the existing field like character of 
the buffer which is important in 
the medium and long distance 
views.  

 HE accepted the principle of 
residential development on the 
Kirkbalk Playing pitches.  

 

 

P
age 426



44 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 45

Table 3 - 
Baseline 
Archaeology 
Assessment 
and Review

Appendix 3

This page has been left intentionally blank

P
age 427



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 4746

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Archaeology Assessment and Review 
 

2 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Table 3A – Archaeology – Barnsley Council Evidence  
Site Reference Document Details Status Summary/Key Findings 

LP 
Evidence 

Draft LP Adopted 
LP 

 

- HOY2 ES14 Barnsley Local Plan – 
Proposed Allocation 
Site’s Assessment 
2016 Reference 
108681.02 dated 
May 2016 prepared 
by Wessex 
Archaeology  

Evidence to support 
the Local Plan 
process covering 
18.77Ha. 

Archaeological significance: Negligible  
Recommendation: Little or no archaeological objections to 
future allocation.  
The SYAS have previously expressed no archaeological 
concerns with regards to this site due to the extent of the 
previous disturbance.   
 

- HOY5 ES17 Barnsley Local Plan – 
Proposed Allocation 
Site’s Assessment 
2016 Reference 
108681.02 dated 
May 2016 prepared 
by Wessex 
Archaeology 

Evidence to support 
the Local Plan 
process covering 
31.4Ha.  

Archaeological significance: Negligible 
Recommendation: Little or no archaeological objections to 
future allocation.  
 

- H16 HS64 Barnsley Local Plan – 
Proposed Allocation 
Site’s Assessment 
2016 Reference 
108681.02 dated 
May 2016 prepared 
by Wessex 
Archaeology 

Evidence to support 
the Local Plan 
process covering 
20.23Ha. 

Archaeological significance: unknown.  
Recommendation: Uncertain archaeological objection to 
allocation.  
 

- H77 HS66 Barnsley Local Plan – 
Proposed Allocation 

Evidence to support 
the Local Plan 

Archaeological significance: unknown.  
Recommendation: uncertain archaeological objection to 

 
 

1 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Hoyland North Masterplan Framework – Infrastructure Delivery Schedules – 
November 2019 

 

Table 1: Education Infrastructure Delivery Schedule 

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Primary School 
Place Provision 

Expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) in 
the Hoyland 
area. New 
school if 
expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) is not 
achievable 
(location TBA) 

Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 2023 
assuming a 
start on site in 
2020 in 
accordance with 
the housing 
trajectory  

Given the 
timescales for the 
delivery of 
housing Barnsley 
Council will 
continue to plan, 
monitor and 
manage school 
places and make 
sure that 
contributions are 
made if there is 
likely to be 
inadequate 
capacity within 
the planning area 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions. 
Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 
2023 

S106 
contribution 
should 
reflect the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools 
SPD  
 
It is noted 
that the 
S106 
Agreement 
for planning 
consent 
2016/1531 
requires a 
S106 
contribution 
of £211,530 
towards 
education 

Secondary School 
Place Provision 

Existing 
secondary 
schools within 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 

Capacity 
available across 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 
into the 
foreseeable 
future however 
a requirement 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions 

BASELINE ARCHAEOLOGY ASSESSMENT 
AND REVIEW (MARCH 2019)  

Hoyland North – Baseline Archaeology Assessment and Review 
 

3 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Site Reference Document Details Status Summary/Key Findings 
LP 

Evidence 
Draft LP Adopted 

LP 
 

Site’s Assessment 
2016 Reference 
108681.02 dated 
May 2016 prepared 
by Wessex 
Archaeology 

process covering 
6.1Ha. 

allocation.  
 

- AC29 HS56 Barnsley Local Plan – 
Proposed Allocation 
Site’s Assessment 
2016 Reference 
108681.02 dated 
May 2016 prepared 
by Wessex 
Archaeology 

Evidence to support 
the Local Plan 
process covering 
3.2Ha. 

Archaeological significance: unknown 
Recommendation: uncertain archaeological objections to 
allocation.  

 

P
age 428



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 4948

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Archaeology Assessment and Review 
 

6 
HG2122 

March 2019 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Archaeology Assessment and Review 
 

7 
HG2122 

March 2019 
 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Archaeology Assessment and Review 
 

4 
HG2122 

March 2019 

 

Figure 1: Extract from 
proposed allocation site 
assessment 2016 prepared 
by Wessex Archaeology  

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Archaeology Assessment and Review 
 

4 
HG2122 

March 2019 

 

Figure 1: Extract from 
proposed allocation site 
assessment 2016 prepared 
by Wessex Archaeology  

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Archaeology Assessment and Review 
 

5 
HG2122 

March 2019 

 

P
age 429



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 5150

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Archaeology Assessment and Review 
 

9 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Table 3B – Archaeology – Land Promoter  
Local Plan 
Reference 

Document Title 
and Date 

Status  Summary/Key Findings  Barnsley Council 
Response  

Draft Adopted   
H16 
 

HS64 Residential 
development at 
Hoyland Lowe, 
Phase 1: 
Archaeological 
Desk Based 
Assessment Ref 
OSA16DT24 
Version 2 dated 
August 2016. 
Prepared by 
Onsite 
Archaeology Ltd. 

Document 
prepared to 
support Phase 1 
comprising 
approximately 
250 dwellings 
(NB: The area 
assessed was 
larger than the 
eventual Phase 
1 outline 
application for 
100 dwellings 
(LPA reference 
(16-1531). 

Both the Grade II Listed Buildings of Hoyland Lowe Stand 
and the church of St Peters are of high and national 
significance but in terms of impact the site does not appear 
to be part of the setting.  
 
In terms of below ground heritage assets no buried 
archaeological remains are known to be present on site. 
From the available evidence, it is likely that the north 
eastern 4/5 of the site have been subject to open cast 
mining which will have removed all traces of any earlier 
archaeology. Three enclosures of potential late Pre-
Historic/Romano - British date have been found in the study 
area, although all three are at a distance of 1-2km from the 
site and none have been excavated to provide definitive 
dating. Given their geographical spread, there is a low 
likelihood of similar features within the site in any 
undisturbed area. If present, any such remains could range 
from low/local to moderate/regional heritage significance.  
 
There is also a low possibility that below ground traces of 
ploughed - out ridge and furrow cultivation will be present 
within the site boundary in any undisturbed areas, although 
the heritage significance of this will be negligible due to 
poor preservation. It is unlikely that other remains of 
medieval date will be present.  
 
It is likely that late twentieth century open cast mining has 

To be confirmed.  

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Archaeology Assessment and Review 
 

8 
HG2122 

March 2019 
 

P
age 430



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 5352

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Archaeology Assessment and Review 
 

10 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Local Plan 
Reference 

Document Title 
and Date 

Status  Summary/Key Findings  Barnsley Council 
Response  

Draft Adopted   
removed any earlier archaeological remains throughout the 
north eastern 4/5 of the site.  
 
The requirement for any further investigational mitigation in 
the undisturbed part of the site will be decided by SYAS but 
there is nothing to suggest that remains of sufficient 
significance to prevent development will be present. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Archaeology Assessment and Review 
 

11 
HG2122 

March 2019 

 

Figure 2: Locations of known 
heritage assets from the report 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Archaeology Assessment and Review 
 

11 
HG2122 

March 2019 

 

Figure 2: Locations of known 
heritage assets from the report 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Archaeology Assessment and Review 
 

12 
HG2122 

March 2019 

 

Figure 3: Extent of open cast 
mining from various sources 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Archaeology Assessment and Review 
 

12 
HG2122 

March 2019 

 

Figure 3: Extent of open cast 
mining from various sources 

 

P
age 431



54 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 55

Table 4 - 
Baseline 
Landscape 
and Visual 
Assessment 
and Review

Appendix 3

This page has been left intentionally blank

P
age 432



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 5756

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Landscape and Visual Assessment and Review 
 

2 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Table 4A – Landscape and Visual Assessment – Barnsley Council Evidence  
Site Reference Document Details Status Summary/Key Findings 

LP 
Evidence 

Draft LP Adopted 
LP 

 

E4 HOY2 
HOY5 
H16 
H77 
AC29 

ES14 
ES17 
HS64 
HS66 
HS56  

Landscape Character 
Assessment prepared 
by ECUS and land 
use consultancy Rev 
D May 2002 
(Including 2016 
Review).  

Evidence to support 
the Local Plan 
process.  

The Masterplan Framework area is situated within Type E: 
Settled Wooded Farmland and is defined by gently rolling land 
form, settlements, woodlands, agricultural, arable land, fields 
bounded by Hawthorn/Stone walls and small watercourses. 
Views are often open and distant from higher ground and 
enclosed by land forms in valleys.  
 
The LCA further breaks this type down into E4: Hoyland Settled 
Wooded Farmland and the character is defined by complex 
relationships of previous industrial activity, urban settlements, 
arable farmland and woodland over varied land forms. Strength 
of character is defined as moderate (Extensive Urban 
Development, former industrial land use and the presence of 
major roads have fragmented much of the agricultural land).  
 
Condition of the character area is defined as poor (land is 
degrading, particularly around the urban fringes and field 
boundaries are often poorly maintained.  
 
Landscape sensitivity (degree to which a landscape can 
accommodate change with their experiencing adverse effects) 
is defined as low and landscape capacity (judgement on the 
amount of development that can be accommodated) is defined 
as medium. This view also recognised in the LCA undertaken on 
behalf of the Dearne Valley Green Heart Partnership in 2011.  
 
The 2016 Review confirms that whilst land reclamation 

 
 

1 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Hoyland North Masterplan Framework – Infrastructure Delivery Schedules – 
November 2019 

 

Table 1: Education Infrastructure Delivery Schedule 

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Primary School 
Place Provision 

Expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) in 
the Hoyland 
area. New 
school if 
expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) is not 
achievable 
(location TBA) 

Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 2023 
assuming a 
start on site in 
2020 in 
accordance with 
the housing 
trajectory  

Given the 
timescales for the 
delivery of 
housing Barnsley 
Council will 
continue to plan, 
monitor and 
manage school 
places and make 
sure that 
contributions are 
made if there is 
likely to be 
inadequate 
capacity within 
the planning area 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions. 
Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 
2023 

S106 
contribution 
should 
reflect the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools 
SPD  
 
It is noted 
that the 
S106 
Agreement 
for planning 
consent 
2016/1531 
requires a 
S106 
contribution 
of £211,530 
towards 
education 

Secondary School 
Place Provision 

Existing 
secondary 
schools within 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 

Capacity 
available across 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 
into the 
foreseeable 
future however 
a requirement 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions 

BASELINE LANDSCAPE AND VISUAL 
ASSESSMENT AND REVIEW (MARCH 2019)  

Hoyland North – Baseline Landscape and Visual Assessment and Review 
 

3 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Site Reference Document Details Status Summary/Key Findings 
LP 

Evidence 
Draft LP Adopted 

LP 
 

schemes are now more established the overall condition 
remains poor.  
 
North west of Hoyland was identified as having development 
potential with relatively limited harm and there is scope for 
improving the condition and character of some sections of 
urban edges through development.  
 
The LCA recommends that it is important to ensure that 
development is partially screened by local variations in land 
form and does not sprawl down Valley slopes where it would 
bring an urbanising influence into the open, rural core of this 
character area.  
 
The character area is quite urbanised and so can readily 
accommodate built development without adverse effects on its 
character.  
 
It is important to preserve a width of open countryside and 
ensure that this is of strong character and in good condition 
between the A6195 and the urban edge to provide a positive 
impression for users of this busy road.  
Page 175 of the LCA provides key landscape guidelines for 
development which could help the masterplan process.     

P
age 433



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 5958

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Landscape and Visual Assessment and Review 
 

5 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Local Plan 
Reference 

Document 
Title and Date 

Status  Summary/Key Findings  Barnsley 
Council 

Response  
Draft Adopted   

 
It is therefore considered that the landscape has the capacity to 
accommodate a scheme and it would not result in any significant 
adverse effects on the local landscape.  
 
Effect on Visual Amenity  
 
A ZTV for the scheme illustrates theoretical ‘bare earth’ visibility 
(i.e. worse case) which confirms that wider views of the scheme 
are limited (see Figure 3 of the Report). Bearing in mind the 
relatively small ZTV, nine viewpoints were selected to represent 
a range of visual receptors including residents, users of 
recreational linear routes and cultural heritage points. These 
viewpoints are also found on Figure 2 and Table 6 provides a 
summary of the visual effects where the scheme would be 
viewed in close proximity, the effects inevitably do represent a 
visual change but not out of character with the local area.  
 
The LVA report reaches the following conclusions:  
 
 The scheme proposes to extent elements which are already in 

existence within the vicinity (well-designed residential built 
form) rather than introducing new and incongruous elements 
into the view. These are elements which are already seen in 
the views or elements which are in existence within the 
context of the view.  

 This is not a pristine rural view but rather the view over a 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Landscape and Visual Assessment and Review 
 

4 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Table 4B – Landscape and Visual Assessment – Land Promoter  
Local Plan 
Reference 

Document 
Title and Date 

Status  Summary/Key Findings  Barnsley 
Council 

Response  
Draft Adopted   

Part H16  Part 
HS64 

Landscape and 
Visual Appraisal 
prepared by 
VISTA Design 
and Assessment 
dated December 
2016 Rev 00. 

Document prepared by 
support Phase 1 outline 
application for 100 
dwellings (LPA Ref 
2016/1531) on 
approximately 3.9Ha. 
 
Note: The assessment only 
relates to Phase 1 of the 
development but is the ZVI 
and the Viewpoint Analysis 
sufficiently robust to 
address the whole 
masterplan area? 

Effect on Landscape 
 
The main element of the landscape (which will be subject to 
direct effects) consist of the introduction and built form onto an 
open grass field which is located immediately adjacent to the 
northern edge of the settlement.  Whilst this is a change in use 
it is not considered significant in terms of the extent, form of 
proposed development (to match the adjacent development with 
well-designed landscape structure and built form layout) nor in 
its effect upon the existing landscape elements, pattern or field 
boundaries.  
 
It is considered that allowing for the scale and development, the 
locally appropriate layout and development of appropriate 
landscape mitigation measures this would have a 
negligible/adverse effect on the local landscape.  
The proposed Phase 1 scheme is relatively small in scale (100 
dwellings) and this LVA recommends that built form and layout 
is to be in-keeping with the local vernacular in terms of 
materiality and scale and is well sited – the application site is 
contiguous with the existing built form along Hoyland Road, has 
a limited visual envelope with a limited number of visual 
receptors. It is considered that this would result in a 
minor/adverse effect on the local landscape. The local 
landscape has been defined as the whole of Site H16/HS64 – 
see Figure 2 of the report.  

TBC 

P
age 434



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 6160

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Landscape and Visual Assessment and Review 
 

7 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Local Plan 
Reference 

Document 
Title and Date 

Status  Summary/Key Findings  Barnsley 
Council 

Response  
Draft Adopted   

the existing trees, planting, however, a wide buffer is not 
suggested in order to integrate the development into the 
existing urban form.  

 Within the site a series of pocket parks should be linked by 
green fingers/linear parks which are well integrated and 
overlooked by development.  

 The green infrastructure should be habitat rich and 
showcase current sustainable good practice.  

 Green infrastructure should bring together various strands 
such as movement/linear parks, play, education, recreation, 
health and wellbeing, ecology habitats, native planting and 
sustainable drainage.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Landscape and Visual Assessment and Review 
 

6 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Local Plan 
Reference 

Document 
Title and Date 

Status  Summary/Key Findings  Barnsley 
Council 

Response  
Draft Adopted   

degraded urban fringe landscape on the edge of an existing 
settlement. Views are already significantly influenced by 
manmade elements.  

 Further built development (of appropriate character and 
layout) within the view is not out of keeping with the context 
of the view not out of keeping with the characteristics of the 
receiving environment.  

 The intention of the proposals is to create an attractive 
residential area in-keeping with the scale and vernacular of the 
existing settlement layout and character. Therefore, whilst the 
proposals represent a change in use, they are not unattractive 
and do not represent a significant deterioration in the view.   

 
H16  HS64 Landscape 

Strategy Sketch 
Book PWP164 
100 Rev 02 
prepared by 
PPWP Design 
dated 12 
December 2016. 

Document prepared to 
support approved Phase 1 
outline application but had 
the wider remit of seeking 
to guide the emerging 
Masterplan design and 
illustrate the approach to 
Green Infrastructure and 
Open space and Landscape 
Links. The document was 
developed in coordination 
with the LVA process. 

 
 The masterplan framework layout should be landscape led 

with a series of bold, green fingers running through the site 
and linking to Hoyland Road and the wider footpath network. 
These should be active linear parks and habitat corridors tied 
in with existing woodland belts/hedgerows.  

 The undulating landscape character and existing field 
boundaries should where feasibly be respected to create a 
distinctive character to development.  

 Gateways into Hoyland Road should draw from the local 
townscape character and create clear relationships with the 
existing pedestrian links and destinations.  

 The interface between existing properties along Hoyland 
Road which back onto the site should retain and supplement 

TBC 

P
age 435



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 6362

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Landscape and Visual Assessment and Review 
 

8 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 2: Figure from Landscape Visual Appraisal 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Landscape and Visual Assessment and Review 
 

8 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Figure 2: Figure from Landscape Visual Appraisal 

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Landscape and Visual Assessment and Review 
 

9 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Table 6 – Summary of Visual Effects  

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Landscape and Visual Assessment and Review 
 

9 
HG2122 

March 2019 

Table 6 – Summary of Visual Effects  

 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Landscape and Visual Assessment and Review 
 

10 
HG2122 

March 2019 

 

P
age 436



64 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 65

Table 5 - 
Baseline 
Drainage 
Assessment 
and Review

Appendix 3

This page has been left intentionally blank

P
age 437



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 6766

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Drainage Assessment and Review 
 

2 
HG2122 

February 2019 

Table 5A – Drainage – Barnsley Council Evidence  
Site Reference Document Details Status Summary/Key Findings 

LP 
Evidence 

Draft LP Adopted 
LP 

 

- HOY2 
HOY5 
H16 
H77 
AC29 

ES14 
ES17 
HS64 
HS66 
HS56 

M1 Junction 36 
Birdwell/Hoyland 
Hydrological 
Assessment prepared 
by Aecom Rev 01 
dated 13 February 
2017. 

Evidence to support 
the Local Plan in 
relation to all 
residential and 
commercial 
allocations within the 
vicinity of M1 
Junction 36.  

Local Flood Risk 
 
All sites lie within Flood Zone 1 and is therefore at low risk of 
flooding from fluvial sources.  
 
Existing Catchments 
 
The general fall of the sites is from east to west from a high 
point on the east side of HS66 (approximately 180m AOD) to a 
low point at a culvert crossing beneath the Dearne Valley 
Parkway in the west corner of ES17 (approximately 130m 
AOD). The south eastern catchment boundary of these sites is 
generally defined by Hawshaw Lane which runs along a slight 
ridge. No overland flows are expected from outside the sites as 
flows would be intercepted by the road or nearby residential 
areas.  
 
A proportion of overland flows from HS64, ES17 and ES14 
currently drained to a tributary of the downstream watercourse 
known as Short Wood Dyke which flows from a point at the 
south west part of HS64 and flows along the boundary between 
ES14 and ES17. Most of ES17, HS66 and HS56 fall towards the 
Dearne Valley Parkway which is on a slight embankment. It is 
anticipated that this run off is currently directed along the 
south side of the carriageway, discharging into the same 
tributary and culvert as above.  
 

 
 

1 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Hoyland North Masterplan Framework – Infrastructure Delivery Schedules – 
November 2019 

 

Table 1: Education Infrastructure Delivery Schedule 

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Primary School 
Place Provision 

Expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) in 
the Hoyland 
area. New 
school if 
expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) is not 
achievable 
(location TBA) 

Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 2023 
assuming a 
start on site in 
2020 in 
accordance with 
the housing 
trajectory  

Given the 
timescales for the 
delivery of 
housing Barnsley 
Council will 
continue to plan, 
monitor and 
manage school 
places and make 
sure that 
contributions are 
made if there is 
likely to be 
inadequate 
capacity within 
the planning area 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions. 
Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 
2023 

S106 
contribution 
should 
reflect the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools 
SPD  
 
It is noted 
that the 
S106 
Agreement 
for planning 
consent 
2016/1531 
requires a 
S106 
contribution 
of £211,530 
towards 
education 

Secondary School 
Place Provision 

Existing 
secondary 
schools within 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 

Capacity 
available across 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 
into the 
foreseeable 
future however 
a requirement 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions 

BASELINE DRAINAGE ASSESSMENT 
AND REVIEW (MARCH 2019)  

Hoyland North – Baseline Drainage Assessment and Review 
 

3 
HG2122 

February 2019 

Site Reference Document Details Status Summary/Key Findings 
LP 

Evidence 
Draft LP Adopted 

LP 
 

Development Proposals 
 
A separate arrangement of providing separate attenuation 
within each site may be considered appropriate. These would 
need to discharge into a system that would ultimately outfall 
into the watercourse located between ES14 and ES17.  
 
An alternative arrangement would be to combine attenuation 
with other adjacent development sites as they ultimately 
discharge into the same watercourse.  
 
The report suggests some of the surface water run off for 
HS56, HS66 and most of ES17 and could be jointly attenuated 
in a swale system running adjacent to the Dearne Valley 
Parkway. Likewise, joint attenuation features for all of these 
plots could be developed near the existing pond on the 
boundary of ES14 and ES17 prior to discharge upstream of the 
culvert.  
 
The development areas are located in an area where both 
opencast and underground mining was prevalent and therefore 
discharged by soakaway is not recommended as this could 
cause instability of the main ground. It could also increase the 
risk of mobilising of pollutants within the ground water. 
Therefore, the report recommends impermeable line drainage 
features to convey surface water to a positive discharge point. 
The range of SUD solution include swales, filtered strips, 
filtered drains and regional attenuation. One key aspect to be 

P
age 438



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 6968

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Drainage Assessment and Review 
 

4 
HG2122 

February 2019 

Site Reference Document Details Status Summary/Key Findings 
LP 

Evidence 
Draft LP Adopted 

LP 
 

considered at an early stage is that future adoption, 
management and maintenance of the SUDs features.  
 
Foul Water Drainage 
 
The report includes a Pre-Planning Development Enquiry from 
Yorkshire Water at Appendix C. For site ES14, it suggests foul 
water should be connected into a 225mm diameter combined 
sewer in the Rockingham Business Park to the west. This sewer 
is some distance west of and several metres higher than Site 
ES14 and connection into the sewer would require a pumping 
station and new sewer (up to 600m in length). Consideration 
should also be given to foul outlets for sites east of ES14 and 
whether they should also be discharged via Site ES14 and 
ultimately into the existing 225mm combined sewer. A 375mm 
diameter public combined sewer is also present to the south 
east of ES14 in Rockingham Street. It is possible that HS64 
(and HS66 although this would require up to 700m of new 
drainage) would outfall to this sewer by gravity although other 
developments in the area would need a pump discharge to the 
public sewer. YW also advised that this would potentially 
require an upsizing of Tinker Lane Sewage Pumping Station.  
For the site’s located to the north east such as HS56 and HS66 
investigation should be made into the presence of existing foul 
sewers in adjacent residential areas in the north east and their 
potential to accept additional foul drainage.  
 
HS64 falls to the south west and it is possible that existing foul 

 

Hoyland North – Baseline Drainage Assessment and Review 
 

5 
HG2122 

February 2019 

Site Reference Document Details Status Summary/Key Findings 
LP 

Evidence 
Draft LP Adopted 

LP 
 

sewers are located in the residential area on the south western 
boundary which could service the proposed development.  
 
The report advises that a meeting is sought with YW to discuss 
the capacity and location of their existing sewers and to discuss 
the strategy for a wider development area.  

 

Table 5B –Drainage – Land Promoter  
Local Plan 
Reference 

Document 
Title and Date 

Status  Summary/Key Findings  Barnsley 
Council 

Response  
Draft Adopted   

HOY2 
HOY5 
H16 
H77 
AC29  
 

ES14 
ES17 
HS64 
HS66 
HS56  

Drainage 
strategy 
prepared by JPG 
(yet to be 
completed). 

Document prepared to 
support the Masterplan 
Framework. 

Detailed calculations of the surface water attenuation strategy 
and foul drainage can be found on a drawing number 
5003.1.SK1 Rev E entitled Drainage Strategy prepared by JPG. 
This requires updating to include an attenuation pond within Site 
HS56. It is also recommended that a report is prepared that 
justifies the drainage strategy identified within the drawing.   
 
 

 

 

P
age 439



70 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 71

Land Use 
Assumptions

Appendix 4

This page has been left intentionally blank

P
age 440



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 7372

Hoyland North Land Use Assumptions   

 

 
www.wyg.com 1 creative minds safe hands 

 

Employment Allocations 
 

Site Area (Ha) Use(s) Scale (m²) Comments / Source of Information 
ES14 
Barnsley council 

8.9 
 
 

B2 14,400 The scale and mix taken from sales bid. Detailed design currently being 
worked up for planning application B1 700 

ES14 
Waddington site 

B1c 501 Assumptions based on the Masterplan Framework requirement to deliver a 
landmark building on this site B8 2,843 

C1 3,904 
A3 Drive Thru 
(Starbucks) 170 Details taken from the planning application 2018/0745 (approved 

10/08/2018) 

ES14 
Hartwood site 

Plot A (Petrol 
Filling Station) 

PFS Kiosk  

4,301 
 

508 
Site area does not include the access road 

Plot B (A3 Costa 
Drive Thru) 205 Details taken from the reserved matters application (2018/0255) 

Plot C 
B1C 
B8 

 
262  

1,486 

Assumptions on remaining plots C to G based on the remaining plots 
delivering B1c (15%) and B8 (85%) uses as per the Barnsley Growth Model 
(September 2018) 
 
 
 
 

 

Plot D 
B1C 
B8 

 
130 
731 

Plot E 
B1C 
B8 

 
173 
979 

Plot F 
B1C 
B8 

 
271 

1,538 
Plot G 
B1C 
B8 

 
268 

1,521 

ES17 
Harworth Group 28.2 

B2 17,160 Based on Local Plan figures (applying 40% site coverage assumption)  
 
 B8 97,240 

 
 

1 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Hoyland North Masterplan Framework – Infrastructure Delivery Schedules – 
November 2019 

 

Table 1: Education Infrastructure Delivery Schedule 

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Primary School 
Place Provision 

Expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) in 
the Hoyland 
area. New 
school if 
expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) is not 
achievable 
(location TBA) 

Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 2023 
assuming a 
start on site in 
2020 in 
accordance with 
the housing 
trajectory  

Given the 
timescales for the 
delivery of 
housing Barnsley 
Council will 
continue to plan, 
monitor and 
manage school 
places and make 
sure that 
contributions are 
made if there is 
likely to be 
inadequate 
capacity within 
the planning area 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions. 
Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 
2023 

S106 
contribution 
should 
reflect the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools 
SPD  
 
It is noted 
that the 
S106 
Agreement 
for planning 
consent 
2016/1531 
requires a 
S106 
contribution 
of £211,530 
towards 
education 

Secondary School 
Place Provision 

Existing 
secondary 
schools within 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 

Capacity 
available across 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 
into the 
foreseeable 
future however 
a requirement 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions 

MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK: LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS
(DECEMBER 2019) Hoyland North Land Use Assumptions   

 

 
www.wyg.com 2 creative minds safe hands 

 

Note: Harworth emerging proposals include:  
• B2 - 60%  
• B8 – 40% 

 
Residential Allocations 
 

Site Area (Ha) Local Plan Dwelling 
Capacity Comments 

HS64  
Hoyland Developments 
Limited  

20.7 615 Capacity taken from emerging Local Plan. This includes the 100 dwellings that 
recently gained planning approval 2016/1530 

HS66  
Hoyland Developments 
Limited 

6.14 70 Capacity taken from emerging Local Plan 
 
 

HS56  
Hoyland Developments 
Limited 

3.2 80 Capacity taken from emerging Local Plan 

 
HG2122 November2019 

P
age 441



74 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 75

Yield Risk 
Audit Schedule

Appendix 5

This page has been left intentionally blank

P
age 442



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 7776

 
 

HG2122 
December 2019 

 Hoyland North 
Masterplan Framework: Risk Audit to Increase Development Yield (December 2019) 

Opportunity Current Masterplan 
Framework Approach 

Potential Mitigation Risk Profile Next Steps beyond the 
Masterplan Framework 

Increase plateau 
development areas 
for ES17. 

The two proposed plateau 
areas have been designed 
based on an engineering 
solution proposed by JPG 
which makes sure that the 
earthworks will balance on site 
i.e. no exporting of material.   
 
The plateau development 
could potentially be updated 
to reflect the Ground 
Investigation being prepared 
by RSK on behalf of Harworth 
Group. 
 

1. Consider a strategy of export 
material off site.  

 

Costs associated with 
exporting material off site 
would increase viability 
concerns and impact on 
delivery. 

Continue to monitor as part 
of ongoing feasibility work 
for subsequent planning 
application but unlikely to 
be pursued. 

2. Prepare a wider earthworks 
strategy in relation to the 
Masterplan Framework area 
rather than be governed by 
landownership. 

Relies on consensus and 
collaboration between the 
landowners/land promoters 
which may be difficult to 
coordinate due to early 
phases of housing parcels 
not aligning with the early 
phases of commercial 
parcels. 

Agree an action plan 
between land promoters to 
explore the feasibility of a 
comprehensive Earthworks 
Strategy having regard to 
assumed phasing strategy 
that features in the 
Masterplan Framework.  

Reduce the dry 
detention SUDs 
areas. 
 

The Masterplan Framework 
follows the recommendations 
set out within the drainage 
strategy prepared by JPG. 
Drawing No. [5003-JPG-XX-
00-DR-D-1403-S0-P01-
BMBC_Drainage_Strategy-
Layout2]. 

1. Incorporation of swales and 
rainwater recycling. 

 

Determine whether the 
Council or management 
organisation/trust will adopt 
swales. 
Difficult to undertake as part 
of a high level Masterplan 
Framework approach. Need 
to make sure that these 
potential measures continue 
to be assessed on a 
coordinated basis following 
the completion of the 
Masterplan Framework. 

To investigate at pre-
planning application stage. 

 
 

1 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Hoyland North Masterplan Framework – Infrastructure Delivery Schedules – 
November 2019 

 

Table 1: Education Infrastructure Delivery Schedule 

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Primary School 
Place Provision 

Expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) in 
the Hoyland 
area. New 
school if 
expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) is not 
achievable 
(location TBA) 

Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 2023 
assuming a 
start on site in 
2020 in 
accordance with 
the housing 
trajectory  

Given the 
timescales for the 
delivery of 
housing Barnsley 
Council will 
continue to plan, 
monitor and 
manage school 
places and make 
sure that 
contributions are 
made if there is 
likely to be 
inadequate 
capacity within 
the planning area 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions. 
Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 
2023 

S106 
contribution 
should 
reflect the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools 
SPD  
 
It is noted 
that the 
S106 
Agreement 
for planning 
consent 
2016/1531 
requires a 
S106 
contribution 
of £211,530 
towards 
education 

Secondary School 
Place Provision 

Existing 
secondary 
schools within 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 

Capacity 
available across 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 
into the 
foreseeable 
future however 
a requirement 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions 

MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK: RISK AUDIT TO INCREASE 
DEVELOPMENT YIELD (DECEMBER 2019)

 
 

HG2122 
December 2019 

Opportunity Current Masterplan 
Framework Approach 

Potential Mitigation Risk Profile Next Steps beyond the 
Masterplan Framework 

2. The creation of underground 
tanks and oversized pipes 
within roads and the 
employment service yards. 

Government guidance 
confirms that proposals 
should consider the types of 
drainage as a hierarchical 
approach and a detention 
basin would be considered a 
greater priority compared to 
a tank system of oversized 
pipes solution. 
 
Detention basins are less 
expensive than creating over 
size pipes and underground 
store tanks so may impact 
viability. 
 
Detention basins contribute 
to creating green 
infrastructure provision and 
biodiversity improvements so 
any reduction in this 
provision will need to be 
closely monitored. 
   

Barnsley Council to provide 
confirmation and guidance 
that they are willing to relax 
technical drainage guidance 
subject to an alternative 
solution leads to improving 
development yield and not 
prejudice key development 
principles associated with 
delivering a strong green 
infrastructure strategy.   

Removal of existing 
vegetation and 
landscaping. 

Given the known constraints 
and working with Barnsley 
Council’s Biodiversity Officer, a 
key assumption as part of the 
masterplan process has been 
to consolidate the existing 
vegetation on-site but 
retaining sensitive ecological 

Consider mitigation and 
compensatory new 
landscaping/ecology/biodiversity 
as part of an overall green 
infrastructure strategy for the 
Masterplan area.  

Impact on ecological 
considerations although 
evidence reveals the site 
overall has relatively limited 
ecological value and the 
most sensitive areas can be 
either protected or 
enhanced.   

Make sure that the principle 
agreed is part of the 
Masterplan Framework and 
continues through to the 
planning application stage. 

P
age 443



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 7978

 
 

HG2122 
December 2019 

Opportunity Current Masterplan 
Framework Approach 

Potential Mitigation Risk Profile Next Steps beyond the 
Masterplan Framework 

 
 

NB: Concept plan shows a LEAP 
on HS64 and upgrade of existing 
King George V Playing Field LEAP 
to NEAP as this is the preferred 
approach. 

The existing play area is on 
the south eastern edge of 
the Masterplan Framework 
area so issues of accessibility 
would need to be addressed 
for the new residents in the 
north eastern area of the site 
as it may lead to an 
imbalance of play provision. 
 
It is anticipated that we will 
be able to update the play 
area strategy following 
further discussions with 
Barnsley Council Parks 
Manager and Historic 
England. 

Barnsley Council to clarify 
upgrade works and costs 
required to King George V 
playing fields. 

Investigating 
housing/commercial 
densities. 

For commercial we are 
assuming 40% floorspace 
coverage of the employment 
allocations in accordance with 
the Local Plan assumptions.  
 
For housing three high level 
categories of density areas 
have been assumed (i.e. 30-
40dph, 40-50dph and 50-
60dph). 

Increasing density particularly for 
housing through developing an 
efficient and adaptable 
Masterplan Framework layout 
having regard to site 
characteristics, achieving place 
making principles and the 
housing market. 

Decisions relating to density 
will be strongly influenced by 
clear placing making 
principles as well as 
achieving attractive market 
conditions.   

Review commercial use 
profiles and housing mix, 
tenure and type as a part of 
each planning application. 

 
 

HG2122 
December 2019 

Opportunity Current Masterplan 
Framework Approach 

Potential Mitigation Risk Profile Next Steps beyond the 
Masterplan Framework 

and landscape areas. 

Reduce higher risk 
highwall corridor. 

A high level assessment has 
been undertaken to 
investigate engineering 
solutions to allow narrowing of 
high wall areas. We assume 
10% encroachment identified 
as ‘High Risk Zones’. 

Prepare a land remediation 
strategy that provides a sufficient 
level of confidence to deliver an 
efficient development layout 
having regard to foundation 
designs and cost implications. 

Continued level of 
uncertainty regarding 
unknown ground conditions 
as significant costs will be 
involved in instructing further 
investigation work in order to 
address this issue more 
comprehensively.  

Detailed groundwork 
investigation underway on 
first phases of development. 
Further detailed intrusive 
ground investigation works 
to be undertaking at the 
same time as bring forward 
the later phases of 
development. 

Location and extent 
of proposed play 
area.  

A LEAP is shown on allocation 
HS64. If an upgrade of King 
George V Playing Fields LEAP 
cannot be upgraded to a NEAP 
then a NEAP will be required 
within the Masterplan 
Framework area. 

Locating the LEAP/NEAP facilities 
taking into consideration 
technical constraints to minimise 
the amount of developable area 
required to deliver appropriate 
buffers. 

Masterplan Framework has 
removed LEAP/LAP facility 
from the heritage buffer on 
HS66 following objection 
from Historic England.  

Agree an appropriate 
strategy with Barnsley 
Council. 

P
age 444



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 8180

 
 

HG2122 
December 2019 

Opportunity Current Masterplan 
Framework Approach 

Potential Mitigation Risk Profile Next Steps beyond the 
Masterplan Framework 

Relocation of 
Rockingham Colliery 
Cricket Club (RCCC). 

Masterplan Framework seeks 
to include one adult and one 
adult/junior/training pitch, 
nets, pavilion building and car 
park. This provision would 
form part of the Green 
Infrastructure Strategy for the 
Masterplan Framework. 

An implication of the relocation 
of RCC could be the reduction in 
developable area at Hoyland 
North but it should be considered 
in the wider context in terms of 
the benefit to RCCC and the 
opportunity to release additional 
development land relating to 
Allocation ES13 as part of the 
Hoyland West Masterplan 
Framework. 

Requires careful coordination 
to ensure that all key parties’ 
expectations can be achieved 
having regard to costs, 
timing, and achieving the 
place making principles of 
the Masterplan Framework. 
Will require ‘buy in’ by Sport 
England and other statutory 
consultees.  

Work with Sport England, 
English Cricket Board, 
Yorkshire Cricket Board and 
Rockingham Colliery Cricket 
Club to develop design brief 
for the new facilities. 
 

 This page has been left intentionally blank

P
age 445



82 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 83

Plan Showing 
Primary and 
Secondary
Schools in 
South Area

Appendix 6

 
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright.   
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 
Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council, Licence Number 100022264 2019 

Key 
S6 Kirk Balk 
P4 The Ellis CE Primary 
P5 Birdwell Primary 
P6 Elsecar Holy Trinity C of E VA Primary 

Academy 
P7 Greenfield Primary 
P8 Hoyland Common Primary 
P9 Hoyland Springwood Primary 
P10 Jump Primary 
P11 St Helens Catholic Primary 
P12 West Meadows Primary Academy 
P18 Tankersley St Peters CE Primary 

School Place Planning 
Primary – South West 

Hoyland Area Only 

P
age 446



84 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 85

This page has been left intentionally blank

 
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright.   
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 
Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council, Licence Number 100022264 2019 

Key 
S1 Barnsley Academy 
S6 Kirk Balk 
S5 Horizon Community College 
S7 Netherwood ALC 
S10 The Dearne ALC 

School Place Planning 
Secondary – South West 

P
age 447



86 Hoyland North BarnsleyMasterplan Framework Appendices 87

Infrastructure 
Delivery 
Schedules

Appendix 7

This page has been left intentionally blank

P
age 448



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 8988

 
 

1 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Hoyland North Masterplan Framework – Infrastructure Delivery Schedules – 
November 2019 

 

Table 1: Education Infrastructure Delivery Schedule 

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Primary School 
Place Provision 

Expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) in 
the Hoyland 
area. New 
school if 
expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) is not 
achievable 
(location TBA) 

Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 2023 
assuming a 
start on site in 
2020 in 
accordance with 
the housing 
trajectory  

Given the 
timescales for the 
delivery of 
housing Barnsley 
Council will 
continue to plan, 
monitor and 
manage school 
places and make 
sure that 
contributions are 
made if there is 
likely to be 
inadequate 
capacity within 
the planning area 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions. 
Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 
2023 

S106 
contribution 
should 
reflect the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools 
SPD  
 
It is noted 
that the 
S106 
Agreement 
for planning 
consent 
2016/1531 
requires a 
S106 
contribution 
of £211,530 
towards 
education 

Secondary School 
Place Provision 

Existing 
secondary 
schools within 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 

Capacity 
available across 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 
into the 
foreseeable 
future however 
a requirement 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions 

 
 

1 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Hoyland North Masterplan Framework – Infrastructure Delivery Schedules – 
November 2019 

 

Table 1: Education Infrastructure Delivery Schedule 

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Primary School 
Place Provision 

Expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) in 
the Hoyland 
area. New 
school if 
expansion of 
existing 
primary 
school(s) is not 
achievable 
(location TBA) 

Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 2023 
assuming a 
start on site in 
2020 in 
accordance with 
the housing 
trajectory  

Given the 
timescales for the 
delivery of 
housing Barnsley 
Council will 
continue to plan, 
monitor and 
manage school 
places and make 
sure that 
contributions are 
made if there is 
likely to be 
inadequate 
capacity within 
the planning area 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions. 
Anticipated 
shortfall in 
September 
2023 

S106 
contribution 
should 
reflect the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools 
SPD  
 
It is noted 
that the 
S106 
Agreement 
for planning 
consent 
2016/1531 
requires a 
S106 
contribution 
of £211,530 
towards 
education 

Secondary School 
Place Provision 

Existing 
secondary 
schools within 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 

Capacity 
available across 
the South 
School Place 
Planning Area 
into the 
foreseeable 
future however 
a requirement 

Barnsley Council 
Education 
Department 

S106 
contributions in 
line with the 
Financial 
contributions 
for schools SPD 

Each 
planning 
application 
will be 
required to 
make S106 
contributions 

MASTERPLAN FRAMEWORK: RISK AUDIT TO INCREASE 
INFRASTRUCTURE DELIVERY SCHEDULES (NOVEMBER 2019)

 
 

2 
HG2122 

November 2019 

to work with 
Kirk Balk 
Academy to 
manage pupil 
numbers 
through the 
admissions 
procedure given 
its close 
proximity to a 
number of 
masterplan 
framework 
areas. Also a 
requirement to 
promote 
sustainable 
travel 

Table 2: Indicative Education S106 Contribution 

Type of Provision 
Financial 

contributions for 
schools SPD 
requirement 

Number of places 
generated per 100 

dwellings 

Number of new 
homes (based on 

Local Plan 
allocations) 

Number of 
places 

generated 

Anticipated 
Financial 

Contribution 
Primary School Place 
Provision  £16,000 per place 21 665 140 £2,234,400 

Secondary School 
Place Provision £16,000 per place 15 665 100 £1,600,000 

Contribution from 100 dwellings on 2016/1531 £211,530 
Total £4,045,930 

P
age 449



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 9190

 
 

4 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Infrastructure 
Framework Plan 

development 
zones), cycle 
path/ 
PROW/footpath 
routes, buffers 
between 
residential and 
employment 
plateaus and the 
Dearne Valley 
Parkway 

coincide with 
phasing of 
development 
parcels 

Council's Biodiversity 
Officer and 
management 
organisation/trust at 
an early stage so that 
they can input into 
the design of green 
infrastructure 

Heritage buffer on 
HS66 

Identified on the 
Local Plan site 
allocation map 
and Green 
Infrastructure 
Framework Plan  

Historic England 
has expressed a 
preference for 
this area to 
remain a ‘natural’ 
area of open 
space to 
compliment the 
setting of 
Hoyland Lowe 
Stand 

3.56 Upon delivery of 
residential 
allocation HS66  

Master developer 
/ housebuilders 

Requirement to 
engage with Historic 
England to agree the 
specification for 
design and 
maintenance of this 
open space 

Existing biodiversity 
features  

Identified on the 
Green 
Infrastructure 
Framework Plan. 
Scope of works 
to be agreed with 
Barnsley 
Council's 
Biodiversity 

Existing pond, 
watercourse, 
plantation 
woodland, 
stretches of older 
hedgerows, 
species-rich 
hedgerows, 
species-rich 

5.8 Protection 
throughout 
construction 
phases. 
Timescales for 
enhancement/ 
compensation 
measures to be 
agreed at 

Master developer 
/ housebuilders 

Requirement to 
engage with Barnsley 
Council's Biodiversity 
Officer and 
management 
organisation/trust at 
an early stage so that 
they can input into 
the design of green 

 
 

3 
HG2122 

November 2019 

 

Table 3: Strategic Green Infrastructure 

Infrastructure 
Type 

Location and 
proposed 
strategy 

Key elements Area (ha) Indicative 
phasing 

Sources of 
funding Comments 

On-site informal play space and informal landscaped areas 
Green corridors – 
including a 
percentage of dry 
detention basins 
(TBA) and informal 
areas of green 
space that could be 
utilised for 
informal/ 
imaginative play 

Throughout the 
Masterplan 
Framework area 

Areas of high wall 
(higher risk 
development 
zones), cycle 
path/ 
PROW/footpath 
routes, buffers 
between 
residential and 
employment 
plateaus and the 
Dearne Valley 
Parkway 

10.79 Delivery 
coordinated to 
coincide with 
phasing of 
development 
parcels 

Master developer 
/ housebuilders 

Assumes that dry 
detention basins are 
designed and 
managed to allow 
access and use as 
informal open space. 
Note that lighting, 
surface materials, 
signage and street 
furniture will need to 
be coordinated across 
the Masterplan 
Framework area 

Substantial 
landscape strips 
along internal 
highway 
(inclusion/exclusion 
of these features 
TBA with Barnsley 
Council Highways) 

Identified along 
principle routes 
through the 
Masterplan 
Framework area 

Opportunity for 
inclusion of 
swales 

1.27 Delivery 
coordinated to 
coincide with 
highway 
infrastructure 
delivery  

Master developer 
/ housebuilders 

Appropriate 
management required 
as Barnsley Council 
will not adopt  

Proposed woodland 
planting 

Identified on the 
Green 

Areas of high wall 
(higher risk 

4.4 Delivery 
coordinated to 

Master developer 
/ housebuilders 

Requirement to 
engage with Barnsley 

P
age 450



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 9392

 
 

6 
HG2122 

November 2019 

deliver a 
Neighbourhood 
Equipped Area 
of Play (NEAP - 
including Multi 
Use Games Area 
(MUGA)), this 
could be 
delivered on-
site or via 
enhancement of 
the existing 
LEAP facility at 
King George V 
playing fields 
off Tinker Lane 

Infrastructure 
Type 

Location and 
proposed 
strategy 

Key elements Area (ha) Indicative 
phasing 

Sources of 
funding Comments 

On-site formal recreation  
Cricket facility  Located on HS64 One full sized 

adult cricket pitch 
and one 
adult/junior 
/training cricket 
pitch, car parking 
and cycle parking, 
practice nets, 

2.66 A seamless 
relocation is 
needed in 
relocating the 
cricket facilities 
from 
Rockingham 
Sports Ground. 

Master developer 
/ housebuilders / 
S106 
contributions / 
potential for 
external funding 

Ongoing discussions 
required with Barnsley 
Council, ECB, YCB, 
Sport England with 
input from 
Rockingham Colliery 
Cricket Club. The 
Masterplan Framework 

 
 

5 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Officer in order 
to make sure 10 
per cent net 
biodiversity gain 
(as per The 
Environment Bill) 

neutral grassland planning 
application stage 

and blue 
infrastructure 

Residential 
development 
parcels 

Allowance for 
new formal 
landscaping 
within residential 
parcels 

Soft landscaping 
to create pleasant 
streetscenes 

0.83 Delivery 
coordinated to 
coincide with 
phasing of 
development 
parcels 

Master developer 
/ housebuilders 

Requirement to 
engage with 
management 
organisation/trust at 
an early stage so that 
they can input into 
the design of green 
infrastructure 

Total on-site informal play space and informal 
landscaped areas 

26.6  

Infrastructure 
Type 

Location and 
proposed 
strategy 

Key elements Area (ha) Indicative 
phasing 

Sources of 
funding Comments 

Equipped children’s play areas 
On-site LEAP or 
NEAP  

The 
development 
will include a 
central locally 
equipped area 
of play (LEAP). 
The Masterplan 
Framework 
must also 

Specification of 
new equipped 
children’s play 
areas to be 
agreed with 
Barnsley Council’s 
Parks Manager 

0.04 (area on-
site LEAP shown 
on Green 
Infrastructure 
Framework 
Plan) 

Phase 2 Master developer 
/ housebuilders / 
S106 
contributions / 
potential for 
external funding 

 

P
age 451



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 9594

 
 

8 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Table 4: Indicative green space S106 contribution* 

Local Plan Allocation Local Plan Yield Type of green space 
Anticipated financial 

contribution based on Open 
Space Provision on New 

Housing Developments SPD 

HS56 80 Children’s play £49,974.56 
Formal recreation £81,798.88 

HS64 615 Children’s play £384,179.43 
Formal recreation £628,828.89 

HS66 70 Children’s play £43,727.74 
Formal recreation £71,574.02 

Total 715  £1,260,083.52 
 

* Calculation assumes housing split of 40 per cent 3 beds, 40 per cent 4 beds and 20 per cent 2 beds with delivery of policy compliant informal 
green space on site so no financial contribution towards this element 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

7 
HG2122 

November 2019 

pavilion and 
maintenance 
shed. 
Specification of 
facilities TBA with 
Barnsley Council, 
ECB, YCB, Sport 
England with 
input from 
Rockingham 
Colliery Cricket 
Club 

On this basis the 
earthworks, 
drainage, 
plateaus need to 
be created along 
with installation 
of the square 
(including 
wickets) during 
the first phase of 
housing 
development to 
allow appropriate 
bedding in period  

seeks to deliver a 
cricket facility to 
enable the relocation 
of existing sports 
provision from 
Rockingham Sports 
Ground. As such, this 
provision cannot be 
considered equivalent 
to ‘new’ provision as 
there would be a 
potential loss of 
existing sports 
provision elsewhere. 
This will be clarified 
during the 
development of the 
Hoyland West 
Masterplan 
Framework. The 
Council will work with 
the 
developers/landowners 
to agree the split 
between ‘new’ and 
replacement formal 
recreation facilities. 

Total on-site informal and formal green space 29.33  
 

P
age 452



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 9796

 
 

10 
HG2122 

November 2019 

enable new 
cable circuits to 
be connected 
and laid to the 
Masterplan 
Framework 
area 

Primary 
Substation as 
part of 
delivering their 
first phase on 
ES17 

Diversions 
11kV overhead 
powerline on 
HS64 

Local Plan 
allocation HS64 

Phase 1 Assume the 
overhead line 
will be 
relocated 
underground 

Northern Powergrid Master 
developer 

Prior to the 
commencement 
of development 
on HS64 

 

Infrastructure 
Type Location Indicative 

phasing 
Specific 

requirement 
Lead delivery 
organisation 

Sources of 
funding 

Trigger 
points Comments 

Water supply 
Connections 
Existing 24" CI 
Main 

Rockley Lane 
Grid Ref 
433926,401729 

Phase 1 These works 
will generally 
include a 
connection 
within the main 
identified, and 
route a new 
350mm main 
3km from this 
point of 
connection to 
the Masterplan 
Framework 
area via the 

Yorkshire Water Master 
developer 

Prior to  
occupation of 
first units 

 

 
 

9 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Table 5: Services Infrastructure Delivery Schedule 

Infrastructure 
Type Location  Indicative 

phasing 
Specific 

requirement 
Lead delivery 
organisation 

Sources of 
funding 

Trigger 
points Comments 

Gas 
Connections 
180 PE MP MAIN Upper Hoyland 

Road Junction 
Phase 1 600 meters. 

Load capacity 
32,761kW 

Cadent Master 
developer 

Prior to  
occupation of 
first units 

 

6" CI LP MAIN Rockingham 
Roundabout 

Phase 1 14 meters. 
Loading 
capacity 
1,1471kW 

Cadent Master 
developer 

Prior to  
occupation of 
first units 

 

Diversions 
TBA        
Infrastructure 

Type Location Indicative 
phasing 

Specific 
requirement 

Lead delivery 
organisation 

Sources of 
funding 

Trigger 
points Comments 

Electricity 
Connections 
Existing local 11 
kV high voltage 
network 

Identify 
connection 
location 

Phase 1 Assumed 11kV 
HV P.O.C. allow 
provisional sum 
for non-
contestable 
connection only 

Northern Powergrid Master 
developer 

Prior to  
occupation of 
first units 

 

Upgrading of 
existing Primary 
Substations 

Worsborough 
Park and 
Elsecar Primary 
Sub Stations 

Phase 1 The 11kV  
boards on 
these two sub 
stations would 
have to be 
changed to 

Northern Powergrid Master 
developer 

Coincide with 
the delivery of 
lower plateau 
of ES17 as first 
phase of 
development 

Harworth 
expected to 
deliver 
upgrade works 
to 
Worsborough 

P
age 453



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 9998

 
 

12 
HG2122 

November 2019 

new 
development 

within Utility 
Report 

phase 1 to 
prevent 
prejudicing 
delivery in 
phase 2 

(note that this list is 
not exhaustive): 

• Openreach 
• Virgin Media 
• CityFibre 
• Hyperoptic 
• Gigaclear 
 

Developers will be 
asked to consider 
installing multiple full 
fibre infrastructure 
suppliers in order to 
provide choice and 
competition to 
consumers. 

retrospective 
works. 
Broadband 
available prior 
to occupation 
of first units 

Diversions 
Openreach 
network 

TBA       

 
  
 
 
 

 
 

11 
HG2122 

November 2019 

entrance off 
the Dearne 
Valley Parkway 

 
Diversions 
TBA        
Infrastructure 

Type Location Indicative 
phasing 

Specific 
requirement 

Lead delivery 
organisation 

Sources of 
funding 

Trigger 
points Comments 

Foul water 
Residential - use 
existing 375mm 
diameter public 
combined sewer 
but a proportion 
may need to be 
pumped 

HS56, HS64 
and HS66 

Phase 1 A proportion of 
HS64 may 
need to be 
pumped via an 
existing on-site 
pumping 
station 

Yorkshire Water Master 
developer 

Prior to  
occupation of 
first units 

 

Employment - 
Connect to an 
existing public 
foul water sewer 
(150 diameter) 
located to the 
north of the 
Dearne Valley 
Parkway 

ES14 and ES17 Phase 1 Design and 
construction 
TBA with 
Harworth 
Group 

Yorkshire Water 
 
 

 

Master 
developer 

Prior to  
occupation of 
first units 

 

Broadband  
Connections 
Provision of 
gigabit-capable 
full fibre 
broadband to all 

Multiple 
connection 
points 
identified 

Phases 1 and 
2  

Note that 
infrastructure 
should be 
installed during 

The following 
suppliers can  provide 
infrastructure to new 
development sites 

Master 
developer 

Coincide with 
infrastructure 
delivery to 
prevent 

 

P
age 454



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 101100

 
 

14 
HG2122 

November 2019 

storage solutions open space 
and service 
yards 

dependent on 
whether 
additional 
capacity is 
required 
following 
detailed design 
and need to 
reduce the 
size/land take of 
detention basins 

developer developer occupation 
of first phase 
of 
development 
(residential 
and 
employment) 

management 
organisation/trust 
early in the 
process so that 
they can input 
into the design 

Infrastructure Type Where Indicative 
Phasing 

Specific 
Requirement 

Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Phase 2 (5+ years) 
Creation of detention 
basins, swales and 
inlet/outlets/headwalls 

Phase 2 
detention 
basin located 
on northern 
part of HS56. 
Location of 
swales TBA 
however 
opportunities 
within 
landscape 
corridors and 
green space 

Phase 2 Assumes 
terminal pond 
excavation and 
construction as 
part of second 
phase of 
development 
(residential) 

Master 
developer 

Master 
developer 

Prior to 
occupation 
of second 
phase of 
development  

Engage with 
management 
organisation/trust 
early in the 
process so that 
they can input 
into the design 

Surface water pipes Linking 
development 
parcels and 
attenuation 

Phase 2 Assumes 
surface water 
pipes 900mm 
diameter 

Master 
developer 

Master 
developer 

Prior to 
occupation 
of second 
phase of 

Engage with 
management 
organisation/trust 
early in the 

 
 

13 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Table 6: Strategic Drainage Infrastructure 

Infrastructure Type Where Indicative 
Phasing 

Specific 
Requirement 

Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Phase 1 (0-5 years) 
Creation of detention 
basins, swales and 
inlet/outlets/headwalls 

Phase 
1detention 
basins located 
to the 
western part 
of ES17 and 
western part 
of HS64 
Location of 
swales TBA 
however 
opportunities 
within 
landscape 
corridors and 
green space 

Phase 1 Assumes 
terminal pond 
excavation and 
construction as 
part of first 
phase of 
development 
(residential and 
employment) 

Master 
developer 

Master 
developer 

Prior to 
occupation 
of first phase 
of 
development 
(residential 
and 
employment) 

Engage with 
management 
organisation/trust 
early in the 
process so that 
they can input 
into the design 

Surface water pipes Linking 
development 
parcels and 
attenuation 
storage 

Phase 1 Assumes 
surface water 
pipes 900mm 
diameter 
(length TBA) 

Master 
developer 

Master 
developer 

Prior to 
occupation 
of first phase 
of 
development 
(residential 
and 
employment) 

Engage with 
management 
organisation/trust 
early in the 
process so that 
they can input 
into the design. 
Note preference 
for swales 

Underground tank Under roads, Phase 1 Requirement is Master Master Prior to Engage with 

P
age 455



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 103102

 
 

16 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Table 7: Transportation Infrastructure 

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Off-site highway junction improvements 
Concluded that no 
significant/major off-
site junction 
improvements are 
required (Fore 
Consulting 
Transportation 
Report V3.0) 

       

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Strategic highway abnormals 
Delivery of a link 
road (Dearne Valley 
Parkway to Hoyland 
Road/Hawshaw Lane 
– preferred option 
from Shortwood 
Roundabout) 
including bus 
infrastructure, 
gradient/earthworks, 
place making 
features (surfacing, 
crossing points, 
gateway, lighting, 
landscaping) 

Through the 
Masterplan 
Framework 
area linking the 
Dearne Valley 
Parkway to 
Hoyland 
Road/Hawshaw 
Lane 
(preferred 
option from 
Shortwood 
Roundabout) 

Prior to 
delivery of 250 
dwellings. 
Upgraded 
access from 
Hoyland 
Road/Hawshaw 
Lane required 
to allow phase 
1 housing 
delivery 
(including 
temporary bus 
diversion). 
Upgraded 

7.3 m 
carriageway 
wide section off 
Shortwood 
Roundabout and 
6.75m 
carriageway 
wide to 
accommodate 
bus route 
through the 
residential area. 
Other abnormals 
could include 
street trees, 

Master 
developer 

Master 
developer 

Prior to 
delivery of 
250th 
dwelling 

 

 
 

15 
HG2122 

November 2019 

storage (length TBA) development  process so that 
they can input 
into the design. 
Note preference 
for swales 

Underground tank 
storage solutions 

Under roads, 
open space 
and service 
yards 

Phase 2 Requirement is 
dependent on 
whether 
additional 
capacity is 
required 
following 
detailed design 
and need to 
reduce the 
size/land take of 
detention basins 

Master 
developer 

Master 
developer 

Prior to 
occupation 
of second 
phase of 
development 
(residential 
and 
employment) 

Engage with 
management 
organisation/trust 
early in the 
process so that 
they can input 
into the design 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 456



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 105104

 
 

18 
HG2122 

November 2019 

diversion TBA with 
Barnsley Bus 
Partnership) 

whether re-
routing will 
require subsiding 
and if so options 
for funding 

prior to 50th 
dwelling 

penetration. 
Engagement 
with Barnsley 
Bus Partnership 
required 

Extension of bus 
services (66, 72 and 
72A or an alternative 
diversion TBA with 
Barnsley Bus 
Partnership) 

Along the new 
link road 

Phase 1 
(delivery of 
250th dwelling) 

Further 
consideration 
required as to 
whether re-
routing will 
require subsiding 
and if so options 
for funding 

SYPTE / 
Stagecoach 

Master 
developer 

Prior to 250th 
dwelling and 
link road 
adoption 

Detailed design 
of link road 
should allow for 
bus penetration 
(including 
minimisation of 
on-street 
parking along 
routes). 
Engagement 
with Barnsley 
Bus Partnership 
required 

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Travel Plan initiatives 
Appointment of 
Travel Plan Manager 

Covers all sites 
within the 
Masterplan 
Framework 
area 

Phases 1 and 2 See details of 
role at table 6.1 
of the Interim 
Travel Plan 
prepared by 
Optima dated 
October 2019 

Master 
developer 
(regulated by 
Barnsley 
Council) 

Master 
developer 

TBA 
however 
prior to first 
occupation 
on any part 
of the 
Masterplan 
Framework 
area 

 

Appointment of Individual sites Phases 1 and 2 See details of Master Master TBA  

 
 

17 
HG2122 

November 2019 

access from 
Shortwood 
Roundabout 
required to 
allow lower 
plateau of 
ES17 to be 
delivered 

lighting, 
gateway, 
surfacing, 
crossing points, 
swales, and 
upgraded access 
on to Hoyland 
Road/Hawshaw 
Lane compared 
to approved 
outline consent 
for 100 dwellings 

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Sustainable Travel 
Bus service improvements 
New bus stops 
including shelters, 
seating, real time 
information boards 

Phase 1 of 
residential 
development 
(HS64) and 
along the link 
road upon 
adoption 

One set of bus 
stops in phase 
1 and two sets 
of bus stops 
along the link 
road  

Details TBA with 
Barnsley Bus 
Partnership 

SYPTE / 
Stagecoach 

Master 
developer 

Delivery of 
phase 1 bus 
stops prior 
to 50th 
dwelling and 
delivery of 
link road bus 
stops prior 
to 250th 
dwelling and 
link road 
adoption 

Detailed design 
of ES17 should 
allow sufficient 
land to deliver 
the bus 
infrastructure. 
Engagement 
with Barnsley 
Bus Partnership 
required 

Extension of bus 
services (66, 72 and 
72A or an alternative 

Phase 1 of 
residential 
development 

Phase 1 Further 
consideration 
required as to 

SYPTE / 
Stagecoach 

Master 
developer 

Delivery of 
phase 1 bus 
diversion 

Detailed design 
of HS64 should 
allow for bus 

P
age 457



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 107106

 
 

20 
HG2122 

November 2019 

with Barnsley 
Council. Refer 
to Movement 
Framework 
Plan 

these to be 
upgrade to allow 
access for 
cyclists and 
horse riders as 
well as 
pedestrians. 
Specification for 
individual routes 
TBA with 
Barnsley Council. 
Note 
requirements for 
resting places, 
surface 
materials, 
lighting, barriers 
to prevent 
unauthorised 
access 

pedestrian 
access from the 
lower plateau 
of ES17 to 
existing bus 
stops 

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Proposed strategic footpaths, cycle ways and bridleway routes 
New footpaths/cycle 
ways 

Across the 
entire 
Masterplan 
Framework 
area 

Phases 1 and 2 The routes 
identified on the 
plan amount to 
approximately 
1780m and the 
proposal is for 
these to allow 
access for 

Master 
developer 

Master 
developer 

Linked to the 
delivery of 
development 
parcels 

 

 
 

19 
HG2122 

November 2019 

Travel Plan 
Coordinators 

within the 
Masterplan 
Framework 
area 

role at section 
6.3 of the 
Interim Travel 
Plan prepared by 
Optima dated 
October 2019 

developer / 
housebuilders 
(regulated by 
Barnsley 
Council) 

developer however 
prior to first 
occupation 
on any part 
of the 
Masterplan 
Framework 
area 

Travel Plan Steering 
Group 

Covers all sites 
within the 
Masterplan 
Framework 
area 

Phases 1 and 2 See details of 
role/function at 
section 6.4 of 
the Interim 
Travel Plan 
prepared by 
Optima dated 
October 2019 

Master 
developer / 
housebuilders 

Master 
developer 

TBA – 
quarterly 
meetings 
required 

 

Residential and 
Workplace Travel 
Plan initiatives – 
range TBA however 
may include bus 
taster tickets 

Covers all sites 
within the 
Masterplan 
Framework 
area 

Phases 1 and 2 Available for 
employees and 
residents 

Master 
developer / 
housebuilders 

Master 
developer / 
housebuilders 

TBA as part 
of individual 
Travel Plans 

 

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Existing strategic footpaths, cycle ways and bridleway routes 
Existing public rights 
of way (retained and 
diverted) 

Across the 
entire 
Masterplan 
Framework 
area. 
Diversions TBA 

Phases 1 and 2 The routes 
identified on the 
plan amount to 
approximately 
2577m and the 
proposal is for 

Master 
developer 

Master 
developer 

Linked to the 
delivery of 
development 
parcels 

Note that 
temporary 
improvements 
will be required 
to allow 
appropriate  

P
age 458



Masterplan Framework Appendices Hoyland North Barnsley 109108

 
 

21 
HG2122 

November 2019 

cyclists and 
horse riders as 
well as 
pedestrians. 
Specification for 
individual routes 
TBA with 
Barnsley Council. 
Note 
requirements for 
resting places, 
surface 
materials, 
lighting, barriers 
to prevent 
unauthorised 
access 

Infrastructure 
Type Where Indicative 

Phasing 
Specific 

Requirement 
Lead Delivery 
Organisation 

Sources of 
Funding 

Trigger 
Points Comments 

Proposed crossing points (on and off-site) 
Off-site crossing 
point required on 
Hoyland 
Road/Hawshaw Lane 
to allow permeability 
and safe access 
to/from West 
Meadows Primary 
Schools, Kirk Balk 
Academy and wider 
Hoyland 

Hawshaw 
Lane/ Hoyland 
Road 

Phase 1 Zebra crossing, 
pedestrian 
refuse crossing 
or signal 
controlled 
crossing 
required 

BMBC / Master 
developer 

Master 
developer 

TBA 
following 
further 
discussions 
with 
Barnsley 
Council 
Highways 
Department 

 

This page has been left intentionally blank

P
age 459



 
WYG, Quay West at MediaCityUK, Trafford Wharf Road, 

Trafford Park, Manchester, M17 1HH
T: +44 (0)161 872 3223  W: www.wyg.com

P
age 460



 

 
 

Rowe House, 10 East Parade, Harrogate HG1 5LT 
Tel: +44 (0)1423 857 510 
Email: harrogate@wyg.com Website: www.wyg.com 

 
WYG Planning Limited. Registered in England & Wales Number: 5241035 

Registered Office: Arndale Court, Otley Road, Headingley, Leeds, LS6 2UJ 
 

 

Statement of Community Involvement (Final) 

Client: Barnsley Council   

 Hoyland Developments Limited  

 Harworth Group   

Proposal:  Preparation of Hoyland North Masterplan Framework 

Date:  November 2019 

Ref: HG2122 

 

 

Page 461



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: October 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 1 creative minds safe hands 

 

Document control 

Document: Statement of Community Involvement  

Project: Hoyland North Masterplan Framework 

Client: Barnsley Council /Hoyland Developments/Harworth Group 

Job Number: HG2122 

File Origin:  

  
Revision: Final 

Date:  November 2019 

Prepared by: 

JEH 

Checked by:  

 

Approved By:  

 

  
  
  

Page 462



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: October 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 2 creative minds safe hands 

 

Contents 

 

1.0 Introduction ................................................................................................................................... 3 

2.0 Policy framework ........................................................................................................................... 5 

3.0 Consultation methodology ............................................................................................................ 6 

4.0 Overview of feedback .................................................................................................................... 9 

5.0 Consultation outcomes and key changes .................................................................................... 20 

6.0 Conclusions .................................................................................................................................. 26 

 

Page 463



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 3 creative minds safe hands 
 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 This Statement of Community Involvement has been prepared by WYG Planning Limited 

(WYG) of behalf of our clients Barnsley Council, Hoyland Developments Limited and the 

Harworth Group to guide and inform the emerging Masterplan Framework for Hoyland 

North.  

1.2 The vision of the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework is to create a sustainable and 

inclusive community on the edge of Hoyland Common comprising around 765 new homes 

and 37ha of employment land with associated infrastructure. 

1.3 Hoyland North comprises a collection of housing and employment sites allocated in the 

council’s Local Plan which was adopted on 3 January 2019. When the Local Plan was being 

examined, it was agreed that for some larger sites and groups of interrelated sites, it was 

necessary to prepare Masterplan Frameworks to make sure that sites could be developed in 

a comprehensive manner taking into account all of the infrastructure requirements.  

1.4 A requirement of the emerging Masterplan Framework is for residents and stakeholders to 

be provided with an opportunity to feed back on the draft plans and main themes. The 

purpose of this Statement of Community Involvement therefore is to provide details of the 

consultation methods that have been used as well as review the feedback so that this can 

be fed into finalising the Masterplan Framework together with a significant amount of 

technical work. The Masterplan Framework will be a material consideration in the 

determination of planning applications. 

1.5 Barnsley Council is working alongside WYG, developers and their land agents who have the 

largest land interest. These include Harworth Group (ES17) and Hoyland Developments 

Limited (HS56, HS64 and HS66). A number of developers also have smaller land interests on 

sites which make up ES14.  

1.6 Engagement through the Local Plan process highlighted the importance of drawing up a 

Masterplan Framework for the area and this was endorsed by the Local Plan Inspector, who 

considered the completion of a Masterplan Framework to be a legitimate pre-request to any 

significant development being brought forward, to make sure a comprehensive and 

coordinated approach to the delivery of sustainable growth.  

1.7 As part of the Masterplan Framework process, meaningful engagement with a wide section 

of the community is considered essential and helps to identify the vision and priorities of 

both present and future communities.  

Page 464



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 4 creative minds safe hands 
 

1.8 The next section sets out the policy context relating to community consultation and then 

section three identifies the approach and methodology used to notify the different groups 

within the community and local stakeholders in order to maximise their involvement and 

seek to capture their views in a structured manner. Section four assesses the feedback 

received and explains how these comments have helped shape, influence and change the 

Masterplan Framework. 

  

Page 465



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 5 creative minds safe hands 
 

2.0 Policy framework  

2.1 A central theme of current planning legislation and guidance is placing increased importance 

on community involvement as the planning system operates in the public interest to make 

sure that the development results in a better place for people to live. The approach to 

community involvement has had due regard to the Localism Act 2011, the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), National Planning Policy Framework (2019) along 

with the council’s Statement of Community Involvement adopted in 2015. 

2.2 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is central to encouraging engagement with 

the Local Community. Paragraph 39 confirms that early engagement has significant potential 

to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the planning application system for all parties. 

Good quality pre-application discussions enable better coordination between public and 

private resources and improved outcomes for the community.  

2.3 The Localism Act has placed increased emphasis on consulting with local communities and in 

this regard the Government produced a plain English guide to the Localism Act and this 

states that:  

“To further strengthen the role of local communities in planning, the Act introduces a 

new requirement for developers to consult local communities before submitting planning 

applications for certain development. This gives local people the chance to comment 

where there is still genuine scope to make changes to proposals”.  

2.4 At a local level, reference is made to the Statement of Community Involvement which was 

adopted by Barnsley Council in 2015. 

2.5 Section 11.1 deals with Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD’s) and confirms that these 

can take the form of Masterplan Frameworks, which are a document that adds detail to 

policies and proposals in the Local Plan. Whilst this Masterplan Framework will not ultimately 

become an SPD, the advice in terms of the involvement of stakeholders and the community 

is relevant and, in this respect, it confirms that the consultation period should be for at least 

four weeks. The Masterplan Framework will be a material consideration in the determination 

of future planning applications.  

 

  

 

 

Page 466



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 6 creative minds safe hands 
 

3.0 Consultation methodology  

3.1 Prior to engaging with the community, key elements of the evidence base were tested and a 

number of draft conceptual framework layouts evolved to a reasonable level. On this basis, 

a stage was reached where an informed rationale and approach could be explained whilst 

still being sufficiently early in the process to allow the community to shape and influence the 

direction of the proposals. Initially there were a series of council members briefing sessions 

to inform local councillors of the approach taken, obtain early feedback from them on local 

matters and understand how we should consult with the community.  

  

Figure 1: Photos from Members Briefing Session 

3.2 Following sign-off  of this assessment work we  proceeded to engage with the community  

alongside Barnsley council on the following basis:  

 Identify a ‘consultation zone’ that encompassed the main interested parties 

(approximately 200m from the Masterplan Framework boundary including properties in 

Birdwell – see Appendix 1).  

 Within the defined consultation zone, a letter was prepared and sent out to all residents 

and businesses explaining the proposals and inviting them to attend two public 

exhibition events that had been organised during the six-week consultation period (see 

Appendix 2).  

 Following the release of the notifications, the public consultation exercise ran for a 

period of six weeks starting on 5 August 2019 and finishing on 17 September 2019.  

 Barnsley council provided notification of the consultation event to relevant statutory and 

non-statutory stakeholders. 

 There was a formal press notice and articles in the local newspaper, namely the 

Barnsley Chronicle, two weeks before the start of the consultation on 19 July 2019 and 

Page 467



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 7 creative minds safe hands 
 

then during the consultation period on 23 August 2019 and also within the Living 

Supplement on 23 August 2019 (see Appendix 3). 

 A managed programme of social media posts and messages was undertaken through 

the consultation period (see Appendix 4). 

 There were 22 site notifications displayed on streets around the Masterplan Framework 

area two weeks before the first public exhibition (see Appendices 5 and 6 identifying the 

location map of these and the site notice that was displayed). A copy of the site notice 

was also included in the information pack which was available to view at Hoyland 

Library. 

 Nine display boards (see Appendix 7) clearly set out the background and Masterplan 

Framework process identifying the local amenities and infrastructure provision, the 

technical constraints of the site, the key design considerations and opportunities, as well 

as three potential layout options which comprised as follows:  

o Option A – main access from Rockingham Roundabout (with access to the 

northern part of ES17 and HS56 from Shortwood Roundabout). 

o Option B – main access from Shortwood Roundabout. 

o Option C – main access off a new roundabout on the Dearne Valley Parkway 

(A6195) (with access to the northern part of ES17 and HS56 from Shortwood 

Roundabout). 

 These boards featured at the two public exhibitions, were available to view online on 

the WYG website – Hoyland North Consultation pages and were on display throughout 

the consultation period at Hoyland Library (see Appendix 8). An A3 information pack 

was also available to view at Library @ the Lightbox in Barnsley town centre. 

The display boards set out the anticipated adoption timescales for the Masterplan 

Framework. 

 Two public exhibition events were held over the six week period. The venue of both of 

these events was at Kirk Balk Academy School, West Street, Hoyland, S74 9AH.  They 

were held on Wednesday 14 August 2019 and Thursday 29 August 2019 between 1500 

hours and 1900 hours (see Appendix 9).  

 There was another public exhibition held at Hoyland Library on 9 September as part of a 

wider the Councillor Ward Alliance meeting. This exhibition ran between 1500 and 1800 

Page 468



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 8 creative minds safe hands 
 

hours with three designated timeslots for Ward Alliance members, local businesses and 

the general public. This event was promoted on social media and via email to local 

businesses. 

 The community had access to a questionnaire that could be completed either online or 

hard copies were available in the local library and at the exhibition events. There were a 

total of 19 questions covering a range of issues and gave participants the opportunity to 

answer questions in a structured manner to help with the evaluation process. There was 

also an opportunity for participants to express or comment in their own words (see 

Appendix 10). 

 Working with Barnsley council, we recognise the importance of making sure that all 

sections of the community are given the opportunity to take part in the consultation 

process. Engagement with the council’s Equality and Inclusion Officer and 

Communications team provided clarity on how the questionnaire could be tailored to 

maximise participation. A series of optional equality monitoring questions were included 

at the end of the questionnaire to understand the demographics of participants.  

 Through social media channels, there were regular messages posted throughout the 

consultation period advising the community of the forthcoming public exhibitions and 

where to view the consultation boards and fill in the questionnaire. 

 Three short videos were prepared by Barnsley council which explained the background 

and process behind the Masterplan Framework and these were uploaded to the 

Council’s Facebook page during the consultation period and also played on a continual 

loop during the two public exhibitions at Kirk Balk Academy (see Appendix 11). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 469



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 9 creative minds safe hands 
 

4.0 Overview of feedback  

4.1 Of the [975] households and businesses that fell within the consultation buffer and were 

invited via the letter drop to attend the public exhibition, as well as the wider advertising 

campaign through the local press and social media, 93 people came to the events. We 

consider that this level of interest represents a reasonable response in order to engage and 

understand the views of the local community.  

4.2 We have also analysed the number of visits to the online consultation page of the WYG 

website (see Appendix 12) and this has revealed 1,325 page views, of which 1,078 were 

‘unique page views’ (i.e. how many times the page was viewed by a new visitor). The 

consultation documents were downloaded 576 times (504 unique views). 

4.3 The Masterplan Framework webpage on Barnsley council’s website (see Appendix 13) was 

visited 617 times during the consultation period. The majority of visitors accessed the page 

from the council’s main website (433), from the home page (91), from Facebook (111) and 

Twitter (31). The publication of information was subject to a robust social media schedule 

(Appendix 14). Following the closure of the public consultation, Barnsley council’s 

Communication Team prepared an evaluation in order to inform future consultations on 

Masterplan Frameworks (Appendix 15). 

4.4 Feedback has been captured through the completion of a questionnaire with 19 structured 

questions and the number of these completed during the consultation period is as follows: 

Table 1: Summary of questionnaire submissions 

Forum  Number of Questionnaires  

Received by post  6 

Submitted at the exhibition  8 

Completed online 60 

Completed at Hoyland Library 5 

Total  79 

4.5 In addition to completion of the questionnaires, we also received email responses from the 

following stakeholders: 

 Highways England 

 Stagecoach 

 Yorkshire Wildlife Trust 

Page 470



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 10 creative minds safe hands 
 

 Trans Pennine Trail 

 Rockingham Brass Band 

 Rockingham Colliery Cricket Club 

 Walker Morris on behalf of Chip Munk Limited 

 This section of the report carefully analyses the responses we have received through all the 

channels of communication that were available for the local community and stakeholders to 

make their views known (Appendix 16). 

 Questionnaire 

Question 1: Do you agree with the vision of the Masterplan Framework which seeks to 

create a sustainable and inclusive community with high quality design and landscape? 

4.6 Of the 79 responses there is split decision between support and objection (40%/42%) for 

the proposal with a further 18% identified as “do not know” or “maybe”. Based on the 

comments received, we suspect that the underlying reason for the negative responses relate 

to their objection to the principle of the development, not the actual vision. As the principle 

of the development has already been approved and allocated within the recently adopted 

Local Plan this view should not be a valid ground to resist the proposal.  

Question 2: What do you think are the most important features of the existing site? 

4.7 There is strong support for all the features listed as options within this question but a key 

theme that emerged from the responses was the identification of green space, wildlife and 

existing trees and vegetation as being the most important features followed by short and 

long distance views. 

Question 3: Which layout do you prefer – option A, option B, option C or none? 

4.8 Of the 69 responses to this question, the majority at 42% confirmed did not prefer any of 

the three options presented. However, for those wishing to engage positively with this 

question, there is a split majority between option A and option B (both collecting 23%). 

Question 4: If you would like to give reasons why, or include any thoughts on how your 

preferred option could be improved, please do so? 

Page 471



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 11 creative minds safe hands 
 

4.9 40 responses were received to this question and insofar as road options are concerned, the 

comments can be summarised below. Where respondents have commented more broadly 

about the development these have been included in the analysis of question 19 (see below). 

Table 2: Summary of matters raised (Q4) 

Matters Raised No. of respondents 

No option should include any highway access to Hoyland Road 

due to existing traffic conditions 

3 

Support for option B as it avoids Hoyland Common 1 

Support for option B as it avoids the creation of additional 

roundabouts 

2 

People will not drive around to use Shortwood roundabout 

(option B) instead they will just drive through Hoyland Common 

1 

Support for layout option A to keep traffic close to the motorway 

therefore create least impact 

3 

Support for layout option C as it would be the least impact on 

Hoyland Common and would be the least impact on existing 

residents 

2 

All options retain areas of high ecological value but favour 

option B to retain the central green corridor (Yorkshire Wildlife 

Trust) 

1 

Question 5: What do you consider to be the most important points to guide the design of 

the new development? 

4.10 This question attracted a large number of responses and all of the points listed are well-

supported. However, the highest responses were in relation to creating views to important 

buildings and landmarks and protecting the historic environment. The provision of high-

quality outdoor space with clear distinction between public and private areas was also high 

ranking. 

Question 6: House type 

4.11 In terms of the house types identified, there was a strong preference expressed for 

bungalows (28%), semi-detached houses (29%) and detached houses (23%). 

Question 7: House size 

Page 472



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 12 creative minds safe hands 
 

4.12 Of the categories provided there was strong support for two, three and four bedroom 

houses and, combined with question 6, it is clear that the favoured character and style of 

housing should involve family-orientated provision. 

Question 8: Housing tenure 

4.13 The overwhelming response to this question was that there should be a mix of both open-

market and affordable housing within the development (53%). 

Question 9: Hoyland Lowe Stand is a Grade II listed building off Hawshaw Lane. How could 

the Masterplan Framework compliment this heritage asset? 

4.14 Of the seven options provided on the questionnaire, the three main responses were 

ensuring that the long distance views of Hoyland Lowe Stand are uninterrupted, retaining a 

heritage buffer to prevent development up to the Hoyland Lowe Stand and restricting the 

height of new homes nearest Hoyland Lowe Stand. 

Question 10: How can the impact of development be minimised when viewed from the 

wider landscape? 

4.15 All three options were given high importance by the respondents.  The top response was in 

relation to creating strong green landscape buffers to minimise the visual impact of the 

development which contributes to the overall conclusion from the questionnaire that green 

space and landscaping is an important principle to embed within the design to make sure 

integration of the development into the surrounding area. 

Question 11: How can the impact of development be minimised on existing biodiversity 

features? 

4.16 The top response to this question was ensuring the introduction of new areas of wildlife 

both wet and dry areas, following by leaving grass to grow wild and encourage new 

habitats. There was only a limited interest in considering the opportunity of delivering off-

site biodiversity improvement measures. 

Question 12: Informal green space, play areas and a new cricket facility could be delivered 

as part of the new development. What features would encourage you to use these new 

facilities? 

4.17 The key responses send the message that it is important to provide high-quality recreational 

facilities that are clean, safe and well-maintained and they offer a range of facilities to 

attract all age groups. 

Page 473



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 13 creative minds safe hands 
 

Question 13: The Masterplan Framework will identify routes for vehicles, pedestrians and 

cyclists. What design features would make these routes more user friendly? 

4.18 The responses clearly show that a high level of importance is placed on providing safe and 

attractive routes that are well-lit and have the capability of being traffic-free. 

Question 14: The Masterplan Framework will look at the impact of new development on the 

existing highway network. What measures could help to reduce the impact? 

4.19 The clear message in response to this question is making sure traffic is directed away from 

Hoyland Common local centre as well as promoting sustainable transport measures through 

cycling/walking and promoting bus use to and from the Masterplan Framework area. 

Question 15: Due to the mining legacy, soakaway drainage (where water soaks into the 

ground) is not suitable for the site. What do you think are the most important alternative 

drainage solutions? 

4.20 The most popular drainage solutions chosen are; increasing tree planting to maximise 

absorption but also ponds and wetlands are considered to be a popular solution. 

Question 16: What areas do you consider to be important in achieving sustainable 

development and reducing future impacts on climate change? 

4.21 In answer to this question the overarching theme of investing in green open spaces that can 

deliver a wide-range of environmental benefits is considered important, followed by 

provision of landscape areas that can hold water during wet periods; sustainable design; 

and construction as well as energy efficient measures. 

Question 17: How do you think the proposed development could improve your health? 

4.22 A popular response and key theme is the incorporation of trees and green space to improve 

the environment as well as providing a range of open space to encourage sport and exercise 

for a broad range of people. 

Question 18: What design features could help to create a safer neighbourhood? 

4.23 The popular responses to this question focused on providing well-lit walking and cycle 

routes as well as well-overlooked green spaces. 

Question 19: Please write any comments you may have here in relation to the draft 

Masterplan Framework 

Page 474



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 14 creative minds safe hands 
 

4.24 A wide variety of comments have been submitted in response to this question and we 

summarise these together with the more general responses received in relation to 

answering question 4. 

Table 3: Summary of matters raised (Q19) 

Matters Raised No. of respondents 

There should be no development 9 

Why waste money re-building cricket and sports facility 1 

There will be problems with commuter parking 1 

Concern of overwhelming pressure on local facilities such as 

schools, dentists and doctors 

13 

The focus should be on affordable housing not four bedroom 

detached houses 

2 

There should be consideration given to building a leisure centre 

as part of the scheme 

1 

The development will cause additional traffic issues on the local 

roads that will cause congestion 

12 

Increased traffic will cause much higher volumes of noise and 

traffic pollution 

4 

Suggestion of providing traffic calming measures on Hawshaw 

Lane especially where there is no footpath outside properties 

1 

Safety concerns expressed regarding children crossing Hawshaw 

Lane to attend West Meadows Primary School. Suggest a 

crossing point 

1 

How does the masterplan involve and benefit Hoyland town 

centre? 

2 

H64 – the 615 dwellings will completely overcrowd the existing 

area of Hoyland Common and removal of views of existing 

houses to Hoyland Lowe Stand 

1 

The proposals will create a divided community potentially 

creating an ‘us and them’ community 

1 

Removal/loss of views over countryside from neighbouring 

residents 

4 

The development will mean it is no longer a village it becomes a 

small town 

2 

It will take away the small town feel 1 

Page 475



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 15 creative minds safe hands 
 

Concern that creating more recreational areas will take away 

from existing areas. These should be given more money rather 

than create additional facilities 

1 

The proposal should be done at a smaller scale to help preserve 

the local scenery and views 

1 

There will be changes to the rural character of the public rights 

of way within the site 

1 

Concern over loss of greenspace and wildlife 3 

Some small affordable business premises should be promoted 

within the employment areas 

1 

Environmental concerns expressed during the construction 

period 

1 

Masterplan should provide connectivity with surrounding area 

for both people and wildlife 

2 

Make sure housing is well designed 1 

Prevent inadequate parking spaces 2 

Provide a footpath link to the Dearne Valley Parkway 1 

Encourage a larger capacity for EV charging points 1 

Explore energy efficiency measures 1 

All housing should have small gardens 1 

Create more CGI images so that the development can be better 

understood 

1 

Important to ensure that the design encourages a diverse 

community with a sense of place 

1 

Good opportunity for more businesses to be created within the 

town 

1 

Support the idea of making junction 36 of the M1 a mixed-use 

attractive hub to attract new businesses and homes but warn 

against the mistake of creating vast industrial estates that are 

empty after 6pm 

1 

Make the design inclusive to ensure all spaces and buildings are 

accessible to all members of the community 

1 

Happy to have more housing for locals to be able to stay in the 

area 

1 

Housing should be in keeping with those existing surrounding 

the site, particularly regarding HS56 

1 

Page 476



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 16 creative minds safe hands 
 

Positive steps should be taken to protect and diversify a range 

of plants, animals and wildlife whilst delivering a workable 

solution for the developers 

2 

Where are the cows going to graze following the development? 1 

Wentworth Estates should build in Wentworth instead of 

Hoyland 

1 

4.25 In addition to these matters, we summarise below the content of the email and letters that 

we received from stakeholders during the consultation period.  These are as follows: 

Highways England 

4.26 In their letter dated 11 September 2019 they address the key questions set out within the 

questionnaire. Highways England has reviewed the Masterplan Framework with the primary 

interest of the safety and efficient operation of the strategic road network in mind. They 

expressed no preference to the three layout options but confirmed that it should be 

supported by a robust transport evidence base which considers the impact of the options 

and the capacity, operation and safety of the strategic road network, namely M1 J36. The 

important points for guiding the design of the new development are clear and obvious 

routes for motorists, cyclists and pedestrians as well as providing adequate parking. 

4.27 Highways England encouraged the use of sustainable modes of transport within the 

Masterplan Framework area to reduce the number of single occupancy private vehicle trips 

to and from the site. In addition, they consider that the Masterplan Framework area should 

be subject to an area-wide travel plan which should have over-arching aims, objectives and 

targets as well as setting the framework for individual businesses, workers and residents. 

Rockingham Brass Band 

4.28 This organisation expressed confusion because the consultation information shows nothing 

happening to the Rockingham Centre site. However, there are images on the display board 

of a cricket facility within the Masterplan Framework area. 

Concern was also expressed about the following matters: 

 The amount of traffic on Sheffield Road, Tankersley Road and through the traffic lights 

at Hoyland Common and concern that the new development will have a detrimental 

effect on the highway network. 

 There will be detrimental effects on the pollution levels for school children at Hoyland 

Common School. 

Page 477



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 17 creative minds safe hands 
 

 There would be increased danger in crossing Sheffield Road for school children. 

 The development will add to the dangers and congestion at the Allotts Corner 

crossroads having regard to the Tankersley Lane ‘rat run’. 

Stagecoach 

4.29 Having regard to the existing bus service provision in the area, Stagecoach confirms that the 

Masterplan Framework area is most likely to be served by diversion of an existing service 

travelling in a north-south direction. Stagecoach then made specific comments on the three 

options. Their preference is for option A from a public transport perspective as it provides 

direct access to the development from Birdwell roundabout and provides good/fair access to 

two of the three proposed employment areas, with very good penetration of the western 

residential area if egress from Hoyland Road is opposite Stead Lane, and good/reasonable 

penetration of the central and eastern residential areas if egress from Hoyland is opposite 

West Street. Option B is considered longer with increased journey times and also has poorer 

access to the western residential area, particularly if the exit onto Hoyland Road is opposite 

West Street. 

Rockingham Colliery Cricket Club 

4.30 Whilst Rockingham CCC completed the questionnaire, they expanded on their comments 

regarding question 19. They identified that they are a fast growing club with ambitious 

targets and they welcomed the potential of relocating onto the sports facility as shown on 

the consultation material. Their email identifies specific operational details in terms of how 

they wish to function as a club and expressed concern regarding the level of security and 

potential conflict as a result of the new housing development being in close proximity.  The 

key comments they raised are as follows: 

 Whether there is scope for a second smaller (junior) pitch on the area that has been 

identified for relocation of the cricket club. If this is possible then support facilities such 

as changing rooms, welfare and car parking should be designed to accommodate four 

teams, officials and supporters. 

 They welcome the acknowledgement of an outdoor net facility. 

 The club acknowledged the intentions of making the cricket ground open to the public 

but would like some level of security around the playing area and suggest some 

examples of boundary fencing that would satisfy the objectives of the club whilst 

allowing public access at appropriate times. 

Trans Pennine Trail 

4.31 A summary of the Trans Pennine Trail executives response, dated 17 September 2019, is as 

follows: 

Page 478



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 18 creative minds safe hands 
 

 It is felt that the sustainable transport offer of the Masterplan Framework area falls 

short of what could be an exemplar scheme. The facilities map should clearly indicate 

sustainable transport routes and new built road should have walking and cycling routes 

incorporated into their design. 

 The Masterplan Framework should clearly denote the Trans Pennine Trail. At the 

moment the route is only labelled as National Cycle Network 67. 

 Noted that there are other specific references on the consultation display boards relating 

to the provision of cycle parking facilities as well as creation of safe crossing points for 

sustainable transport users. 

 Under the heading of health and wellbeing, the organisation requires reference to 

“access to all” to highlight commitment to providing facilities that do not hinder use by 

any member of the community. 

Walker Morris on behalf of Chip Munk Limited – a landowner at Cross Keys Lane, Hoyland 

4.32 This representation identifies a site edged red owned by Chip Munk Limited. They confirm 

that this site adjoins the Masterplan Framework area and can indicatively accommodate up 

to 50 dwellings with access taken from Regent Court. They argued that this housing could 

constitute a windfall opportunity and whilst the site is currently used for employment 

purposes, its loss to residential purposes would not conflict with Policy E4 of the Local Plan. 

Walker Morris assesses the three Masterplan Framework road layout options and confirms 

that option A is the most preferable as it would be compliant with the allocation site 

requirement policies in the Local Plan set out for Allocation ES14. They also consider that 

option A also presents an opportunity to unlock additional land for housing at their site and 

the adjoining land at Cutt Stone and Timber yard. They consider that a new junction from 

the option A road into their site and adjoining land could connect into Regent Court and 

Tinker Lane and improve connectivity between existing residential areas of the town with 

the employment allocations. 

They recognise that option A could be difficult to achieve and refer to the ‘disadvantages’ 

section set out in the consultation material. Walker Morris proposes an alternative option 

which would be to utilise part of their client’s land and adjoining Cutt Stone and Timber 

yard. In their view the inclusion of this land in the Masterplan Framework would act as 

‘enabling land’ to offer a realistic alternative to the current road layout whilst also providing 

some modest residential extensions to Regent Court and Tinker Lane. 

Public exhibition at Hoyland Library 

4.33 The main points noted during this forum held on 9 September 2019 were as follows: 

Page 479



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 19 creative minds safe hands 
 

 Impact on schools and GPs. 

 Need for older persons accommodation and starter homes. 

 Impact on school crossing points (particularly West Meadows Primary School) due to 

extra car trips generated by the development. 

 Impact on climate change/inclusion of sustainable measures. 

 Questions regarding the relocation of Rockingham Colliery Cricket Club. 

 People misleadingly assumed the development would be wholly for affordable housing 

as the council is leading on the Masterplan Framework. 

 Impact on views from the wider landscape. 

 Interest in the types of jobs that would be created – locals would like skilled and 

meaningful jobs. 

 Timescales for delivery. 

 

  

Page 480



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 20 creative minds safe hands 
 

5.0 Consultation outcomes and key changes  

5.1 Throughout the Masterplan Framework process we have given careful consideration to the 

matters raised by respondents to the community consultation exercise. A comprehensive 

public notification exercise has taken place, which has received reasonably low level of 

response. This indicates that in general terms the development allocations that form the 

Masterplan Framework area are relatively uncontroversial in nature. From the questionnaire 

responses it is clear that there is a good level of support for the proposals. It should be 

appreciated that a number of respondents were unaware that the land had been allocated in 

the Local Plan for residential and employment use and that the principle of development has 

been established in planning policy. Therefore the negative responses in terms of not 

wanting to accept any development have not helped to form the new Hoyland North 

Masterplan Framework area and skewed interested or concerned residents results. 

5.2 Initially the proposals evolved through a technical assessment process taking into account 

the project teams’ experience of designing such developments, this includes mitigation and 

enhancement measures where appropriate. The consultation feedback received and 

summarised in the previous section has been given careful consideration. Many of the 

matters raised during the community consultation process have been dealt with as part of 

the Masterplan Framework process including the accompanying technical reports which deal 

with the various matters such as urban design, ecology, heritage, landscape and vegetation, 

drainage, highways, etc. In addition the Masterplan Framework document provides clear 

details regarding the design principles adopted and a rationale of the proposed 

development. These have been developed in the context of the constraints and 

opportunities affecting the area. 

5.3 A wide range of concerns have been raised during the public consultation process however 

we do not consider any of these to be so unsurmountable that they would affect the 

delivery of the development. 

5.4 Within the responses to the questionnaire there is an underlying theme that the Masterplan 

Framework should encourage developments that have strong links to green space which 

perform multiple uses in terms of providing recreational areas, green corridors to create 

pedestrian and cycle connectivity, improved wildlife and biodiversity measures, sustainability 

benefits, as well as create an attractive landscape and locally distinct setting. We consider 

these design principles are fully embedded into the objectives behind the Masterplan 

Framework but the results of the consultation process demonstrate a consistency of views 

between the project team and the local community. 

Page 481



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 21 creative minds safe hands 
 

5.5 Having examined the comments regarding the three layout options, the level of support is 

split between options A and B. The main reason for promoting option A by both residents 

and Stagecoach relates to keeping traffic close to the motorway and the ability to create an 

effective diversion of an existing bus service. Given the Local Plan policy emphasis to retain 

and enhance the existing biodiversity features, it is considered that option B is a strong 

candidate in order to avoid highway infrastructure which crossing an existing biodiversity 

corridor.  

5.6 The impact on the local highway network through the creation of additional traffic 

movements is clearly an important concern raised by local residents. The technical transport 

evidence, which includes an assessment of the local highway junctions, confirms that the 

scale of development can be accommodated on the local network without having a 

detrimental impact. It is appreciated there is a necessity for the link road between Hoyland 

Road/Hawshaw Lane and the Dearne Valley Parkway to be delivered prior to the occupation 

of 250th dwelling on HS64 to make sure that the junction of Sheffield Road and Hoyland 

Road continues to operate to a reasonable standard. 

5.7 The pressure on local facilities such as schools, dentists and doctors were raised on a 

number of occasions throughout the consultation process. In relation to primary and 

secondary school provision there is an emerging education strategy for the whole of 

Hoyland that takes into account not only Hoyland North but also the additional housing 

provision identified across Hoyland within the Local Plan. It is anticipated that education 

financial contributions will be generated from the proposed residential developments and 

this funding will be carefully managed to make sure that the education strategy can be 

delivered in line with housing growth. 

5.8 In terms of doctors, dentists and health clinics, the starting point of our assessment in terms 

of overall capacity has been the Infrastructure Delivery Plan prepared to support the Local 

Plan. The council engaged with key stakeholders during the Local Plan process to identify 

the existing capacity and level of future community infrastructure required taking into 

account the proposed growth for Hoyland. We have subsequently engaged further with 

Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and prepared a joint briefing note which summarises 

the current position and sets out a strategy to assist GP practices respond to growth.   

5.9 A sustainable transport offer to improve accessibility and connectivity for pedestrians, 

cyclists and buses is another key theme arising from the responses of both the local 

community, and stakeholders such as Highways England and the Trans Pennine Trail 

Executive. Following the consultation process we have commissioned an interim travel plan 

Page 482



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 22 creative minds safe hands 
 

to make sure that over-arching aims, objectives and targets can start to be identified for 

businesses, workers, visitors and residents. The theme of sustainable transport and 

connectivity is a key priority. 

5.10 In terms of the request by Walker Morris to include additional land within the Masterplan 

Framework area and access it either through the option A layout or provide an alternative 

link road alignment through their site, we consider this approach is not a necessity to deliver 

a policy compliant Masterplan Framework. 

5.11 We do not agree with Walker Morris’s view that an access link through ES14 is the only 

layout that would be policy compliant. We appreciate that it is sensible to identify in the 

wording of allocation ES14 a requirement to protect an appropriate access through to 

employment sites ES17 and housing site HS64. Nevertheless, within the policy wording of 

sites HS64, HS66 and HS56 there is a more general reference to the collection of allocations 

that form part of Hoyland North. The approach in these policies encourage the Masterplan 

Framework to positively support and complement the comprehensive wider development of 

the area so that it can be brought forward in a comprehensive manner.  

5.12 The alternative access option (via Chip Munk Limited site) proposed by Walker Morris would 

technically be contrary to the Masterplan Framework as it relates to land that falls outside 

the defined area. In addition, to make the connection with the Masterplan Framework area, 

third party land would have to be crossed which has not been actively promoted as a 

development opportunity. The site in question holds an existing timber yard business 

bringing into question the deliverability of this alternative route. 

5.13 Whilst the suggestion of a further option (via Chip Munk Limited site) is welcomed in order 

to create an additional level of flexibility to address site constraints and cost, we are of the 

view that there is no need to incorporate it at this stage. The preferred layout (option B) 

that has been carefully selected by the project team as a result of a detailed evaluation of 

the technical work and the consultation responses.  In addition, this option satisfies the 

design principles and objectives that support the key themes of the Masterplan Framework. 

Key Changes 

5.14 The feedback that has been received from both the collaborative engagement between the 

council, the landowners and technical advisors, as well as through the public consultation 

process has been used to both help and inform the evolution of the scheme. All comments 

received in the process have been analysed and discussed in detail and the key changes 

that have been taken on board following the consultation process are as follows:  

Page 483



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 23 creative minds safe hands 
 

5.15 To ensure that the development truly accommodates a sustainable transport offer to 

improve accessibility and connectivity for pedestrians, cyclists and buses we have now 

prepared an interim travel plan which will lead to the over-arching aims, objectives being 

achieved and coordinated at the planning application stage. This includes appointment of a 

Travel Plan Manager and Travel Plan Coordinators for individual parcels. This follows 

comments from Highways England. 

5.16 The Movement Framework has evolved following comments from SYPTE and Stagecoach. 

The Masterplan Framework now includes details of temporary and permanent bus stop 

locations, service diversions, phasing of delivery and specifications for bus infrastructure.   

5.17 With regards to the design of sustainable travel infrastructure, the design principles have 

been developed in line with consultation feedback to encourage the use of sustainable travel 

routes, including; safe and attractive traffic-free routes with physical restrictions to prevent 

unauthorised access. 

5.18 Link road Option B (from Shortwood Roundabout) has been chosen as the preferred option 

when balancing the full range of opportunities and constraints of each option. Further 

consideration will now be given to the feasibility and technical design of this road. This will 

make sure that the design achieves the right status of road to address the concerns 

expressed by local residents regarding mitigating the impact on the local highway network, 

especially within Hoyland Common. The design of the road will also consider the ability to 

facilitate the diversion of an existing bus service through the Masterplan Framework area as 

requested by Stagecoach. The progression of Option B also aligns with a clear preference in 

the public consultation to retain existing trees and biodiversity features as this option allows 

the retention and enhancement of an existing biodiversity corridor to the west of ES17. 

5.19 Following the declaration of the Climate Emergency the Masterplan Framework now 

incorporates additional guidance on the council’s expectations on new development, and the 

level of detail required in Energy Statements that will be submitted in respect of individual 

planning applications. 

5.20 The network of footpath and cycleway provisions within the Masterplan Framework area and 

how these relate to key routes and destinations in the surrounding area has been refined 

following the constructive comments received by Trans Pennine Trail. This includes the 

provision of signposting to encourage users to access the wider area via sustainable modes 

of travel. 

Page 484



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 24 creative minds safe hands 
 

5.21 There have been refinements to the design approach between the proposed centrally 

located cricket pitches and play facilities, and the interface with the residential character 

areas to ensure that these facilities become a key focal point for the new community. This 

follows public comments which identified the preference for a range of facilities that are 

centrally located. These amendments help to promote key placemaking and health related 

principles for the wider community whilst also respecting and protecting the playing 

conditions and maintenance of an operational sports facility.  

5.22 We have given further consideration to the green infrastructure provision based on the 

responses we have received from local residents. The Framework now maximising 

opportunities for green space, wildlife and retention/enhancement of existing trees and 

vegetation, as these were considered the most important features in the public consultation. 

These features were also considered by respondents to be the most beneficial towards 

improving public health. 

5.23 Public feedback confirmed a preference for re-wilding and ponds/wetlands as sustainable 

urban drainage solutions. This has led to engagement with Yorkshire Wildlife Trust and Land 

Trust regarding the long term management of green space, biodiversity assets, attenuation 

basins and swales. 

5.24 We have developed detailed design principles for maximising views to important buildings 

(Hoyland Lowe Stand (Grade II Listed)). This includes delivery of strong landscape buffers, 

identifying opportunities for green roofs on employment buildings and using an appropriate 

colour palette for larger buildings so that they sit comfortably within the wider natural 

landscape. 

5.25 The Masterplan Framework promotes a range of different housing densities creating 

‘character areas’ that can accommodate a range of house types, tenures and sizes to reflect 

preferences expressed through the public consultation (cross-referencing with the most up-

to-date Strategic Housing Market Assessment). 

5.26 Following further consultation on the broadband infrastructure requirements, the Masterplan 

Framework has evolved to include a requirement for developers to deliver gigabit-capable 

full fibre broadband infrastructure across the Masterplan Framework area. It also 

incorporates design principles to minimise the impact of broadband infrastructure upon 

placemaking principles i.e. visual clutter in the streetscene and preventing the obstruction of 

footpaths and cycleways. 

Page 485



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 25 creative minds safe hands 
 

5.27 We have liaised further with the Architectural Liaison Officer from South Yorkshire Police to 

develop design principles which ‘design out’ crime. Feedback from the public consultation 

considered the following features to be important; well-lit walking and cycle routes, linking 

CCTV and lighting, and delivering well-overlooked greenspaces. South Yorkshire Police will 

continue to be consulted as planning applications are submitted. 

5.28 There has been an additional focus and scrutiny of evidence regarding the capacity and 

availability of key services and facilities particularly regarding health and education 

provision. 

Healthcare 

Public consultation feedback indicated concerns relating to healthcare capacity. Barnsley 

council has worked in partnership with the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) to develop a 

healthcare briefing note which sets out the current provision in Hoyland and a commitment 

to engage with local GP practices to plan and respond to growth, this may include workforce 

recruitment and/or upskilling the existing workforce. 

Primary school provision 

Based on current projections it is anticipated that intervention will be required by September 

2023 to address an anticipated shortfall in primary school places. It is considered that a 

potential solution is to expand an existing primary school(s) within Hoyland in order to 

deliver additional capacity. 

Secondary School Provision 

Secondary school capacity is available across the South School Place Planning Area into the 

foreseeable future although places in specific schools cannot be guaranteed. Barnsley 

Council will continue to work specifically with Kirk Balk Academy to manage pupil numbers 

through the admissions procedure given its close proximity to a number of masterplan 

framework areas.  However, the Council will also need to work with other secondary schools 

and developers on a wider basis within the planning area in order to ensure sufficient school 

places and promote sustainable travel as required. 

Notwithstanding the above, future school capacity will change as updated information on 

likely admissions becomes available.  Given the timescales involved in completing a 

development of this scale, school place capacity will need to be reviewed throughout the 

development to ensure that contributions are made if there is likely to be inadequate 

capacity within the planning area. 

Page 486



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 26 creative minds safe hands 
 

6.0 Conclusions  

6.1 The project team responsible for overseeing the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework has 

undertaken a comprehensive and meaningful consultation process on the evolving 

proposals. The methods and approach have taken into account relevant planning legislation, 

Government guidance along with the council’s Statement of Community Involvement and 

relevant planning policies found within the Local Plan. 

6.2 This Statement of Community Involvement provides details of the consultation process that 

has been undertaken through the involvement of key stakeholders and the local community. 

6.3 The public engagement strategy has made sure that the community of Hoyland was 

informed about the consultation process and there has been a sufficient level of information 

to allow them to make informed opinions and judgements. Irrespective of the high level of 

publicity there has been limited interest expressed which would tend to suggest that the 

nature and scale of development is uncontroversial. A large proportion of the respondents 

that have engaged in the process have expressed support for the proposal in principle and 

the concerns that have been raised have been dealt with as part of the Masterplan 

Framework process including technical matters such as transport, ecology, heritage, design 

and drainage. 

6.4 We have taken on board the constructive feedback and made refinements to enhance the 

proposals. Other more detailed matters raised within the community consultation process 

are beyond the level of detail being explored at the Masterplan Framework stage. Therefore 

these matters will be subject to further discussion with the council during the planning 

application stage. 

6.5 The project team has listened to the local community and taken its opinions on board where 

possible to develop a scheme they are willing to support.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 487



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 27 creative minds safe hands 
 

Appendix 1: Consultation Zone 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 488



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 28 creative minds safe hands 
 

Appendix 2: Example letter 

 

Page 489



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 29 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 490



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 30 creative minds safe hands 
 

Appendix 3: Press Notice and Newspaper Articles 

 

Page 491



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 31 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

 

Page 492



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 32 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 493



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 33 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 494



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 34 creative minds safe hands 
 

Appendix 4: Example social media posts 

 

Page 495



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 35 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 496



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 36 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 497



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 37 creative minds safe hands 
 

Appendix 5: Map of site notices 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 498



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 38 creative minds safe hands 
 

Appendix 6: Site Notice 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 499



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 39 creative minds safe hands 
 

Appendix 7: Display Boards 

 

Page 500



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 40 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 501



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 41 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

 

Page 502



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 42 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 503



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 43 creative minds safe hands 
 

Page 504



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 44 creative minds safe hands 
 

Page 505



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 45 creative minds safe hands 
 

Page 506



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 46 creative minds safe hands 
 

Page 507



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 47 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 508



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 48 creative minds safe hands 
 

Appendix 8: Hoyland Library display

 

Appendix 9: Public exhibition photo 

 

 

Page 509



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 49 creative minds safe hands 
 

Appendix 10: Questionnaire 

 

Page 510



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 50 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 511



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 51 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 512



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 52 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 513



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 53 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 514



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 54 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 515



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 55 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 516



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 56 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 517



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 57 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 518



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 58 creative minds safe hands 
 

Appendix 11: Video Extract 

 

 

Page 519



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 59 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 520



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 60 creative minds safe hands 
 

Appendix 12: WYG Webpage 

 

Page 521



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 61 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

 

 

Page 522



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 62 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 523



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 63 creative minds safe hands 
 

Appendix 13: Barnsley Council webpage 

 

Page 524



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 64 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Appendix 14: Initial social media schedule 

Date Message 

Monday 5th 
August 

12pm 

A community consultation exercise to gather views on the draft Hoyland North Masterplan Framework has been launched today. 

The consultation will run for six weeks, ending on Tuesday 17 September. #BuildIt #DevelopIt 

Read more about the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework here: barnsley.gov.uk/news/consultation-on-the-hoyland-north-
masterplan-framework-begins/ 

Complete the consultation here: wyg.com/hoyland-north 

Monday 
12th 

August 

6.30pm 

The first exhibition event for the public consultation on the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework takes place in two days’ time. 

Come to Kirk Balk Academy, West Street, Hoyland, S74 9HX from 3pm-7pm on Wednesday 14 August to read the consultation 
boards which give you all the information you need prior to filling in the questionnaire. #ChangeIt 

Read more about the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework here: barnsley.gov.uk/masterplanning 

Complete the consultation here: www.wyg.com/hoyland-north 

Wednesday 
14th 

August 

12pm 
[Video 1] 

The first exhibition event as part of the public consultation for the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework takes place today. 

Come along to Kirk Balk Academy in Hoyland (S74 9HX) between 3pm and 7pm to have a look at the consultation boards and fill 
in the questionnaire. #ChangeIt 

Read more about the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework here: www.barnsley.gov.uk/masterplanning 

Complete the consultation here: www.wyg.com/hoyland-north 

Sunday 18th Thanks to everyone who attended the exhibition event at Kirk Balk Academy for the draft Hoyland North Masterplan Framework 

P
age 525

https://www.facebook.com/hashtag/buildit?source=feed_text&epa=HASHTAG&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARCXMXGu6VdlS3VLCXRE0fYIqXV_vmwu-6BHnw-PHBcws7cbXOyiFkLyFfj6NEuCIiKTEEsRrfP9VHdlJzYvf2nSZT8p4DYMXZ0y_NvpwjGVb1k89VyT1LS1m3HT5Sggjyd3QBL6zg6EfAmbctad9XkQU-OE7ea_FvhTQxRlqeTjqT65nKQyQC09OO4O8hUOdOcPh96w97FSG8mRSDiJti5sa7tCtTT75d1AmKEcSC6FxN2rnbSXTMbvyhnAgS5U3_M8-T0abAWyQJOReKcS1bXp5pJ0ye3ZsIOiiSWj1ZqzpB1ipS1vBLNj7VU6FmdljVzZsU3FJURtp3IrtCGX&__tn__=%2ANK-R
https://www.facebook.com/hashtag/developit?source=feed_text&epa=HASHTAG&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARCXMXGu6VdlS3VLCXRE0fYIqXV_vmwu-6BHnw-PHBcws7cbXOyiFkLyFfj6NEuCIiKTEEsRrfP9VHdlJzYvf2nSZT8p4DYMXZ0y_NvpwjGVb1k89VyT1LS1m3HT5Sggjyd3QBL6zg6EfAmbctad9XkQU-OE7ea_FvhTQxRlqeTjqT65nKQyQC09OO4O8hUOdOcPh96w97FSG8mRSDiJti5sa7tCtTT75d1AmKEcSC6FxN2rnbSXTMbvyhnAgS5U3_M8-T0abAWyQJOReKcS1bXp5pJ0ye3ZsIOiiSWj1ZqzpB1ipS1vBLNj7VU6FmdljVzZsU3FJURtp3IrtCGX&__tn__=%2ANK-R
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/news/consultation-on-the-hoyland-north-masterplan-framework-begins/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/news/consultation-on-the-hoyland-north-masterplan-framework-begins/
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fwyg.com%2Fhoyland-north%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR0aL8Uy7W2r2lWLmVd0bjqAYH3Pwd5YWTBlo5inXCUrJRBcxftLEMU0qBU&h=AT201f952VAy5YusjwSeoVwK1hvXGbSssJJjxINrq9u1W7IBNPoggxcL2f8OCz_sAkKB1ca5z_3KSSQ7HmXczfnOpg2m9V0VpgIYba8Pam19S37Zw2sU9KiH737rEhqKRTnhe_h04jL-A-jWz1N52CEmnv3a3MII-bhUbaZdCq523_vxYESGQ1Hb_R_-5expVKryD1eK_U7UcKHodtV-syRa41iseytR37HcyMVgulP2bHolhiIpJJIwjt2aUViycs6S9-9j3Gxi20NQxS2uRbdfkw4p60CMSihEYAET1at3CsJ6AeA_XVyDaj3EtCJiaFc2NEzLBnBS8ht2D3Ix648ri9oKkagvq_emV0oKBNY79-WaUoxtm6uPfTDMXRcAmN_Xay57969NbY_nBdQ34buQsoe7oLT3sTJggDtzqQHyyDibKGr42BP9G66l2RxLZYuO9MBeGkcJUAkgV1uv5HBd_BMHbg31KsjNjsOWdsnkb53JYIA4u9HYhRtZyWgsQM1020ui-s5Rfrwu4wj-YI1ucrzAFcnCYK90GlgIc5wsA91NETLEQWCMyPO6R-ZOWZ3KRYjkRK62_7uZMeX9s5_McHPFvlRZKBlcC8ll5MrqTNsmrO8mSbGI
https://business.facebook.com/hashtag/changeit?source=feed_text&epa=HASHTAG&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARB_WDiRfBqbr_uhY7Z1nZ1G5cw7KhK_aIux__NO3LYggj6QBp8-d5uOHgj2442OcVHi7sc5yYMMRq9o881-TqYLeux-vOyFW3uiceiF2vAXuZlQYj4ia-QyEx9JLrC6CKL2ZuJ3DHioDoLlUNJJ-a09b3K_wC93hbhtbB0ErxqUNkiCuzQHDu02yDCU8hTiYxtw-XQ1LNtlZ_f5RfKx3jF0Q-OCFpFagdE56MftwG0WlxlMQdae_uJpYMF-vkaWlWZsXj0BerTpusF09b1gOjksrSLwhQt4s-YbTdHJCNrqEhfhqNpxm5kgqsg15XNJn86x4ZTfLXpI-kmsWz2e&__tn__=%2ANK-R
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fbarnsley.gov.uk%2Fmasterplanning%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR0wtWq6GZyTwy3bhUpEj54wnCoMRSkzL3ezj77KhSc03tRJnyP4C24KCgc&h=AT0VbNdF7kbSK6fBtj86Ytw7FNvtZU57f8-ayWFyr3o9agOGIqBEXZ2GNL1F_dtMuECcWAw6WSIer6o7gHIFwjHzvgJcniLU-3ovxB8-TRIk98g9XsB4d_5GtLaRRbUiJtft8tUw84Kg4eUt-JLxxYmEDoC8jxWmYt2SHTUgTivAxX9HJcZENmpcKkeIgzLWQNjEi5DNZqJRxrKX47_sPKmHd85ePcPePCgkNDMH4NdKuGqFs_jv4LmSTMY5i_Ca0ZkBVVaM6e-BQ5uGzQYmJx1uatAJtzuQdB6ZE9UZOeQXzFstH7WMJjbW1N-6i9cmLMBtVR4_8na2XZsxcGAzPyCMevldA458jBBj4p5POQQesAANGxiwgSOq5vmU7lZ002oYYxeD9rr1TsxmS_9D0hbWsN7dXYlPm_7nMaCqvlg0uIVtoPda7Wbe8QSw2eolnaLYdqAQIevOCUtrOEZ-4ndHD3HX3x2iD44cRoFjVWIQ3ECfZ-hrAuuXLrckcTT8-cjndcXw3g_8Dj8wPaVEMfqUmmvqdMI-wBlk8dHZVh6467CLeGUB5e0JrFVsFLlcAcvqsKeo2MDQGUKG-goMkeuJCqwLwCY7wHPVXvJYRL2YfgECBC_vumJM
http://www.wyg.com/hoyland-north?fbclid=IwAR12yoGpbOEH6NMDNjxjoz4qZprnt2pIYSR5QC6e2O2M4Iru8uIydvDcLsA
http://www.barnsley.gov.uk/masterplanning
http://www.wyg.com/hoyland-north


Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 65 creative minds safe hands 
 

August 

2pm 

last week. 

If you couldn’t make it, there’s another coming up on Thursday 29 August from 3pm-7pm, again at Kirk Balk Academy. 

Alternatively, consultation boards are available to view in Hoyland Library explaining the background and assessment work 
carried out so far. #ChangeIt 

Read more about the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework here: barnsley.gov.uk/masterplanning 
Complete the consultation here: wyg.com/hoyland-north 

Thursday 
22nd August 

10.30am 

[Video 2] 

You now have less than a month until the deadline to fill in the draft Hoyland North Masterplan Framework public consultation 
questionnaire passes. #ChangeIt 

Read more about the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework here: barnsley.gov.uk/masterplanning 
Complete the consultation here: wyg.com/hoyland-north 

Monday 
26th August 

1pm 

The final exhibition event for the draft Hoyland North Masterplan Framework takes place at Kirk Balk Academy, West Street, 
Hoyland, S74 9HX on Thursday from 3pm to 7pm. 

Come and view the consultation boards and fill in the questionnaire. #ChangeIt 

Read more about the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework here: barnsley.gov.uk/masterplanning 
Complete the consultation here: wyg.com/hoyland-north 

Wednesday 
28th August 

8.30am 

The second exhibition event for the draft Hoyland North Masterplan Framework takes place at Kirk Balk Academy, West Street, 
Hoyland, S74 9HX tomorrow. 

Drop in between 3pm and 7pm to see the consultation boards and fill in the questionnaire. #ChangeIt 

Read more about the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework here: barnsley.gov.uk/masterplanning 
Complete the consultation here: wyg.com/hoyland-north 

Tuesday 3rd Thanks to everyone who attended the exhibition events for the draft Hoyland North Masterplan Framework; we hope you found 

P
age 526

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/news/consultation-on-the-hoyland-north-masterplan-framework-begins/
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fwyg.com%2Fhoyland-north%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR0aL8Uy7W2r2lWLmVd0bjqAYH3Pwd5YWTBlo5inXCUrJRBcxftLEMU0qBU&h=AT201f952VAy5YusjwSeoVwK1hvXGbSssJJjxINrq9u1W7IBNPoggxcL2f8OCz_sAkKB1ca5z_3KSSQ7HmXczfnOpg2m9V0VpgIYba8Pam19S37Zw2sU9KiH737rEhqKRTnhe_h04jL-A-jWz1N52CEmnv3a3MII-bhUbaZdCq523_vxYESGQ1Hb_R_-5expVKryD1eK_U7UcKHodtV-syRa41iseytR37HcyMVgulP2bHolhiIpJJIwjt2aUViycs6S9-9j3Gxi20NQxS2uRbdfkw4p60CMSihEYAET1at3CsJ6AeA_XVyDaj3EtCJiaFc2NEzLBnBS8ht2D3Ix648ri9oKkagvq_emV0oKBNY79-WaUoxtm6uPfTDMXRcAmN_Xay57969NbY_nBdQ34buQsoe7oLT3sTJggDtzqQHyyDibKGr42BP9G66l2RxLZYuO9MBeGkcJUAkgV1uv5HBd_BMHbg31KsjNjsOWdsnkb53JYIA4u9HYhRtZyWgsQM1020ui-s5Rfrwu4wj-YI1ucrzAFcnCYK90GlgIc5wsA91NETLEQWCMyPO6R-ZOWZ3KRYjkRK62_7uZMeX9s5_McHPFvlRZKBlcC8ll5MrqTNsmrO8mSbGI
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/news/consultation-on-the-hoyland-north-masterplan-framework-begins/
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fwyg.com%2Fhoyland-north%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR0aL8Uy7W2r2lWLmVd0bjqAYH3Pwd5YWTBlo5inXCUrJRBcxftLEMU0qBU&h=AT201f952VAy5YusjwSeoVwK1hvXGbSssJJjxINrq9u1W7IBNPoggxcL2f8OCz_sAkKB1ca5z_3KSSQ7HmXczfnOpg2m9V0VpgIYba8Pam19S37Zw2sU9KiH737rEhqKRTnhe_h04jL-A-jWz1N52CEmnv3a3MII-bhUbaZdCq523_vxYESGQ1Hb_R_-5expVKryD1eK_U7UcKHodtV-syRa41iseytR37HcyMVgulP2bHolhiIpJJIwjt2aUViycs6S9-9j3Gxi20NQxS2uRbdfkw4p60CMSihEYAET1at3CsJ6AeA_XVyDaj3EtCJiaFc2NEzLBnBS8ht2D3Ix648ri9oKkagvq_emV0oKBNY79-WaUoxtm6uPfTDMXRcAmN_Xay57969NbY_nBdQ34buQsoe7oLT3sTJggDtzqQHyyDibKGr42BP9G66l2RxLZYuO9MBeGkcJUAkgV1uv5HBd_BMHbg31KsjNjsOWdsnkb53JYIA4u9HYhRtZyWgsQM1020ui-s5Rfrwu4wj-YI1ucrzAFcnCYK90GlgIc5wsA91NETLEQWCMyPO6R-ZOWZ3KRYjkRK62_7uZMeX9s5_McHPFvlRZKBlcC8ll5MrqTNsmrO8mSbGI
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/news/consultation-on-the-hoyland-north-masterplan-framework-begins/
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fwyg.com%2Fhoyland-north%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR0aL8Uy7W2r2lWLmVd0bjqAYH3Pwd5YWTBlo5inXCUrJRBcxftLEMU0qBU&h=AT201f952VAy5YusjwSeoVwK1hvXGbSssJJjxINrq9u1W7IBNPoggxcL2f8OCz_sAkKB1ca5z_3KSSQ7HmXczfnOpg2m9V0VpgIYba8Pam19S37Zw2sU9KiH737rEhqKRTnhe_h04jL-A-jWz1N52CEmnv3a3MII-bhUbaZdCq523_vxYESGQ1Hb_R_-5expVKryD1eK_U7UcKHodtV-syRa41iseytR37HcyMVgulP2bHolhiIpJJIwjt2aUViycs6S9-9j3Gxi20NQxS2uRbdfkw4p60CMSihEYAET1at3CsJ6AeA_XVyDaj3EtCJiaFc2NEzLBnBS8ht2D3Ix648ri9oKkagvq_emV0oKBNY79-WaUoxtm6uPfTDMXRcAmN_Xay57969NbY_nBdQ34buQsoe7oLT3sTJggDtzqQHyyDibKGr42BP9G66l2RxLZYuO9MBeGkcJUAkgV1uv5HBd_BMHbg31KsjNjsOWdsnkb53JYIA4u9HYhRtZyWgsQM1020ui-s5Rfrwu4wj-YI1ucrzAFcnCYK90GlgIc5wsA91NETLEQWCMyPO6R-ZOWZ3KRYjkRK62_7uZMeX9s5_McHPFvlRZKBlcC8ll5MrqTNsmrO8mSbGI
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/news/consultation-on-the-hoyland-north-masterplan-framework-begins/
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fwyg.com%2Fhoyland-north%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR0aL8Uy7W2r2lWLmVd0bjqAYH3Pwd5YWTBlo5inXCUrJRBcxftLEMU0qBU&h=AT201f952VAy5YusjwSeoVwK1hvXGbSssJJjxINrq9u1W7IBNPoggxcL2f8OCz_sAkKB1ca5z_3KSSQ7HmXczfnOpg2m9V0VpgIYba8Pam19S37Zw2sU9KiH737rEhqKRTnhe_h04jL-A-jWz1N52CEmnv3a3MII-bhUbaZdCq523_vxYESGQ1Hb_R_-5expVKryD1eK_U7UcKHodtV-syRa41iseytR37HcyMVgulP2bHolhiIpJJIwjt2aUViycs6S9-9j3Gxi20NQxS2uRbdfkw4p60CMSihEYAET1at3CsJ6AeA_XVyDaj3EtCJiaFc2NEzLBnBS8ht2D3Ix648ri9oKkagvq_emV0oKBNY79-WaUoxtm6uPfTDMXRcAmN_Xay57969NbY_nBdQ34buQsoe7oLT3sTJggDtzqQHyyDibKGr42BP9G66l2RxLZYuO9MBeGkcJUAkgV1uv5HBd_BMHbg31KsjNjsOWdsnkb53JYIA4u9HYhRtZyWgsQM1020ui-s5Rfrwu4wj-YI1ucrzAFcnCYK90GlgIc5wsA91NETLEQWCMyPO6R-ZOWZ3KRYjkRK62_7uZMeX9s5_McHPFvlRZKBlcC8ll5MrqTNsmrO8mSbGI


Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 66 creative minds safe hands 
 

September 

5.30pm 

it informative and useful. 

Another event is taking place at Hoyland Library on Monday 9 September from 5pm-6pm, where you can check out the 
consultation boards, which explain the background and assessment work that’s been carried out. 

Read more about the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework here: barnsley.gov.uk/masterplanning 
Complete the consultation here: wyg.com/hoyland-north 

Friday 6th 
September 

12.30pm 

Don’t forget the next exhibition event for the draft Hoyland North Masterplan Framework is taking place from 5pm to 6pm on 
Monday 9 September at Hoyland Library. 

It’s your chance to air your views on the proposal so please come along to have your say. 

Read more about the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework here: barnsley.gov.uk/masterplanning 
Complete the consultation here: wyg.com/hoyland-north 

Sunday 8th 
September 

1pm 

The latest exhibition event for the draft Hoyland North Masterplan Framework takes place at Hoyland Library tomorrow. 

Drop in between 5pm and 6pm to see the consultation boards and fill in the questionnaire. #ChangeIt 

Read more about the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework here: barnsley.gov.uk/masterplanning 

Complete the consultation here: wyg.com/hoyland-north 

Tuesday 
10th 

September 

9am 

You have just one week left to take part in the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework consultation. 

This is your opportunity to have your views heard and help in developing the future of Hoyland Common. #ChangeIt 
Read more about the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework here: barnsley.gov.uk/masterplanning 
Complete the consultation here: wyg.com/hoyland-north 

Friday 13th 
September 

3.30pm 

Have you filled in the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework consultation questionnaire yet? There are only four days to go 
before the closing date so if you live or work in the area please take time to make sure your views are put forward. #ChangeIt 

Read more about the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework here: barnsley.gov.uk/masterplanning 

P
age 527

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/news/consultation-on-the-hoyland-north-masterplan-framework-begins/
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fwyg.com%2Fhoyland-north%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR0aL8Uy7W2r2lWLmVd0bjqAYH3Pwd5YWTBlo5inXCUrJRBcxftLEMU0qBU&h=AT201f952VAy5YusjwSeoVwK1hvXGbSssJJjxINrq9u1W7IBNPoggxcL2f8OCz_sAkKB1ca5z_3KSSQ7HmXczfnOpg2m9V0VpgIYba8Pam19S37Zw2sU9KiH737rEhqKRTnhe_h04jL-A-jWz1N52CEmnv3a3MII-bhUbaZdCq523_vxYESGQ1Hb_R_-5expVKryD1eK_U7UcKHodtV-syRa41iseytR37HcyMVgulP2bHolhiIpJJIwjt2aUViycs6S9-9j3Gxi20NQxS2uRbdfkw4p60CMSihEYAET1at3CsJ6AeA_XVyDaj3EtCJiaFc2NEzLBnBS8ht2D3Ix648ri9oKkagvq_emV0oKBNY79-WaUoxtm6uPfTDMXRcAmN_Xay57969NbY_nBdQ34buQsoe7oLT3sTJggDtzqQHyyDibKGr42BP9G66l2RxLZYuO9MBeGkcJUAkgV1uv5HBd_BMHbg31KsjNjsOWdsnkb53JYIA4u9HYhRtZyWgsQM1020ui-s5Rfrwu4wj-YI1ucrzAFcnCYK90GlgIc5wsA91NETLEQWCMyPO6R-ZOWZ3KRYjkRK62_7uZMeX9s5_McHPFvlRZKBlcC8ll5MrqTNsmrO8mSbGI
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/news/consultation-on-the-hoyland-north-masterplan-framework-begins/
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fwyg.com%2Fhoyland-north%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR0aL8Uy7W2r2lWLmVd0bjqAYH3Pwd5YWTBlo5inXCUrJRBcxftLEMU0qBU&h=AT201f952VAy5YusjwSeoVwK1hvXGbSssJJjxINrq9u1W7IBNPoggxcL2f8OCz_sAkKB1ca5z_3KSSQ7HmXczfnOpg2m9V0VpgIYba8Pam19S37Zw2sU9KiH737rEhqKRTnhe_h04jL-A-jWz1N52CEmnv3a3MII-bhUbaZdCq523_vxYESGQ1Hb_R_-5expVKryD1eK_U7UcKHodtV-syRa41iseytR37HcyMVgulP2bHolhiIpJJIwjt2aUViycs6S9-9j3Gxi20NQxS2uRbdfkw4p60CMSihEYAET1at3CsJ6AeA_XVyDaj3EtCJiaFc2NEzLBnBS8ht2D3Ix648ri9oKkagvq_emV0oKBNY79-WaUoxtm6uPfTDMXRcAmN_Xay57969NbY_nBdQ34buQsoe7oLT3sTJggDtzqQHyyDibKGr42BP9G66l2RxLZYuO9MBeGkcJUAkgV1uv5HBd_BMHbg31KsjNjsOWdsnkb53JYIA4u9HYhRtZyWgsQM1020ui-s5Rfrwu4wj-YI1ucrzAFcnCYK90GlgIc5wsA91NETLEQWCMyPO6R-ZOWZ3KRYjkRK62_7uZMeX9s5_McHPFvlRZKBlcC8ll5MrqTNsmrO8mSbGI
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/news/consultation-on-the-hoyland-north-masterplan-framework-begins/
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fwyg.com%2Fhoyland-north%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR0aL8Uy7W2r2lWLmVd0bjqAYH3Pwd5YWTBlo5inXCUrJRBcxftLEMU0qBU&h=AT201f952VAy5YusjwSeoVwK1hvXGbSssJJjxINrq9u1W7IBNPoggxcL2f8OCz_sAkKB1ca5z_3KSSQ7HmXczfnOpg2m9V0VpgIYba8Pam19S37Zw2sU9KiH737rEhqKRTnhe_h04jL-A-jWz1N52CEmnv3a3MII-bhUbaZdCq523_vxYESGQ1Hb_R_-5expVKryD1eK_U7UcKHodtV-syRa41iseytR37HcyMVgulP2bHolhiIpJJIwjt2aUViycs6S9-9j3Gxi20NQxS2uRbdfkw4p60CMSihEYAET1at3CsJ6AeA_XVyDaj3EtCJiaFc2NEzLBnBS8ht2D3Ix648ri9oKkagvq_emV0oKBNY79-WaUoxtm6uPfTDMXRcAmN_Xay57969NbY_nBdQ34buQsoe7oLT3sTJggDtzqQHyyDibKGr42BP9G66l2RxLZYuO9MBeGkcJUAkgV1uv5HBd_BMHbg31KsjNjsOWdsnkb53JYIA4u9HYhRtZyWgsQM1020ui-s5Rfrwu4wj-YI1ucrzAFcnCYK90GlgIc5wsA91NETLEQWCMyPO6R-ZOWZ3KRYjkRK62_7uZMeX9s5_McHPFvlRZKBlcC8ll5MrqTNsmrO8mSbGI
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/news/consultation-on-the-hoyland-north-masterplan-framework-begins/


Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 67 creative minds safe hands 
 

Complete the consultation here: wyg.com/hoyland-north 

Tuesday 
17th 

September 

8am 

Today is the final day for you to give your thoughts and help to shape the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework by taking part 
in the consultation. #ChangeIt 
Read more about the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework here: barnsley.gov.uk/masterplanning 
Complete the consultation here: wyg.com/hoyland-north 

Tuesday 
17th 

September 

6.30pm 

The deadline for you to fill in the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework consultation questionnaire passes at midnight tonight. 

This is your chance to have your say and help shape the future of Hoyland Common so be sure to complete the 
consultation. #ChangeIt 

Read more about the Hoyland North Masterplan Framework here: barnsley.gov.uk/masterplanning 

Complete the consultation here: wyg.com/hoyland-north 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 528

https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fwyg.com%2Fhoyland-north%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR0aL8Uy7W2r2lWLmVd0bjqAYH3Pwd5YWTBlo5inXCUrJRBcxftLEMU0qBU&h=AT201f952VAy5YusjwSeoVwK1hvXGbSssJJjxINrq9u1W7IBNPoggxcL2f8OCz_sAkKB1ca5z_3KSSQ7HmXczfnOpg2m9V0VpgIYba8Pam19S37Zw2sU9KiH737rEhqKRTnhe_h04jL-A-jWz1N52CEmnv3a3MII-bhUbaZdCq523_vxYESGQ1Hb_R_-5expVKryD1eK_U7UcKHodtV-syRa41iseytR37HcyMVgulP2bHolhiIpJJIwjt2aUViycs6S9-9j3Gxi20NQxS2uRbdfkw4p60CMSihEYAET1at3CsJ6AeA_XVyDaj3EtCJiaFc2NEzLBnBS8ht2D3Ix648ri9oKkagvq_emV0oKBNY79-WaUoxtm6uPfTDMXRcAmN_Xay57969NbY_nBdQ34buQsoe7oLT3sTJggDtzqQHyyDibKGr42BP9G66l2RxLZYuO9MBeGkcJUAkgV1uv5HBd_BMHbg31KsjNjsOWdsnkb53JYIA4u9HYhRtZyWgsQM1020ui-s5Rfrwu4wj-YI1ucrzAFcnCYK90GlgIc5wsA91NETLEQWCMyPO6R-ZOWZ3KRYjkRK62_7uZMeX9s5_McHPFvlRZKBlcC8ll5MrqTNsmrO8mSbGI
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/news/consultation-on-the-hoyland-north-masterplan-framework-begins/
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fwyg.com%2Fhoyland-north%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR0aL8Uy7W2r2lWLmVd0bjqAYH3Pwd5YWTBlo5inXCUrJRBcxftLEMU0qBU&h=AT201f952VAy5YusjwSeoVwK1hvXGbSssJJjxINrq9u1W7IBNPoggxcL2f8OCz_sAkKB1ca5z_3KSSQ7HmXczfnOpg2m9V0VpgIYba8Pam19S37Zw2sU9KiH737rEhqKRTnhe_h04jL-A-jWz1N52CEmnv3a3MII-bhUbaZdCq523_vxYESGQ1Hb_R_-5expVKryD1eK_U7UcKHodtV-syRa41iseytR37HcyMVgulP2bHolhiIpJJIwjt2aUViycs6S9-9j3Gxi20NQxS2uRbdfkw4p60CMSihEYAET1at3CsJ6AeA_XVyDaj3EtCJiaFc2NEzLBnBS8ht2D3Ix648ri9oKkagvq_emV0oKBNY79-WaUoxtm6uPfTDMXRcAmN_Xay57969NbY_nBdQ34buQsoe7oLT3sTJggDtzqQHyyDibKGr42BP9G66l2RxLZYuO9MBeGkcJUAkgV1uv5HBd_BMHbg31KsjNjsOWdsnkb53JYIA4u9HYhRtZyWgsQM1020ui-s5Rfrwu4wj-YI1ucrzAFcnCYK90GlgIc5wsA91NETLEQWCMyPO6R-ZOWZ3KRYjkRK62_7uZMeX9s5_McHPFvlRZKBlcC8ll5MrqTNsmrO8mSbGI
https://business.facebook.com/hashtag/changeit?source=feed_text&epa=HASHTAG&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARDLwOkFCx24wn6LjWxa1ljtT-iJVUapa2ZzLfRUysDnWNIxNPf2VZYuZ3wlabtBlq6nCQBQjN2VWkrBY8RnbOmPDOOjtU0b4Czi0889WHzKOZdmKB0CqeU-rLrZHUkifXcMNk-4NZNK2ELoT_LnIxyFdQExAB2zVxvpSTb0kVAyNJFMg7R9ZM4WEo9V5EHrt5reoKZNTtafrGVzUpouyPgACzWuoNRVJBCZauvrZ-uyuCVK1IZ8sRnyoKH6tpw0VqV3rlm5USdjP2LHRDVQxdhifFtYO1whmtVQ2VGbBc-47Ba68KjCEsDNelWuDUKBdVv-hZzjgsXSy65nr0xxX7wLtqnAvMtN&__tn__=%2ANK-R
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fbarnsley.gov.uk%2Fmasterplanning%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR3ewR3diRmYnhuz5vUY_OOGyaencsiVS5eoJ4qabGdbgC3EFCzRBhKgW5s&h=AT3EhNx8nwVPUwGBWnqdZc5kFi9AAZiCxeJyHY-BJGQX6uVi6-78ooep8AKSyHQyziJgluitWHnx0toa7lGBS1tAUfZjoBIbNNUSnPIf10BMB0k9bw7H-7Tj8-RoKEFv1ibMhi9wmc7nNR34r-_H-940L5yJ423mnkyniGKKVXxvgkZk2tjYnDPE9mSIlL6Ay2OUsr3dbiN93e8EqsCZ95a6GPctProoeQSmIlHhdZ0nxLKSqWs-r6lBl4dU_kpsFxswLZe43N-pHLV5uDIRhLaEGsm8anPlAgGOXXVhmaLXW0aO39e10pEc8Kz3pPwg9X9IjdYyKoFuZvEdjlgIlidvcDtU9qOrXADn1gOmUrXFLSGgmrTWceAEuKc8xRP0a0TVs-sBxWigVM_zM-CyMB_dHw0VSdTvj8NxsNP3M8ys_-egXB_lNTiCbvhihGACbaoxgiPuMyyW4neUVwS6cj4JnPLzuxeyxdPHsXMVIP5Bd28aUVRozYNmjeKauoZKT_r3KausIbDpq0tNWejIXPVj3AfWrqY2y5mWdqsgs39fYMYPoRJECg9AEYI6lmlSnuOzse61hDSoZ1gFI4Xl3barTYECR-g3BoXNVgcBEgnok_Hp93Qh7Y1HgM2S5lG0ehIJX_X7
http://wyg.com/hoyland-north?fbclid=IwAR0GQNcZCBpcdwMUmzO0JKlwaOuHn3QRBfRH64J0_Uat3Px5zOy9gFyKeQQ


Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 68 creative minds safe hands 
 

Appendix 15: Barnsley Council Communication Evaluation 

 

 

P
age 529



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 69 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

 

P
age 530



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 70 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

 

 

P
age 531



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 71 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

 

P
age 532



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 72 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

 

 

P
age 533



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 73 creative minds safe hands 
 

P
age 534



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 74 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

P
age 535



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 75 creative minds safe hands 
 

P
age 536



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 76 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

P
age 537



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 77 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

P
age 538



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 78 creative minds safe hands 
 

P
age 539



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 79 creative minds safe hands 
 

Appendix 16: Consultation Summary  

 

Page 540



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 80 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 541



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 81 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 542



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 82 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 543



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 83 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 544



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 84 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 545



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 85 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 546



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 86 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 547



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 87 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

Page 548



Statement of Community Involvement  

   

  Report date: November 2019 
Reference: HG2122 

   
www.wyg.com 88 creative minds safe hands 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 549



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Equality Impact Assessment 

 

Service Name: Regeneration and Culture  

Your Name: Alison Dalton 

Contact Details: alisondalton@barnsley.gov.uk or 01226 772771 

Assessment Date: 19/07/2019 

Date of EIA Review: Post 17/09/2019 – upon close of public consultation 

This is EIA being carried out because we are making the following changes (please provide some 

background/context): 

We are proposing to undertake a six week public consultation on the Hoyland North Masterplan 
Framework (765 new homes and 37 hectares of employment land).  

We are making these changes because: 

The Local Plan requires large allocations to be subject to a Masterplan Framework to identify the 
infrastructure requirements and deliver sustainable and inclusive communities.  

We asked the following equality, diversity and inclusion questions to help us better understand the 

impact of the changes: 

1.  Do you agree with the vision of the Masterplan Framework which seeks to create a sustainable and inclusive 
community with high quality design and landscaping?  

2.  The Council will assess planning applications to ensure that an appropriate mix of housing is delivered. What 
kind of homes do you think the new development should provide? House Types 

3.  The Council will assess planning applications to ensure that an appropriate mix of housing is delivered. What 
kind of homes do you think the new development should provide? House Size 

4.  The Council will assess planning applications to ensure that an appropriate mix of housing is delivered. What 
kind of homes do you think the new development should provide? Tenure 

 

 

 

Page 551

mailto:alisondalton@barnsley.gov.uk


To help answer these questions we did the following things (e.g. service user or staff consultation, data 

analysis, research etc): 

1.  Present the vision within the public consultation questionnaire, quantify the number of 
respondents that answer ‘yes’, ‘no’ and ‘don’t know’ 

2.  Present a number of options within the public consultation questionnaire (house type – bungalow, 
apartment, terrace, semi-detached, detached). Asked participants to tick three options for house 
type preference. Allows the analysis of data and cross referencing with the Council’s housing needs 
assessment for the area 

3.  Present a number of options within the public consultation questionnaire (house size – one bed, 
two bed, three bed, four bed, five bed). Asked participants to tick three options for house size 
preference. Allows the analysis of data and cross referencing with the Council’s housing needs 
assessment for the area 

4.  Present a number of options within the public consultation questionnaire (house type – affordable 
rent and / or affordable home ownership, open market rent and/or owner occupation, mix of 
both). Asked participants to tick three options for housing tenure preference. Allows the analysis of 
data and cross referencing with the Council’s housing needs assessment for the area 

From this engagement/research/analysis we learnt the following things: 

1.  The overall response (79 respondents) was split between ‘yes’ (31), ‘no’ (32), ‘maybe’ (4) and ‘don’t 
know’ (10). We suspect that the underlying reason for the negative response relates to individuals 
objection to the principle of development rather than the vision of the Masterplan Framework.  
 
Gender:  

 33 male respondents (17 x yes, 11 x no, 3 x maybe and 2 x don’t know) 

 39 female respondents (11 x yes, 19 x no, 1 x maybe, 7 x don’t know and 1 x no response) 

 4 preferred not to specify gender (1 x yes, 2 x no and 1 x don’t know) 

 2 x blank gender responses (2 x yes and 1 x no response) 
Age:  

 Highest level of support from age groups 21-30 and 61-70  

 Lowest level of support from age groups 31-40 and 51-60 
 
Disability:  

 Majority of people ‘limited a little’ by disability supported the vision (44%) 

 Only respondent ‘limited a lot’ by disability did not support the vision 
 
Ethnicity:  

 Most people identifying as White did not support the vision (50%) 

 The majority of people identifying as British, English, Scottish, Welsh, or Northern Irish did 
support the vision (53%) 

 

2.  The Council will assess planning applications to ensure that an appropriate mix of housing is 
delivered. What kind of homes do you think the new development should provide? House Types 
 
Gender:  

 Male response in order of preference (top three): semi-detached (28%), bungalow (24%), 
detached (24%) 

 Female response in order of preference (top three): bungalow (28%), semi-detached (28%), 
detached (21%) 

 ‘Preferred not to state gender’ response in order of preference (top three): equally split 
between bungalows (25%), terrace (25%) and semi-detached (25%) 

Page 552



Age:  

 Age group 31-40 had greatest preference for bungalows (40%) 

 Age groups 41-50 and 61-70 had greatest preference for apartments (14%) 

 Age group 61-70 had greatest preference for terrace properties (19%) 

 Age groups 21-30 and 61-70 had greatest preference for semi-detached (27%) 

 Age group 31-40 had greatest preference for detached properties (30%) 
 
Disability:  

 Majority of people ‘limited a little’ by disability had preference for semi-detached (29%) and 
bungalows (28%) 

 Responded ‘limited a lot’ by disability did not respond to this question  

 Respondents not affected by disability had the greatest preference for (top three): 
bungalows (28%), semi-detached (24%) and detached (24%) 

 
Ethnicity:  

 Respondents identifying as British, English, Scottish, Welsh, or Northern Irish had greatest 
preference for (top three): bungalows (27%), semi-detached (26%) and detached (21%) 

3.  The Council will assess planning applications to ensure that an appropriate mix of housing is 
delivered. What kind of homes do you think the new development should provide? House size 
 
Gender:  

 Male response in order of preference (top three): 3 bed (31%), 2 bed (28%), 4 bed (19%) 

 Female response in order of preference (top three): 3 bed (32%), 2 bed (29%), 4 bed (19%)  

 ‘Preferred not to state gender’ response in order of preference (top three): 2 bed (29%), 3 
bed (29%), 1 bed and 4 bed equally split (14%) 

 
Age: 

 Age group 71-80 had greatest preference for 1 bed (31%) 

 Age group 61-70 had greatest preference for 2 beds (32%) 

 Age group 21-30 had greatest preference for 3 beds (35%) 

 Age group 21-30 had greatest preference for 4 beds (29%) 

 Age group 21-30 had greatest preference for 5 beds (12%) 
 
Disability:  

 Majority of people ‘limited a little’ by disability had preference for 2 and 3 bed properties 
(30%) 

 Responded ‘limited a lot’ by disability did not respond to this question  

 Respondents not affected by disability had the greatest preference for (top three): 3 beds 
(32%), 2 beds (27%) and 4 beds (19%) 

 
Ethnicity: 

 Respondents identifying as British, English, Scottish, Welsh, or Northern Irish had greatest 
preference for (top three): 3 beds (24%), 1 and 2 bed equally split (18%) 

4.  The Council will assess planning applications to ensure that an appropriate mix of housing is 
delivered. What kind of homes do you think the new development should provide? Housing tenure 
 
Gender:  

 Male preference: mix of both (36%) 

 Female preference: mix of both (57%) 

 ‘Preferred not to state gender’ preference: affordable rent and / or affordable home 

Page 553



ownership (50%) 
 

Age:  

 All age groups (where people responded) preferred a ‘mix of both’  

 Exception was age group 80+ where the responded preferred affordable rent and / or 
affordable home ownership 
 

Disability:  

 Majority of people ‘limited a little’ by disability had preference for open market rent and/or 
owner occupation (56%) 

 Responded ‘limited a lot’ by disability did not respond to this question  

 Respondents not affected by disability had the greatest preference for a mix of both (44%) 
 
Ethnicity:  

 All respondents had greatest preference of a mix of both  

Which groups will be most affected by the change? (Please delete rows and information that is not 

applicable): 

Protected 
characteristic 

Details of group 
affected  

 How will they be affected by your change 
(please give details): 

Degree of 
impact 

Sex     

Disability 

e.g. Learning disability, 
Physical disability, 
Sensory Impairment, Deaf 
People, Mental Health etc 

 

The majority of people with a disability 
supported the vision with a preference for 
semi-detached and bungalow property 
types with 2 and 3 bedrooms. The 
Masterplan Framework will deliver a range 
of property types and sizes therefore will 
cater for these preferences. 

 

Ethnicity   
Feedback from BME people was limited. It 
is anticipated that this is due to the low 
level of ethnic diversity within this area. 

 

Age 

Q1: Lowest level of 
support from age 
groups 31-40 and 
51-60 
 

 

The sites are allocated in the Local Plan 
therefore the principle of development has 
been established. It is anticipated that there 
is perhaps a misconception that resistance 
to the overall vision of the Masterplan 
Framework will stop development. It is 
noted that the highest level of support was 
from age groups 21-30 and 61-70. 
 

 

Other issues / characteristics you may wish to consider:  

Low income     

Carers     

Homeless     

Armed Forces     

Page 554



Veterans 

Other       

 

What practical steps will you take to make sure that the above changes are as fair and equal as possible?  
(e.g. will you monitor outcomes for diverse groups, will you include equality actions in your plan, will you change 

an approach to make it more inclusive etc): 
  Please tick  

Action Who? 

N
o

t 
d

u
e 

N
o

t 

st
ar

te
d

 

U
n

d
er

w
ay

 

B
eh

in
d

 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 

D
at

e 

u
p

d
at

ed
 

Include a section in the Masterplan Framework which 
confirms that the sites have been allocated in the Local 
Plan and that this vision relates to the Masterplan 
Framework.  

AD     x  

Review the updated SHMA (when available) to see how 
the data collected correlates 

AD  x     

        

        

        

        

 
 

Page 555



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Barnsley West (MU1) Masterplan Framework (Round 2) (Cab.11.12.2019/10)
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	001G.KM.Consultation Statement
	001F.KM.Consultation Statement with appendicies
	Binder3
	001F.KM.Consultation Statement
	Appendicies
	001E.KM.Consultation Statement FINAL_Part2
	001E.KM.Consultation Statement FINAL_Part3


	APP J Comms


	Appendix D

	3. Hoyland North Masterplan Framework (Round 2) (Cab.11.12.2019/11)
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4




